NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

120 Torbay Road, P.O. Box 21040, St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador, Canada, A1A 5B2

Hearing Transcript

Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro 2017 General Rate Application

April 25, 2018

The Board:

Darlene Whalen, Chair and CEO Dwanda Newman, Vice-Chair James Oxford, Commissioner

Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro:

Geoffrey Young, Counsel Alex Templeton, Counsel

Newfoundland Power Inc.: Gerard Hayes, Counsel

Liam O'Brien, Counsel

Consumer Advocate:

Dennis Browne, Q.C.

Island Industrial Customers

Dean Porter, Counsel Denis Fleming, Counsel

Labrador Interconnected Group*

Senwung Luk, Counsel

Iron Ore Company of Canada*

Benoit Pepin, Counsel

*Note - These two parties will not be in attendance every day

Board Counsel/Staff:

Jacqueline Glynn, Board Counsel Maureen Greene, Q.C., Hearing Counsel Cheryl Blundon, Board Secretary

Witness/Witnesses

Ms. Dawn Dalley, Vice-President of Regulatory Affairs and Corporate Affairs

Anril	25	2018	
Артп	<i>23</i> ,	2010	

1 (902 A.M.) 1 8, 2016, in which reference is specifically 2 CHAR: 2 made to the Water Management Agreement and 4 are no preliminary matters, so I guess we can go straight to you, Mr. Browne. 5 he importance of continuous energy coming 6 BROWNE, Q.C. 6 by the then President of Naloca and of 7 Q. Actually, there was one preliminary matter, 7 Hydro, I pressume. The upshot of the 8 Chair. 8 exchange is "Wilk Musicata Falls can meet 9 CHAR: 9 Chair. 9 10 Q. Ob, sory. 10 Churthil Rver are exploited the same way 11 Management Agreement, and I'd asked to 14 Martin is of the view that applying his 13 an undertaking in reference to the Water 16 are consistenable length and to the same way 18 conversation yesteduy to continue 18 and Musicat Falls production", 11 gues on 17 transcript and quoting Hydro, "I had a 17 art consistenable length and the Superior 2 19 conversation yesteduy to continue 18 and Musicat Falls production", 11 gues on 11 mater Managem		25, 2010			
2 CHAIR: 2 made to the Water Management Agreement and the importance of continuous energy coming are no preliminary matters, so I guess we can go straight to you, Mr. Browne. 3 the importance of continuous energy coming and tables about evidence presented 6 BROWNE, Q.C.: 6 by the then Presente of Value, and of 7 Q. Actually, there was one preliminary matter, Chair. 9 tis production goals if the reservoirs in 10 Q. Oh, sorty. 10 Charking in reference to the Water 13 13 an undertaking in reference to the Water 13 interpretation of the reservoirs in 14 Management Agreement, and in the 16 and Muskrat Talls production grantel depending 15 clariffy was there higging the conversation with Nalcor's councel, and 1 17 anosiderable length and the final 18 conversation with Nalcor's councel, and 1 16 and Muskrat Talls production". It goes on at considerable length and the final 18 conversation with Nalcor's councel, and 1 20 or councel granter Margement Agreement Agrement Agrement Agreement Agrement Agreement Agrement A			Page 1		Page 3
3 Q. Good morning, everybody. I understand there are no preliminary matters, so I guess we are no preliminary matters, so I guess we by the them President ON Alocy and of the map of the source of the source of the source of the by the them President ON Alocy and of by the them President ON Alocy and alocy and the them President ON Alocy and Unskern Falls production? I conversation with Nalor's coursel; and I by coursel; interpretation of the renewal coursel; inthe coursel; which if refers co	1	(9:02 A.M.)		1	8, 2016, in which reference is specifically
4 are no preliminary matters, so 1 guess we can go straight to you, Wr. Browne. 4 out of the Churchill. There's one paragraph here and it talks about evidence presented 5 BROWNE, QC.: 6 by the den President of Nakor, and of 7 Q. Actually, there was one preliminary matter, Chair. 7 Hydro, I presume. The upshot of the exchange is "While Mustrat Falls can meet its production goals if the reservoirs in 9 CHAIR: 9 its production goals if the reservoirs in 10 Q. O, Story, 10 Churchill River are exploited the same way. 11 that the yhave been for the last 40 years. 12 Wr. Marrin is of the view that gardypying his interpretation of the renewed contract would 14 13 an undertaking in reference to the Water 13 interpretation of the renewed contract would 14 14 Management Agreement, and I da kset to 15 charify was there litigation concerning the 15 17 at considerable length and the final 18 18 conversation with Alcor's cound, and I 19 Court of Quebee's 19 19 Court of Quebee's 10 20 can confirm what I said yesterday hal ther 20 20 can considerable length and the final 21 has been the bidget of any litigating the 22 validity of the Water Management Agreement, 22 court of Quebee's 20 court of Quebee's 20 21 has been this bidget of any lit	2	CHAIR:		2	made to the Water Management Agreement and
5can go straight to you, Mr. Browne.5here and it talks about evideen presented6BROWNE, Q.C.:6by the then President of Nalcor, and of7Q. Actually, there was one preliminary matter,7Hydro, J pressume. The upshot of the8Chair.8exchange is "While Maskart Falls can meet9CITAIR:9its production goals if the reservoirs in10Q. Oh, sorry.10Churchill River are exploited the same way11BROWNE, Q.C.:11that they have been for the last 49 years.12Q. Y esterday Hydro responded to an undertaking.12Mr. Martin is of the view that applying his13an undertaking in reference to the Water13interpretation of the renewed contract would14Management Agreement, and I'd asked to14be, to a certain point, guaranteed dopending15clarify was three lingtion concerning the16and Muskatra Falls production: J. geos on16conversation with Nalcor's contral.19Court of Quebec granted Hydro Quebec's20can confirm what I said yesteriday that there2Appellant is the Churchill Falls21has been no litigation challenging the21in the Quebec Court of Appeal, and the23and the Water Management Agreement.23Corporation, and the Churchill Falls24been the subject of any linggion in any24Corporation, and the Churchill Falls25court.1contrad, 'm 2008/2009, Nalcot of the renewed24been the subject of a	3	Q.	Good morning, everybody. I understand there	3	the importance of continuous energy coming
5can go straight to you, Mr. Browne.5here and it talks about evideen presented6BROWNE, Q.C.:6by the then President of Nalcor, and of7Q. Actually, there was one preliminary matter,7Hydro, J pressume. The upshot of the8Chair.8exchange is "While Maskart Falls can meet9CITAIR:9its production goals if the reservoirs in10Q. Oh, sorry.10Churchill River are exploited the same way11BROWNE, Q.C.:11that they have been for the last 49 years.12Q. Y esterday Hydro responded to an undertaking.12Mr. Martin is of the view that applying his13an undertaking in reference to the Water13interpretation of the renewed contract would14Management Agreement, and I'd asked to14be, to a certain point, guaranteed dopending15clarify was three lingtion concerning the16and Muskatra Falls production: J. geos on16conversation with Nalcor's contral.19Court of Quebec granted Hydro Quebec's20can confirm what I said yesteriday that there2Appellant is the Churchill Falls21has been no litigation challenging the21in the Quebec Court of Appeal, and the23and the Water Management Agreement.23Corporation, and the Churchill Falls24been the subject of any linggion in any24Corporation, and the Churchill Falls25court.1contrad, 'm 2008/2009, Nalcot of the renewed24been the subject of a	4		are no preliminary matters, so I guess we	4	out of the Churchill. There's one paragraph
6 BROWNE, Q.C.: 6 by the then President of Naloxi, and of 7 Q. Actually, there was one preliminary matter, 7 Hydro, I presume. The upshot of the 9 CHAIR: 9 exchange is "While Muskraf Fälls can meet 9 CHAIR: 9 its production goals if the reservoirs in 10 Q. Oh, sorry. 10 Churdill River are explorted the same way 11 an undertaking in reference to the Water 13 interpretation of the renewed ontract would 15 clarify was there hitigation concerning the 15 on water availability, of course, stability, 16 water Management Agreement, and 1 d askal to 16 and Muskraf Falls production". It goes on 17 transcript and quoting Hydro, "I had a 17 at considerable length and the final 18 conversation with Nalcor's counsel, and 1 20 coartation. This is now subject to appeal 18 conversation with Nalcor's counsel, and 1 21 conversation with Nalcor's counsel, and 1 23 and the Water Management Agreement hasn't tas 22 coartift and the caphotic Hass the Superior Count of Appeal, and the Superior Count of Appeal, and the Superior Count of 3 24 conversation with Na	5			5	here and it talks about evidence presented
7 Q. Actually, there was one preliminary matter, Chair. 7 Hydro, 1 presume. The upph of the exchange is "While Muskrat Falls can meet its production goals if the reservoirs in 0 CHAIR: 9 Chair. 8 cxchange is "While Muskrat Falls can meet its production goals if the reservoirs in 10 Q. Oh, sory. 10 Charchill River are exploited the same way that they have been for the last 40 years. 12 Q. Yesterday Hydro responded to an undertaking, an undertaking in reference to the Water 13 interpretation of the renewed contract would Muskrat Falls produced contract would pet to a certain point, guaranteed depending on water availability, of course, stability, and duoing Hydro, 'I had a 17 and usistrat Falls production''. It goes on a contract what I sait yesterday that ther 20 on water availability, of course, stability, and due Water Management Agreement, 21 19 Court of Quebec grated Hydro Quebec's 22 Appellant is the Churchill Falls 23 and the Water Management Agreement, 23 10 Comporation, and the Churchill Falls 24 been the subject of any hitigation in any 24 Corporation at paragraph S, which it refers 25 to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal 25 24 undertaking, and 1 refer Hydro to 2 proceedings declared in the Quebec Court 3 theory of the interpretation of the renewal 3 2	6	BROWNE, C		6	1
8 cxcharge is "White Muskrat Falls can meet 9 CHAR: 9 its production goals if the reservoirs in 10 Q. Oh, sorry. 10 Churchill River are exploited the same way 11 BROWNE, Q.C.: 11 that they have been for the list 40 years. 12 Q. Yesterday Hydro responded to an undertaking. 12 Mr. Martin is of the view that applying his 13 an undertaking in reference to the Water 13 interpretation of the renewed contract would 14 Management Agreement, and I'd asked to 14 be, to a certain point, guaranted depending 16 uard Water Management Agreement, and I 18 analysis and the usystot is that the Superior 19 conversation yesterday to confirm – 18 analysis and the usystot is that the Superior 20 can confirm what Isaid yesterday that there 20 declaration. This is now subject to appeal 21 has been no ligguiton challenging the 21 in the Quebe Court of Appeal, and the 23 and the Water Management Agreement hasn't 23 Corporation ap targath 55, which it refers 24 copartion on appeagath 55, which it refers 25 to the Judge' sinterpretation of the renewal <td>7</td> <td>, ,</td> <td></td> <td>7</td> <td>-</td>	7	, ,		7	-
9 CHAIR: 9 its production goals if the reservoirs in 10 Q. Oh, sory. 10 Charchill River are exploited the same way 11 BROWNE, Q.C.: 11 Charchill River are exploited the same way 13 an undertaking in reference to the Water 13 interpretation of the resewed contract would 14 Management Agreement, and 1'd asked to 14 be, to a certain point, guaranteed depending 16 Water Management Agreement, and i'n dasked to 14 and Muskrat Falls production?''. It goes on 17 transcrip and quoting Hydro, ''I had a 17 at considerable length and the final 18 conversation yesterday to confirm – 18 analysis and the upshot is that the Superior 20 can confirm what I said yesterday that ther 20 ccant of Queber granted Hydro Queber's 21 has been no litigation in any 24 Corporation, and the Churchill Falls 23 and the Water Management Agreement, 22 Appellant is the Churchill Falls 24 been the subject of any litigation in any 25 to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal 25 court? I have the Churchill Falls 3 Corporation, and the Churchill Falls 25 court? I have the decard in the Quebec court of 1 contract, "In 2008/200	8	χ.		8	
10 Q. Oh, sorry. 10 Churchill River are exploited the same way 11 BROWNE, Q.C.: 11 that they have been for the last 40 years. 12 Q. Yesterday Hydro responded to an undertaking. 12 Mr. Martin is of the view that applying his 13 an undertaking in reference to the Water 13 mit they have been for the last 40 years. 14 Management Agreement, and i'd aked to 14 be, to a certain point, guaranteed depending 15 clarify was there lingation concerning the 16 on water availability, of course, stability, 16 Water Management Agreement, and in the 16 and Muskrat Falls production". It goes on 17 transcript and quoing Hydro, "I had a 17 at considerable length and the final 18 conversation with Nalcor's counsel, and I 19 Court of Quebec granted Hydro Quebec's 21 has been no hitigation challenging the 21 in the Quebec Court of Appeal, and the 23 and the Water Management Agreement, and 22 Appellant is the Churchill Falls 23 court of Appeal, and the 21 corporation at paragraph 55, which it refers 24 been the subject of any litingation in any 2		CHAIR	Chun.		e
11 BROWNE, Q.C: 11 that they have been for he last 40 years. 12 Q. Yesterday Hydro responded to an undertaking. 12 Mr. Martin is of the view that applying his 13 an undertaking in reference to the Water 13 interpretation of the renewed contract would 14 Management Agreement, and I'd asked to 14 be, to a certain point, guaranteed depending 16 Water Management Agreement, and in the 16 on water availability, of course, stability, 16 Water Management Agreement, and in the 16 on water availability, of course, stability, 19 conversation with Nalcor's counsel, and 1 19 Court of Appeal, and the 20 can confirm what I said yesterday that there 20 declaration. This is now subject to appeal 21 has been no litigation in any 24 Corporation, and the Churchill Falls 23 and threeff Hydro to 1 contract, "In 2008/2009, Nalcor fabricated 24 proceedings declaration in 16 Valued es's interpretation of the renewed 2 proceedings declaration in 16 Court of the interpretation of the renewed 2 proceedings declaration in 10 Couptersin			Oh sorry		
12 Q. Yesterday Hydro responded to an undertaking, an undertaking in reference to the Water 13 interpretation of the view that applying his 13 an undertaking in reference to the Water 13 interpretation of the renewed contract would be, to a certain point, guaranteed depending on water availability, of course, stability, 16 Water Management Agreement, and in the transcript and quoting 114/0, "1 had a 16 and Muskrat Falls production". It goes on at considerable length and the final 17 transcript and quoting 114/0, "1 had a 17 an analysis and the upshot is that the Superior 19 conversation with Nalcor's coursel, and I 20 cac a confirm wata 1 sadi cystrady that thre 20 20 can confirm wata 1 sadi cystrady that thre 20 declaration. This is now subject to appeal 21 has been no litigation challenging the 21 in the Quebec Court of Appeal, and the 23 and the Water Management Agreement, and 22 Appellant is the Churchill Falls 24 been the subject of any litigation in any 24 Corporation and the Churchill Falls 24 proceeding and Linefer Hydro to 1 contract, "In 2008/2009, Nalcor fabricated 25 court". Thave to challenge that 25 to the Inderefer th					
13 an undertaking in reference to the Water 13 interpretation of the renewed contract/would 14 Management Agreement, and I'd asked to 14 be, to a certain point, guaranteed depending 15 clarify was there ittigation concerning the 15 on water availability, of course, stability, 16 Water Management Agreement, and in the 16 and Muskrat Falls production". It goes on 17 transcript and quoting Hydro, "I had a 17 at considerable length and the final 18 conversation with Nalcor's coursel, and I 19 Court of Quebec granted Hydro Quebec's 20 can confirm what I said yesterday that there 21 in the Quebec Court of Appeal, and the 21 has been no litigation in any 22 Appellant is the Churchill Falls 23 and the Water Management Agreement hasn 't 23 Corporation, and the Churchill Falls 24 been the subject of any litigation in any 24 Corporation and the Churchill Falls 25 to the Judge's interpretation of the renewed 1 contract. 'The 10040g described as a new 3 which have ended up in the Superior Court of 3 theory of the interpretation of the renewed 2 prec			-		
14 Management Ågreement, and I'd asked to 14 be, to a certain point, guaranteed depending 15 clarly was there itigation concerning the 15 on water availability, of course, stability, 16 Water Management Agreement, and in the 16 and Muskra Falls production". It goes on 17 transcript and quoting Hydro, "I had a 17 at considerable length and the final 18 conversation yesterday to confirm – 18 analysis and the upshot is that the Superior 20 can confirm what I said yesterday that there 20 declaration. This is now subject to appeal 21 has been no ltigation challenging the 21 in the Quebec Court of Appeal, and the 23 controating and the Water Management Agreement. 22 validity of the water Management Agreement, and 23 Corporation, and the Churchill Falls 24 been the subject of any litigation in any 24 Corporation of the renewal 25 24 undertaking, and I refer Hydro to 1 contract, "In 2008/2009, Nalcor fabricated 3 which have ende Quebec Court, 2 what the Trial Judge described as a new 4 Quebec, between Hydro, Quebec and Churchill 5 the roury of the		Q.			
15 clarify was there litigation concerning the 15 on water availability, of course, stability, 16 Water Management Agreement, and in the 16 and Muskart Falls production". It goes on 17 transcript and quoting Hydro, "I had a 17 arconsiderable length and the final 18 conversation yesterday to confirm – 18 analysis and the upshot is that the Superior 20 can confirm what I said yesterday that there 20 declaration. This is now subject to appeal 21 has been no litigation challenging the 21 in the Quebec Court of Appeal, and the 23 and the Water Management Agreement, and 23 Corporation, and the Churchill Falls 24 been the subject of any litigation in any 24 Corporation at paragraph 55, which it refers 25 court". I have to challenge that 25 to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal 2 proceedings declared in the Quebec Court, 2 what the Tiral Judge described as a new 4 Quebec, between Hydro Quebec and Churchill 4 contract. The theory was articulated for 6 Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in 6 Nakort Behydro, Thada and 7 reference to cert					-
16 Water Management Ågreement, and in the 17 16 and Muskrat Falls production". It goes on at considerable length and the final 18 18 conversation vesterday to confirm – 19 18 analysis and the upshot is that the Superior 20 19 court of Quebec granted Hydro Quebec's 20 can confirm what I said yesterday that there 21 20 21 has been no litigation challenging the 22 validity of the Water Management Agreement, 23 24 Corporation, and the Churchill Falls 24 23 and the Water Management Agreement, 24 25 to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal 25 25 court". I have to challenge that 25 25 to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal 26 26 proceeding declared in the Quebec Court of 3 theory of the interpretation of the renewal 4 1 27 proceeding declared in the Quebec and Churchill 4 contract. The theory was articulated for 4 1 3 which have ended up in the Superior Court of 4 4 contract. The theory was articulated for 4 6 Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in 7 reference cortain matters, and 7 Commissioners of Public Utilities for the 8 8 specifically in their declaration Hydro 9 Quebec ta faced thins wetheory, new and 10 considerable length. This is no			e e ,		
17 transcript and quoting Hydro, "I had a 17 at considerable length and the final inalysis and the upshot is that the Superior conversation with Nalcor's counsel, and 1 19 Court of Quebec granted Hydro Quebec's 19 conversation what I said yesterday that there 20 declaration. This is now subject to appeal 21 has been no litigation challenging the 21 in the Quebec Court of Appeal, and the 22 23 and the Water Management Agreement, 22 Appellant is the Churchill Falls 23 and the Water Management Agreement han't 23 Corporation, and the Churchill Falls 24 been the subject of any litigation in any 25 court". I have to challenge that 25 to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal 25 25 court". I have to challenge that 25 to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal 26 Page 4 2 undertaking, and I refer Hydro to 1 contract, "In 2008/2009, Nalcor fabricated 4 Quebec, between Hydro Quebec and Churchill 4 contract, the theory of the interpretation of the renewed 4 Quebec, between Hydro Quebec and Churchill 4 contract, mice in an application filed by 1 5 Falls labrador Corporation Limited, in which 6 Fulls abrador Corporation Hydro 8 approval of a Water Management Agreement on 6 7 reference oc cretian matters, and 7 Commissioners of Public Ulilities, fo					
18 conversation vesterday to confirm – 18 analysis and the upshot is that the Superior 19 conversation with Nalco's counsel, and I 19 Court of Quebec gratted Hydro Quebec's 20 can confirm what I said yesterday that there 20 declaration. This is now subject to appeal 21 has been no litigation challenging the 21 in the Quebec Court of Appeal, and the 23 and the Water Management Agreement, Agreement hasn't 23 Corporation, and the Churchill Falls 24 been the subject of any litigation in any 24 Corporation, and the Churchill Falls 25 court". I have to challenge that 25 to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal 2 which have ended up in the Quebec Court, 2 what the Trial Judge described as a new 3 which have ended up in the Superior Court of 3 theory of the interpretation of the renewed 5 Falls Labrador Corporation Limited, in which 5 the first time in an application filed by 6 Hydro Quebec, is seeking a declaration in 7 Commissioners of Public Utilities for the 8 specifically in their declaration Hydro 9 the Churchill River", and it goes on at 10			e e ,		1 6
19 conversation with Nalcor's counsel, and I 19 Court of Quebec 'granted Hydro Quebec's 20 can confirm what I said yesterday that there 20 declaration. This is now subject to appeal 21 has been no litigation challenging the 21 in the Quebec Court of Appeal, and the 22 validity of the Water Management Agreement, lasn't 23 Corporation, and the Churchill Falls 23 and the Water Management Agreement hasn't 23 Corporation at paragraph 55, which it refers 24 been the subject of any litigation in any 24 Corporation at paragraph 55, which it refers 25 court". I have to challenge that 25 to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal 29 Page 2 Page 4 1 undertaking, and I refer Hydro to 1 contract. The hoory was arcitulated for 3 which have ended up in the Superior Court of 3 theory of the interpretation of the renewal 5 Falls Labrador Corporation Limited, in which 5 the first time in an application filed by 6 Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in 6 Nalcor before the Newfoundland Board of 7 reference to certain matters, and 7 comis			1 1 0 5		ę
20 can confirm what I said yesterday that there 20 declaration. This is now subject to appeal 21 has been no lifigation challenging the 21 in the Quebec Court of Appeal, and the 22 validity of the Water Management Agreement hasn't 23 Corporation, and the Churchill Falls 23 and the Water Management Agreement hasn't 23 Corporation at paragraph 55, which it refers 24 been the subject of any litigation in any 24 Corporation at paragraph 55, which it refers 25 court''. I have to challenge that 25 to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal 2 proceedings declared in the Quebec Court, 2 what the Trial Judge described as a new 3 which have ended up in the Superior Court of 3 theory of the interpretation of the renewed 4 Quebec, between Hydro Quebec and Churchill 4 contract. The theory was articulated for 6 Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in 6 Nalcor before the Newfoundland Board Of 7 reference to certain matters, and 7 Commissioners of Public Utilities for the 8 specifically in their declaration Hydro 8 approval of a Water Management Agreement on 9 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>					
21 has been no litigation challenging the 21 in the Quebec Court of Appeal, and the 22 validity of the Water Management Agreement, 22 Appellant is the Churchill Falls 23 and the Water Management Agreement hasn't 23 Corporation, and the Churchill Falls 24 been the subject of any litigation in any 24 Corporation at paragraph 55, which it refers 25 court'. I have to challenge that 25 to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal 2 proceedings declared in the Quebec Court, 2 what the Trial Judge described as a new 3 which have ended up in the Superior Court of 1 contract, "In 2008/2009, Nalcor fabricated 4 Quebec, between Hydro Quebec and Churchill 4 contract, The theory was articulated for 5 Falls Labrador Corporation Limited, in which 5 the first time in an application filed by 6 Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in 6 Nalcore before the Newfoundland Board of 7 references - it refers to "Hydro 9 the Churchill River", and it goes on at 10 Quebec has faced this new theory, new and 10 constrable length. This is now subject to 11 unusual, t			conversation with Nalcor's counsel, and I		
22validity of the Water Management Agreement, 2322Appellant is the Churchill Falls23and the Water Management Agreement hasn't 2423Corporation, and the Churchill Falls24been the subject of any litigation in any 2524Corporation at paragraph 55, which it refers to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal25court". I have to challenge that25to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal26undertaking, and I refer Hydro to proceedings declared in the Quebec Court, 42which have ended up in the Superior Court of 3theory of the interpretation of the renewed 43which have ended up in the Superior Court of 40uebec, between Hydro Quebec and Churchill 4contract. The theory was articulated for the first time in an application filed by 66Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in 7reference to certain matters, and 87Commissioners of Public Utilities for the 8 approval of a Water Management Agreement on 99Quebec has faced this new theory, new and 10unusual, taking cognizance of an application 11appeal, it's a live issue before the Quebec 1213Commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB 1313of Mexfoundland. This request dated 1414of Newfoundland. This request dated 141415November 10, 2009, a copy which is 151516communicated", and this has been translated 161616communicated", and this has been translated 161717from the French as P-11, "was the 17 <td>20</td> <td></td> <td>can confirm what I said yesterday that there</td> <td>20</td> <td>declaration. This is now subject to appeal</td>	20		can confirm what I said yesterday that there	20	declaration. This is now subject to appeal
23 and the Water Management Agreement hasn't 23 Corporation, and the Churchill Falls 24 been the subject of any litigation in any 24 Corporation at paragraph 55, which it refers 25 court". I have to challenge that 25 to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal 25 undertaking, and I refer Hydro to Page 2 Page 4 1 undertaking, and I refer Hydro to 2 contract, "In 2008/2009, Nalcor fabricated 3 which have ended up in the Superior Court of 3 theory of the interpretation of the renewed 4 Quebec, between Hydro Quebec and Churchill 4 contract. The theory was articulated for 5 Falls Labrador Corporation Limited, in which 5 the first time in an application filed by 6 Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in 7 Commissioners of Public Utilities for the 8 specifically in their declaration Hydro 8 approval of a Water Management Agreement on 9 Quebec has faced this new theory, new and 10 considerable length. This is now subject to 11 unusual, taking cognizance of an application 11 appee 4 14 of Newfoundland. This request dated 14	21		has been no litigation challenging the	21	in the Quebec Court of Appeal, and the
24been the subject of any litigation in any 2524Corporation at paragraph 55, which it refers to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal25court". I have to challenge that25to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal26Page 2Page 41undertaking, and I refer Hydro to 21contract, "In 2008/2009, Nalcor fabricated what the Trial Judge described as a new theory of the interpretation of the renewed3which have ended up in the Superior Court of 42what the Trial Judge described as a new theory of the interpretation of the renewed4Quebec, between Hydro Quebec and Churchill 54contract. The theory was articulated for 55Falls Labrador Corporation Limited, in which 65the first time in an application filed by 86Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in 76Nalcor before the Newfoundland Board of 77reference to certain matters, and 87Commissioners of Public Utilities for the 8 approval of a Water Management Agreement on 910Quebec has faced this new theory, new and 11unusual, taking cognizance of an application 11 appeal, it's a live issue before the Quebec 1211unusual, taking cognizance of an application 1311 commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB 1313Commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB 13of my knowledge, has thus far not filed as 1414of Newfoundland. This request dated 141415November 10, 2009, a copy which is 151516comm	22		validity of the Water Management Agreement,	22	Appellant is the Churchill Falls
25 court". I have to challenge that 25 to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal Page 2 Page 4 Page 4 1 undertaking, and I refer Hydro to 1 contract, "In 2008/2009, Nalcor fabricated 2 proceedings declared in the Quebec Court, 2 what the Trial Judge described as a new 3 which have ended up in the Superior Court of 3 theory of the interpretation of the renewed 4 Quebec, between Hydro Quebec and Churchill 4 contract. The theory was articulated for 5 Falls Labrador Corporation Limited, in which 5 the first time in an application filed by 6 Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in 6 Nalcor before the Newfoundland Board of 7 references - it refers to "Hydro 8 approval of a Water Management Agreement on 9 Quebec references - it refers to "Hydro 9 the Churchill River", and it goes on at 10 Quebec and copinic Utilities, the PUB 13 of my knowledge, has thus far not filed as 14 of Newfoundland. This request dated 14 Respondent. It has been set down by the 15 November 10,	23		and the Water Management Agreement hasn't	23	Corporation, and the Churchill Falls
25 court". I have to challenge that 25 to the Judge's interpretation of the renewal Page 2 Page 2 Page 4 1 undertaking, and I refer Hydro to 1 contract, "In 2008/2009, Nalcor fabricated 3 which have ended up in the Superior Court of 3 theory of the interpretation of the renewed 4 Quebec, between Hydro Quebec and Churchill 4 contract. The theory was articulated for 5 Falls Labrador Corporation Limited, in which 5 the first time in an application filed by 6 Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in 6 Nalcor before the Newfoundland Board of 7 reference to certain matters, and 7 Commissioners of Public Utilities for the 8 specifically in their declaration Hydro 8 approval of a Water Management Agreement on 9 Quebec has faced this new theory, new and 10 considerable length. This is now subject to 11 unusual, taking cognizance of an application 11 appeal, it's a live issue before the Quebec 12 presented by Nalcor to the Board of 12 Court of Appeal. Hydro Quebec, to the best 13	24		been the subject of any litigation in any	24	Corporation at paragraph 55, which it refers
Page 2Page 21undertaking, and I refer Hydro to12proceedings declared in the Quebec Court,23which have ended up in the Superior Court of34Quebec, between Hydro Quebec and Churchill45Falls Labrador Corporation Limited, in which56Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in67reference to certain matters, and78specifically in their declaration Hydro89Quebec references - it refers to "Hydro99Quebec has faced this new theory, new and1010Quebec has faced this new theory, new and1011unusual, taking cognizance of an application1112presented by Nalcor to the Board of1213Commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB1314of Newfoundland. This request dated1414of Newfoundland. This request dated1415November 10, 2009, a copy which is1516communicated", and this has been translated1617from the French as P-11, "was the1618establishment of a Water Management1819Agreement on the Churchill River between1919Agreement on the Churchill River between1919Agreement on the Churchill River between1910for the Board dir flucter state the2011unusual, taking cognizance of an application1111unusual, taking cognizance	25			25	
1undertaking, and I refer Hydro to1contract, "In 2008/2009, Nalcor fabricated2proceedings declared in the Quebec Court,2what the Trial Judge described as a new3which have ended up in the Superior Court of3theory of the interpretation of the renewed4Quebec, between Hydro Quebec and Churchill4contract. The theory was articulated for5Falls Labrador Corporation Limited, in which5the first time in an application filed by6Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in6Nalcor before the Newfoundland Board of7reference to certain matters, and7Commissioners of Public Utilities for the8specifically in their declaration Hydro8approval of a Water Management Agreement on9Quebec has faced this new theory, new and10considerable length. This is now subject to11unusual, taking cognizance of an application11appeal, it's a live issue before the Quebec12presented by Nalcor to the Board of12Court of Appeal. Hydro Quebec, to the best13Commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB13of my knowledge, has thus far not filed as14of Newfoundland. This request dated14Respondent. It has been set down by the15November 10, 2009, a copy which is15Quebec Court of Appeal lib eh heard later16communicated", and this has been translated16this year, early 2019. My question to Hydro17from the French as P-11, "was the17is can you please go back, re-examine					U
2proceedings declared in the Quebec Court, 32what the Trial Judge described as a new theory of the interpretation of the renewed contract. The theory was articulated for the first time in an application filed by3Which have ended up in the Superior Court of 43theory of the interpretation of the renewed contract. The theory was articulated for the first time in an application filed by4Quebec, between Hydro Quebec and Churchill 64contract. The theory was articulated for the first time in an application filed by6Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in 66Nalcor before the Newfoundland Board of approval of a Water Management Agreement on approval of a Water Management Agreement on to Quebec references – it refers to "Hydro 989Quebec has faced this new theory, new and 1010considerable length. This is now subject to appeal, it's a live issue before the Quebec 1211unusual, taking cognizance of an application 1111appeal, it's a live issue before the Quebec12presented by Nalcor to the Board of 1212Court of Appeal. Hydro Quebec, to the best13commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB 1313of Newfoundland. This request dated 1414of Newfoundland. This request dated 1414Respondent. It has been set down by the 1516communicated", and this has been translated 1616this year, carly 2019. My question to Hydro 1717from the French as P-11, "was the 1717is can you please go back, re-examine your 1818establishm	1			1	-
3which have ended up in the Superior Court of Quebec, between Hydro Quebec and Churchill3theory of the interpretation of the renewed contract. The theory was articulated for5Falls Labrador Corporation Limited, in which 64contract. The theory was articulated for6Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in reference to certain matters, and 97Commissioners of Public Utilities for the approval of a Water Management Agreement on 109Quebec references – it refers to "Hydro 99the Churchill River", and it goes on at 1010Quebec has faced this new theory, new and 1110considerable length. This is now subject to appeal, it's a live issue before the Quebec 1212presented by Nalcor to the Board of 1212Court of Appeal. Hydro Quebec, the best 1313Commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB 1313of my knowledge, has thus far not filed as appeal, it's a live issue before the Quebec14of Newfoundland. This request dated 1414Respondent. It has been set down by the tis can you please go back, re-examine your records and all involved, and please clarify17from the French as P-11, "was the 1317is can you please go back, re-examine your records and all involved, and please clarify19Agreement on the Churchill River between 1419for the Board that you still state that the 2022under the contract renewal". The matter 2222the water Management Agreement has not been subject to litigation in any court.23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and	$\frac{1}{2}$			2	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
4Quebec, between Hydro Quebec and Churchill Falls Labrador Corporation Limited, in which 64contract. The theory was articulated for the first time in an application filed by6Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in 76Nalcor before the Newfoundland Board of 77reference to certain matters, and 87Commissioners of Public Utilities for the 8 approval of a Water Management Agreement on 99Quebec references – it refers to "Hydro 98approval of a Water Management Agreement on 1010Quebec has faced this new theory, new and 1010considerable length. This is now subject to 1111unusual, taking cognizance of an application 1211appeal, it's a live issue before the Quebec 1212presented by Nalcor to the Board of 1212Court of Appeal. Hydro Quebec, to the best 1313Commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB 1313of Newfoundland. This request dated 1414of Newfoundland. This request dated 1414Respondent. It has been set down by the 1515November 10, 2009, a copy which is 1615Quebec court of Appeal to be heard later 1616communicated", and this has been translated 1616this year, early 2019. My question to Hydro 1718establishment of a Water Management 1818records and all involved, and please clarify 1919Agreement on the Churchill River between 2019for the Board that you still state that the 2020Nalcor and CF(L)Co, and included s	$\begin{bmatrix} 2\\ 2 \end{bmatrix}$				
5Falls Labrador Corporation Limited, in which 65the first time in an application filed by6Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in 76Nalcor before the Newfoundland Board of7reference to certain matters, and 87Commissioners of Public Utilities for the 88specifically in their declaration Hydro 98approval of a Water Management Agreement on 99Quebec references – it refers to "Hydro 99the Churchill River", and it goes on at 1010Quebec has faced this new theory, new and 1110considerable length. This is now subject to 1111unusual, taking cognizance of an application 1111appeal, it's a live issue before the Quebec12presented by Nalcor to the Board of 1212Court of Appeal. Hydro Quebec, to the best13Commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB 1313of my knowledge, has thus far not filed as 1414of Newfoundland. This request dated 1414Respondent. It has been set down by the 1515November 10, 2009, a copy which is 1615Quebec Court of Appeal to be heard later 1616communicated", and this has been translated 1616this year, early 2019. My question to Hydro 1718establishment of a Water Management 1818records and all involved, and please clarify19Agreement on the Churchill River between 2119for the Board that you still state that the 2022under the contract renewal". The matter 2223<					-
6Hydro Quebec is seeking a declaration in reference to certain matters, and6Nalcor before the Newfoundland Board of7reference to certain matters, and7Commissioners of Public Utilities for the8specifically in their declaration Hydro8approval of a Water Management Agreement on9Quebec references – it refers to "Hydro9the Churchill River", and it goes on at10Quebec has faced this new theory, new and10considerable length. This is now subject to11unusual, taking cognizance of an application11appeal, it's a live issue before the Quebec12presented by Nalcor to the Board of12Court of Appeal. Hydro Quebec, to the best13Commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB13of my knowledge, has thus far not filed as14of Newfoundland. This request dated14Respondent. It has been set down by the15November 10, 2009, a copy which is15Quebec Court of Appeal to be heard later16communicated", and this has been translated16this year, early 2019. My question to Hydro17from the French as P-11, "was the17is can you please go back, re-examine your18establishment of a Water Management20Water Management Agreement has not been21containing Nalcor and rights of Hydro Quebec21subject to litigation, and the validity of22under the contract renewal". The matter22the Water Management Agreement has n't been23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a23				4	
7reference to certain matters, and specifically in their declaration Hydro7Commissioners of Public Utilities for the approval of a Water Management Agreement on 99Quebec references – it refers to "Hydro9the Churchill River", and it goes on at 10010Quebec has faced this new theory, new and 11unusual, taking cognizance of an application 1211appeal, it's a live issue before the Quebec12presented by Nalcor to the Board of 1212Court of Appeal. Hydro Quebec, to the best13Commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB 1313of my knowledge, has thus far not filed as14of Newfoundland. This request dated14Respondent. It has been set down by the15November 10, 2009, a copy which is 1615Quebec Court of Appeal to be heard later16communicated", and this has been translated 1716this year, early 2019. My question to Hydro18establishment of a Water Management 2018records and all involved, and please clarify19Agreement on the Churchill River between 2119for the Board that you still state that the20Nalcor and CF(L)Co, and included statements 2120Water Management Agreement has not been23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a 2323the subject of any litigation in any court.24judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay 2525CHAIR:	3		1	3	
8specifically in their declaration Hydro8approval of a Water Management Agreement on9Quebec references – it refers to "Hydro9the Churchill River", and it goes on at10Quebec has faced this new theory, new and10considerable length. This is now subject to11unusual, taking cognizance of an application11appeal, it's a live issue before the Quebec12presented by Nalcor to the Board of12Court of Appeal. Hydro Quebec, to the best13Commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB13of my knowledge, has thus far not filed as14of Newfoundland. This request dated14Respondent. It has been set down by the15November 10, 2009, a copy which is15Quebec Court of Appeal to be heard later16communicated", and this has been translated16this year, early 2019. My question to Hydro17from the French as P-11, "was the17is can you please go back, re-examine your18establishment of a Water Management18records and all involved, and please clarify19Agreement on the Churchill River between19for the Board that you still state that the20Water Management Agreement hasn't been2121containing Nalcor and rights of Hydro Quebec2122under the contract renewal". The matter2223went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a2324judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay2425of the Superior Court of Quebec dated August25	6			6	
9Quebec references – it refers to "Hydro9the Churchill River", and it goes on at10Quebec has faced this new theory, new and10considerable length. This is now subject to11unusual, taking cognizance of an application11appeal, it's a live issue before the Quebec12presented by Nalcor to the Board of12Court of Appeal. Hydro Quebec, to the best13Commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB13of my knowledge, has thus far not filed as14of Newfoundland. This request dated14Respondent. It has been set down by the15November 10, 2009, a copy which is15Quebec Court of Appeal to be heard later16communicated", and this has been translated16this year, early 2019. My question to Hydro17from the French as P-11, "was the17is can you please go back, re-examine your18establishment of a Water Management18records and all involved, and please clarify19Agreement on the Churchill River between19for the Board that you still state that the20Nalcor and CF(L)Co, and included statements20Water Management Agreement has not been21containing Nalcor and rights of Hydro Quebec21subject to litigation, and the validity of22under the contract renewal". The matter22the Water Management Agreement hasn't been23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a23the subject of any litigation in any court.24judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay24Thank y	1			1	
10Quebec has faced this new theory, new and 1110considerable length. This is now subject to appeal, it's a live issue before the Quebec12presented by Nalcor to the Board of 1212Court of Appeal. Hydro Quebec, to the best13Commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB 1313of my knowledge, has thus far not filed as14of Newfoundland. This request dated 1514Respondent. It has been set down by the16communicated", and this has been translated 1616this year, early 2019. My question to Hydro17from the French as P-11, "was the 1717is can you please go back, re-examine your18establishment of a Water Management 1918records and all involved, and please clarify19Agreement on the Churchill River between 2100Water Management Agreement has not been 2122under the contract renewal". The matter 2222under the contract renewal". The matter 232323went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a 232323the subject of any litigation in any court. 2424judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay 250425CHAIR:			1 5 5		
11unusual, taking cognizance of an application11appeal, it's a live issue before the Quebec12presented by Nalcor to the Board of12Court of Appeal. Hydro Quebec, to the best13Commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB13of my knowledge, has thus far not filed as14of Newfoundland. This request dated14Respondent. It has been set down by the15November 10, 2009, a copy which is15Quebec Court of Appeal to be heard later16communicated", and this has been translated16this year, early 2019. My question to Hydro17from the French as P-11, "was the17is can you please go back, re-examine your18establishment of a Water Management18records and all involved, and please clarify19Agreement on the Churchill River between19for the Board that you still state that the20Nalcor and CF(L)Co, and included statements20Water Management Agreement has not been21containing Nalcor and rights of Hydro Quebec21subject to litigation, and the validity of22under the contract renewal". The matter22the Water Management Agreement hasn't been23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a23the subject of any litigation in any court.24judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay24Thank you very much.25of the Superior Court of Quebec dated August25CHAIR:			· · · ·		
12presented by Nalcor to the Board of12Court of Appeal. Hydro Quebec, to the best13Commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB13of my knowledge, has thus far not filed as14of Newfoundland. This request dated14Respondent. It has been set down by the15November 10, 2009, a copy which is15Quebec Court of Appeal to be heard later16communicated", and this has been translated16this year, early 2019. My question to Hydro17from the French as P-11, "was the17is can you please go back, re-examine your18establishment of a Water Management18records and all involved, and please clarify19Agreement on the Churchill River between19for the Board that you still state that the20Nalcor and CF(L)Co, and included statements20Water Management Agreement has not been21containing Nalcor and rights of Hydro Quebec21subject to litigation, and the validity of23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a23the subject of any litigation in any court.24judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay24Thank you very much.25of the Superior Court of Quebec dated August25CHAIR:	10		· · ·	10	e ,
13Commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB13of my knowledge, has thus far not filed as14of Newfoundland. This request dated14Respondent. It has been set down by the15November 10, 2009, a copy which is15Quebec Court of Appeal to be heard later16communicated", and this has been translated16this year, early 2019. My question to Hydro17from the French as P-11, "was the17is can you please go back, re-examine your18establishment of a Water Management18records and all involved, and please clarify19Agreement on the Churchill River between19for the Board that you still state that the20Nalcor and CF(L)Co, and included statements20Water Management Agreement has not been21containing Nalcor and rights of Hydro Quebec21subject to litigation, and the validity of22under the contract renewal". The matter22the Water Management Agreement hasn't been23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a23the subject of any litigation in any court.24judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay24Thank you very much.25of the Superior Court of Quebec dated August25CHAIR:	11		unusual, taking cognizance of an application		
14of Newfoundland. This request dated14Respondent. It has been set down by the15November 10, 2009, a copy which is15Quebec Court of Appeal to be heard later16communicated", and this has been translated16this year, early 2019. My question to Hydro17from the French as P-11, "was the17is can you please go back, re-examine your18establishment of a Water Management18records and all involved, and please clarify19Agreement on the Churchill River between19for the Board that you still state that the20Nalcor and CF(L)Co, and included statements20Water Management Agreement has not been21containing Nalcor and rights of Hydro Quebec21subject to litigation, and the validity of22under the contract renewal". The matter22the Water Management Agreement hasn't been23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a23the subject of any litigation in any court.24judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay24Thank you very much.25of the Superior Court of Quebec dated August25CHAIR:	12		presented by Nalcor to the Board of	12	Court of Appeal. Hydro Quebec, to the best
15November 10, 2009, a copy which is15Quebec Court of Appeal to be heard later16communicated", and this has been translated16this year, early 2019. My question to Hydro17from the French as P-11, "was the16is can you please go back, re-examine your18establishment of a Water Management18records and all involved, and please clarify19Agreement on the Churchill River between19for the Board that you still state that the20Nalcor and CF(L)Co, and included statements20Water Management Agreement has not been21containing Nalcor and rights of Hydro Quebec21subject to litigation, and the validity of22under the contract renewal". The matter22the Water Management Agreement hasn't been23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a23the subject of any litigation in any court.24judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay24Thank you very much.25of the Superior Court of Quebec dated August25CHAIR:	13		Commissioners of Public Utilities, the PUB	13	of my knowledge, has thus far not filed as
16communicated", and this has been translated16this year, early 2019. My question to Hydro17from the French as P-11, "was the17is can you please go back, re-examine your18establishment of a Water Management18records and all involved, and please clarify19Agreement on the Churchill River between19for the Board that you still state that the20Nalcor and CF(L)Co, and included statements20Water Management Agreement has not been21containing Nalcor and rights of Hydro Quebec21subject to litigation, and the validity of22under the contract renewal". The matter22the Water Management Agreement hasn't been23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a23the subject of any litigation in any court.24judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay24Thank you very much.25of the Superior Court of Quebec dated August25CHAIR:	14		of Newfoundland. This request dated	14	Respondent. It has been set down by the
16communicated", and this has been translated16this year, early 2019. My question to Hydro17from the French as P-11, "was the17is can you please go back, re-examine your18establishment of a Water Management18records and all involved, and please clarify19Agreement on the Churchill River between19for the Board that you still state that the20Nalcor and CF(L)Co, and included statements20Water Management Agreement has not been21containing Nalcor and rights of Hydro Quebec21subject to litigation, and the validity of22under the contract renewal". The matter22the Water Management Agreement hasn't been23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a23the subject of any litigation in any court.24judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay24Thank you very much.25of the Superior Court of Quebec dated August25CHAIR:	15		-	15	
17from the French as P-11, "was the establishment of a Water Management17is can you please go back, re-examine your records and all involved, and please clarify18establishment of a Water Management18records and all involved, and please clarify19Agreement on the Churchill River between19for the Board that you still state that the20Nalcor and CF(L)Co, and included statements20Water Management Agreement has not been21containing Nalcor and rights of Hydro Quebec21subject to litigation, and the validity of22under the contract renewal". The matter22the Water Management Agreement hasn't been23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a23the subject of any litigation in any court.24judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay24Thank you very much.25of the Superior Court of Quebe dated August25CHAIR:					
18establishment of a Water Management18records and all involved, and please clarify19Agreement on the Churchill River between19for the Board that you still state that the20Nalcor and CF(L)Co, and included statements20Water Management Agreement has not been21containing Nalcor and rights of Hydro Quebec21subject to litigation, and the validity of22under the contract renewal". The matter22the Water Management Agreement hasn't been23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a23the subject of any litigation in any court.24judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay24Thank you very much.25of the Superior Court of Quebe dated August25CHAIR:			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
19Agreement on the Churchill River between19for the Board that you still state that the20Nalcor and CF(L)Co, and included statements20Water Management Agreement has not been21containing Nalcor and rights of Hydro Quebec21subject to litigation, and the validity of22under the contract renewal". The matter22the Water Management Agreement hasn't been23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a23the subject of any litigation in any court.24judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay24Thank you very much.25of the Superior Court of Quebec dated August25CHAIR:			,		
20Nalcor and CF(L)Co, and included statements containing Nalcor and rights of Hydro Quebec under the contract renewal". The matter20Water Management Agreement has not been subject to litigation, and the validity of the Water Management Agreement hasn't been the Superior Court of Quebec and a judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay 2520Water Management Agreement has not been subject to litigation, and the validity of the Water Management Agreement hasn't been the subject of any litigation in any court.24judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay 2524Thank you very much.					
21containing Nalcor and rights of Hydro Quebec21subject to litigation, and the validity of22under the contract renewal". The matter22the Water Management Agreement hasn't been23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a23the subject of any litigation in any court.24judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay24Thank you very much.25of the Superior Court of Quebec dated August25CHAIR:			6		
22under the contract renewal". The matter22the Water Management Agreement hasn't been23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a23the subject of any litigation in any court.24judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay24Thank you very much.25of the Superior Court of Quebec dated August25CHAIR:					e e
23went to the Superior Court of Quebec and a judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay of the Superior Court of Quebec dated August23the subject of any litigation in any court. Thank you very much.25of the Superior Court of Quebec dated August25CHAIR:			e e ; ;		
24judgment by the Honourable Martin Castonguay24Thank you very much.25of the Superior Court of Quebec dated August25CHAIR:					v
25 of the Superior Court of Quebec dated August 25 CHAIR:					
					i nank you very much.
Discoveries Unlimited Inc. (709)437-5028 Page 1 - Page 4	25		· · · ·		8 Page 1 - Page 4

1	23, 2018		INL HYUIO 2017 OKA
1.	Page 5		Page 7
	Q. Thank you, Mr. Browne.		conclusions based upon what you see exactly
2	MR. YOUNG:	2	and what was written by the Judge and the
3	Q. Thank you, Mr. Browne. Madam Chair, just on		declarations. Thank you very much.
4	that, when I did ask the question of	4	CHAIR:
5	Nalcor's counsel whether or not the Water	5	Q. Okay, thank you, Mr. Browne. You'll file
6	Management Agreement was the subject of	6	those with the Board Secretary.
7	litigation, I was generally aware that it	7	BROWNE, Q.C.:
8	had come up and I asked about that, but the	8	Q. I will, thank you.
9	response I gave yesterday, I believe is	9	MS. GLYNN:
10	correct that the Water Management Agreement	10	Q. We'll note that as an undertaking on the
11	itself and its validity haven't been	11	record.
12	challenged as such. It is part of the	12	(9:10 A.M. UNDERTAKING)
13	evidence of a matter, on the continuous	13	CHAIR:
14	energy matter that's before the Quebec	14	Q. Are there any other matters? Thank you.
15	Courts. A lot of things, I'm sure, are part	15	Mr. O'Brien, you can proceed with your
16	of the record on those matters, but that's	16	cross.
17	not quite the same as someone having applied	17	MR. O'BRIEN:
18	to strike down the Water Management	18	Q. Thank you, Madam Chair.
19	Agreement, exactly what it is. I think	19	MS. DAWN DALLEY – CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. O'BRIEN:
20	we're into a semantic difference, and I'm	20	Q. I wonder if we could bring up PUB-NLH-30,
20	aware of the points that Mr. Browne raised	20	Revision 1. I think that's where we left
21	in a general way. So I don't know if any	$\frac{21}{22}$	
	further clarification is needed. To some	$\begin{bmatrix} 22\\23 \end{bmatrix}$	off, Ms. Dalley, and you had given us some
23			information regarding some 58 positions that
24	extent, I think we can perhaps agree to	24	had been transferred to Nalcor from Hydro,
25	disagree on this because we do take the	25	and I believe you had given us the rationale
	Page 6		Page 8
l	points taken from Mr. Browne that it has		for the human resources position transfers.
2	come up in a hearing, but it is not engaged	2	I'm not sure I gave you the opportunity to
3	directly as the issue to be litigated. I	3	address safety, health, and environment. I
4	don't know if he would disagree with my	4	think that comes under your purview as well,
5	interpretation or my characterization of	5	is that right?
6	that.	6	MS. DALLEY:
7	BROWNE, Q.C.:	7	A. Yes, that's correct.
8	Q. What I will do is I will file – I'll	8	
0		0	MR. O'BRIEN:
9	undertake to file these matters because I	9	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you just give me – and I believe you
9 10	undertake to file these matters because I think they are of some importance; the		
-		9	Q. Can you just give me – and I believe you
10	think they are of some importance; the	9 10	Q. Can you just give me – and I believe you indicated as far as information services,
10 11	think they are of some importance; the Superior Court decision, the Quebec Court of	9 10 11	Q. Can you just give me – and I believe you indicated as far as information services, you couldn't speak to that? Is that fair?
10 11 12	think they are of some importance; the Superior Court decision, the Quebec Court of Appeal Factum filed by the Churchill Falls Labrador Corporation, and the declarations	9 10 11 12	 Q. Can you just give me – and I believe you indicated as far as information services, you couldn't speak to that? Is that fair? MS. DALLEY:
10 11 12 13	think they are of some importance; the Superior Court decision, the Quebec Court of Appeal Factum filed by the Churchill Falls Labrador Corporation, and the declarations that Hydro is seeking. The end result of	9 10 11 12 13	 Q. Can you just give me – and I believe you indicated as far as information services, you couldn't speak to that? Is that fair? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, that's fair. MR. O'BRIEN:
10 11 12 13 14 15	think they are of some importance; the Superior Court decision, the Quebec Court of Appeal Factum filed by the Churchill Falls Labrador Corporation, and the declarations that Hydro is seeking. The end result of all of this is the Water Management	9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 Q. Can you just give me – and I believe you indicated as far as information services, you couldn't speak to that? Is that fair? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, that's fair. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Maybe you can give me just a quick overview
10 11 12 13 14 15 16	think they are of some importance; the Superior Court decision, the Quebec Court of Appeal Factum filed by the Churchill Falls Labrador Corporation, and the declarations that Hydro is seeking. The end result of all of this is the Water Management Agreement, the ability of CF(L)Co to deal	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 Q. Can you just give me – and I believe you indicated as far as information services, you couldn't speak to that? Is that fair? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, that's fair. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Maybe you can give me just a quick overview of the logic behind the transfer of the
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	think they are of some importance; the Superior Court decision, the Quebec Court of Appeal Factum filed by the Churchill Falls Labrador Corporation, and the declarations that Hydro is seeking. The end result of all of this is the Water Management Agreement, the ability of CF(L)Co to deal with their dam in a matter of exchanging	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 Q. Can you just give me – and I believe you indicated as far as information services, you couldn't speak to that? Is that fair? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, that's fair. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Maybe you can give me just a quick overview of the logic behind the transfer of the safety, health and environment FTEs?
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	think they are of some importance; the Superior Court decision, the Quebec Court of Appeal Factum filed by the Churchill Falls Labrador Corporation, and the declarations that Hydro is seeking. The end result of all of this is the Water Management Agreement, the ability of CF(L)Co to deal with their dam in a matter of exchanging water the way the Water Management Agreement	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 Q. Can you just give me – and I believe you indicated as far as information services, you couldn't speak to that? Is that fair? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, that's fair. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Maybe you can give me just a quick overview of the logic behind the transfer of the safety, health and environment FTEs? MS. DALLEY: MS. DALLEY:
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	think they are of some importance; the Superior Court decision, the Quebec Court of Appeal Factum filed by the Churchill Falls Labrador Corporation, and the declarations that Hydro is seeking. The end result of all of this is the Water Management Agreement, the ability of CF(L)Co to deal with their dam in a matter of exchanging water the way the Water Management Agreement anticipates and the way they need for	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 Q. Can you just give me – and I believe you indicated as far as information services, you couldn't speak to that? Is that fair? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, that's fair. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Maybe you can give me just a quick overview of the logic behind the transfer of the safety, health and environment FTEs? MS. DALLEY: A. Again those are positions that are the ones
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	think they are of some importance; the Superior Court decision, the Quebec Court of Appeal Factum filed by the Churchill Falls Labrador Corporation, and the declarations that Hydro is seeking. The end result of all of this is the Water Management Agreement, the ability of CF(L)Co to deal with their dam in a matter of exchanging water the way the Water Management Agreement anticipates and the way they need for Muskrat Falls has collapsed. That's the end	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 Q. Can you just give me – and I believe you indicated as far as information services, you couldn't speak to that? Is that fair? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, that's fair. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Maybe you can give me just a quick overview of the logic behind the transfer of the safety, health and environment FTEs? MS. DALLEY: A. Again those are positions that are the ones that were transferred, with the exception of
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	think they are of some importance; the Superior Court decision, the Quebec Court of Appeal Factum filed by the Churchill Falls Labrador Corporation, and the declarations that Hydro is seeking. The end result of all of this is the Water Management Agreement, the ability of CF(L)Co to deal with their dam in a matter of exchanging water the way the Water Management Agreement anticipates and the way they need for Muskrat Falls has collapsed. That's the end result, and you can put whatever semantics	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 Q. Can you just give me – and I believe you indicated as far as information services, you couldn't speak to that? Is that fair? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, that's fair. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Maybe you can give me just a quick overview of the logic behind the transfer of the safety, health and environment FTEs? MS. DALLEY: A. Again those are positions that are the ones that were transferred, with the exception of the documents and records management
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	think they are of some importance; the Superior Court decision, the Quebec Court of Appeal Factum filed by the Churchill Falls Labrador Corporation, and the declarations that Hydro is seeking. The end result of all of this is the Water Management Agreement, the ability of CF(L)Co to deal with their dam in a matter of exchanging water the way the Water Management Agreement anticipates and the way they need for Muskrat Falls has collapsed. That's the end result, and you can put whatever semantics you want on it, but independent people who	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 Q. Can you just give me – and I believe you indicated as far as information services, you couldn't speak to that? Is that fair? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, that's fair. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Maybe you can give me just a quick overview of the logic behind the transfer of the safety, health and environment FTEs? MS. DALLEY: A. Again those are positions that are the ones that were transferred, with the exception of the documents and records management coordinator are specific to Nalcor work that
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	think they are of some importance; the Superior Court decision, the Quebec Court of Appeal Factum filed by the Churchill Falls Labrador Corporation, and the declarations that Hydro is seeking. The end result of all of this is the Water Management Agreement, the ability of CF(L)Co to deal with their dam in a matter of exchanging water the way the Water Management Agreement anticipates and the way they need for Muskrat Falls has collapsed. That's the end result, and you can put whatever semantics you want on it, but independent people who have read it, and I've been familiar with it	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 Q. Can you just give me – and I believe you indicated as far as information services, you couldn't speak to that? Is that fair? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, that's fair. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Maybe you can give me just a quick overview of the logic behind the transfer of the safety, health and environment FTEs? MS. DALLEY: A. Again those are positions that are the ones that were transferred, with the exception of the documents and records management coordinator are specific to Nalcor work that would have been done. So they would
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	think they are of some importance; the Superior Court decision, the Quebec Court of Appeal Factum filed by the Churchill Falls Labrador Corporation, and the declarations that Hydro is seeking. The end result of all of this is the Water Management Agreement, the ability of CF(L)Co to deal with their dam in a matter of exchanging water the way the Water Management Agreement anticipates and the way they need for Muskrat Falls has collapsed. That's the end result, and you can put whatever semantics you want on it, but independent people who	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 Q. Can you just give me – and I believe you indicated as far as information services, you couldn't speak to that? Is that fair? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, that's fair. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Maybe you can give me just a quick overview of the logic behind the transfer of the safety, health and environment FTEs? MS. DALLEY: A. Again those are positions that are the ones that were transferred, with the exception of the documents and records management coordinator are specific to Nalcor work that

Aprii 2	-0, -010				NL Hyulo 2017 OKA
1		Page 9	1		Page 11 from that position being over and us poving
1		the document management and the exchange			from that position being over and us paying
2		between the environmental management system			a portion of that role. The same kind of
3		which we share. It's a common system with	3		idea with the safety analyst, you know, we
4		Nalcor. So that is a role that sits in	4		wouldn't require and don't require a full
5		Nalcor, but again manages both systems, so	5		time position, so that gives us the ability
6		that role would be contained within the	6		to share that person, that individual's
7		administration fee and we would pay, you	7		role.
8		know, depending on the year, 55 to 60	8	MR. O'BRIE	
9		percent of the cost of that individual. The	9	Q.	I know you couldn't speak specifically to
10		safety specialist/analyst and the co-op	10		the information services, but as head over
11		position sitting in Nalcor are again roles.	11		human resources, would you have been
12		Three of those roles are related to the	12		consulted about those transfers, would you
13		safety management, development of the safety	13		have any input into that particular - the
14		management system, and then the analytical	14		transfer of those groups of individuals?
15		role works with our observation database	15	MS. DALLE	
16		that we have for our safety observations.	16	А.	I think – say, two things. One as one of
17		So that individual would run reports and	17		the – well, for lack of a better word, like,
18		records across all Nalcor and all entities,	18		the co-leads that was responsible for
19		plus run reports for us when we needed them	19		tweezing this out when we did it in 2016,
20		on analytics around safety.	20		along with, you know, my counterpart at
21	MR. O'BRIEN		21		Nalcor. We would have looked at those
22		And is there – with respect to, let's say,	22		positions and examined them, but from the
23		just the human resources and the safety,	23		context of the information technology
24		health and environment FTE's, is there a	24		certainly wouldn't be my expertise, but we
25		cost benefit analysis in terms of, or was	25		would have seen the organizational
		Page 10			Page 12
1		there one done in terms of that transfer?	1		structure, talked through why it was
2		Would Hydro have saved any money with that	2		beneficial to have that over in Nalcor and
3		particular transfer when you back out, I	3		providing services to all the entities, and
4		guess, the administrative fees that get	4		then, you know, the component that would
5		charged back?	5		have fallen to us to get that IT service
6	MS. DALLEY		6		from Nalcor.
7		No, we didn't do a formal cost benefit	7	MR. O'BRIE	
8		analysis.	8	Q.	During the last general rate hearing for
9	MR. O'BRIEN		9		Hydro, there was a lot of discussion about
10		Okay. Would you expect there'd be some	10		the matrix organization that was in place
11		savings by transferring the full position	11		with the Nalcor Group of Companies, and, I
12		and just having a charge back, or would it	12		guess, Hydro – that organization was touted
13		be one to one kind of a –	13		as cost effective for Hydro's customers, and
13 14		be one to one kind of a –	13 14		as cost effective for Hydro's customers, and you mentioned that when you looked at the
13 14 15	MS. DALLEY A.	be one to one kind of a – : I would expect so. You know, an example of	13 14 15		as cost effective for Hydro's customers, and you mentioned that when you looked at the re-org in 2016, you were part of, I guess, a
13 14 15 16	MS. DALLEY A.	be one to one kind of a – : I would expect so. You know, an example of that which I just spoke of, would be a	13 14 15 16		as cost effective for Hydro's customers, and you mentioned that when you looked at the re-org in 2016, you were part of, I guess, a smaller team looking at some financial
13 14 15 16 17	MS. DALLEY A.	be one to one kind of a – : I would expect so. You know, an example of that which I just spoke of, would be a document and records management coordinator.	13 14 15 16 17		as cost effective for Hydro's customers, and you mentioned that when you looked at the re-org in 2016, you were part of, I guess, a smaller team looking at some financial impacts with the re-org, is that fair?
13 14 15 16 17 18	MS. DALLEY A.	be one to one kind of a – : I would expect so. You know, an example of that which I just spoke of, would be a document and records management coordinator. So that person is specialized in the EMS,	13 14 15 16 17 18	MS. DALLEY	as cost effective for Hydro's customers, and you mentioned that when you looked at the re-org in 2016, you were part of, I guess, a smaller team looking at some financial impacts with the re-org, is that fair?
13 14 15 16 17 18 19	MS. DALLEY A.	be one to one kind of a – : I would expect so. You know, an example of that which I just spoke of, would be a document and records management coordinator. So that person is specialized in the EMS, understands the environmental management	13 14 15 16 17 18 19	A.	as cost effective for Hydro's customers, and you mentioned that when you looked at the re-org in 2016, you were part of, I guess, a smaller team looking at some financial impacts with the re-org, is that fair? Yes.
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	MS. DALLEY A.	be one to one kind of a – : I would expect so. You know, an example of that which I just spoke of, would be a document and records management coordinator. So that person is specialized in the EMS, understands the environmental management system, works directly with it. So if we	13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	A. MR. O'BRIE	as cost effective for Hydro's customers, and you mentioned that when you looked at the re-org in 2016, you were part of, I guess, a smaller team looking at some financial impacts with the re-org, is that fair? Yes. N:
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	MS. DALLEY A.	be one to one kind of a – : I would expect so. You know, an example of that which I just spoke of, would be a document and records management coordinator. So that person is specialized in the EMS, understands the environmental management system, works directly with it. So if we were to have that – we don't require that	13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	A.	as cost effective for Hydro's customers, and you mentioned that when you looked at the re-org in 2016, you were part of, I guess, a smaller team looking at some financial impacts with the re-org, is that fair? Yes. N: Okay. Was there any formal cost comparisor
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MS. DALLEY A.	be one to one kind of a – : I would expect so. You know, an example of that which I just spoke of, would be a document and records management coordinator. So that person is specialized in the EMS, understands the environmental management system, works directly with it. So if we were to have that – we don't require that full role, so would either be, you know,	13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A. MR. O'BRIE	as cost effective for Hydro's customers, and you mentioned that when you looked at the re-org in 2016, you were part of, I guess, a smaller team looking at some financial impacts with the re-org, is that fair? Yes. N: Okay. Was there any formal cost comparisor between the proposed re-org of Hydro and its
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	MS. DALLEY A.	be one to one kind of a – : I would expect so. You know, an example of that which I just spoke of, would be a document and records management coordinator. So that person is specialized in the EMS, understands the environmental management system, works directly with it. So if we were to have that – we don't require that full role, so would either be, you know, merging it with another role, but this way	13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	A. MR. O'BRIE	as cost effective for Hydro's customers, and you mentioned that when you looked at the re-org in 2016, you were part of, I guess, a smaller team looking at some financial impacts with the re-org, is that fair? (: Yes. N: Okay. Was there any formal cost comparisor between the proposed re-org of Hydro and its existence within the matrix? Did you do any
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MS. DALLEY A.	be one to one kind of a – : I would expect so. You know, an example of that which I just spoke of, would be a document and records management coordinator. So that person is specialized in the EMS, understands the environmental management system, works directly with it. So if we were to have that – we don't require that full role, so would either be, you know,	13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A. MR. O'BRIE	as cost effective for Hydro's customers, and you mentioned that when you looked at the re-org in 2016, you were part of, I guess, a smaller team looking at some financial impacts with the re-org, is that fair? Yes. N: Okay. Was there any formal cost comparisor between the proposed re-org of Hydro and its existence within the matrix? Did you do any sort of cost comparison of that?

April 25, 2018

	25, 2018			NL Hydro 2017 GRA
		Page 13		Page 15
1	A.	Do you mean to look at the cost impacts of	1	it, so we see it as well, but the ability
2		making the change?	2	for us to focus across the Board on all
3	MR. O'BRIE		3	aspects of delivery to customers is very
4	Q.	Yeah, the overall cost impacts of making	4	different with a focused team than it was
5		that change.	5	within the matrix organization. It's not to
6	MS. DALLE	Y:	6	say the matrix organization – it comes with
7	А.	Yes.	7	benefits, and cost is one of them because
8	MR. O'BRIE	N:	8	you're sharing those resources, but you're
9	Q.	Okay, and were you able to see whether or	9	diluting your focus across a broad number of
10		not the re-organization would save money for	10	companies, and this allows us to be $-I$
11		customers?	11	don't want to overextend this, but it's
12	MS. DALLE	Y:	12	laser like focus. We know exactly what
13	А.	Yes, there's a cost to making the change,	13	we're doing, you know, our matters are not
14		and there's no doubt about that, and we've,	14	clouded by distraction, and I think we're on
15		I believe, stated that on the record,	15	a path to improvement as a result.
16		primarily the FTE cost that is transferred	16	MR. O'BRIEN:
17		over, but our assessment, which is – you	17	Q. Okay. You mentioned yesterday there was a
18		know, I think we spent a lot of time	18	recent, I guess, efficiency obtained by
19		discussing it, was that the impact of the	19	combining, say, the manager of customer
20		matrix organization and our ability to	20	service with the manager of energy
21		execute and deliver to customers what is	21	efficiency into one position.
22		expected of us from a reliability	22	MS. DALLEY:
23		perspective, and operationally, and indeed	23	A. Yes.
24		I'll say that from a productivity cost	24	MR. O'BRIEN:
25		effective perspective, needs to come with a	25	Q. Has there been any other efficiencies like
		Page 14		Page 16
1		e		e
1		dedicated team in Hydro that are focused on	1	that obtained since you've started the
-		dedicated team in Hydro that are focused on the hydro business, and we balanced the cost	1 2	that obtained since you've started the reorganization process that jumps to mind?
2		the hydro business, and we balanced the cost	1 2 3	that obtained since you've started the reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY:
-		the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some	2	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY:
2 3 4		the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional	2 3	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY:
2 3 4 5		the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some	2 3 4	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6		the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for	2 3 4 5	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.
2 3 4 5 6 7	(9:15 A.M.)	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall	2 3 4 5 6 7	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY:
2 3 4 5 6	(9:15 A.M.) MR. O'BRIE	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for us to deliver what we require to customers.	2 3 4 5 6	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	MR. O'BRÍE	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for us to deliver what we require to customers.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. And I will say that I think it's fair to say that every witness that takes the stand will
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for us to deliver what we require to customers. N: So on a long term basis, would you expect	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. And I will say that I think it's fair to say
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	MR. O'BRÍE	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for us to deliver what we require to customers.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. And I will say that I think it's fair to say that every witness that takes the stand will be able to speak to some in their areas at
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	MR. O'BRÍE	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for us to deliver what we require to customers. N: So on a long term basis, would you expect that this was a little bit more costly than	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. And I will say that I think it's fair to say that every witness that takes the stand will be able to speak to some in their areas at the executive level, because we're very close to that process through what we call
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	MR. O'BRÍE	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for us to deliver what we require to customers. N: So on a long term basis, would you expect that this was a little bit more costly than Hydro's, I guess, structure, within the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. And I will say that I think it's fair to say that every witness that takes the stand will be able to speak to some in their areas at the executive level, because we're very close to that process through what we call the "gate-in process", but it's an FTE
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	MR. O'BRÍE	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for us to deliver what we require to customers. N: So on a long term basis, would you expect that this was a little bit more costly than Hydro's, I guess, structure, within the matrix structure, but that on a balancing	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. And I will say that I think it's fair to say that every witness that takes the stand will be able to speak to some in their areas at the executive level, because we're very close to that process through what we call
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	MR. O'BRÍE	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for us to deliver what we require to customers. N: So on a long term basis, would you expect that this was a little bit more costly than Hydro's, I guess, structure, within the matrix structure, but that on a balancing with reliability was better for the organization. Is that fair?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. And I will say that I think it's fair to say that every witness that takes the stand will be able to speak to some in their areas at the executive level, because we're very close to that process through what we call the "gate-in process", but it's an FTE management process that we've put in place
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	MR. O'BRÍE Q.	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for us to deliver what we require to customers. N: So on a long term basis, would you expect that this was a little bit more costly than Hydro's, I guess, structure, within the matrix structure, but that on a balancing with reliability was better for the organization. Is that fair?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. And I will say that I think it's fair to say that every witness that takes the stand will be able to speak to some in their areas at the executive level, because we're very close to that process through what we call the "gate-in process", but it's an FTE management process that we've put in place to allow us at a central level to look at
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	MR. O'BRÍE Q. MS. DALLE	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for us to deliver what we require to customers. N: So on a long term basis, would you expect that this was a little bit more costly than Hydro's, I guess, structure, within the matrix structure, but that on a balancing with reliability was better for the organization. Is that fair? Y:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. And I will say that I think it's fair to say that every witness that takes the stand will be able to speak to some in their areas at the executive level, because we're very close to that process through what we call the "gate-in process", but it's an FTE management process that we've put in place to allow us at a central level to look at what resources are needed across the company
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	MR. O'BRÍE Q. MS. DALLE	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for us to deliver what we require to customers. N: So on a long term basis, would you expect that this was a little bit more costly than Hydro's, I guess, structure, within the matrix structure, but that on a balancing with reliability was better for the organization. Is that fair? Y: I think that's fair, but I'd also broaden it	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. And I will say that I think it's fair to say that every witness that takes the stand will be able to speak to some in their areas at the executive level, because we're very close to that process through what we call the "gate-in process", but it's an FTE management process that we've put in place to allow us at a central level to look at what resources are needed across the company and shift resources in an efficient manner.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MR. O'BRÍE Q. MS. DALLE	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for us to deliver what we require to customers. N: So on a long term basis, would you expect that this was a little bit more costly than Hydro's, I guess, structure, within the matrix structure, but that on a balancing with reliability was better for the organization. Is that fair? Y: I think that's fair, but I'd also broaden it to say it's not just reliability, it's the focus across all aspects of the business,	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. And I will say that I think it's fair to say that every witness that takes the stand will be able to speak to some in their areas at the executive level, because we're very close to that process through what we call the "gate-in process", but it's an FTE management process that we've put in place to allow us at a central level to look at what resources are needed across the company and shift resources in an efficient manner. So within my own team, and again we're trying to do this generally through
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	MR. O'BRÍE Q. MS. DALLE	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for us to deliver what we require to customers. N: So on a long term basis, would you expect that this was a little bit more costly than Hydro's, I guess, structure, within the matrix structure, but that on a balancing with reliability was better for the organization. Is that fair? Y: I think that's fair, but I'd also broaden it to say it's not just reliability, it's the focus across all aspects of the business, and I think that some of the changes – you	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. And I will say that I think it's fair to say that every witness that takes the stand will be able to speak to some in their areas at the executive level, because we're very close to that process through what we call the "gate-in process", but it's an FTE management process that we've put in place to allow us at a central level to look at what resources are needed across the company and shift resources in an efficient manner. So within my own team, and again we're trying to do this generally through attrition because it's a good way to do it,
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	MR. O'BRÍE Q. MS. DALLE	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for us to deliver what we require to customers. N: So on a long term basis, would you expect that this was a little bit more costly than Hydro's, I guess, structure, within the matrix structure, but that on a balancing with reliability was better for the organization. Is that fair? Y: I think that's fair, but I'd also broaden it to say it's not just reliability, it's the focus across all aspects of the business,	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. And I will say that I think it's fair to say that every witness that takes the stand will be able to speak to some in their areas at the executive level, because we're very close to that process through what we call the "gate-in process", but it's an FTE management process that we've put in place to allow us at a central level to look at what resources are needed across the company and shift resources in an efficient manner. So within my own team, and again we're trying to do this generally through
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	MR. O'BRÍE Q. MS. DALLE	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for us to deliver what we require to customers. N: So on a long term basis, would you expect that this was a little bit more costly than Hydro's, I guess, structure, within the matrix structure, but that on a balancing with reliability was better for the organization. Is that fair? Y: I think that's fair, but I'd also broaden it to say it's not just reliability, it's the focus across all aspects of the business, and I think that some of the changes – you know, Mr. O'Brien, it's fair to say that	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. And I will say that I think it's fair to say that every witness that takes the stand will be able to speak to some in their areas at the executive level, because we're very close to that process through what we call the "gate-in process", but it's an FTE management process that we've put in place to allow us at a central level to look at what resources are needed across the company and shift resources in an efficient manner. So within my own team, and again we're trying to do this generally through attrition because it's a good way to do it, and we see enough retirements and turnover that we're able to do it effectively through
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MR. O'BRÍE Q. MS. DALLE	the hydro business, and we balanced the cost effectiveness of that by again leaving some things that we felt were more transactional inside the administrative fee, but overall we felt that this was the best solution for us to deliver what we require to customers. N: So on a long term basis, would you expect that this was a little bit more costly than Hydro's, I guess, structure, within the matrix structure, but that on a balancing with reliability was better for the organization. Is that fair? Y: I think that's fair, but I'd also broaden it to say it's not just reliability, it's the focus across all aspects of the business, and I think that some of the changes – you know, Mr. O'Brien, it's fair to say that this company has been in transition now for	$\begin{array}{c} 2\\ 3\\ 4\\ 5\\ 6\\ 7\\ 8\\ 9\\ 10\\ 11\\ 12\\ 13\\ 14\\ 15\\ 16\\ 17\\ 18\\ 19\\ 20\\ 21\\ 22\\ \end{array}$	reorganization process that jumps to mind? MS. DALLEY: A. I can speak to mine. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. And I will say that I think it's fair to say that every witness that takes the stand will be able to speak to some in their areas at the executive level, because we're very close to that process through what we call the "gate-in process", but it's an FTE management process that we've put in place to allow us at a central level to look at what resources are needed across the company and shift resources in an efficient manner. So within my own team, and again we're trying to do this generally through attrition because it's a good way to do it, and we see enough retirements and turnover

	,	Daga 17			Daga 10
	4	Page 17	1		Page 19
		vice manager role, and when	1		engineering, and you looked at the – again
2		tired, we combined that	2		Mr. Gardiner can speak to the work that
3		rvices and collapsed those	3		they're doing, but he put forward a business
4	e	r. I was able to take that	4		case around converting some of those
5	FTE and use it rig	ght now for a short term	5		embedded consultants to provide support for
6	role, so we've ma	aintained it for a couple of	6		ongoing capital programs, and so we
7	years to help with	h some of the customer	7		converted those through existing vacancies
8	service improven	nents we've made; process	8		that we had achieved, so that there was no
9	1	rocess reviews, the	9		gain over those. Those are now onboard. So
10		of a new customer information	10		just another example of the tools, I guess,
11	-	o account, et cetera, et	11		and the methodology that we're using to try
12		ndividual has stayed on	12		and maintain cost for customers.
13		ansition to help us on	13	MR. O'BRIEN	
13		systems, but that role, I	14	Q.	And that's the first quarter of 2018, is it,
14			14	Q.	that you've done that?
		g, I think it's June of		MC DALLEY	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
16	2	t role then will be	16	MS. DALLEY	
17	eliminated.		17	A.	Yes.
18	MR. O'BRIEN:		18	MR. O'BRIEN	
19		those efficiencies that	19	Q.	Okay. I wonder if we can bring up NP-NLH-
20		, are they built into the	20		026, please. This is just a little bit of a
21	-	e, any savings that you	21		follow-up from our discussion yesterday
22	would have garne	ered by that?	22		about the creation of, I think it was, one
23	MS. DALLEY:		23		of the supports that – the executive
24	A. I think you'll see	that primarily in - not	24		assistant that you have in the executive
25	necessarily in two	o places, but I want to	25		group works for all executives, is that
25	necessarily in two	o places, out i want to			<i>B i i i i i i i i i i</i>
23		• ·	20		• •
1		Page 18	1		Page 20
1	make it clear tha	Page 18 t the productivity	1		Page 20 right?
1 2	make it clear tha allowance that w	Page 18 t the productivity ve've spoke of, which again,	1 2	MS. DALLEY	Page 20 right?
1 2 3	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto	Page 18 t the productivity ve've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little	1 2 3	MS. DALLEY A.	Page 20 right? ': That's correct.
1 2 3 4	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is	Page 18 t the productivity ye've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little s really not about FTE's and	1 2	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	Page 20 right? 7: That's correct. N:
1 2 3 4 5	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th	Page 18 t the productivity ye've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to,	1 2 3 4 5	MS. DALLEY A.	Page 20 right? ': That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some
1 2 3 4 5 6	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa	Page 18 t the productivity ye've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence	1 2 3 4 5 6	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red	Page 18 t the productivity ve've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	Page 20 right? ': That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca	Page 18 t the productivity ve've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little s really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in	Page 18 t the productivity ve've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in can always be be	Page 18 t the productivity ve've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little really not about FTE's and re reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they etter, so I don't want to	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and there's an indication here in the response
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in can always be be give the illusion	Page 18 t the productivity ve've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little s really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they etter, so I don't want to – this is a continuous	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and there's an indication here in the response that the creation of separate support
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in can always be be give the illusion improvement pro	Page 18 t the productivity ve've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they etter, so I don't want to – this is a continuous ocess which we will work	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and there's an indication here in the response that the creation of separate support functions impacted Finance, Communication,
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in can always be be give the illusion improvement pro through, but we	Page 18 the productivity ve've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little really not about FTE's and re reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they etter, so I don't want to – this is a continuous ocess which we will work have very tight controls	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and there's an indication here in the response that the creation of separate support functions impacted Finance, Communication, Human Resources, Safety Health and
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in can always be be give the illusion improvement pro through, but we over that. So wh	Page 18 t the productivity ye've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little is really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they etter, so I don't want to – this is a continuous pocess which we will work have very tight controls nen we see those things come	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and there's an indication here in the response that the creation of separate support functions impacted Finance, Communication, Human Resources, Safety Health and Environment, Engineering Services, and
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\end{array} $	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in can always be be give the illusion improvement pro through, but we over that. So wh	Page 18 t the productivity ye've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they etter, so I don't want to – this is a continuous bocess which we will work have very tight controls hen we see those things come going to see them through	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\end{array} $	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and there's an indication here in the response that the creation of separate support functions impacted Finance, Communication, Human Resources, Safety Health and Environment, Engineering Services, and Information and Operations Technology, and
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in can always be be give the illusion improvement pro through, but we over that. So wh through, you're g the vacancy and	Page 18 t the productivity ye've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little is really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they etter, so I don't want to – this is a continuous pocess which we will work have very tight controls nen we see those things come	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and there's an indication here in the response that the creation of separate support functions impacted Finance, Communication, Human Resources, Safety Health and Environment, Engineering Services, and Information and Operations Technology, and that there's a cost of 2.1 million. I
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\end{array} $	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in can always be be give the illusion improvement pro through, but we over that. So wh	Page 18 t the productivity ye've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they etter, so I don't want to – this is a continuous bocess which we will work have very tight controls hen we see those things come going to see them through	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\end{array} $	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and there's an indication here in the response that the creation of separate support functions impacted Finance, Communication, Human Resources, Safety Health and Environment, Engineering Services, and Information and Operations Technology, and
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\end{array} $	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in can always be be give the illusion improvement pro through, but we over that. So wh through, you're a the vacancy and MR. O'BRIEN:	Page 18 t the productivity ye've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they etter, so I don't want to – this is a continuous bocess which we will work have very tight controls hen we see those things come going to see them through	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\end{array} $	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and there's an indication here in the response that the creation of separate support functions impacted Finance, Communication, Human Resources, Safety Health and Environment, Engineering Services, and Information and Operations Technology, and that there's a cost of 2.1 million. I
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\end{array} $	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in can always be be give the illusion improvement pro through, but we over that. So wh through, you're a the vacancy and MR. O'BRIEN:	Page 18 t the productivity ve've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they etter, so I don't want to – this is a continuous ocess which we will work have very tight controls hen we see those things come going to see them through the reduction of FTE's.	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\end{array} $	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and there's an indication here in the response that the creation of separate support functions impacted Finance, Communication, Human Resources, Safety Health and Environment, Engineering Services, and Information and Operations Technology, and that there's a cost of 2.1 million. I wonder if you could tell us whether or not
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\end{array} $	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in can always be be give the illusion improvement pro through, but we over that. So wh through, you're g the vacancy and MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so you exp	Page 18 t the productivity ve've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they etter, so I don't want to – this is a continuous ocess which we will work have very tight controls hen we see those things come going to see them through the reduction of FTE's.	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\end{array} $	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and there's an indication here in the response that the creation of separate support functions impacted Finance, Communication, Human Resources, Safety Health and Environment, Engineering Services, and Information and Operations Technology, and that there's a cost of 2.1 million. I wonder if you could tell us whether or not those are labour costs or they're a combination of costs?
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\end{array} $	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in can always be be give the illusion improvement pro through, but we over that. So wh through, you're g the vacancy and MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so you exp vacancies on an MS. DALLEY:	Page 18 t the productivity ve've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they etter, so I don't want to – this is a continuous ocess which we will work have very tight controls hen we see those things come going to see them through the reduction of FTE's.	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\end{array} $	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and there's an indication here in the response that the creation of separate support functions impacted Finance, Communication, Human Resources, Safety Health and Environment, Engineering Services, and Information and Operations Technology, and that there's a cost of 2.1 million. I wonder if you could tell us whether or not those are labour costs or they're a combination of costs?
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\end{array} $	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in can always be be give the illusion improvement pro through, but we over that. So wh through, you're g the vacancy and MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so you exp vacancies on an MS. DALLEY: A. I think what we'	Page 18 It the productivity ye've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little a really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they etter, so I don't want to – this is a continuous ocess which we will work have very tight controls nen we see those things come going to see them through the reduction of FTE's. pect that to reduce over time annual basis? ve committed to now is to	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\end{array} $	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and there's an indication here in the response that the creation of separate support functions impacted Finance, Communication, Human Resources, Safety Health and Environment, Engineering Services, and Information and Operations Technology, and that there's a cost of 2.1 million. I wonder if you could tell us whether or not those are labour costs or they're a combination of costs?
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\end{array} $	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in can always be be give the illusion improvement pro- through, but we over that. So wh through, you're g the vacancy and MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so you exp vacancies on an MS. DALLEY: A. I think what we' hold flat through	Page 18 At the productivity Ve've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little is really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they etter, so I don't want to – this is a continuous ocess which we will work have very tight controls nen we see those things come going to see them through the reduction of FTE's. pect that to reduce over time annual basis? ve committed to now is to a 2018 and 2019, and we have	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\end{array} $	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and there's an indication here in the response that the creation of separate support functions impacted Finance, Communication, Human Resources, Safety Health and Environment, Engineering Services, and Information and Operations Technology, and that there's a cost of 2.1 million. I wonder if you could tell us whether or not those are labour costs or they're a combination of costs?
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\\23\end{array} $	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in can always be be give the illusion improvement pro- through, but we over that. So wh through, you're g the vacancy and MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so you exp vacancies on an MS. DALLEY: A. I think what we' hold flat through already demonst	Page 18 At the productivity ye've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little is really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they etter, so I don't want to – this is a continuous bocess which we will work have very tight controls hen we see those things come going to see them through the reduction of FTE's. pect that to reduce over time annual basis? ve committed to now is to a 2018 and 2019, and we have rated that through the first	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\\23\end{array} $	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and there's an indication here in the response that the creation of separate support functions impacted Finance, Communication, Human Resources, Safety Health and Environment, Engineering Services, and Information and Operations Technology, and that there's a cost of 2.1 million. I wonder if you could tell us whether or not those are labour costs or they're a combination of costs? T: It's been a while since I've looked at that, Mr. O'Brien, and I know that analysis was done by Finance, so Ms. Hutchens would be
$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\end{array} $	make it clear tha allowance that w I think, Ms. Huto more than me, is vacancies, but th I'll say, with a fa in settlement red increase the vaca tight controls in can always be be give the illusion improvement pro through, but we over that. So wh through, you're g the vacancy and MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so you exp vacancies on an MS. DALLEY: A. I think what we' hold flat through already demonst quarter of 2019 (Page 18 At the productivity Ve've spoke of, which again, chens can speak to a little is really not about FTE's and he reason we were able to, air degree of confidence luce the salary budget, and ancy, was because we've got that process now, and they etter, so I don't want to – this is a continuous ocess which we will work have very tight controls nen we see those things come going to see them through the reduction of FTE's. pect that to reduce over time annual basis? ve committed to now is to a 2018 and 2019, and we have	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\end{array} $	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	Page 20 right? That's correct. N: And in this particular RFI there's some questions about – there's a question about the creation of the dedicated and separate executive team and some costs around separate support functions for Hydro, and there's an indication here in the response that the creation of separate support functions impacted Finance, Communication, Human Resources, Safety Health and Environment, Engineering Services, and Information and Operations Technology, and that there's a cost of 2.1 million. I wonder if you could tell us whether or not those are labour costs or they're a combination of costs? T: It's been a while since I've looked at that, Mr. O'Brien, and I know that analysis was done by Finance, so Ms. Hutchens would be the best person to speak to the detail.

April	25, 2018			NL Hydro 2017 GRA
1	0	Page 21		Page 23
	Q.	Okay, that's fine, I'll do that. Thank you,	1	MS. DALLEY:
$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$		and just quickly getting back to the	2	A. I think it's those things. I would say the
3		reorganization structure, I'm wondering –	3	primary driver is cost, and we're also
4		and we talked about some reduction, some	4	looking at the opportunity for efficiencies
5		possible reductions in cost from some	5	inside of that as well.
$\begin{bmatrix} 6\\7 \end{bmatrix}$		efficiencies that you've noted. Mr. Haynes	6	MR. O'BRIEN:
7		testified that there's a plan to review the	7	Q. Okay. I wonder if we can bring up PUB-NLH-
8		structure in 2018. Will you be part of that	8 9	026. I just wanted to ask you about some measures to evaluate the effectiveness of
9 10	MS. DALLE	review process?	-	
10	MS. DALLE A.	Yes.	10 11	the organizational structure, and Hydro was asked that in this RFI.
11	MR. O'BRIE		11	MS. DALLEY:
12	Q.	And do you know whether or not there's a	12	A. Yes.
13	Q.	terms of reference for that, or is there a	13 14	MR. O'BRIEN:
14		plan as to how that's going to unfold?	14	Q. So I just wanted to take you through that,
16	MS. DALLE		16	and you've indicated the goal of a new
17	A.	Not yet. We're scoping that out right now.	10	organizational structure is to look at
17	MR. O'BRIE		18	independence for Hydro, and if we could
10	Q.	Okay, and is there anything in mind right	19	scroll down, some of the examples of
$\begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 20 \end{array}$	Q.	now in terms of what changes you will be	20	measures Hydro is going to use to evaluate
20		looking at, or is this just going to be	20	the effectiveness of the new organizational
21		you'll look at that in the future as to -	22	structure, there's a number of measures
23	MS. DALLE	5	23	there that are outlined here. For safety
24	A.	I think Mr. Haynes either alluded to or	24	and performance, are there any particular
25	11.	spoke to some of the areas where we've, I'll	25	measures you're going to look at to see how
		Page 22		Page 24
1		say, had some eye to. One is eligible	1	they tie in with the organizational
2		retirements, so where we see positions that	2	structure and how that's effective?
3		will be coming up and creating a potential	3	MS. DALLEY:
4		opportunity. We've also had again very high	4	A. I think the overall objective of any
5		level overviews of the organizational	5	organizational structure is to actually
6		structure and charts to look at	6	support the objectives of the business. So
7		opportunities where we may see spans of	7	what we've laid out here is the objectives
8		control or levels that we'll look at in the	8	of the business are how we measure ourselves
9		organization. These are things that we want	9	across the board. So whether it's safety,
10		to be, I'll say, thoughtful and systematic	10	customer service, reliability, if we see
11		about versus making a change that may have	11	some impacts in those measures and we're
12		an impact that we don't wish to have. So	12	able to assess that the organizational
13		the plan is to do that in consultation and	13	structure is not supporting either our
14		coordination with each executive through the	14	achievement of those objectives or is
15		course of this year, and we see it not as a	15	impacting any of those objectives, we would
16		wholesale change because the changes we've	16	look to make an appropriate change.
17		made to date have been of that nature, but	17	MR. O'BRIEN:
18		we do expect to see the ability to, if I can	18	Q. Okay, and any particular measures or would
19		use the word "tweak" or shift things where	19	you just be looking at these particular
20		we may see workloads requiring some shift.	20	areas and assuming if there's something
21		So it's at that level.	21	that's dropping, then maybe it's related to
22	MR. O'BRIE		22	the organizational structure, or how would
23	Q.	Is the review driven by cost considerations	23	you sort of tweeze that out?
24		or is it driven by effectiveness of the	24	MS. DALLEY:
25		organization, or both?	25	A. I don't think I'd use the word "assume".

April 25, 2018

	D 25		
1	Page 25	1	Page 27
	MR. O'BRIEN:		A. At a policy level and a shared policy level,
$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	Q. Okay.	$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	it's predominantly – it's probably the
3	MS. DALLEY:	3	policy framework to some degree overall, so
4	A. Because I think that would be presumptuous,	4	we would try and share common policies, and
5	but I think that organizational structure is	5	we've had very good discussion about this,
6	something that we would assess on an ongoing	6	and I expect – I'll say the philosophy or
7	basis, and assess against the goals and	7	the principles that we've adopted are, you
8	objectives which are laid out in the	8	know, Hydro is to be consulted and engaged
9	corporate planning process.	9	in any policy changes that are made that
10	MR. O'BRIEN:	10	impact the company, and we are. So we're
11	Q. And this would be part of, I assume, your	11	actively involved in those discussions. The
12	review in 2018, you'll be looking at these	12	principle that we have, and there's some
13	particular areas too?	13	work happening in Nalcor to structure a
14	MS. DALLEY:	14	policy, if I could say, review group that
15	A. Yes, if we see areas where performance is an	15	will do that, of which Hydro is an active
16	issue, we will look to the organizational	16	participant. I'm on that group or expected
17	structure as a potential contributor to	17	to be. The other principle that we've held
18	that, but there are many other factors as	18	to is that if Hydro requires a policy that
19	well, obviously.	19	is not on Nalcor's radar or schedule, then
20	MR. O'BRIEN:	20	we can do that, and I can give two specific
21	Q. Is there any plan to keep the Board informed	21	examples of that. As part of a shift to
22	of this particular review?	22	increase performance management, we've
23	MS. DALLEY:	23	implemented a probationary policy which was
24	A. We certainly can.	24	not in place that I'm aware of previously.
25	MR. O'BRIEN:	25	So that probation policy and process is now
	Page 26		Page 28
1	Q. And let me ask you, to date have you	1	in place for Hydro. As well, we've
2	identified any specific negative impacts	2	implemented an attendance support program,
3	from the reorganization that you can think	3	which I think Mr. Haynes spoke to briefly,
4	of?	4	which comes with a requisite policy as well,
5	MS. DALLEY:	5	and that is, I'll say, for now a Hydro only
6	A. I can't think of any off the top of my head,	6	policy, which the parent company may adopt,
7	and it's been a very active discussion about	7	but for us those were two things which were
8	the organizational structure as we've	8	priorities for us. We also have the ability
9	shifted, so nothing fundamentally has been	9	inside of the policies to amend and adopt,
10	brought to my attention, but again this	10	you know, if they've got a policy that we
11	review may look at that and may see	11	can adopt, a Hydro specific policy, which is
12	something.	12	adapted for our requirements and our needs.
13	MR. O'BRIEN:	13	So that's, I'll say, the principles and
14	Q. Okay, and in terms of the goals here to have	14	philosophy that we're taking through the
15	an independent Hydro really as much as you	15	policy development, which we feel
16	can from Nalcor, that seems to be the	16	comfortable with, and honestly it's
17	approach here, for now we've heard that at	17	something like compensation, we have a lot
18	least in areas of compensation and	17	of input, but generally we're looking to
10	performance payments, there's still some	10	find that common spot where it works for
$\frac{19}{20}$	input from Nalcor on the compensation	20	everyone.
20	committee. Are there any other areas where	20	MR. O'BRIEN:
$21 \\ 22$	Nalcor still has input in the operations of	21	Q. And in terms of – leaving that last point in
$\begin{bmatrix} 22\\23 \end{bmatrix}$	Hydro?	22	terms of compensation, you'd agree with me,
23	(9:30 A.M.)	23	I guess, as a regulated entity, there's more
	(9.50 A.M.) MS. DALLEY:		of a focus on at least cost concern than
25	INIS. DALLEI.	25	of a focus on at least cost concern than

		D 00			D 21
		Page 29	1	0	Page 31
		you'd see in a private entity like Nalcor,	l	Q.	As head over regulatory affairs, and that
2		is that fair?	2		department would put together the case that
3	MS. DALLE		3		we see before us?
4	А.	I'm going to say yes, but I'm also going to	4	MS. DALLEY	7.
5		caveat that with the shareholder is	5	А.	That's correct.
6		providing a high degree of scrutiny inside	6	MR. O'BRIEI	N:
7		of the parent company as well via the	7	Q.	And Mr. Haynes testified that he relies on
8		Auditor General, the Board, so there is a	8		you and your regulatory department in terms
9		scrutiny to cost happening there right now,	9		of rate strategy, is that fair?
10		but certainly the level of reporting and	10	MS. DALLEY	
11		oversight that we have through the	11	А.	That's correct.
12		regulatory process is – I can't compare them	12	MR. O'BRIEN	
13		because I'm not familiar or engaged in the	13	Q.	Did you have any strategic direction from
13		other side of it, but I think it's fair to	13	Q.	Mr. Haynes in terms of how to approach this
14		say that there is an immense focus on cost	14		rate case?
		5		MC DALLES	
16		here.	16	MS. DALLEY	
17	MR. O'BRIE		17	A.	I wouldn't say that specifically, but Mr.
18	Q.	Okay, and is there – and you mentioned about	18		Haynes and myself would have discussed the
19		modifying some policies. So you're	19		approach and how we were doing it, and to be
20		satisfied that Hydro does have the power to	20		fair, it's a fairly – I see this as a fairly
21		modify some of those shared policies to the	21		collaborative process where – I'll say,
22		extent they may require modification, so	22		collaborative with decisions where the
23		that they fit with the regulatory entity?	23		executive at various points when we were
24	MS. DALLE	Y:	24		developing certainly the case and the
25	A.	Absolutely.	25		evidence, and what we would bring forward,
		Do 20			D 22
1		Page 30			Page 32
$ _1$	MR. O'BRIE	Page 30 N:	1		Page 32 were engaged as well.
$\begin{vmatrix} 1\\2 \end{vmatrix}$		N:	1 2	MR. O'BRIE	were engaged as well.
2	MR. O'BRIE Q.	N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come	1 2 3	MR. O'BRIE	were engaged as well. N:
23		N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to	3	MR. O'BRIE Q.	were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did
2	Q.	N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that –			were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases
2 3 4 5	Q. MS. DALLE	N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y:	3 4 5	Q.	were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis.
2 3 4 5 6	Q.	N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific	3 4 5 6	Q. MS. DALLEY	were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis.
2 3 4 5 6 7	Q. MS. DALLE A.	N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not –	3 4 5 6 7	Q. MS. DALLEY A.	were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. <i>C</i> : Sure.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE	 N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: 	3 4 5 6 7 8	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE	were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. (: Sure. N:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q.	 N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. MS. DALLEY A.	were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. (: Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	 N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. Y: 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE	were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. <i>C</i> : Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has acknowledged was kind of a unique type of a
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A.	 N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. Y: Oh, modified. 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE	were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. <i>(</i> : Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has acknowledged was kind of a unique type of a deferral account. Would you agree with me
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE	N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. Y: Oh, modified. N:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE	were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. C: Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has acknowledged was kind of a unique type of a deferral account. Would you agree with me that the rate case itself was kind of
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A.	 N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. Y: Oh, modified. N: A policy that might be modified. I 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE	were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. <i>X</i> : Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has acknowledged was kind of a unique type of a deferral account. Would you agree with me that the rate case itself was kind of wrapped up in this deferral account to a
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q.	 N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. Y: Oh, modified. N: A policy that might be modified. I understood what you said about creating. 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE Q.	 were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. X: Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has acknowledged was kind of a unique type of a deferral account. Would you agree with me that the rate case itself was kind of wrapped up in this deferral account to a certain degree?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE Q. MS. DALLE	N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. Y: Oh, modified. N: A policy that might be modified. I understood what you said about creating. Y:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLEY	were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. <i>X</i> : Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has acknowledged was kind of a unique type of a deferral account. Would you agree with me that the rate case itself was kind of wrapped up in this deferral account to a certain degree? <i>X</i> :
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A.	 N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. Y: Oh, modified. N: A policy that might be modified. I understood what you said about creating. Y: No, not yet. 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE Q.	 were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. X: Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has acknowledged was kind of a unique type of a deferral account. Would you agree with me that the rate case itself was kind of wrapped up in this deferral account to a certain degree? X: I think it's fair to say I was dreaming
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE Q. MS. DALLE	 N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. Y: Oh, modified. N: A policy that might be modified. I understood what you said about creating. Y: No, not yet. 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLEY A.	 were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. X: Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has acknowledged was kind of a unique type of a deferral account. Would you agree with me that the rate case itself was kind of wrapped up in this deferral account to a certain degree? X: I think it's fair to say I was dreaming about that last night. Indeed it is.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A.	 N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. Y: Oh, modified. N: A policy that might be modified. I understood what you said about creating. Y: No, not yet. 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLEY	 were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. X: Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has acknowledged was kind of a unique type of a deferral account. Would you agree with me that the rate case itself was kind of wrapped up in this deferral account to a certain degree? X: I think it's fair to say I was dreaming about that last night. Indeed it is.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE	 N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. Y: Oh, modified. N: A policy that might be modified. I understood what you said about creating. Y: No, not yet. N: 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLEY A.	 were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. X: Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has acknowledged was kind of a unique type of a deferral account. Would you agree with me that the rate case itself was kind of wrapped up in this deferral account to a certain degree? X: I think it's fair to say I was dreaming about that last night. Indeed it is.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE	N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. Y: Oh, modified. N: A policy that might be modified. I understood what you said about creating. Y: No, not yet. N: Okay, all right. I'm going to shift the	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE	 were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. X: Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has acknowledged was kind of a unique type of a deferral account. Would you agree with me that the rate case itself was kind of wrapped up in this deferral account to a certain degree? X: I think it's fair to say I was dreaming about that last night. Indeed it is. N: I think we all were.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE	 N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. Y: Oh, modified. N: A policy that might be modified. I understood what you said about creating. Y: No, not yet. N: Okay, all right. I'm going to shift the focus a little bit here just to talk about your role with regulatory affairs, and is it 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE Q.	 were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. X: Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has acknowledged was kind of a unique type of a deferral account. Would you agree with me that the rate case itself was kind of wrapped up in this deferral account to a certain degree? X: I think it's fair to say I was dreaming about that last night. Indeed it is. N: I think we all were.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE	 N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. Y: Oh, modified. N: A policy that might be modified. I understood what you said about creating. Y: No, not yet. N: Okay, all right. I'm going to shift the focus a little bit here just to talk about your role with regulatory affairs, and is it fair for me to say that you would have been 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEY Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEY Q.	 were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. X: Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has acknowledged was kind of a unique type of a deferral account. Would you agree with me that the rate case itself was kind of wrapped up in this deferral account to a certain degree? X: I think it's fair to say I was dreaming about that last night. Indeed it is. N: I think we all were. X: Yeah.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q.	 N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. Y: Oh, modified. N: A policy that might be modified. I understood what you said about creating. Y: No, not yet. N: Okay, all right. I'm going to shift the focus a little bit here just to talk about your role with regulatory affairs, and is it fair for me to say that you would have been the main person sponsoring the rate case? 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE A. MR. O'BRIE	 were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. X: Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has acknowledged was kind of a unique type of a deferral account. Would you agree with me that the rate case itself was kind of wrapped up in this deferral account to a certain degree? X: I think it's fair to say I was dreaming about that last night. Indeed it is. N: I think we all were. X: Yeah. N:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE Q. MS. DALLE	 N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. Y: Oh, modified. N: A policy that might be modified. I understood what you said about creating. Y: No, not yet. N: Okay, all right. I'm going to shift the focus a little bit here just to talk about your role with regulatory affairs, and is it fair for me to say that you would have been the main person sponsoring the rate case? Y: 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEY Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEY Q.	 were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. <i>X</i>: Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has acknowledged was kind of a unique type of a deferral account. Would you agree with me that the rate case itself was kind of wrapped up in this deferral account to a certain degree? <i>X</i>: I think it's fair to say I was dreaming about that last night. Indeed it is. N: I think we all were. <i>X</i>: Yeah. N: So this account would be to allow Hydro to
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q.	 N: Okay. Are there any examples you can come up with where that has actually happened to date, or is that – Y: Well, I just gave two around the specific policies which we created, which were not – N: Oh, no, I mean modified policies. Y: Oh, modified. N: A policy that might be modified. I understood what you said about creating. Y: No, not yet. N: Okay, all right. I'm going to shift the focus a little bit here just to talk about your role with regulatory affairs, and is it fair for me to say that you would have been the main person sponsoring the rate case? Y: Yes. 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIE A. MR. O'BRIE	 were engaged as well. N: Before I get into some of the cost, I did want to talk about the off-island purchases deferral account and its genesis. X: Sure. N: It's something that Mr. Haynes has acknowledged was kind of a unique type of a deferral account. Would you agree with me that the rate case itself was kind of wrapped up in this deferral account to a certain degree? X: I think it's fair to say I was dreaming about that last night. Indeed it is. N: I think we all were. X: Yeah. N:

	25, 2018		NL Hydro 201/ GRA
1	Page 33		Page 35
1	MS. DALLEY:	1	particular proposal, this type of a deferral
2	A. That's correct.	2	account? One thing to talk about rate
3	MR. O'BRIEN:	3	mitigation, but one thing to talk
4	Q. And even though it's anticipated that the	4	differently about this particular type of
5	Labrador Island Link would be in service by		proposal, do you recall when that came up?
	•		
6	mid 2018. So the proposals aren't strictly	6	MS. DALLEY:
7	based on the expected cost of service, is	7	A. I'm going to give you what I would say is my
8	that fair?	8	best guess.
9	MS. DALLEY:	9	MR. O'BRIEN:
10	A. That's correct.	10	Q. Okay, that's all I can ask you for.
11	MR. O'BRIEN:	11	MS. DALLEY:
12	Q. Okay, and really, I mean, we've sat here and		A. Which I would think would have been early in
13	discussed a fair bit with Mr. Haynes. This	13	2017, or late 2016. It was in the
13	is largely about rate mitigation, the way	13	development of again the rate case and what
15	this was put together, the rate case, is	15	we were going to bring forward, and what
16	that fair?	16	opportunities we saw for – again one might
17	MS. DALLEY:	17	call it rate mitigation, could probably
18	A. That's how we approached it, yes.	18	slice and dice rate mitigation and rate
19	MR. O'BRIEN:	19	smoothing. I think this is something where
20	Q. Okay. How was it that rate mitigation	20	indeed it has been pointed out, customers
21	itself and that concept became such a focus	21	are paying in advance for something and
22	for Hydro when it put together this	22	getting that back, so it's more like rate
23	particular rate case, as opposed to the last	23	smoothing.
24	rate case?	23	MR. O'BRIEN:
	MS. DALLEY:	24	
25		-	Q. And did you have any idea when you first
	Page 34		Page 36
	A. I've heard the saying recently which says,		started talking about this rate smoothing
2	"how do you extract the milk from the tea",	2	thought sort of as to what targets you might
3	and this might indeed be one of those. You	3	have wanted to look towards in terms of how
4		1 2	have wanted to look towards in terms of now
	know, I think we've known for some time wha	-	much money may be necessary in the future to
5		-	much money may be necessary in the future to
	the impacts that are coming to customers as	4 5	much money may be necessary in the future to put aside?
6	the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and	4 5 6	much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY:
6 7	the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce,	4 5 6 7	much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately,
6 7 8	the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role	4 5 6 7 8	much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited
6 7 8 9	the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't	4 5 6 7 8 9	much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are
6 7 8 9 10	the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr.	2 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation
6 7 8 9 10 11	the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr. O'Brien, where that would have, you know,	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	much money may be necessary in the future to put aside?MS. DALLEY:A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation which I'm not engaged with. So I think we're
6 7 8 9 10	the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr. O'Brien, where that would have, you know, oh, my God, this is an opportunity, but I	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation which I'm not engaged with. So I think we're very aware of the quantum that is required
6 7 8 9 10 11	the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr. O'Brien, where that would have, you know,	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	much money may be necessary in the future to put aside?MS. DALLEY:A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation which I'm not engaged with. So I think we're
6 7 8 9 10 11 12	the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr. O'Brien, where that would have, you know, oh, my God, this is an opportunity, but I	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation which I'm not engaged with. So I think we're very aware of the quantum that is required to achieve what we believe the government
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr. O'Brien, where that would have, you know, oh, my God, this is an opportunity, but I think we've had very active discussion about what we could do, and then this is what	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation which I'm not engaged with. So I think we're very aware of the quantum that is required to achieve what we believe the government has laid out as a target rate that they feel
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr. O'Brien, where that would have, you know, oh, my God, this is an opportunity, but I think we've had very active discussion about what we could do, and then this is what resulted in our proposal.	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation which I'm not engaged with. So I think we're very aware of the quantum that is required to achieve what we believe the government has laid out as a target rate that they feel is acceptable, and then the question is,
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr. O'Brien, where that would have, you know, oh, my God, this is an opportunity, but I think we've had very active discussion about what we could do, and then this is what resulted in our proposal. MR. O'BRIEN:	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation which I'm not engaged with. So I think we're very aware of the quantum that is required to achieve what we believe the government has laid out as a target rate that they feel is acceptable, and then the question is, again which Mr. Haynes, I think, spoke to
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr. O'Brien, where that would have, you know, oh, my God, this is an opportunity, but I think we've had very active discussion about what we could do, and then this is what resulted in our proposal. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And when you say "our proposal", are you 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation which I'm not engaged with. So I think we're very aware of the quantum that is required to achieve what we believe the government has laid out as a target rate that they feel is acceptable, and then the question is, again which Mr. Haynes, I think, spoke to very well, is what are the options that are
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr. O'Brien, where that would have, you know, oh, my God, this is an opportunity, but I think we've had very active discussion about what we could do, and then this is what resulted in our proposal. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And when you say "our proposal", are you able to tell me who came up with the idea of 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation which I'm not engaged with. So I think we're very aware of the quantum that is required to achieve what we believe the government has laid out as a target rate that they feel is acceptable, and then the question is, again which Mr. Haynes, I think, spoke to very well, is what are the options that are available to get us there, and we felt that
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr. O'Brien, where that would have, you know, oh, my God, this is an opportunity, but I think we've had very active discussion about what we could do, and then this is what resulted in our proposal. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And when you say "our proposal", are you able to tell me who came up with the idea of the off-island purchases deferral account? 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation which I'm not engaged with. So I think we're very aware of the quantum that is required to achieve what we believe the government has laid out as a target rate that they feel is acceptable, and then the question is, again which Mr. Haynes, I think, spoke to very well, is what are the options that are available to get us there, and we felt that the deferral account was a mechanism, and I
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr. O'Brien, where that would have, you know, oh, my God, this is an opportunity, but I think we've had very active discussion about what we could do, and then this is what resulted in our proposal. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And when you say "our proposal", are you able to tell me who came up with the idea of the off-island purchases deferral account? 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation which I'm not engaged with. So I think we're very aware of the quantum that is required to achieve what we believe the government has laid out as a target rate that they feel is acceptable, and then the question is, again which Mr. Haynes, I think, spoke to very well, is what are the options that are available to get us there, and we felt that the deferral account was a mechanism, and I think we've been fairly clear not the only
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr. O'Brien, where that would have, you know, oh, my God, this is an opportunity, but I think we've had very active discussion about what we could do, and then this is what resulted in our proposal. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And when you say "our proposal", are you able to tell me who came up with the idea of the off-island purchases deferral account? MS. DALLEY: A. I'll say, unfortunately, I think I just 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation which I'm not engaged with. So I think we're very aware of the quantum that is required to achieve what we believe the government has laid out as a target rate that they feel is acceptable, and then the question is, again which Mr. Haynes, I think, spoke to very well, is what are the options that are available to get us there, and we felt that the deferral account was a mechanism, and I think we've been fairly clear not the only mechanism, but the mechanism that we put
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr. O'Brien, where that would have, you know, oh, my God, this is an opportunity, but I think we've had very active discussion about what we could do, and then this is what resulted in our proposal. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And when you say "our proposal", are you able to tell me who came up with the idea of the off-island purchases deferral account? MS. DALLEY: A. I'll say, unfortunately, I think I just answered that, but, no, I really don't know. 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation which I'm not engaged with. So I think we're very aware of the quantum that is required to achieve what we believe the government has laid out as a target rate that they feel is acceptable, and then the question is, again which Mr. Haynes, I think, spoke to very well, is what are the options that are available to get us there, and we felt that the deferral account was a mechanism, and I think we've been fairly clear not the only
$\begin{array}{c} 6\\ 7\\ 8\\ 9\\ 10\\ 11\\ 12\\ 13\\ 14\\ 15\\ 16\\ 17\\ 18\\ 19\\ 20\\ 21\\ \end{array}$	 the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr. O'Brien, where that would have, you know, oh, my God, this is an opportunity, but I think we've had very active discussion about what we could do, and then this is what resulted in our proposal. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And when you say "our proposal", are you able to tell me who came up with the idea of the off-island purchases deferral account? MS. DALLEY: A. I'll say, unfortunately, I think I just 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation which I'm not engaged with. So I think we're very aware of the quantum that is required to achieve what we believe the government has laid out as a target rate that they feel is acceptable, and then the question is, again which Mr. Haynes, I think, spoke to very well, is what are the options that are available to get us there, and we felt that the deferral account was a mechanism, and I think we've been fairly clear not the only mechanism, but the mechanism that we put
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr. O'Brien, where that would have, you know, oh, my God, this is an opportunity, but I think we've had very active discussion about what we could do, and then this is what resulted in our proposal. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And when you say "our proposal", are you able to tell me who came up with the idea of the off-island purchases deferral account? MS. DALLEY: A. I'll say, unfortunately, I think I just answered that, but, no, I really don't know. 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation which I'm not engaged with. So I think we're very aware of the quantum that is required to achieve what we believe the government has laid out as a target rate that they feel is acceptable, and then the question is, again which Mr. Haynes, I think, spoke to very well, is what are the options that are available to get us there, and we felt that the deferral account was a mechanism, and I think we've been fairly clear not the only mechanism, but the mechanism that we put forward which we felt was reasonable to try
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 the impacts that are coming to customers as a result of Muskrat Falls coming online, and as those discussions started to coalesce, you know, Hydro started looking at what role do we have and what can we do, and I don't remember an exact light bulb moment, Mr. O'Brien, where that would have, you know, oh, my God, this is an opportunity, but I think we've had very active discussion about what we could do, and then this is what resulted in our proposal. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And when you say "our proposal", are you able to tell me who came up with the idea of the off-island purchases deferral account? MS. DALLEY: A. I'll say, unfortunately, I think I just answered that, but, no, I really don't know. 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 much money may be necessary in the future to put aside? MS. DALLEY: A. I think it's probably again, unfortunately, a question that might have been best suited for Mr. Haynes, because there are discussions happening on rate mitigation which I'm not engaged with. So I think we're very aware of the quantum that is required to achieve what we believe the government has laid out as a target rate that they feel is acceptable, and then the question is, again which Mr. Haynes, I think, spoke to very well, is what are the options that are available to get us there, and we felt that the deferral account was a mechanism, and I think we've been fairly clear not the only mechanism, but the mechanism that we put forward which we felt was reasonable to try and help and achieve that.

April 25, 20	18
--------------	----

	Page 37		Page 39
1	second, but I think you jumped right into my	1	rate mitigation committee as an option?
2	next question. Mr. Haynes had talked about	2	MS. DALLEY:
$\frac{2}{3}$	a rate mitigation committee, and I'm	3	A. I would assume so, but again I'm not at the
	assuming from your answer, you were not	4	committee, so I'm not familiar with the
5	privy to that – not part of that committee,	5	agendas or what happens. I've had some
	is that fair?	6	discussions with Mr. Haynes about it, but,
	MS. DALLEY:	7	you know, as a matter of update.
0			MR. O'BRIEN:
8	A. I'm not part of that committee. MR. O'BRIEN:	8 9	
9		-	Q. Okay, and let me ask you just in terms of
10	Q. And did you have any discussions with	10	when you started putting together this
11	government personally or with any Nalcor	11	particular rate case, I got the impression
12	personnel about how to put together this	12	that would have been late 2016, early 2017,
13	rate case from a rate mitigation	13	is that a fair timeline?
14	perspective?	14	MS. DALLEY:
15	MS. DALLEY:	15	A. Yes, I think that's fair.
16	A. No. I think from the government	16	MR. O'BRIEN:
17	perspective, we would have kept them	17	Q. And so at that point, what sort of
18	informed as to what we were putting forward.	18	visibility did you have in terms of forecast
19	MR. O'BRIEN:	19	rate increases once Muskrat Falls would come
20	Q. And your regulatory affairs department, did	20	online?
21	that play any role in terms of support for	21	MS. DALLEY:
22	the rate mitigation committee?	22	A. I would have had the same information which
23	MS. DALLEY:	23	would have been publicly available.
24	A. I do know that we provide information as	24	MR. O'BRIEN:
25	required if it's requested of us, but I	25	Q. Okay. So this information we spoke to Mr.
	Page 38	-	Page 40
1	don't think we're an active participant in	1	Haynes about in terms of the 22 cents per
2	the rate mitigation committee unless	2	kilowatt hour, you would have had that
$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	requested. So again we may provide some	3	information available to you?
	analysis, but I'm not that familiar with	4	MS. DALLEY:
5	what is happening on the rate mitigation	5	
	committee at a detailed level.		A. When that was made available, yes. MR. O'BRIEN:
$\begin{vmatrix} 6 \\ 7 \end{vmatrix}$	MR. O'BRIEN:	6	
		7	Q. And that was made available, from what we
8	Q. Okay, so when you say in terms of "provide	8	could see, in June of 2017. I don't know if
9	as requested", there may be some analysis of	9	there's any information behind that. Do you
10	information. Would there have been any	10	recall before that?
11	request of your department to provide	11	MS. DALLEY:
12	options for rate mitigation per se?	12	A. I think that's the public presentation.
13	MS. DALLEY:	13	MR. O'BRIEN:
14	A. Again not that I'm aware of, but it's a good	14	Q. Yes, that's right.
15	question for Mr. Fagan.	15	MS. DALLEY:
16	MR. O'BRIEN:	16	A. Which Mr. Marshall did, yes.
17	Q. Okay.	17	MR. O'BRIEN:
· * /	\mathbf{x} . Only.	10	O Olympic as hafars that as if that's lung of
18	MS. DALLEY:	18	Q. Okay, so before that – so if that's June of
		18 19	•
18	MS. DALLEY: A. I think my direction overall, and our		2017, what information would you have had
18 19 20	MS. DALLEY: A. I think my direction overall, and our direction, is to be helpful where we can. So	19	•
18 19 20 21	MS. DALLEY: A. I think my direction overall, and our direction, is to be helpful where we can. So if there's information required, we will	19 20 21	2017, what information would you have had when you started looking at this rate case?
18 19 20 21 22	MS. DALLEY: A. I think my direction overall, and our direction, is to be helpful where we can. So if there's information required, we will provide it.	19 20 21 22	2017, what information would you have had when you started looking at this rate case? MS. DALLEY: A. That is the information we would have had.
18 19 20 21 22 23	MS. DALLEY: A. I think my direction overall, and our direction, is to be helpful where we can. So if there's information required, we will provide it. MR. O'BRIEN:	19 20 21 22 23	2017, what information would you have had when you started looking at this rate case? MS. DALLEY: A. That is the information we would have had. MR. O'BRIEN:
18 19 20 21 22	MS. DALLEY: A. I think my direction overall, and our direction, is to be helpful where we can. So if there's information required, we will provide it.	19 20 21 22	2017, what information would you have had when you started looking at this rate case? MS. DALLEY: A. That is the information we would have had.

April	25, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 41		Page 43
1	MS. DALLEY:	1	(9:45 a.m.)
2	A. 2016.	2	MR. O'BRIEN:
3	MR. O'BRIEN:	3	Q. Okay. And in terms of the background behind
4	Q. Did you have the exact same information at	4	those figures, would you have had any
	•	5	U , I , I
5	that point?		visibility into how those figures got
6	MS. DALLEY:	6	calculated?
7	A. I think we would have had some quantum of	1	MS. DALLEY:
8	where rates were going. I don't know the	8	A. The figures around the previous estimate and
9	detail of that.	9	the current estimate?
10	MR. O'BRIEN:	10	MR. O'BRIEN:
11	Q. Okay, all right, and do you recall was it in	11	Q. Yes, either the 22 cents or 21 cents a
12	the same area?	12	kilowatt hour, would you have had any
13	MS. DALLEY:	13	background as to how they were calculated?
14	A. Pardon?	14	MS. DALLEY:
15	MR. O'BRIEN:	15	A. No, I have, what I would have say is a
			•
16	Q. Do you recall whether it was the same	16	general understanding of, I guess, at a high
17	amount?	17	level, how they were calculated and what was
18	MS. DALLEY:	18	included.
19	A. I don't.	19	MR. O'BRIEN:
20	MR. O'BRIEN:	20	Q. Okay. And when you said you had some
21	Q. And maybe if we could just quickly bring up	21	discussions with Investment Group, who would
22	IC-NLH-122, attachment 1, page 19. Is it	22	that have been with?
23	page 19, yes, okay, can we scroll down to	23	MS. DALLEY:
24	the next page, sorry. Yes, this one here.	24	A. I'm mentally walking through the room to try
25	So, this is the table that we spoke to Mr.	25	to—I can remember the room I was in. It
	Page 42		Page 44
1	•		-
	Haynes about. And that includes the current		would have been, I think, Mr. Jones and I
$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	estimate as of June of 2017 at 22.89 cents a	2	don't recall who else was there.
3	kilowatt hour for 2021. I take it you	3	MR. O'BRIEN:
4	wouldn't have seen this particular table	4	Q. Okay. In terms of the approval here that
5	when you started putting together the rate	5	Hydro is looking for, in terms of some rate
6	case, if that fair?	6	mitigation, this deferral account really is
7	MS. DALLEY:	7	looking for an approval for rate mitigation
8	A. I don't recall, but whether or not we have	8	steps for the future. Would you agree with
9	used earlier tables which would have had an	9	me that it's incumbent on Hydro to put
10	order of magnitude, we may have. I recall	10	sufficient evidence regarding this timing
11	having a meeting with Investment Evaluation		and the anticipated rate increases, in other
12	who are developing this on the Nalcor side,	12	circumstances that might be relevant before
	1 0	1	the Board can make a determination as to
13	but unfortunately I don't recall the timing	13	
14	of that.	14	what's necessary and how much should be put
15	MR. O'BRIEN:	15	aside?
16	Q. Okay. And there's a—if you look below in	16	MS. DALLEY:
17	the first column there, there's a previous	17	A. Do you mean from an end goal perspective?
18	estimate of 21.37 cents a kilowatt hour.	18	MR. O'BRIEN:
19	So, I presume this was an update from that	19	Q. Partially from an end goal, but also from a—
20	previous estimate. So, do you know whether	20	the circumstances that the Board needs to
21	or not your seen a previous document similar		look at and the circumstances as to where
22	to this?	22	rates are going to be in the future in order
$\begin{bmatrix} 22\\23 \end{bmatrix}$	MS. DALLEY:	$\begin{vmatrix} 22\\23 \end{vmatrix}$	to allow the Board to determine how much
23		23	money needs to be put away and how we do
	e,	1	1 5
25	previous document that I'm anchoring to.	25	that to avoid rate shock. Hydro needs to

	23, 2010				
		Page 45			Page 47
		put sufficient evidence on the record for	l		we see coming down the road.
2		that.	2	MR. O'BRIEN	
3	MS. DALLE		3	Q.	Has Hydro attempted to develop any of its
4	А.	I think our perspective on that is that we	4		own projections in terms of rate estimates
5		are in an intensely challenging time which	5		in the future?
6		is to be more challenging. And we know that		MS. DALLEY	
1		it's a period of immense uncertainty as well	7	A.	No.
8		and in the, I guess, in the presence of that	8	MR. O'BRIEN	
9		uncertainty we're looking to assist	9	Q.	And why is that? Is it just that you're not
10		customers as to what will be an inevitable	10		privy to the information from Nalcor in
11		end state and, you know, a portion of that	11		order to do that?
12		which we can contribute to. So, I feel it	12	MS. DALLEY	
13		is incumbent upon us to bring forward yes,	13	A.	Now, I thin—you know, there are cases where
14		the evidence for the Board to make a	14		we have looked at and been requested to look
15		decision. I think we respect and understand	15		at specific, I guess, rate projections. So,
16		that this is a complex matter and that what	16		that would be, I think, a fairly
17		we proposed, we feel is a reasonable	17		collaborative environment between our rates
18		outcome. And I think with reference to the	18		team as well as the investment evaluation
19		expert evidence to support that outcome,	19		team. So, I think with the level of
20		it's—and again, the experts can speak to	20		granularly that you might be looking for,
21		that better than I can. We do think the	21		Mr. Fagan can speak to specifics of
22		proposal is reasonable, but we also	22		different scenarios they may have worked on,
23		appreciate that there are other	23		any input we've had with respect to that.
24		considerations that need to be made and	24		Again on a day-to-day basis, we're all
25		that's why it's an important matter to have	25		trying to row in the same direction. So,
		Page 46			Page 48
1		before the Board.	1		we're not being—I guess we've being
2	MR. O'BRIE		2		available to provide information and I think
3	Q.	Has Hydro found it challenging trying to	3		that the Nalcor folks are doing the same.
4		find some evidence based projections or some	4	MR. O'BRIEN	
5		additional information from Nalcor in order	5	Q.	Did Hydro make any inquiries of government
6		to put that before the Board to make these	6		concerning its plans for rate mitigation in
7		determinations? Has there been any road	7		the next few years?
8		blocks put from Hydro in that regard?	8	MS. DALLEY	
9	MS. DALLE		9	А.	I think that Mr. Haynes spoke to the process
10	A.	I don't believe so. I mean, again, that's-	10		that government had put in place with the
11		you know, we've got the projections which	11		rate committee.
12		are public. I think if we felt we needed	12	MR. O'BRIEN	
13		more information, we would request that.	13	Q.	Are you aware of any other discussions or
14		And I don't think there would be an issue.	14		were you party to any discussions in that
15	MR. O'BRIEI		15		regard?
16	Q.	Has Hydro requested any further information	16	MS. DALLEY	
17		from Nalcor?	17	A.	I don't believe so, no.
18	MS. DALLE		18	MR. O'BRIEN	
19	A.	I think within the context of—again, until	19	Q.	Okay. And one of the questions of Mr.
20		the final costs on the project are	20		Haynes from Ms. Greene was whether or not he
21		determined, you know, again we're in a	21		felt it was reasonable without the full
22		period of uncertainty. So, the estimates	22		pieces of the government's own mitigation
23		that are publically available now are the	23		strategy, would it be reasonable or
			0.4		
24 25		estimates under which today is the best available information that we have are what	24 25		difficult for the Board to consider the appropriateness of any rate mitigation

1.	Page 49		Page 51
1	proposal? Would you agree with that?	1	exact discussion and I do think that Mr.
2	MS. DALLEY:	2	Fagan and the evidence that we have on
3	A. I think that it certainly presents a	3	record from the experts speaks to what we
4	challenge and I think we are appreciative of	4	see as reasonable inside of the proposal
5	that challenge. Our principle that we	5	that we've put forward. But once we made
6	brought forward on this is this is a	6	the determination to move forward which was-
7	reasonable proposal that we felt it was	7	I mean, we tested, I guess is probably the
8	incumbent upon Hydro to, you know, at this	8	way to think about it. You know, when we
9	time before too much more time elapsed as we	9	looked at the deferral account, you know,
10	travelled down because your opportunity to	10	was there a consideration for, you know,
11	act is getting shorter and shorter. So, we	11	putting again, a rider on? I don't recall a
12	wanted to put something forward in this rate	12	detailed discussion about it, but it was a,
13	case which assisted and that customers would	13	I guess, an option that we would have
14	be, you know, saving and again putting that-	14	discussed. I recall discussing it, but Mr.
15	the Board had discretion over when those	15	Fagan might be able to speak to the details
16	funds were returned to customers and at what	16	of the benefits to that or the other option.
17	time. So, we didn't presume to take that on	17	MR. O'BRIEN:
18	in that detail; we left that open to this	18	Q. And I wondering whether you can give us your
19	forum and the discussion.	19	opinion on whether or not you feel that the
20	MR. O'BRIEN:	20	off-island purchases deferral account is
21	Q. In terms of alternatives, so Hydro had	21	going to make any sort of significant dent
22	developed the concept of the off-island	22	in rates, whatever money is put aside from
23	purchase deferral account. In terms of	23	that, once Muskrat Falls comes on line?
24	other options, what options did you look at	24	MS. DALLEY:
25	for rate mitigation purposes? Perhaps you	25	A. I think that it is one piece, but the
			* '
1	Page 50		Page 52
1	Page 50 can lay that out for us.	1	Page 52 Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat
-	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY:	1 2	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat
$\begin{bmatrix} 1\\ 2\\ 3 \end{bmatrix}$	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY:	1 2 3	5
2	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high		Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one
23	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a	3	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high	3	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb.
2 3 4 5	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option	3 4 5	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate
2 3 4 5 6	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming	3 4 5	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a
2 3 4 5 6 7	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming into 17 and what time the line would be in; how much fuel would we be expected	3 4 5 6 7	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate mitigation committee, a focus on trying to mitigate rates down to an 18 cents per
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming into 17 and what time the line would be in; how much fuel would we be expected contribute. I recall looking at the high	3 4 5 6 7 8	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate mitigation committee, a focus on trying to
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming into 17 and what time the line would be in; how much fuel would we be expected	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate mitigation committee, a focus on trying to mitigate rates down to an 18 cents per
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming into 17 and what time the line would be in; how much fuel would we be expected contribute. I recall looking at the high level estimates and it was really holding	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate mitigation committee, a focus on trying to mitigate rates down to an 18 cents per kilowatt hour range. Does that figure sound —
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming into 17 and what time the line would be in; how much fuel would we be expected contribute. I recall looking at the high level estimates and it was really holding rates steady to what the customer, at that	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate mitigation committee, a focus on trying to mitigate rates down to an 18 cents per kilowatt hour range. Does that figure sound — MS. DALLEY:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming into 17 and what time the line would be in; how much fuel would we be expected contribute. I recall looking at the high level estimates and it was really holding rates steady to what the customer, at that time, understood, at this time, I guess	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate mitigation committee, a focus on trying to mitigate rates down to an 18 cents per kilowatt hour range. Does that figure sound — MS. DALLEY: A. It's 17/18 cents, yes.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming into 17 and what time the line would be in; how much fuel would we be expected contribute. I recall looking at the high level estimates and it was really holding rates steady to what the customer, at that time, understood, at this time, I guess would understand and know. So, we thought	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate mitigation committee, a focus on trying to mitigate rates down to an 18 cents per kilowatt hour range. Does that figure sound MS. DALLEY: A. It's 17/18 cents, yes. MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming into 17 and what time the line would be in; how much fuel would we be expected contribute. I recall looking at the high level estimates and it was really holding rates steady to what the customer, at that time, understood, at this time, I guess would understand and know. So, we thought it was a reasonable proposal, but yes, we	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate mitigation committee, a focus on trying to mitigate rates down to an 18 cents per kilowatt hour range. Does that figure sound MS. DALLEY: A. It's 17/18 cents, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And that's a figure you're familiar with?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming into 17 and what time the line would be in; how much fuel would we be expected contribute. I recall looking at the high level estimates and it was really holding rates steady to what the customer, at that time, understood, at this time, I guess would understand and know. So, we thought it was a reasonable proposal, but yes, we looked at other jurisdictions and I think	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate mitigation committee, a focus on trying to mitigate rates down to an 18 cents per kilowatt hour range. Does that figure sound — MS. DALLEY: A. It's 17/18 cents, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And that's a figure you're familiar with? MS. DALLEY:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming into 17 and what time the line would be in; how much fuel would we be expected contribute. I recall looking at the high level estimates and it was really holding rates steady to what the customer, at that time, understood, at this time, I guess would understand and know. So, we thought it was a reasonable proposal, but yes, we looked at other jurisdictions and I think there's some evidence on the record, for	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate mitigation committee, a focus on trying to mitigate rates down to an 18 cents per kilowatt hour range. Does that figure sound MS. DALLEY: A. It's 17/18 cents, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And that's a figure you're familiar with? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming into 17 and what time the line would be in; how much fuel would we be expected contribute. I recall looking at the high level estimates and it was really holding rates steady to what the customer, at that time, understood, at this time, I guess would understand and know. So, we thought it was a reasonable proposal, but yes, we looked at other jurisdictions and I think there's some evidence on the record, for example, of a Manitoba case.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate mitigation committee, a focus on trying to mitigate rates down to an 18 cents per kilowatt hour range. Does that figure sound — MS. DALLEY: A. It's 17/18 cents, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And that's a figure you're familiar with? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming into 17 and what time the line would be in; how much fuel would we be expected contribute. I recall looking at the high level estimates and it was really holding rates steady to what the customer, at that time, understood, at this time, I guess would understand and know. So, we thought it was a reasonable proposal, but yes, we looked at other jurisdictions and I think there's some evidence on the record, for example, of a Manitoba case. MR. O'BRIEN:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate mitigation committee, a focus on trying to mitigate rates down to an 18 cents per kilowatt hour range. Does that figure sound — MS. DALLEY: A. It's 17/18 cents, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And that's a figure you're familiar with? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And when did you first hear of that
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming into 17 and what time the line would be in; how much fuel would we be expected contribute. I recall looking at the high level estimates and it was really holding rates steady to what the customer, at that time, understood, at this time, I guess would understand and know. So, we thought it was a reasonable proposal, but yes, we looked at other jurisdictions and I think there's some evidence on the record, for example, of a Manitoba case. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right, okay. And when you say, at high	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate mitigation committee, a focus on trying to mitigate rates down to an 18 cents per kilowatt hour range. Does that figure sound — MS. DALLEY: A. It's 17/18 cents, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And that's a figure you're familiar with? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And when did you first hear of that kind of a figure?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming into 17 and what time the line would be in; how much fuel would we be expected contribute. I recall looking at the high level estimates and it was really holding rates steady to what the customer, at that time, understood, at this time, I guess would understand and know. So, we thought it was a reasonable proposal, but yes, we looked at other jurisdictions and I think there's some evidence on the record, for example, of a Manitoba case. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right, okay. And when you say, at high level talked about a rider. On what basis	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate mitigation committee, a focus on trying to mitigate rates down to an 18 cents per kilowatt hour range. Does that figure sound MS. DALLEY: A. It's 17/18 cents, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And that's a figure you're familiar with? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And when did you first hear of that kind of a figure? MS. DALLEY:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming into 17 and what time the line would be in; how much fuel would we be expected contribute. I recall looking at the high level estimates and it was really holding rates steady to what the customer, at that time, understood, at this time, I guess would understand and know. So, we thought it was a reasonable proposal, but yes, we looked at other jurisdictions and I think there's some evidence on the record, for example, of a Manitoba case. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right, okay. And when you say, at high level talked about a rider. On what basis did you put that aside as a reasonable	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate mitigation committee, a focus on trying to mitigate rates down to an 18 cents per kilowatt hour range. Does that figure sound — MS. DALLEY: A. It's 17/18 cents, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And that's a figure you're familiar with? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And when did you first hear of that kind of a figure? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recollect that.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	can lay that out for us. MS. DALLEY: A. We had some very, I'll say, certainly high level discussions about the concept of a rider. And again we looked at this option because of some of the uncertainty coming into 17 and what time the line would be in; how much fuel would we be expected contribute. I recall looking at the high level estimates and it was really holding rates steady to what the customer, at that time, understood, at this time, I guess would understand and know. So, we thought it was a reasonable proposal, but yes, we looked at other jurisdictions and I think there's some evidence on the record, for example, of a Manitoba case. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right, okay. And when you say, at high level talked about a rider. On what basis did you put that aside as a reasonable option as opposed to put it forward as one	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Muskrat—the quantum required for Muskrat Falls is significant. And that this is one small contribution to that climb. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Mr. Haynes gave some evidence concerning a focus and I think this arose out of the rate mitigation committee, a focus on trying to mitigate rates down to an 18 cents per kilowatt hour range. Does that figure sound — MS. DALLEY: A. It's 17/18 cents, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And that's a figure you're familiar with? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And when did you first hear of that kind of a figure? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recollect that. MR. O'BRIEN:

					•
		Page 53			Page 55
1		the rate case itself?	1	Q.	I'll ask you to do that. In terms of –
2	MS. DALLE		2	MS. GLYNN:	
3	А.	Again, it's a matter of timing, so I don't	3	Q.	Will we note that as an undertaking?
4		know specifically but I would expect that we	4	MR. O'BRIEN	J:
5		understood at a high level and even looking	5	Q.	Sure.
6		to the exhibit which you've got on the	6	MS. GLYNN:	
7		screen now, the previous estimate would of	7	Q.	Thank you.
8		have a fairly significant gap between	8	-	NDERTAKING)
9		today's rates. So, I think it's fair to say	9	MR. O'BRIEN	,
10		we would have appreciated what the order of	10	Q.	And I guess one of the reasons I ask you
11		magnitude was of the change.	11	X.	that question is is that part of the off-
12	MR. O'BRIEI		12		island purchase deferral account obviously
13	Q.	And do you recall any direction about trying	13		is a set off of O&M costs versus whatever
13	Q.	to work towards those figures, 17/18 cents	13		savings from recall power, is that fair?
15		for mitigation purposes?	15	MS. DALLEY	
15	MS. DALLE	• • •	15	A.	Yes.
				MR. O'BRIEN	
17	A.	No, again that may have been a discussion that Mr. Harmon	17 19		
18	ייז תחו∩ מא	that Mr. Haynes –	18	Q.	Savings at Holyrood. So, I want to talk
19	MR. O'BRIEI		19		just briefly about, sort of, how practical
20	Q.	At a higher level.	20		this type of deferral account might turn out
21	MS. DALLE		21		to be in the long run. So, Mr. Haynes has
22	A.	- yeah.	22		testified to this as well and we have an
23	MR. O'BRIEI		23		understanding that in terms of how much
24	Q.	May I ask you, if the deferral account isn't	24		recall power might be available from the
25		approved, where does that leave Hydro with	25		CF(L)Co. block. It's somewhere it the range
		Dece 54			D 56
		Page 54			Page 56
1		respect to the rate case as it's filed?	1		I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in
$\begin{vmatrix} 1\\2 \end{vmatrix}$	MS. DALLEY	respect to the rate case as it's filed?	1 2		•
	MS. DALLEY A.	respect to the rate case as it's filed?	1 2 3	MS. DALLEY	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area.
2		respect to the rate case as it's filed?		MS. DALLEY A.	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area.
23		respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that,	3		I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. 7: In total you mean?
2 3 4 5		respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've	3 4	A. MR. O'BRIEN	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. 7: In total you mean? I:
2 3 4 5 6		respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the	3 4 5	А.	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. T: In total you mean? I: In total there, yeah.
2 3 4 5 6 7	A.	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be.	3 4 5 6 7	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. 7: In total you mean? V: In total there, yeah. 7:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	A. MR. O'BRIEI	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N:	3 4 5 6	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q.	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. T: In total you mean? I: In total there, yeah.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	A.	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Wy assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N: So, would you expect that if the deferral	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. In total you mean? In total there, yeah. Yeah, you have to take away the Labrador load.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	A. MR. O'BRIEI	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N: So, would you expect that if the deferral account is not approved, that's where we	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. 7: In total you mean? V: In total there, yeah. 7: Yeah, you have to take away the Labrador load. V:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	A. MR. O'BRIEI	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N: So, would you expect that if the deferral account is not approved, that's where we would move to consideration of the expected	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A.	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. That area. The total you mean? The total you mean? The total there, yeah. The total the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q.	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N: So, would you expect that if the deferral account is not approved, that's where we would move to consideration of the expected supply scenario?	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. In total you mean? In total there, yeah. Yeah, you have to take away the Labrador load. And you take away your Labrador load and it was somewhere in the range of 110 and 115
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N: So, would you expect that if the deferral account is not approved, that's where we would move to consideration of the expected supply scenario? Y:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. That area. The total you mean? The total there, yeah. The total the total
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A.	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N: So, would you expect that if the deferral account is not approved, that's where we would move to consideration of the expected supply scenario? Y: I think that's a reasonable assumption.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q.	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. That area. The total you mean? The total you mean? The total there, yeah. The total the total
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N: So, would you expect that if the deferral account is not approved, that's where we would move to consideration of the expected supply scenario? Y: I think that's a reasonable assumption.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q.	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. In total you mean? In total there, yeah. Yeah, you have to take away the Labrador load. And you take away your Labrador load and it was somewhere in the range of 110 and 115 maybe megawatts available on peak, is that fair?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A.	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Wy assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N: So, would you expect that if the deferral account is not approved, that's where we would move to consideration of the expected supply scenario? X: I think that's a reasonable assumption. N: Okay. Under the expected supply scenario,	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A.	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. That area. The total you mean? The total there, yeah. The total the t
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N: So, would you expect that if the deferral account is not approved, that's where we would move to consideration of the expected supply scenario? Y: I think that's a reasonable assumption. N: Okay. Under the expected supply scenario, does that include recovery of or payment of	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. That area. The total you mean? The total you mean? The total there, yeah. The total the total th
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N: So, would you expect that if the deferral account is not approved, that's where we would move to consideration of the expected supply scenario? Y: I think that's a reasonable assumption. N: Okay. Under the expected supply scenario, does that include recovery of or payment of O&M costs for Nalcor for operating the	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q.	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. In total you mean? In total there, yeah. Yeah, you have to take away the Labrador load. And you take away your Labrador load and it was somewhere in the range of 110 and 115 maybe megawatts available on peak, is that fair? I believe that – Sorry, off peak.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q.	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N: So, would you expect that if the deferral account is not approved, that's where we would move to consideration of the expected supply scenario? X: I think that's a reasonable assumption. N: Okay. Under the expected supply scenario, does that include recovery of or payment of O&M costs for Nalcor for operating the Labrador Island Link?	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY MS. DALLEY	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. That area. The total you mean? In total you mean? The total there, yeah. The total the total th
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY MR. O'BRIEN Q.	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N: So, would you expect that if the deferral account is not approved, that's where we would move to consideration of the expected supply scenario? Y: I think that's a reasonable assumption. N: Okay. Under the expected supply scenario, does that include recovery of or payment of O&M costs for Nalcor for operating the Labrador Island Link? Y:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q.	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. In total you mean? I: In total there, yeah. I: Yeah, you have to take away the Labrador load. I: And you take away your Labrador load and it was somewhere in the range of 110 and 115 maybe megawatts available on peak, is that fair? I believe that – I: Sorry, off peak. I: - is what Mr. Haynes spoke to, yes, it's
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q.	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N: So, would you expect that if the deferral account is not approved, that's where we would move to consideration of the expected supply scenario? Y: I think that's a reasonable assumption. N: Okay. Under the expected supply scenario, does that include recovery of or payment of O&M costs for Nalcor for operating the Labrador Island Link? Y: That is a good question, Mr. O'Brien, which	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A.	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. In total you mean? In total there, yeah. Yeah, you have to take away the Labrador load. And you take away your Labrador load and it was somewhere in the range of 110 and 115 maybe megawatts available on peak, is that fair? I believe that – Sorry, off peak. - is what Mr. Haynes spoke to, yes, it's over the year it changes and over the day.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY MR. O'BRIEN Q.	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N: So, would you expect that if the deferral account is not approved, that's where we would move to consideration of the expected supply scenario? X: I think that's a reasonable assumption. N: Okay. Under the expected supply scenario, does that include recovery of or payment of O&M costs for Nalcor for operating the Labrador Island Link? X: That is a good question, Mr. O'Brien, which I should know, having reviewed the expected	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN A. MR. O'BRIEN	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. In total you mean? I: In total there, yeah. I: Yeah, you have to take away the Labrador load. I: And you take away your Labrador load and it was somewhere in the range of 110 and 115 maybe megawatts available on peak, is that fair? I believe that – I believe that – I sorry, off peak. I: - is what Mr. Haynes spoke to, yes, it's over the year it changes and over the day.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY MR. O'BRIEN Q.	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N: So, would you expect that if the deferral account is not approved, that's where we would move to consideration of the expected supply scenario? Y: I think that's a reasonable assumption. N: Okay. Under the expected supply scenario, does that include recovery of or payment of O&M costs for Nalcor for operating the Labrador Island Link? Y: That is a good question, Mr. O'Brien, which I should know, having reviewed the expected supply, but it is escaping me right now, but	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A.	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. In total you mean? It in total there, yeah. The total the total the total tota
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY MR. O'BRIEN Q.	respect to the rate case as it's filed? Y: My assessment would be that part of that, naturally, is before the Board, but we've also put forward the expected supply scenario which starts to outline what the other case would be. N: So, would you expect that if the deferral account is not approved, that's where we would move to consideration of the expected supply scenario? Y: I think that's a reasonable assumption. N: Okay. Under the expected supply scenario, does that include recovery of or payment of O&M costs for Nalcor for operating the Labrador Island Link? Y: That is a good question, Mr. O'Brien, which I should know, having reviewed the expected supply, but it is escaping me right now, but I will be happy to confirm that for you.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN A. MR. O'BRIEN	I think he said 307 megawatts, somewhere in that area. In total you mean? I: In total there, yeah. I: Yeah, you have to take away the Labrador load. I: And you take away your Labrador load and it was somewhere in the range of 110 and 115 maybe megawatts available on peak, is that fair? I believe that – I believe that – I sorry, off peak. I: - is what Mr. Haynes spoke to, yes, it's over the year it changes and over the day.

			NL Hydro 2017 ORA
1	Page 57		Page 59
1	compared to Holyrood, are they?	1	system which will prevent load growth at
2	MS. DALLEY:	2	some significance. Again, I don't have the
3	A. I think the, yes, the assessment we have	3	details.
4	today is that there maybe—it would be energy	4	MR. O'BRIEN:
5	available, but it would be, whether you want	5	Q. Has the regulatory group done any analysis
6	to say non-fixed or economy energy	6	on that?
	available, whether that transpires into		MS. DALLEY:
8	-	8	A. Of?
	something else.		
9	MR. O'BRIEN:	9	MR. O'BRIEN:
10	Q. Yes, it wouldn't the same kind of a savings.	10	Q. On, sort of, what possible constraints there
11	Has Hydro looked at other options like	11	might be on the availability of recapture
12	purchases from Hydro Quebec over the	12	power?
13	Labrador Island Link?	13	MS. DALLEY:
14	MS. DALLEY:	14	A. I believe our estimates inside of the
15	A. I'm not familiar with that, so that's a good	15	deferral account were based on what we
16	discussion for you to have with Ms. Williams	16	understood the scenarios to be considering
17	about what the plans are for supply.	17	the current load forecast which would take
18	MR. O'BRIEN:	18	into consideration what we see for load
19	Q. Now, is it possible that from the	19	growth that's possible inside of the
20	availability of recapture, if that goes	20	Labrador system.
$20 \\ 21$	down, that this deferral account might	$20 \\ 21$	MR. O'BRIEN:
$21 \\ 22$	actually cost taxpayers, or ratepayers'	$21 \\ 22$	Q. Now, I understand that that forecast
		$\begin{vmatrix} 22\\23 \end{vmatrix}$	
23	money.		availability doesn't take into account the
24	MS. DALLEY:	24	possible requirements of Wabush Mines in
25	A. I think that our position on that generally	25	2019 or even 2018, is that fair?
	Page 58		Page 60
1			
1	is that that is always probable, but	1	MS. DALLEY:
2	unlikely.	1 2	MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could
-		$\begin{bmatrix} 1\\ 2\\ 3 \end{bmatrix}$	MS. DALLEY:
2	unlikely.		MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could
2 3	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN:	3	MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY:	3 4 5	MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely.	3 4	MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY:
2 3 4 5 6 7	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN:	3 4 5 6 7	MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast,
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay.	3 4 5 6 7 8	 MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered –
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY: A. Thank you.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can I get an undertaking to confirm that?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY: A. Thank you. MR. O'BRIEN:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	 MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can I get an undertaking to confirm that? MS. DALLEY:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY: A. Thank you. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Because the feasibility of this whole sort	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can I get an undertaking to confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY: A. Thank you. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Because the feasibility of this whole sort of approach depends on the availability of	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can I get an undertaking to confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MS. GLYNN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY: A. Thank you. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Because the feasibility of this whole sort of approach depends on the availability of the recapture power, that's fair?	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can I get an undertaking to confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MS. GLYNN: Q. We'll note that on the record.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY: A. Thank you. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Because the feasibility of this whole sort of approach depends on the availability of the recapture power, that's fair? MS. DALLEY:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can I get an undertaking to confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MS. DALLEY: Q. We'll note that on the record. (10:00 – UNDERTAKING)
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY: A. Thank you. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Because the feasibility of this whole sort of approach depends on the availability of the recapture power, that's fair? MS. DALLEY: A. It does and the ability to supplement on top	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can I get an undertaking to confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MS. GLYNN: Q. We'll note that on the record. (10:00 – UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY: A. Thank you. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Because the feasibility of this whole sort of approach depends on the availability of the recapture power, that's fair? MS. DALLEY: A. It does and the ability to supplement on top of that.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can I get an undertaking to confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MS. GLYNN: Q. We'll note that on the record. (10:00 – UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And we spoke with Mr. Haynes about this
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY: A. Thank you. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Because the feasibility of this whole sort of approach depends on the availability of the recapture power, that's fair? MS. DALLEY: A. It does and the ability to supplement on top of that. MR. O'BRIEN:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can I get an undertaking to confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MS. GLYNN: Q. We'll note that on the record. (10:00 – UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And we spoke with Mr. Haynes about this point as well, just in terms of there being
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY: A. Thank you. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Because the feasibility of this whole sort of approach depends on the availability of the recapture power, that's fair? MS. DALLEY: A. It does and the ability to supplement on top of that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. An increased load in Labrador that could	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can I get an undertaking to confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MS. GLYNN: Q. We'll note that on the record. (10:00 – UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And we spoke with Mr. Haynes about this point as well, just in terms of there being a multiple of applications for power for
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY: A. Thank you. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Because the feasibility of this whole sort of approach depends on the availability of the recapture power, that's fair? MS. DALLEY: A. It does and the ability to supplement on top of that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. An increased load in Labrador that could result in a reduction of what's available,	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can I get an undertaking to confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MS. GLYNN: Q. We'll note that on the record. (10:00 – UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And we spoke with Mr. Haynes about this point as well, just in terms of there being a multiple of applications for power for data centres in Labrador. Is that something
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY: A. Thank you. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Because the feasibility of this whole sort of approach depends on the availability of the recapture power, that's fair? MS. DALLEY: A. It does and the ability to supplement on top of that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. An increased load in Labrador that could result in a reduction of what's available, is that fair?	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can I get an undertaking to confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MS. GLYNN: Q. We'll note that on the record. (10:00 – UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And we spoke with Mr. Haynes about this point as well, just in terms of there being a multiple of applications for power for data centres in Labrador. Is that something that you are familiar with?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY: A. Thank you. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Because the feasibility of this whole sort of approach depends on the availability of the recapture power, that's fair? MS. DALLEY: A. It does and the ability to supplement on top of that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. An increased load in Labrador that could result in a reduction of what's available,	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can I get an undertaking to confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MS. GLYNN: Q. We'll note that on the record. (10:00 – UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And we spoke with Mr. Haynes about this point as well, just in terms of there being a multiple of applications for power for data centres in Labrador. Is that something
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY: A. Thank you. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Because the feasibility of this whole sort of approach depends on the availability of the recapture power, that's fair? MS. DALLEY: A. It does and the ability to supplement on top of that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. An increased load in Labrador that could result in a reduction of what's available, is that fair?	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can I get an undertaking to confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MS. GLYNN: Q. We'll note that on the record. (10:00 – UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And we spoke with Mr. Haynes about this point as well, just in terms of there being a multiple of applications for power for data centres in Labrador. Is that something that you are familiar with?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY: A. Thank you. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Because the feasibility of this whole sort of approach depends on the availability of the recapture power, that's fair? MS. DALLEY: A. It does and the ability to supplement on top of that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. An increased load in Labrador that could result in a reduction of what's available, is that fair? MS. DALLEY:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can I get an undertaking to confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MS. GLYNN: Q. We'll note that on the record. (10:00 – UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And we spoke with Mr. Haynes about this point as well, just in terms of there being a multiple of applications for power for data centres in Labrador. Is that something that you are familiar with?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	unlikely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You mean always possible and unlikely. MS. DALLEY: A. Possible, sorry, not probable. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I just wanted to make sure, okay. MS. DALLEY: A. Thank you. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Because the feasibility of this whole sort of approach depends on the availability of the recapture power, that's fair? MS. DALLEY: A. It does and the ability to supplement on top of that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. An increased load in Labrador that could result in a reduction of what's available, is that fair? MS. DALLEY: A. It could and I think that's a matter of	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 MS. DALLEY: A. I don't believe that's correct, but we could confirm that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can you confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. If that is in the current load forecast, then that would have been considered – MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Can I get an undertaking to confirm that? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MS. GLYNN: Q. We'll note that on the record. (10:00 - UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And we spoke with Mr. Haynes about this point as well, just in terms of there being a multiple of applications for power for data centres in Labrador. Is that something that you are familiar with? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes.

		Page 61			Page 63
1		in your department in any way?	1		this matter. But we've got requests, yes,
2	MS. DALLE		2		backed up in – and I say this lightly, but
3	A.	It is. We actually have our key account	3		in a queue because we have to take a first-
4		manager fielding those requests. So, we've	4		come, first-serve approach, but all those
5		taken the approach to centralize them so	5		customers are aware that we cannot serve
6		that we have consistent approach to them and	6		that load without some construction or some
7		we're able to consolidate that information.	7		alternative supply. It would be
8		So, the key account manager has been	8		transmission constraints or in some cases,
9		involved in every request for data centres.	9		supply constraints, and that has to follow a
10		And in some cases I've been personally	10		process and that process will take time and
11		involved as well from a customer	11		they've been told that it could be 18 to 24
12		perspective.	12		months, maybe longer, depending on what the
13	MR. O'BRIEI		13		alternatives and solutions are.
14	Q.	And that's Mr. Coish, is it?	14	MR. O'BRIEN	
15	MS. DALLE		15	Q.	And is that the case for all of the
16	А.	It is.	16		customers when they require significant
17	MR. O'BRIEI		17		capital expense in order to provide that
18	Q.	Okay. And so you've centralized those	18		load or are there some customers that can be
19		requests. Are you able to give us an idea	19		given that load right now or relatively
20		as to, sort of, how much firm capacity is	20		soon?
21		being requested right now?	21	MS. DALLEY	
22	MS. DALLE		22	A.	No, I don't think there are any requests in
23	A.	Sure, and I will say that, I think we have	23		the queue, and again, I'm almost positive
24		13 megawatts in service today. I think our	24		there are no requests standing right now
25		requests are 272, 275. It's quite	25		that don't require some kind of
		Page 62			Page 64
1		significant.	1		construction. Actually, no, let me back up
2	MR. O'BRIE		2		on that, because we – it's an intriguing
3	Q.	Yes. And those requests, how are they	3		process to deal with data centres and I can
4					-
1 '		handled, sort of, from a timing perspective?	4		put it that way. So, they'll come in and
5		Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of			say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say
56		Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of			say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will
7		Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service.	4 5 6 7		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what
7 8	MS. DALLE	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y:	4 5 6 7 8		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick
7 8 9	A.	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y: This is a – you know.	4 5 6 7 8 9		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick your number, six, five, four, three, two,
7 8 9 10	A. MR. O'BRIE	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y: This is a – you know. N:	4 5 6 7 8 9 10		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick your number, six, five, four, three, two, one and they will – we've literally – it's
7 8 9 10 11	A.	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y: This is a – you know. N: It's the best information you can give us on	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick your number, six, five, four, three, two, one and they will – we've literally – it's almost like a negotiation, "how about ten?"
7 8 9 10 11 12	A. MR. O'BRIE Q.	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y: This is a – you know. N: It's the best information you can give us on that?	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick your number, six, five, four, three, two, one and they will – we've literally – it's almost like a negotiation, "how about ten?" Well, we don't have ten. How about eight?
7 8 9 10 11 12 13	A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y: This is a – you know. N: It's the best information you can give us on that? Y:	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick your number, six, five, four, three, two, one and they will – we've literally – it's almost like a negotiation, "how about ten?" Well, we don't have ten. How about eight? We don't have eight. How about six, two,
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	A. MR. O'BRIE Q.	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y: This is a – you know. N: It's the best information you can give us on that? Y: Yeah. It depends on where the request is	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick your number, six, five, four, three, two, one and they will – we've literally – it's almost like a negotiation, "how about ten?" Well, we don't have ten. How about eight? We don't have eight. How about six, two, one?" you know. So, they're very aggressive
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y: This is a – you know. N: It's the best information you can give us on that? Y: Yeah. It depends on where the request is located. So, if it's in Labrador West	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick your number, six, five, four, three, two, one and they will – we've literally – it's almost like a negotiation, "how about ten?" Well, we don't have ten. How about eight? We don't have eight. How about six, two, one?" you know. So, they're very aggressive is what I would say, maybe assertive. I
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y: This is a – you know. N: It's the best information you can give us on that? Y: Yeah. It depends on where the request is located. So, if it's in Labrador West versus Labrador East because load profiles	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick your number, six, five, four, three, two, one and they will – we've literally – it's almost like a negotiation, "how about ten?" Well, we don't have ten. How about eight? We don't have eight. How about six, two, one?" you know. So, they're very aggressive is what I would say, maybe assertive. I mean, everyone's polite, but you know, they
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y: This is a – you know. N: It's the best information you can give us on that? Y: Yeah. It depends on where the request is located. So, if it's in Labrador West versus Labrador East because load profiles are specific to those areas and if it	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick your number, six, five, four, three, two, one and they will – we've literally – it's almost like a negotiation, "how about ten?" Well, we don't have ten. How about eight? We don't have eight. How about six, two, one?" you know. So, they're very aggressive is what I would say, maybe assertive. I mean, everyone's polite, but you know, they have a business case that clearly is
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y: This is a – you know. N: It's the best information you can give us on that? Y: Yeah. It depends on where the request is located. So, if it's in Labrador West versus Labrador East because load profiles are specific to those areas and if it requires – and I think this is what Mr.	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick your number, six, five, four, three, two, one and they will – we've literally – it's almost like a negotiation, "how about ten?" Well, we don't have ten. How about eight? We don't have eight. How about six, two, one?" you know. So, they're very aggressive is what I would say, maybe assertive. I mean, everyone's polite, but you know, they have a business case that clearly is compelling to them and they are willing to
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y: This is a – you know. N: It's the best information you can give us on that? Y: Yeah. It depends on where the request is located. So, if it's in Labrador West versus Labrador East because load profiles are specific to those areas and if it requires – and I think this is what Mr. Haynes was speaking to – you know, we're	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick your number, six, five, four, three, two, one and they will – we've literally – it's almost like a negotiation, "how about ten?" Well, we don't have ten. How about eight? We don't have eight. How about six, two, one?" you know. So, they're very aggressive is what I would say, maybe assertive. I mean, everyone's polite, but you know, they have a business case that clearly is compelling to them and they are willing to flex and bend to what we are able to
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y: This is a – you know. N: It's the best information you can give us on that? Y: Yeah. It depends on where the request is located. So, if it's in Labrador West versus Labrador East because load profiles are specific to those areas and if it requires – and I think this is what Mr. Haynes was speaking to – you know, we're certainly constrained in Labrador West and I	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick your number, six, five, four, three, two, one and they will – we've literally – it's almost like a negotiation, "how about ten?" Well, we don't have ten. How about eight? We don't have eight. How about six, two, one?" you know. So, they're very aggressive is what I would say, maybe assertive. I mean, everyone's polite, but you know, they have a business case that clearly is compelling to them and they are willing to flex and bend to what we are able to deliver.
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y: This is a – you know. N: It's the best information you can give us on that? Y: Yeah. It depends on where the request is located. So, if it's in Labrador West versus Labrador East because load profiles are specific to those areas and if it requires – and I think this is what Mr. Haynes was speaking to – you know, we're certainly constrained in Labrador West and I can't say that this is a scenario, by the	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick your number, six, five, four, three, two, one and they will – we've literally – it's almost like a negotiation, "how about ten?" Well, we don't have ten. How about eight? We don't have eight. How about six, two, one?" you know. So, they're very aggressive is what I would say, maybe assertive. I mean, everyone's polite, but you know, they have a business case that clearly is compelling to them and they are willing to flex and bend to what we are able to deliver. So, we do have a customer in Labrador
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y: This is a – you know. N: It's the best information you can give us on that? Y: Yeah. It depends on where the request is located. So, if it's in Labrador West versus Labrador East because load profiles are specific to those areas and if it requires – and I think this is what Mr. Haynes was speaking to – you know, we're certainly constrained in Labrador West and I can't say that this is a scenario, by the way, that Hydro has found itself in before	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick your number, six, five, four, three, two, one and they will – we've literally – it's almost like a negotiation, "how about ten?" Well, we don't have ten. How about eight? We don't have eight. How about six, two, one?" you know. So, they're very aggressive is what I would say, maybe assertive. I mean, everyone's polite, but you know, they have a business case that clearly is compelling to them and they are willing to flex and bend to what we are able to deliver. So, we do have a customer in Labrador West now who is at that kind of stage where,
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y: This is a – you know. N: It's the best information you can give us on that? Y: Yeah. It depends on where the request is located. So, if it's in Labrador West versus Labrador East because load profiles are specific to those areas and if it requires – and I think this is what Mr. Haynes was speaking to – you know, we're certainly constrained in Labrador West and I can't say that this is a scenario, by the way, that Hydro has found itself in before where we actually have a lineup of requests	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick your number, six, five, four, three, two, one and they will – we've literally – it's almost like a negotiation, "how about ten?" Well, we don't have ten. How about eight? We don't have eight. How about six, two, one?" you know. So, they're very aggressive is what I would say, maybe assertive. I mean, everyone's polite, but you know, they have a business case that clearly is compelling to them and they are willing to flex and bend to what we are able to deliver. So, we do have a customer in Labrador West now who is at that kind of stage where, you know, based on where they want to
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	Mr. Haynes talked about the possibility of there being an 18 month to two-year sort of gap from a request to being in service. Y: This is a – you know. N: It's the best information you can give us on that? Y: Yeah. It depends on where the request is located. So, if it's in Labrador West versus Labrador East because load profiles are specific to those areas and if it requires – and I think this is what Mr. Haynes was speaking to – you know, we're certainly constrained in Labrador West and I can't say that this is a scenario, by the way, that Hydro has found itself in before	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22		say "we'd like 100 megawatts" and we'll say "we don't have that and here's what it will take to get it" and they'll say "well, what do you have?" and we'll say, you know, pick your number, six, five, four, three, two, one and they will – we've literally – it's almost like a negotiation, "how about ten?" Well, we don't have ten. How about eight? We don't have eight. How about six, two, one?" you know. So, they're very aggressive is what I would say, maybe assertive. I mean, everyone's polite, but you know, they have a business case that clearly is compelling to them and they are willing to flex and bend to what we are able to deliver. So, we do have a customer in Labrador West now who is at that kind of stage where,

	Page 65		Page 67
1	•	1	
	constraints, we've told them that we can		
2	serve them at 7.75 megawatts and that is	$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	MR. O'BRIEN:
3	what they are pursuing. We've also told	3	Q. Can you give us an idea as to which ones are
4	them that they – you know, so that's active	4	likely to be filled within the two test
5	today that we're looking at serving that	5	years -
6	customer.	6	MS. DALLEY:
7	It is a strange time and a strange	7	A. I understand, based on the existing
8	predicament to be in because, you know, we	8	constraints and -
9	do feel that we have an obligation to serve,	9	MR. O'BRIEN:
10	but at the same time, we understand that the	10	Q and when, just so we can get an idea.
11	pressure and constraints all around on the	11	MS. DALLEY:
12	system itself, but plus on the off-island	12	A possible construction timelines.
13	deferral account.	13	MR. O'BRIEN:
14	MR. O'BRIEN:	14	Q. Exactly.
15	Q. I understand that, and I think it's	15	MS. DALLEY:
16	intriguing for all of us, I mean, that	16	A. Yeah.
17	scenario in which you've got so many	17	MS. GLYNN:
18	applications and they'll take whatever you	18	Q. The undertaking is noted.
19	can give. Our concern, I guess, at this	19	MR. YOUNG:
20^{19}		$\frac{19}{20}$	
$20 \\ 21$	point, and maybe you can help us with this,	$20 \\ 21$	Q. Yes, I think we understand that, yeah. MS. DALLEY:
	is sort of if we're looking at a 2018-2019		
22	test year, to what extent will there be any	22	A. Yeah, I have a good sense of that.
23	impact from those centres in terms of the	23	MR. O'BRIEN:
24	availability of recall and are you able to	24	Q. Okay.
25	provide us a little more information, even a	25	MS. DALLEY:
	Page 66		Page 68
1	summary in terms of what's there as being	1	A. And again, the only thing I will say is the
2	requested, what's anticipated as being made	2	flexibility of data centres, not just on
3	available within those test years?	3	size, but on location, is also quite
4	MS. DALLEY:	4	astounding. So, if we say, you know – they
5	A. Yes, I would say, based on the information	5	want a spot in Happy Valley-Goose Bay and -
6	we have today -	6	MR. O'BRIEN:
7	MR. O'BRIEN:	7	
8		1 /	Q. They'll take it.
	O. Could you do that?		
9	Q. Could you do that? MS. DALLEY:	8	MS. DALLEY:
9 10	MS. DALLEY:	8 9	MS. DALLEY: A there are constraints, they'll say "well,
10	MS. DALLEY: A we should be able to provide that. Again,	8 9 10	MS. DALLEY: A there are constraints, they'll say "well, what about Churchill Falls?" and we talk
10 11	MS. DALLEY: A we should be able to provide that. Again, these things are – the data centres are very	8 9 10 11	MS. DALLEY: A there are constraints, they'll say "well, what about Churchill Falls?" and we talk about the constraints there and they say
10 11 12	MS. DALLEY: A we should be able to provide that. Again, these things are – the data centres are very – it's very fluid, you know. I'd have to	8 9 10 11 12	MS. DALLEY: A there are constraints, they'll say "well, what about Churchill Falls?" and we talk about the constraints there and they say "what about" – they'll go anywhere.
10 11 12 13	MS. DALLEY: A we should be able to provide that. Again, these things are – the data centres are very – it's very fluid, you know. I'd have to ask Robert, but you know, he gets multiple	8 9 10 11 12 13	MS. DALLEY: A there are constraints, they'll say "well, what about Churchill Falls?" and we talk about the constraints there and they say "what about" – they'll go anywhere. MR. O'BRIEN:
10 11 12 13 14	MS. DALLEY: A we should be able to provide that. Again, these things are – the data centres are very – it's very fluid, you know. I'd have to ask Robert, but you know, he gets multiple calls probably daily or close to daily. The	8 9 10 11 12 13 14	MS. DALLEY: A there are constraints, they'll say "well, what about Churchill Falls?" and we talk about the constraints there and they say "what about" – they'll go anywhere. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, yeah.
10 11 12 13 14 15	MS. DALLEY: A we should be able to provide that. Again, these things are – the data centres are very – it's very fluid, you know. I'd have to ask Robert, but you know, he gets multiple calls probably daily or close to daily. The rate structure is such in Labrador that it	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	MS. DALLEY: A there are constraints, they'll say "well, what about Churchill Falls?" and we talk about the constraints there and they say "what about" – they'll go anywhere. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, yeah. MS. DALLEY:
10 11 12 13 14 15 16	MS. DALLEY: A we should be able to provide that. Again, these things are – the data centres are very – it's very fluid, you know. I'd have to ask Robert, but you know, he gets multiple calls probably daily or close to daily. The rate structure is such in Labrador that it is very attractive to data centres.	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	MS. DALLEY: A there are constraints, they'll say "well, what about Churchill Falls?" and we talk about the constraints there and they say "what about" – they'll go anywhere. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A. So, based on – that's based on the best
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	MS. DALLEY: A we should be able to provide that. Again, these things are – the data centres are very – it's very fluid, you know. I'd have to ask Robert, but you know, he gets multiple calls probably daily or close to daily. The rate structure is such in Labrador that it is very attractive to data centres. (10:07 a.m. UNDERTAKING)	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	MS. DALLEY: A there are constraints, they'll say "well, what about Churchill Falls?" and we talk about the constraints there and they say "what about" – they'll go anywhere. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A. So, based on – that's based on the best available information we have for people
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MS. DALLEY: A we should be able to provide that. Again, these things are – the data centres are very – it's very fluid, you know. I'd have to ask Robert, but you know, he gets multiple calls probably daily or close to daily. The rate structure is such in Labrador that it is very attractive to data centres. (10:07 a.m. UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN:	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MS. DALLEY: A there are constraints, they'll say "well, what about Churchill Falls?" and we talk about the constraints there and they say "what about" – they'll go anywhere. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A. So, based on – that's based on the best available information we have for people that we're engaged with.
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	MS. DALLEY: A we should be able to provide that. Again, these things are – the data centres are very – it's very fluid, you know. I'd have to ask Robert, but you know, he gets multiple calls probably daily or close to daily. The rate structure is such in Labrador that it is very attractive to data centres. (10:07 a.m. UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, could you look into that for us; to	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	MS. DALLEY: A there are constraints, they'll say "well, what about Churchill Falls?" and we talk about the constraints there and they say "what about" – they'll go anywhere. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A. So, based on – that's based on the best available information we have for people that we're engaged with. MR. O'BRIEN:
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	MS. DALLEY: A we should be able to provide that. Again, these things are – the data centres are very – it's very fluid, you know. I'd have to ask Robert, but you know, he gets multiple calls probably daily or close to daily. The rate structure is such in Labrador that it is very attractive to data centres. (10:07 a.m. UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, could you look into that for us; to provide an undertaking to provide some	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 MS. DALLEY: A there are constraints, they'll say "well, what about Churchill Falls?" and we talk about the constraints there and they say "what about" – they'll go anywhere. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A. So, based on – that's based on the best available information we have for people that we're engaged with. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, and that's our concern. I understand
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	MS. DALLEY: A we should be able to provide that. Again, these things are – the data centres are very – it's very fluid, you know. I'd have to ask Robert, but you know, he gets multiple calls probably daily or close to daily. The rate structure is such in Labrador that it is very attractive to data centres. (10:07 a.m. UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, could you look into that for us; to provide an undertaking to provide some information that would outline sort of how	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 MS. DALLEY: A there are constraints, they'll say "well, what about Churchill Falls?" and we talk about the constraints there and they say "what about" – they'll go anywhere. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A. So, based on – that's based on the best available information we have for people that we're engaged with. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, and that's our concern. I understand Hydro's position in terms of you feel you
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MS. DALLEY: A we should be able to provide that. Again, these things are – the data centres are very – it's very fluid, you know. I'd have to ask Robert, but you know, he gets multiple calls probably daily or close to daily. The rate structure is such in Labrador that it is very attractive to data centres. (10:07 a.m. UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, could you look into that for us; to provide an undertaking to provide some information that would outline sort of how much you have – you in turn, I think you 	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MS. DALLEY: A there are constraints, they'll say "well, what about Churchill Falls?" and we talk about the constraints there and they say "what about" – they'll go anywhere. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A. So, based on – that's based on the best available information we have for people that we're engaged with. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, and that's our concern. I understand Hydro's position in terms of you feel you have a duty to serve, so the applications
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 MS. DALLEY: A we should be able to provide that. Again, these things are – the data centres are very – it's very fluid, you know. I'd have to ask Robert, but you know, he gets multiple calls probably daily or close to daily. The rate structure is such in Labrador that it is very attractive to data centres. (10:07 a.m. UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, could you look into that for us; to provide an undertaking to provide some information that would outline sort of how much you have – you in turn, I think you said 275 or 272 to 275 megawatts in terms of 	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 MS. DALLEY: A there are constraints, they'll say "well, what about Churchill Falls?" and we talk about the constraints there and they say "what about" – they'll go anywhere. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A. So, based on – that's based on the best available information we have for people that we're engaged with. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, and that's our concern. I understand Hydro's position in terms of you feel you have a duty to serve, so the applications are there. You have to follow through with
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MS. DALLEY: A we should be able to provide that. Again, these things are – the data centres are very – it's very fluid, you know. I'd have to ask Robert, but you know, he gets multiple calls probably daily or close to daily. The rate structure is such in Labrador that it is very attractive to data centres. (10:07 a.m. UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, could you look into that for us; to provide an undertaking to provide some information that would outline sort of how much you have – you in turn, I think you 	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MS. DALLEY: A there are constraints, they'll say "well, what about Churchill Falls?" and we talk about the constraints there and they say "what about" – they'll go anywhere. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A. So, based on – that's based on the best available information we have for people that we're engaged with. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, and that's our concern. I understand Hydro's position in terms of you feel you have a duty to serve, so the applications

11 saying in terms of if you had to pay for the- 11 service? 12 the- 12 MS. DALLEY: 14 A. Oh, yes. 13 A. I think if the economics changed such that 15 MR. O'BRIEN: 16 Q operating and maintenance costs, as well 16 Q operating and maintenance costs, as well 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 as - and offset that versus what possible 17 Q. Okay. What would happen – yeah, so even if 18 savings there. Would Hydro draw down recall 18 it changed after a few months and the 19 power at all or would you draw it down to a 19 economics changed, would haw thole scenario 20 negative? 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 recall? 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 recall? 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, 4. 24 Q. Yeah. So, the customers would owe money. 24 Mr. O'BRIEN: 25 question and I think it's a good question that I don't recall 1 for Mr. Fagan in the context of the account discussions at the, you know, mitigation committee where it's cross Nalcor as well about what flose 3 MR. O'BRIEN: 2 <td< th=""><th>Aprii .</th><th>25, 2018</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>NL Hydro 2017 GKA</th></td<>	Aprii .	25, 2018				NL Hydro 2017 GKA
2 MS. DALLEY: 2 A. I think it certainly makes ense, you know. 3 MR. OBREN: 3 Our objective wouldn't be to put customers in a position where this was-put them at some harm. 5 0 In terms of - again, hack to the O&M costs of the Labador Island Link. If there is a scenario whereby Hydro is getting close to put infancially tessible to draw down on that power - you understand what I'm in the event that recall power is not determined to be cost effective, so it's not datawn down, would Hydro expect to pay of the event that result power - you understand what I'm in the event that result power is service? 10 recall power - you understand what I'm in the event that result power is a power at all or would you draw it down to a service? NS. DALLEY: 13 MS. DALLEY: 13 A. I think if the economics changed such that it changed after a few months and the event if we could. 16 Q. -operating and maintenance costs, as well as savings there. Would Hydro draw down to a negative? 10 RC OBRIEN: 18 savings there. Would Hydro draw down to a negative? 20 recall? 20 stop, in terms of payment of O&M costs and recall? 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 recall? 22 A. Haven't these discussions, a stop, and discussions at a few months and the secount discussions? 23 MR. OBRIEN: 21 <			-			•
3 A. Lunderstand. 3 Our objective wouldn't be to pur customers 4 MR. OBRIEN: 4 in a position where this was – put them at 5 Q. In terms of – again, back to the O&M costs 5 some harm. 6 For the Labrador Island Link. If there is a 6 MR. OTBRIEN: 7 scenario whereby Hydro is getting close to 7 Q. Yeah. And in the event that recall power is 9 financially leasible to draw down on that 9 not daron down, would Hydro sepect to pay 11 essping in terms of if you had to pay for 11 service? 12 the- 12 MS. DALLEY: 13 A. I think if the economics changed such that 12 the- 12 MS. DALLEY: 13 A. I think if the conomics changed such that 14 A. Oh, yes. 14 it would hat matesense, I don't see how we could. 18 savings ther. Would Hydro dow down reall 16 Q. Okay. What would happen – yeah, so ever if 18 savings ther. Would Hydro down down an earlit 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 24 A. You mean the account isel? 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussi				1		
4 MR. O'BRIEN: 4 in a position where this was - put them at 5 Q. In terms of - again, back to the O&M costs 5 some harm. 6 for the Labrador Island Link. If there is a 5 some harm. 7 scenario whereby Hydro is getting close to 7 Q. Yeah. And in the event that recall power is 8 having not enough recall power to make it 9 not determined to be cost effective, so it's 9 financially feasible to draw down on that 9 not dawn down, would Hydro expect to pay 10 recall power - you understand what I'm 10 O&M costs for Nalcor without having received 12 the- 12 MS. DALLEY: 13 A. I think if the economics changed such that 13 MS. DALLEY: 13 A. I think if the conomics changed such that is a saving sthere. Would Hydro draw down recall 18 i change alter altor would you draw it down to a negative? 20 Okay. What would happen - yeah, so even if a saving sthere. Would Hydro draw down recall 18 i change alter altor would you draw it down to a negative? 23 A. I haven't heen party to those discussions, an engative? 24 MC O'BRIEN: 23 A. I haven't hee					А.	•
5 Q. In terms of - again, back to the O&M costs for the Labrador Island Link. If there is a scenario whereby Hydro is getting close to having not enough recall power to make it 9 5 some harm. 7 scenario whereby Hydro is getting close to having not enough recall power to make it 9 6 MR OBRIEN: 10 recall power, you understand what 1'm 10 0.02 Mosts of Macor without having received 9 10 11 saying in terms of if you had to pay for 11 11 3.04 Mosts of Macor without having received 9 13 MS. DALLEY: 13 A. 1 think if the economics changed such that 10 14 A. Oky ess. 14 think if the economics changed such that 11 15 could. 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 16 Q. operating and maintenance costs, as well as awing sthere. Would Hydro dwown recall 10 16 17 as - and offset that versus what possible 19 17 Q. Okay. What would happen - yeah, so even if 10 18 saying sthere. Would Hydro dwown recall 20 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 21 A. Yeah. So, the customers would owe moreav. 22 24 N. You mean the account itself? 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 24 Q. Yeah. So, the customers would owe moreav. 24 24 MR. O'BRIEN: </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>						
6 for the Labrador Island Link. If there is a 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 7 scenario whereby Hydro is getting close to make it 7 Q. Yeah. And in the event that recall power is not determined to be cost effective, so it's not drawn down, would Hydro expect to pay 9 financially feasible to draw down on that 9 not determined to be cost effective, so it's not drawn down, would Hydro expect to pay 10 recall power - you understand what I'm 10 O&M costs for Nalcor without having received service? 11 saying in terms of if you had to pay for 14 it wouldn't make sense, I don't see how we could. 15 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 it wouldn't make sense, I don't see how we could. 16 Q operating and maintenance costs, as well 17 Q. Okay. What would happen - yeah, so even if it scannys there. Would Hydro draw down recall power at all or would you draw it down to a negative? 10 It is a pood question that I for 't recall? 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 mcall? MS. DALLEY: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, the cost and think it's a good question that I don't recall and Mr. Haynes may have had discussions at the, you know, mitgation committee where it 's cross Nealor as well about what those as the you would address that? 3 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 4 It waren't been party to those discussions, the y						1 1
7 scenario whereby Hydro is getting close to 7 Q. Yeah. And in the event that recall power is 8 having not enough recall power to make it 8 not determined to be cost effective, so it's 9 financially feasible to draw down on that 9 not draw down, would Hydre expect to pay 10 recall power - you understand what I'm 10 O&M costs for Nalcor without having received 11 saying in terms of if you had to pay for 11 service? 12 the- 12 MS, DALLEY: 13 A. I think if the economics changed such that 14 A. Oh, yes. 14 it wouldn't make sense, I don't see how we could. 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 10 could. MR. O'BRIEN: 11 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 it changed after a few months and the could. 17 as - and offset that versus what possible 17 Q. Okay. What would hat whole scenario 20 18 savings there. Would Hydro draw dom recall 18 it changed after a few months and the 19 power at all or would you draw it down to a 19 conomics changed, would that whole scenario 21	5	Q.	•			
8 having not enough recall power to make it 8 not determined to be cost effective, so it's 9 financially feasible to draw down on that 9 not determined to be cost effective, so it's 9 recall power-you understand what I'm 10 OddM costs for Nalcor without having received 11 saying in terms of if you had to pay for 11 service? 12 the- 12 MS. DALLEY: 13 A. I think if the economics changed such that 14 A. Oh, yes. 14 it wouldn't make sense, I don't see how we could. 15 MR. OTBRIEN: 15 could. mouth sense the 16 Q. operating and maintenance costs, as well 17 Q. Okay. What would happen – yeah, so even if 18 savings there. Would Hydro draw down recall 18 it changed after a few mouths and the 10 power at all or would you draw it down to a 19 economics changed, would that whole scenario 20 negative? 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 mouths and the 21 M. O'BRIEN: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, at 12 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24						
9 financially feasible to draw down on that 10 9 not drawn down, would Hydro expect to pay 0AM costs for Nalcor without having received service? 11 saying in terms of if you had to pay for 12 the 10 OAM costs for Nalcor without having received service? 12 the 12 MS. DALLEY: 13 A. I think if the economics changed such that it wouldn't make sense, I don't see how we 14 10 15 MR. O'BRIEN: 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 16 16 Q operating and maintenance costs, as well as an of offset that versus what possible 17 20 Okay. What would happen - yeah, so even if 18 18 savings there. Would Hydro draw down recall 19 power at all or would you draw it down to a negative? 17 Q. Okay. What would happen - yeah, so even if 12 18 Savings there. Would Hydro draw down mean. 19 economics changed, would have costs an 12 17 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 recall? 22 22 A. You mean the account itself? 22 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. Veah. So, the customers would owe money. 24 Mr. O'Brien, so I do think it's a good question 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 question and I think it's a good question on essentially? 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 the, vou know, mitigation committee where 3					-	•
10 recall power – you understand what I'm saying in terms of if you had to pay for the- 10 O&M costs for Nalcor without having received service? 11 saying in terms of if you had to pay for the- 11 Service? 13 MS. DALLEY: 13 A. I think if the economics changed such that it wouldn't make sense, I don't see how we could. 14 A. Oh, yes. 14 it wouldn't make sense, I don't see how we could. 16 Q. - operating and maintenance costs, as well as avings there. Would Hydro draw down recall 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 as – and offset that versus what possible savings there. Would Hydro draw down recall 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 ostap, in terms of payment of O&M costs and the connexits changed, would that whole scenario or negative? 20 stop, in terms of payment of O&M costs and the costs and offset hat versus whuld owe money. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, the you know, mitigation committee where tis cross Natcor as well about what those discussions. 24 Q. Veah, And so there's no protocols in place as to how Hydro would address that? 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where tis cross Natcor as well about what those discussions may have been. 7 A. You mean to see if i						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
11 saying in terms of if you had to pay for the- 11 service? 12 the- 12 MS. DALLEY: 13 A. I think if the economics changed such that it wouldn't make sense, I don't see how we could. 14 A. Oh, yes. 14 it wouldn't make sense, I don't see how we could. 15 MR. O'BRIEN: 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 power at all or would you draw it down to a negative? 19 economics changed, would hat whole scenario cost changed, would hat whole scenario cost changed, would hat whole scenario cost op, in terms of payment of O&M costs and recall? 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 recall? recall? 22 A. You mean the account itself? 23 A. Haven't been party to those discussions, duct sa good question and think it's a good question and think it's a good question the you know, mitigation committee where it's cross Nalcor as well about what those 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 2 and Mr. Haynes may have had discussions at the, you know, mitigation committee where it's cross Nalcor as well about what those 3 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where it's cross Nalcor as well about what those discussions at the, you know, mitigation committee where <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>						
12 the- 12 MS. DALLEY: 13 MS. DALLEY: 13 MS. DALLEY: 13 A. I think if the economics changed such that 15 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 it wouldh't make sense, I don't see how we 15 MR. O'BRIEN: 15 could. 16 Q. - operating and maintenance costs, as well 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 18 savings there. Would Hydro draw down recall 18 it changed after a few months and the 19 power at all or would you draw it down to a 19 economics changed, would that whole scenario 20 negative? 20 stop, in terms of payment of O&M costs and 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, 24 Q. Yeah. So, the customers would owe money. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions at the you know, mitigation committee where it's cross Nalcor as well about what those as to how Hydro would address that? 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where it's cross nalcor as well about what those as to how Hydro would address that? 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 7 Q. Oka	10					
13 MS. DALLEY: 13 A. I think if the economics changed such that it wouldn't make sense, I don't see how we could. 14 A. Oh, yes. 14 it wouldn't make sense, I don't see how we could. 16 Q. - operating and maintenance costs, as well as avings there. Would Hydro draw down recall as avings there. Would Hydro draw down roa negative? 16 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. What would happen – yeah, so even if it changed after a few months and the economics changed, would that whole scenario stop, in terms of payment of O&M costs and recall? 20 negative? 20 Stop, in terms of payment of O&M costs and recall? 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 MS. DALLEY: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, question and I think it's a good question 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, question and I think it's a good question 24 Q. Yeah. So, the customers would owe money. 24 Mr. O'BRIEN: 3 The, Yeas may have had discussions and here account and fina whole account discussions as the work mitigation committee whate a discussions on rates in general before I get into some of the account and Mr. Hayrees may have had discussions on rates in general before I get into some of the costs and some budget issues. Mr. 4 Q. Okay. Not that I recall. 12	11					
14 A. Oh, yes. 14 it wouldn't make sense, I don't see how we could. 15 MR, O'BRIEN: 15 could. 16 Q operating and maintenance costs, as well as a - and offset that versus what possible 17 Q. Okay. What would happen - yeah, so even if it changed after a few months and the 19 power at all or would you draw it down to a negative? 10 WR. O'BRIEN: 20 stop, in terms of payment of O&M costs and 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 recall? MR. O'BRIEN: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, 24 W. C'Brien, so I do think it's a good question 24 Q. Yeah. So, the customers would owe money. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 question that I don't recall 1 for Mr. Fagan in the context of the account 2 Page 72 14 Q. Okay. And so there's no protocols in place as to how Hydro would address that? 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where it's cross Nalcor as well about what those as they you know of attest opped to suce. Mr. 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 the costs and some budget issues. Mr. 16 MS. DALLEY: 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 10 <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>						
15 MR. O'BRIEN: 15 could. 16 Q operating and maintenance costs, as well 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 as - and offset that versus what possible 17 Q. Okay. What would happen - yeah, so even if 18 savings there. Would Hydro draw down recall 18 it changed after a few months and the 19 power at all or would you draw it down to a 19 economics changed, would that whole scenario 20 negative? 20 stop, in terms of payment of O&M costs and 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 recall? 22 A. You mean the account itself? 22 MS. DALLEY: 23 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 A. Haven't been party to those discussions, 4 2 discussing. 2 and Mr. Haynes may have had discussions at 1 3 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where it's cross Naleor as well about what those as to how Hydro would address that? 6 7 A. You mean to see if it was backstopped essets at? 7 Q. Okay. I just had a couple of questions on essentiall? 7 A. You mean to see if it was backstopped Q. Yeah. 10 Haynes had testified	13					
16 Q. - operating and maintenance costs, as well as - and offset that versus what possible savings there. Would Hydro draw down recall power at all or would you draw it down to a negative? 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 18 savings there. Would Hydro draw down recall power at all or would you draw it down to a negative? 18 Ckay. What would happen - yeah, so even if it changed after a few months and the economics changed, would that whole scenario stop, in terms of payment of O&M costs and recall? 20 negative? 20 stop, in terms of payment of O&M costs and recall? 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 MS. DALLEY: 22 A. You mean the account itsell? 22 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, wfr. O'Brien, so I do think it's a good question and I think it's a good question 2 discussing. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: Page 72 3 MR. O'BRIEN: 2 and Mr. Haynes may have had discussions at the, you know, mitigation committee where it's cross Nalcor as well about what those discussions may have been. 4 Q. Okay. And so there's no protocols in place as to how Hydro would address that? 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 7 A. You mean to see if it was backstopped 7 Q. Okay. I just had a couple of	14					
17 as – and offset that versus what possible 17 Q. Okay. What would happen – yeah, so even if 18 savings there. Would Hydro draw down recall 18 it changed after a few months and the 19 power at all or would you draw it down to a 19 economics changed, would that whole scenario 20 negative? 20 stop, in terms of payment of O&M costs and 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 recall? 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MS. DALLEY: 24 Q. Yeah. So, the customers would owe money. 24 Mr. O'Brien, so I do think it's a good question 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Mr. O'Brien, so I do think it's a good question 25 Page 70 Fage 71 for Mr. Fagan in the context of the account 2 and Mr. Haynes may have had discussions at the, you know, mitigation committee where 3 36 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where 4 Q. Okay. And so there's no protocols in place as to how Hydro would address that? 6 6 MS. DALLEY: 7 Q. Okay. I just had a couple of questions on rates in general before I get into some of the costs and some budget issues. Mr.	15	MR. O'BRIEI				
18 savings there. Would Hydro draw down recall 18 it changed after a few months and the 19 power at all or would you draw it down to a 19 economics changed, would that whole scenario 20 negative? 20 stop, in terms of payment of O&M costs and 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 recall? 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, 24 Q. Yeah. So, the customers would owe money. 24 Mr. O'Brien, so 1 do think it's a good 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 question and 1 think it's a good Page 72 1 A. If's a good question that I don't recall 1 for Mr. Fagan in the context of the account 2 and Mr. Haynes may have had discussions at 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where 4 Q. Okay. And so there's no protocols in place 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where 5 as to how Hydro would address that? 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 7 6 MS. DALLEY: 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 the costs and some budget issues. Mr. 10 Q. Yeah. You mean to see if it was	16	Q.				
19 power at all or would you draw it down to a 19 ecconomics changed, would that whole scenario 20 negative? 20 stop, in terms of payment of O&M costs and 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 recall? 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, 24 Q. Yeah. So, the customers would owe money. 24 Mr. O'Brien, so I do think it's a good question 25 MS. DALLEY: 25 question and I think it's a good question Page 70 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 2 and Mr. Haynes may have had discussions at the, you know, mitigation committee where 1 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where 3 3 MR. O'BRIEN: 6 MS. DALLEY: 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 7 7 A. You mean to see if it was backstopped 7 Q. Okay. I just had a couple of questions on essentially? 8 essentially? 9 the costs and some budget issues. Mr. 10 9 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 market rates for excess power from Muskrat 12 A. Not that I recall.<	17					11 5
20 negative? 20 stop, in terms of payment of O&M costs and recall? 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 recall? 22 A. You mean the account itself? 22 MS. DALLEY: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, 24 Q. Yeah. So, the customers would owe money. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, 25 Yeab. So, the customers would owe money. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 A. It's a good question that I don't recall discussions, 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 2 and Mr. Haynes may have had discussions, at the, you know, mitigation committee where 1 for Mr. Fagan in the context of the account discussions may have been. 3 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where 5 discussions may have been. 6 4 Q. Okay. And so there's no protocols in place as to how Hydro would address that? 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 7 Q. Okay. I just had a couple of questions on rates in general before I get into some of 9 9 the costs and some budget issues. Mr. 10 9 MR. O'BRIEN: 10 Haynes had testified that due to the lower 11 market rates for excesp power from Muskrat 12 A.	18					
21 MS. DALLEY: 21 recall? 22 A. You mean the account itself? 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 A. I haven' been party to those discussions, 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 A. I haven' been party to those discussions, 24 24 Q. Yeah. So, the customers would owe money. 25 question and I think it's a good question 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Page 70 1 A. It's a good question that I don't recall 1 for Mr. Fagan in the context of the account 2 and Mr. Haynes may have had discussions at the, you know, mitigation committee where i's cross Nalcor as well about what those 3 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where 4 Q. Okay. And so there's no protocols in place as to how Hydro would address that? 6 6 MS. DALLEY: 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 7 Q. Okay. I just had a couple of questions on 7 A. You mean to see if it was backstopped 7 Q. Okay. I just had a couple of questions on 8 8 rates in general before I get into some of 9 the costs and some budget issues. Mr. 10 Q. Yeah. 10 <td>19</td> <td></td> <td>power at all or would you draw it down to a</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td>	19		power at all or would you draw it down to a			0
22 A. You mean the account itself? 22 MS. DALLEY: 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, 24 Q. Yeah. So, the customers would owe money. 24 Mr. O'Brien, so I do think it's a good 25 MS. DALLEY: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, 25 MS. DALLEY: 23 Mr. O'Brien, so I do think it's a good question 26 MS. DALLEY: Page 70 Page 72 1 A. It's a good question that I don't recall 1 for Mr. Fagan in the context of the account 2 as to how Hydro would address that? 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where 5 as to how Hydro would address that? 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 7 6 MS. DALLEY: 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 7 7 A. Not mean to see if it was backstopped 8 rates in general before I get into some of 8 essentially? 9 the costs and some budget issues. Mr. 10 Q. Yeah. 10 Haynes had testified that due to the lower 11 MS. DALLEY: 11 market rates for excess power from Muskrat	20		6	20		
23 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 A. I haven't been party to those discussions, 24 Q. Yeah. So, the customers would owe money. 24 Mr. O'Brien, so I do think it's a good 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 70 Page 72 1 A. It's a good question that I don't recall 1 for Mr. Fagan in the context of the account 3 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where 4 4 Q. Okay. And so there's no protocols in place 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where 5 as to how Hydro would address that? 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where 6 MS. DALLEY: 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 the costs and some budget issues. Mr. 7 A. You mean to see if it was backstopped 7 Q. Okay. I just had a couple of questions on 8 essentially? 9 the costs and some budget issues. Mr. 10 9 MR. O'BRIEN: 10 Haynes had testified that due to the lower 11 MS. DALLEY: 11 market rates for excess power from Muskrat 12 A.<	21	MS. DALLEY				
24Q.Yeah. So, the customers would owe money. MS. DALLEY:24Mr. O'Brien, so I do think it's a good question and I think it's a good question25Page 70Page 721A.It's a good question that I don't recall discussing.1for Mr. Fagan in the context of the account2and Mr. Haynes may have had discussions at the, you know, mitigation committee where it's cross Nalcor as well about what those discussions may have been.23MR. O'BRIEN:3the, you know, mitigation committee where it's cross Nalcor as well about what those discussions may have been.6MS. DALLEY:6MR. O'BRIEN:7A.You mean to see if it was backstopped essentially?6MR. O'BRIEN:9MR. O'BRIEN:9the costs and some budget issues. Mr.10Q.Yeah.10Haynes had testified that due to the lower11MS. DALLEY:11market rates for excess power from Muskrat12A.Not that I recall.12Falls, in fact that the cost of the project13MR. O'BRIEN:13must be recovered through rates charged to14Q.Okay.14customers on the Island Interconnected15MS. DALLEY:15System. It's in the customers' best16A.And again, that's not to say that there wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms.1718Williams would have some detail on that.1819A.That is the structure of the commercial agreements as I understand them, f	22				MS. DALLEY	·. ·
25 MS. DALLEY: 25 question and I think it's a good question Page 70 1 A. It's a good question that I don't recall 1 for Mr. Fagan in the context of the account 2 and Mr. Haynes may have had discussions at and Mr. Haynes may have had discussions at 3 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where 4 Q. Okay. And so there's no protocols in place as to how Hydro would address that? 6 6 MS. DALLEY: 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 7 A. You mean to see if it was backstopped 7 Q. Okay. I just had a couple of questions on 8 essentially? 8 rates in general before I get into some of 9 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 the costs and some budget issues. Mr. 10 Q. Yeah. 10 Haynes had testified that due to the lower 11 MS. DALLEY: 11 market rates for excess power from Muskrat 12 A. Not that I recall. 12 Falls, in fact that the cost of the project 13 must be recovered through rates charged to customers on the Island Interconnected 15 MS. DALLEY: 15	23	MR. O'BRIEI	N:	23		
Page 70 Page 72 1 A. It's a good question that I don't recall 1 for Mr. Fagan in the context of the account 2 discussing. 2 and Mr. Haynes may have had discussions at 3 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where 4 Q. Okay. And so there's no protocols in place 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where 5 as to how Hydro would address that? 5 discussions may have been. 6 MS. DALLEY: 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 7 A. You mean to see if it was backstopped 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 10 Q. Yeah. 10 Haynes had testified that due to the lower 11 MS. DALLEY: 11 market rates for excess power from Muskrat 12 A. Not that I recall. 12 Falls, in fact that the cost of the project 13 must be recovered through rates charged to interest that the sale of electricity from 14 Q. O'BRIEN: 13 must be rate sal understand them, from a unit 18 Williams would have some detail on that. 18 MS. DALLEY: 19 A. That is the structure of	24	-	•			Mr. O'Brien, so I do think it's a good
1A.It's a good question that I don't recall discussing.1for Mr. Fagan in the context of the account and Mr. Haynes may have had discussions at the, you know, mitigation committee where it's cross Nalcor as well about what those discussions may have been.3MR. O'BRIEN:3the, you know, mitigation committee where it's cross Nalcor as well about what those discussions may have been.6MS. DALLEY:6MR. O'BRIEN:7A.You mean to see if it was backstopped essentially?7Q.9MR. O'BRIEN:9the costs and some budget issues.10Q.Yeah.10Haynes had testified that due to the lower11MS. DALLEY:11market rates for excess power from Muskrat12A.Not that I recall.12Falls, in fact that the cost of the project13MR. O'BRIEN:13must be recovered through rates charged to ustorers on the Island Interconnected14Q.Okay.14customers' best interest that the sale of electricity from Muskrat Falls on the Island be maximized.18Williams would have some detail on that.18MS. DALLEY:19A.That is the structure of the commercial agreements as I understand them, from a unit cost perspective.20Q.Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of 212222threshold, the possibility of a threshold or is it cost effective to continue with2324is it cost effective to continue with24	25	MS. DALLEY	Y:	25		question and I think it's a good question
2discussing.2and Mr. Haynes may have had discussions at3MR. O'BRIEN:3the, you know, mitigation committee where4Q.Okay. And so there's no protocols in place3the, you know, mitigation committee where5as to how Hydro would address that?6MS. DALLEY:66MS. DALLEY:6MR. O'BRIEN:7Q.7A.You mean to see if it was backstopped7Q.Okay. I just had a couple of questions on8essentially?8rates in general before I get into some of9MR. O'BRIEN:9the costs and some budget issues. Mr.10Q.Yeah.10Haynes had testified that due to the lower11MS. DALLEY:11market rates for excess power from Muskrat12A.Not that I recall.1213MR. O'BRIEN:13must be recovered through rates charged to14Q.Okay.14customers on the Island Interconnected15MS. DALLEY:15System. It's in the customers' best16A.And again, that's not to say that there1617wouldn't have - Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms.1718Williams would have some detail on that.1819A.That is the structure of the commercial20Q.Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of2121talked about there being some sort of2122threshold, the possibility of a threshold or24<			Page 70			Page 72
3 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 the, you know, mitigation committee where 4 Q. Okay. And so there's no protocols in place 4 it's cross Nalcor as well about what those 5 as to how Hydro would address that? 6 MS. DALLEY: 6 7 A. You mean to see if it was backstopped 7 Q. Okay. I just had a couple of questions on 8 essentially? 8 rates in general before I get into some of 9 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 the costs and some budget issues. Mr. 10 Q. Yeah. 10 Haynes had testified that due to the lower 11 MS. DALLEY: 11 market rates for excess power from Muskrat 12 A. Not that I recall. 12 Falls, in fact that the cost of the project 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 13 must be recovered through rates charged to 14 Q. Okay. 14 customers on the Island Interconnected 15 MS. DALLEY: 15 System. It's in the customers' best 16 A. And again, that's not to say that there 16 17 wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms.<	1	А.	It's a good question that I don't recall	1		for Mr. Fagan in the context of the account
4Q.Okay. And so there's no protocols in place as to how Hydro would address that?4it's cross Nalcor as well about what those discussions may have been.6MS. DALLEY:6MR. O'BRIEN:7Q.Okay. I just had a couple of questions on 87A.You mean to see if it was backstopped essentially?6MR. O'BRIEN:7Q.Okay. I just had a couple of questions on 89MR. O'BRIEN:9the costs and some budget issues. Mr.10Q.Yeah.10Haynes had testified that due to the lower market rates for excess power from Muskrat12A.Not that I recall.12Falls, in fact that the cost of the project13MR. O'BRIEN:13must be recovered through rates charged to 14customers on the Island Interconnected15MS. DALLEY:15System. It's in the customers' best16A.And again, that's not to say that there wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms.1718Williams would have some detail on that.18MS. DALLEY:19A.That is the structure of the commercial agreements as I understand them, from a unit cost perspective.20Q.Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of 212123breakeven point where you'd have to consider 2423Q.24is it cost effective to continue with24				2		and Mr. Haynes may have had discussions at
5as to how Hydro would address that?5discussions may have been.6MS. DALLEY:6MR. O'BRIEN:7A. You mean to see if it was backstopped7Q. Okay. I just had a couple of questions on8essentially?8rates in general before I get into some of9MR. O'BRIEN:9the costs and some budget issues. Mr.10Q. Yeah.10Haynes had testified that due to the lower11MS. DALLEY:11market rates for excess power from Muskrat12A. Not that I recall.12Falls, in fact that the cost of the project13MR. O'BRIEN:13must be recovered through rates charged to14Q. Okay.14customers on the Island Interconnected15MS. DALLEY:15System. It's in the customers' best16A. And again, that's not to say that there16interest that the sale of electricity from17wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms.17Muskrat Falls on the Island be maximized.18Williams would have some detail on that.18MS. DALLEY:19A. That is the structure of the commercial2020Q. Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of2121talked about there being some sort of2122threshold, the possibility of a threshold or2223breakeven point where you'd have to consider2324is it cost effective to continue with2424is it cost effective to continue with24	3	MR. O'BRIE	N:	3		the, you know, mitigation committee where
6MS. DALLEY:6MR. O'BRIEN:7A. You mean to see if it was backstopped7Q. Okay. I just had a couple of questions on8essentially?8rates in general before I get into some of9MR. O'BRIEN:9the costs and some budget issues. Mr.10Q. Yeah.10Haynes had testified that due to the lower11MS. DALLEY:11market rates for excess power from Muskrat12A. Not that I recall.12Falls, in fact that the cost of the project13MR. O'BRIEN:13must be recovered through rates charged to14Q. Okay.14customers on the Island Interconnected15MS. DALLEY:15System. It's in the customers' best16A. And again, that's not to say that there16interest that the sale of electricity from17wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms.17Muskrat Falls on the Island be maximized.18Williams would have some detail on that.18MS. DALLEY:19A. That is the structure of the commercial20agreements as I understand them, from a unit20Q. Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of21cost perspective.22threshold, the possibility of a threshold or22MR. O'BRIEN:23breakeven point where you'd have to consider23Q. So, is Hydro looking at any options to24is it cost effective to continue with24realize that goal and sort of how you would	4	Q.		4		it's cross Nalcor as well about what those
7A.You mean to see if it was backstopped7Q.Okay. I just had a couple of questions on8essentially?8rates in general before I get into some of9MR. O'BRIEN:9the costs and some budget issues. Mr.10Q.Yeah.10Haynes had testified that due to the lower11MS. DALLEY:11market rates for excess power from Muskrat12A.Not that I recall.12Falls, in fact that the cost of the project13MR. O'BRIEN:13must be recovered through rates charged to14Q.Okay.14customers on the Island Interconnected15MS. DALLEY:15System. It's in the customers' best16A.And again, that's not to say that there1617wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms.17Muskrat Falls on the Island be maximized.18Williams would have some detail on that.18MS. DALLEY:19MR. O'BRIEN:19A.That is the structure of the commercial20Q.Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of20agreements as I understand them, from a unit21talked about there being some sort of21cost perspective.22threshold, the possibility of a threshold or23Q.So, is Hydro looking at any options to23breakeven point where you'd have to consider24Q.So, is Hydro looking at any options to24is it cost effective to continue with24Yeal and sort of how y	5		•	5		
8essentially?8rates in general before I get into some of9MR. O'BRIEN:9the costs and some budget issues. Mr.10Q. Yeah.10Haynes had testified that due to the lower11MS. DALLEY:11market rates for excess power from Muskrat12A. Not that I recall.12Falls, in fact that the cost of the project13MR. O'BRIEN:13must be recovered through rates charged to14Q. Okay.14customers on the Island Interconnected15MS. DALLEY:15System. It's in the customers' best16A. And again, that's not to say that there16interest that the sale of electricity from17wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms.17Muskrat Falls on the Island be maximized.18Williams would have some detail on that.19A. That is the structure of the commercial20Q. Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of20agreements as I understand them, from a unit21talked about there being some sort of21cost perspective.22threshold, the possibility of a threshold or23Q. So, is Hydro looking at any options to23breakeven point where you'd have to consider24So, is Hydro looking at any options to24is it cost effective to continue with24realize that goal and sort of how you would	6	MS. DALLE	Y:	6	MR. O'BRIEN	N:
9MR. O'BRIEN:9the costs and some budget issues. Mr.10Q. Yeah.10Haynes had testified that due to the lower11MS. DALLEY:11market rates for excess power from Muskrat12A. Not that I recall.12Falls, in fact that the cost of the project13MR. O'BRIEN:13must be recovered through rates charged to14Q. Okay.14customers on the Island Interconnected15MS. DALLEY:15System. It's in the customers' best16A. And again, that's not to say that there16interest that the sale of electricity from17wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms.17Muskrat Falls on the Island be maximized.18Williams would have some detail on that.18MS. DALLEY:19MR. O'BRIEN:19A. That is the structure of the commercial20Q. Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of20agreements as I understand them, from a unit21talked about there being some sort of21cost perspective.22threshold, the possibility of a threshold or22Q. So, is Hydro looking at any options to23breakeven point where you'd have to consider23Q. So, is Hydro looking at any options to24is it cost effective to continue with24realize that goal and sort of how you would	7	А.	You mean to see if it was backstopped	7	Q.	Okay. I just had a couple of questions on
10Q.Yeah.10Haynes had testified that due to the lower11MS. DALLEY:11market rates for excess power from Muskrat12A.Not that I recall.12Falls, in fact that the cost of the project13MR. O'BRIEN:13must be recovered through rates charged to14Q.Okay.14customers on the Island Interconnected15MS. DALLEY:15System. It's in the customers' best16A.And again, that's not to say that there16interest that the sale of electricity from17wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms.17Muskrat Falls on the Island be maximized.18Williams would have some detail on that.18MS. DALLEY:19MR. O'BRIEN:19A.That is the structure of the commercial agreements as I understand them, from a unit cost perspective.20Q.Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of 2121cost perspective.22threshold, the possibility of a threshold or is it cost effective to continue with23Q.So, is Hydro looking at any options to realize that goal and sort of how you would			5	8		rates in general before I get into some of
11MS. DALLEY:11market rates for excess power from Muskrat12A.Not that I recall.12Falls, in fact that the cost of the project13MR. O'BRIEN:13must be recovered through rates charged to14Q.Okay.14customers on the Island Interconnected15MS. DALLEY:15System. It's in the customers' best16A.And again, that's not to say that there16interest that the sale of electricity from17wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms.17Muskrat Falls on the Island be maximized.18Williams would have some detail on that.18MS. DALLEY:19MR. O'BRIEN:19A.That is the structure of the commercial20Q.Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of20agreements as I understand them, from a unit21talked about there being some sort of21cost perspective.22threshold, the possibility of a threshold or23Q.23breakeven point where you'd have to consider23Q.24is it cost effective to continue with24Yead and sort of how you would		MR. O'BRIE	N:	9		
12A.Not that I recall.12Falls, in fact that the cost of the project13MR. O'BRIEN:13must be recovered through rates charged to14Q.Okay.14customers on the Island Interconnected15MS. DALLEY:15System. It's in the customers' best16A.And again, that's not to say that there16interest that the sale of electricity from17wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms.17Muskrat Falls on the Island be maximized.18Williams would have some detail on that.18MS. DALLEY:19MR. O'BRIEN:19A.That is the structure of the commercial20Q.Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of20agreements as I understand them, from a unit21talked about there being some sort of21cost perspective.22threshold, the possibility of a threshold or23Q.23breakeven point where you'd have to consider23Q.24is it cost effective to continue with24realize that goal and sort of how you would	10					
13MR. O'BRIEN:13must be recovered through rates charged to14Q.Okay.14customers on the Island Interconnected15MS. DALLEY:15System. It's in the customers' best16A.And again, that's not to say that there16interest that the sale of electricity from17wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms.17Muskrat Falls on the Island be maximized.18Williams would have some detail on that.18MS. DALLEY:19MR. O'BRIEN:19A.That is the structure of the commercial20Q.Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of20agreements as I understand them, from a unit21talked about there being some sort of21cost perspective.23breakeven point where you'd have to consider23Q.So, is Hydro looking at any options to24is it cost effective to continue with24Yeah and sort of how you would	11					
14Q.Okay.14customers on the Island Interconnected15MS. DALLEY:15System. It's in the customers' best16A.And again, that's not to say that there16interest that the sale of electricity from17wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms.17Muskrat Falls on the Island be maximized.18Williams would have some detail on that.18MS. DALLEY:19MR. O'BRIEN:19A.That is the structure of the commercial20Q.Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of20agreements as I understand them, from a unit21talked about there being some sort of21cost perspective.22threshold, the possibility of a threshold or23MR. O'BRIEN:23breakeven point where you'd have to consider23Q.So, is Hydro looking at any options to24is it cost effective to continue with24realize that goal and sort of how you would	12					1 5
 MS. DALLEY: A. And again, that's not to say that there wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms. Williams would have some detail on that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of talked about there being some sort of threshold, the possibility of a threshold or breakeven point where you'd have to consider is it cost effective to continue with 	13					
16A.And again, that's not to say that there wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms.16interest that the sale of electricity from Muskrat Falls on the Island be maximized.17wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms.17Muskrat Falls on the Island be maximized.18Williams would have some detail on that.18MS. DALLEY:19Q.Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of talked about there being some sort of19A.20Q.Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of talked about there being some sort of20agreements as I understand them, from a unit cost perspective.21talked about there being some sort of talked about there you'd have to consider23Q.So, is Hydro looking at any options to realize that goal and sort of how you would	14	-	5			
 wouldn't have – Mr. Fagan, I think, and Ms. Williams would have some detail on that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of talked about there being some sort of threshold, the possibility of a threshold or breakeven point where you'd have to consider is it cost effective to continue with 	15	MS. DALLE				5
18Williams would have some detail on that.18MS. DALLEY:19MR. O'BRIEN:19A.That is the structure of the commercial20Q.Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of20agreements as I understand them, from a unit21talked about there being some sort of21cost perspective.22threshold, the possibility of a threshold or22MR. O'BRIEN:23breakeven point where you'd have to consider23Q.24is it cost effective to continue with24realize that goal and sort of how you would	16	A.				•
19MR. O'BRIEN:19A.That is the structure of the commercial agreements as I understand them, from a unit 2020Q.Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of talked about there being some sort of threshold, the possibility of a threshold or breakeven point where you'd have to consider is it cost effective to continue with19A.That is the structure of the commercial agreements as I understand them, from a unit cost perspective.20Q.Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of talked about there being some sort of threshold, the possibility of a threshold or breakeven point where you'd have to consider is it cost effective to continue with19A.That is the structure of the commercial agreements as I understand them, from a unit cost perspective.23breakeven point where you'd have to consider is it cost effective to continue with23Q.So, is Hydro looking at any options to 	17					
20Q.Yeah, and I think Mr. Haynes had sort of talked about there being some sort of threshold, the possibility of a threshold or breakeven point where you'd have to consider20 threshold or talked about there being some sort of threshold or threshold, the possibility of a threshold or threshold or tis it cost effective to continue with20 to agreements as I understand them, from a unit cost perspective.20Q.NR. O'BRIEN: the possibility of a threshold or threshold at any options to the possibility of a threshold or the possibilit	18					
21talked about there being some sort of threshold, the possibility of a threshold or breakeven point where you'd have to consider21cost perspective.23breakeven point where you'd have to consider is it cost effective to continue with21cost perspective.24is it cost effective to continue with23Q.So, is Hydro looking at any options to realize that goal and sort of how you would	19	MR. O'BRIE			A.	
22threshold, the possibility of a threshold or22MR. O'BRIEN:23breakeven point where you'd have to consider23Q.So, is Hydro looking at any options to24is it cost effective to continue with24realize that goal and sort of how you would	20	Q.	•			agreements as I understand them, from a unit
23breakeven point where you'd have to consider23Q.So, is Hydro looking at any options to realize that goal and sort of how you would24242424	21					
24 is it cost effective to continue with 24 realize that goal and sort of how you would	22				MR. O'BRIEN	N:
	23				Q.	
25 recall. 25 maximize sales?			is it past offective to continue with	1.24		1. 1 1 1 1 1 1
I	24		is it cost effective to continue with			

	25, 2010				
1	MC DALLEY	Page 73	1	٨	Page 75
1 2	MS. DALLE' A.		1	A.	I don't recall the discussion around – with Mr. Haynes, but I do recall the direction
$\frac{2}{3}$	А.	And I can't recall if Mr. Haynes mentioned that, but I understand that that is a	2 3		that I gave to my team.
4		discussion at the rate mitigation committee	4	MR. O'BRIEN	
5		level.	5	Q.	Sure, yeah, okay.
6	MR. O'BRIE		6	MS. DALLEY	
7	Q.	Oh, is it? Okay. In this GRA, Hydro hasn't	7	A.	Which was to hold the budget flat, absorb
8	χ.	proposed any change to Newfoundland Power's	8		any structural increases that came through
9		wholesale rate design, and I understand	9		and if there were situations outside of that
10		Hydro has filed a motion with the Board to	10		where they could not do that, then they were
11		have that issue – to have the issue raised	11		to – we were to talk through that and it had
12		by the Consumer Advocate's expert regarding	12		to come with justification.
13		that design, among other issues addressed in	13	(10:15 a.m.)	-
14		the cost of service hearing in the fall.	14	MR. O'BRIEN	I:
15	MS. DALLE	Y:	15	Q.	So, when you say "hold it flat" that's no
16	A.	Yes.	16		inflationary increase whatsoever?
17	MR. O'BRIE		17	MS. DALLEY	
18	Q.	Why does Hydro believe that's the preferable	18		No.
19		approach to deal with it?	19	MR. O'BRIEN	
20	MS. DALLE		20		Okay. And is that a normal process for
21	A.	I think we think that's the – discussions	21		Hydro to hold budgets flat?
22		again that I've had with Mr. Fagan is that's	22	MS. DALLEY	
23		the correct forum for it to be dealt with	23	A.	I think there's been a lot of variability
24		and Mr. Fagan could speak to it in more	24		over the last number of years that I've been
25		detail.	25		aware of.
1	MR. O'BRIEN	Page 74	1	MR. O'BRIEN	Page 76
1 2	Q.	Okay. I wonder if we could change just to	2		So, those are the directions you give your
3	Q.	have some discussion about budget process in	$\frac{2}{3}$		team. Is that fair?
4		general.	4	MS. DALLEY	
5	MS. DALLEY	•	5	A.	
6	A.	Sure.	6	MR. O'BRIEN	
7	MR. O'BRIEN		7		Okay. And you're responsible for all of the
8	Q.	Could we bring up PUB-NLH-51, Attachment 1?	8	-	departments we looked at yesterday under
9	Č.	This appears to be the Newfoundland and	9		Corporate Services and Regulatory Affairs.
10		Labrador Hydro guidelines for budgets 2017	10		Do you look at any – as the individual, I
11		through to 2019. I believe Mr. Haynes	11		guess, responsible for Human Resources, are
12		indicated that's the only real written	12		you responsible for labour budgets for all
13		budget guidelines used by Hydro to establish	13		Hydro?
14		annual budgets. Is that fair?	14	MS. DALLEY	
15	MS. DALLEY		15		We've centralized that process, so yes.
16	A.	Those are the process and key dates, yeah,	16	MR. O'BRIEN	
17		as noted.	17		Okay.
18	MR. O'BRIEN		18	MS. DALLEY	
19	Q.	Okay. But he also indicated there was some	19		But again, the budgets are built up from a
20		verbal directions in terms of how – of the	20		resource perspective through the various
21		preparation of budgets. Can you tell us	21		departments, but then that would – and I
22		sort of how the process involved – what kind	22		spoke to this – I think I mentioned it
					Tractor dot and the llot mode tolled about it og
23		of verbal directions do you get from him, in	23		yesterday and Mr. Haynes talked about it as
23 24 25	MS. DALLEY	terms of putting together budgets?	23 24 25		well – the centralized process that we have in place for oversight management control of

п п	25, 2010				NE Hydro 2017 OKA
		Page 77			Page 79
		the salaries budget, the FTE budget.	1		in place and then they would have to justify
2	MR. O'BRIEN		2		whether those were required for the coming
3	Q.	And that's the committee, is it, the	3		year.
4		compensation committee, or is that it a	4	MR. O'BRIEN	J:
5		different process?	5	Q.	And how do you come up with it at that level
6	MS. DALLEY	r:	6		in terms of if there are movements, say, in
7	А.	No, I'm speaking of the process that the	7		2016 when there was a movement out to Nalcor
8		Hydro executive have in place.	8		for certain individuals, that was done at
9	MR. O'BRIEN		9		the reorg process, but is there any move –
10		Okay. So, in terms of building up the	10		any discussion at the higher level as to
11	Ċ.	budget, it starts at the bottom in terms of	11		reduction in FTEs before it goes out to
12		management puts together what they need. Is	12		management?
12		that based on a work plan?	12	MS. DALLEY	
13	MS. DALLEY		13	A.	You mean are we asking people to take ten
14		It's slightly the opposite.	14	A.	percent of their budgets gone?
	A. MR. O'BRIEN			MR. O'BRIEN	
16			16		
17		Okay.	17	Q.	Exactly. Do you do anything like that?
18	MS. DALLEY		18	MS. DALLEY	
19	A.	So, the HR compensation team would send out	19	A.	No, it's built up from the work that is
20		essentially the FTEs, meaning the positions,	20		required and the justification for the work
21		to the requisite business unit managers to -	21		planning. So, that comes through the budget
22		as part of their budget, so they are aware.	22		process through the various executives and
23		Again, we have a very – I think we've put in	23		then that is justified across, but in – I
24		place very tight controls over it. So,	24		guess it's justified at each divisional
25		managers essentially don't control their	25		level and then that would be discussed by
		Page 78			Page 80
1		operating budgets. They control the work	1		the executive through the budget review
2		that's being done, but they have to justify	2		process if there were any new budgeted
3		their budgets. So, they look at those	3		positions or unbudgeted positions, whether
4		position IDs or the positions they have that	4		those would be gated through or allowed.
5		had been in and they have to justify either	5	MR. O'BRIEN	
6		remove those positions or if they're adding	6	Q.	And maybe I'm misunderstanding. I
		positions, then that needs to come through	7	Υ.	understood on your earlier evidence that the
8		the budget process with justification up	8		starting process would be that the executive
9		through their executive and then across to	9		would send out to the management "here's
10		us and then we would consider that inside of			
			10	MC DALLES	what your FTEs are".
11		the – again, what we call the gate-in	11	MS. DALLEY	
12		session, but the FTE management session.	12	A.	Right.
13	MR. O'BRIEN		13	MR. O'BRIEN	
14	Q.	Okay. So, in terms of the first step,	14	Q.	"You come back to us now and tell us whether
15		that's from your level or the centralized	15		or not you need any more or any less and
16		level to send out FTEs to management in each	16		we'll – and you'll have to justify that".
17		department?	17		Is that how that works?
18	MS. DALLEY		18	MS. DALLEY	
19	А.	That's correct.	19	А.	Yeah, I think that's fair.
20	MR. O'BRIEN	J:	20	MR. O'BRIEN	J:
21	Q.	And how do you determine those FTEs? Is	21	Q.	Okay, all right. And do you, before you
22		that based on what was there the year	22		send it out, do you look at it to say – at
23		before?	23		the executive level to say "we need to cut
24	MS. DALLEY	7.	24		down on FTEs before we even go out to
25	A.	Yeah, they would be taken from the existing	25		management" and say "you need to do this now
L		, , ,	-		

	Dago 01		$\mathbf{D}_{a} \approx 0 2$
1 1	Page 81	1	Page 83
	with ten percent less FTEs this year" or one		such a spreadsheet, but those things are
2	percent less FTEs or some kind of an	2	brought forward and we look at the budget
3	analysis like that?	3	impacts of the requests that are being made
4	MS. DALLEY:	4	and then again discuss the justification. I
5	A. I think that's – it's a good question, Mr.	5	think it's fair to say that it's a very – I
6	O'Brien, and I can understand why you're	6	almost want to say terse, to be fair. You
7	asking that. I think the approach that	7	know, we have a great working relationship
8	we're taking is, I'll say, more thoughtful	8	as a team, but there is a lot of pushback in
9	and judicious in how we're approaching it.	9	that meeting and there are people that – you
10	So, each – every position that is filled, so	10	know, there's a lot of questioning done, a
11	not just retirements, but extensions, any	11	lot of scrutiny put in positions right
12	turnover, anyone who has taken another	12	across the board and that gives us the
13	position inside of the company, each	13	ability and the flexibility to determine
14	position comes for discussion about whether		whether or not we can make do with one less
15	that position is to be refilled or not and	15	resource in a particular area. And if we
16	those are active discussions. So, to give	16	have a situation, for example, where we're
17	you some – the Board some context around	17	seeing terminals taking on more work but may
18	this, in 2017, about half of those positions	18	see less in lines, we're able to adjust
10	that were requested were filled. So, there	10	those FTEs on a very dynamic basis through
20	is a high degree of scrutiny which happens	20	
1		$\begin{vmatrix} 20\\21 \end{vmatrix}$	the year or not fill positions as a result,
21	at the executive level on an ongoing basis		and that includes temporaries, and the
22	as to whether roles are required and whether		resource charts are provided from an
23	they will impact reliability or, you know,	23	operational perspective around the various
24	our ability to deliver on the objectives	24	trades to determine whether or not we can
25	that we've laid out.	25	flex and bend the work. So, it's a very
	Page 82		Page 84
1	MR. O'BRIEN:	1	active discussion and then the outputs from
2	Q. And is that part of the gate-in process?	2	(1, 2, 4, 2, 2, 3, 4, 2, 2, 3, 4, 4, 2, 2, 3, 4, 4, 2, 3, 2, 4, 4, 2, 3, 4, 4, 3, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4, 4,
		4	that are then put through the system.
3	MS. DALLEY:	$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	MR. O'BRIEN:
3 4			
1	MS. DALLEY:	3	MR. O'BRIEN:
4	MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN:	3 4 5	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The
4 5 6	MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me	3	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part
4 5 6 7	MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process	3 4 5 6 7	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are
4 5 6 7 8	MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it –	3 4 5 6 7 8	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those?
4 5 6 7 8 9	MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it – what kind of rigours are involved with that?	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those? MS. DALLEY:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10	MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it – what kind of rigours are involved with that? MS. DALLEY:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it – what kind of rigours are involved with that? MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. There's a process laid out where we	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it – what kind of rigours are involved with that? MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. There's a process laid out where we have a lead inside of the Hydro HR team that	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And is this gate-in process, is that
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it – what kind of rigours are involved with that? MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. There's a process laid out where we have a lead inside of the Hydro HR team that manages and oversees that. So,	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And is this gate-in process, is that something that's different than how Hydro
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it – what kind of rigours are involved with that? MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. There's a process laid out where we have a lead inside of the Hydro HR team that manages and oversees that. So, administratively, she would reach out to the 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And is this gate-in process, is that something that's different than how Hydro handled say staffing and FTEs back in 2015?
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it – what kind of rigours are involved with that? MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. There's a process laid out where we have a lead inside of the Hydro HR team that manages and oversees that. So, administratively, she would reach out to the various business unit owners. We do the 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And is this gate-in process, is that something that's different than how Hydro handled say staffing and FTEs back in 2015?
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it – what kind of rigours are involved with that? MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. There's a process laid out where we have a lead inside of the Hydro HR team that manages and oversees that. So, administratively, she would reach out to the various business unit owners. We do the gate-ins now we were doing them biweekly 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And is this gate-in process, is that something that's different than how Hydro handled say staffing and FTEs back in 2015? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it – what kind of rigours are involved with that? MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. There's a process laid out where we have a lead inside of the Hydro HR team that manages and oversees that. So, administratively, she would reach out to the various business unit owners. We do the gate-ins now we were doing them biweekly and we're now doing them monthly, and we've 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And is this gate-in process, is that something that's different than how Hydro handled say staffing and FTEs back in 2015? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it – what kind of rigours are involved with that? MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. There's a process laid out where we have a lead inside of the Hydro HR team that manages and oversees that. So, administratively, she would reach out to the various business unit owners. We do the gate-ins now we were doing them biweekly and we're now doing them monthly, and we've got a process in place where managers will 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And is this gate-in process, is that something that's different than how Hydro handled say staffing and FTEs back in 2015? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And who brought that process into
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it – what kind of rigours are involved with that? MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. There's a process laid out where we have a lead inside of the Hydro HR team that manages and oversees that. So, administratively, she would reach out to the various business unit owners. We do the gate-ins now we were doing them biweekly and we're now doing them monthly, and we've got a process in place where managers will submit their requisitions. They're giving – 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And is this gate-in process, is that something that's different than how Hydro handled say staffing and FTEs back in 2015? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And is this gate-in process, is that something that's different than how Hydro handled say staffing and FTEs back in 2015? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And who brought that process into play? Is that something that you brought in
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it – what kind of rigours are involved with that? MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. There's a process laid out where we have a lead inside of the Hydro HR team that manages and oversees that. So, administratively, she would reach out to the various business unit owners. We do the gate-ins now we were doing them biweekly and we're now doing them monthly, and we've got a process in place where managers will submit their requisitions. They're giving – they understand that justification needs to 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And is this gate-in process, is that something that's different than how Hydro handled say staffing and FTEs back in 2015? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And who brought that process into play? Is that something that you brought in yourself of –
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it – what kind of rigours are involved with that? MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. There's a process laid out where we have a lead inside of the Hydro HR team that manages and oversees that. So, administratively, she would reach out to the various business unit owners. We do the gate-ins now we were doing them biweekly and we're now doing them monthly, and we've got a process in place where managers will submit their requisitions. They're giving – they understand that justification needs to be presented and they're expected to have 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And is this gate-in process, is that something that's different than how Hydro handled say staffing and FTEs back in 2015? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And who brought that process into play? Is that something that you brought in yourself of –
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it – what kind of rigours are involved with that? MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. There's a process laid out where we have a lead inside of the Hydro HR team that manages and oversees that. So, administratively, she would reach out to the various business unit owners. We do the gate-ins now we were doing them biweekly and we're now doing them monthly, and we've got a process in place where managers will submit their requisitions. They're giving – they understand that justification needs to be presented and they're expected to have had discussions with their requisite 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And is this gate-in process, is that something that's different than how Hydro handled say staffing and FTEs back in 2015? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And who brought that process into play? Is that something that you brought in yourself of – MS. DALLEY: A. Mr. MacIsaac.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it – what kind of rigours are involved with that? MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. There's a process laid out where we have a lead inside of the Hydro HR team that manages and oversees that. So, administratively, she would reach out to the various business unit owners. We do the gate-ins now we were doing them biweekly and we're now doing them monthly, and we've got a process in place where managers will submit their requisitions. They're giving – they understand that justification needs to be presented and they're expected to have had discussions with their requisite executives if they're bringing a position 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And is this gate-in process, is that something that's different than how Hydro handled say staffing and FTEs back in 2015? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And who brought that process into play? Is that something that you brought in yourself of – MS. DALLEY: A. Mr. MacIsaac. MR. O'BRIEN:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe I'll ask you to walk me through sort of exactly how that process works, the gate-in process. What does it – what kind of rigours are involved with that? MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. There's a process laid out where we have a lead inside of the Hydro HR team that manages and oversees that. So, administratively, she would reach out to the various business unit owners. We do the gate-ins now we were doing them biweekly and we're now doing them monthly, and we've got a process in place where managers will submit their requisitions. They're giving – they understand that justification needs to be presented and they're expected to have had discussions with their requisite 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I just had a couple of questions to follow up on your answer there. The first one is whether or not you were a part of those meetings, of monthly meetings. Are you involved in those? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And is this gate-in process, is that something that's different than how Hydro handled say staffing and FTEs back in 2015? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And who brought that process into play? Is that something that you brought in yourself of – MS. DALLEY: A. Mr. MacIsaac.

	23, 2010				
		Page 85	1		Page 87
		number of FTEs that it's working with better	1		committee?
2		than it did before?	2	MS. DALLEY	
3	MS. DALLE		3		If we had concerns about what was being
4	A.	In my opinion, yes.	4		brought forward to the committee, we would
5	MR. O'BRIE		5		make those concerns known to the committee.
6	Q.	Okay. So, in terms of the budget itself,	6		So, that process is really done up front
7		just putting FTEs aside, in terms of labour	7		versus on the back end of it.
8		costs, how is that handled at the budget	8	MR. O'BRIEN	[:
9		level? Is that handled at a higher level	9	Q.	Okay. And in terms of labour costs and
10		with the Compensation Committee or is that	10		inflation, is it—does Hydro seek to maintain
11		handled at a budget level as well for both?	11		labour increases at inflationary levels or –
12	MS. DALLE	Y:	12	MS. DALLEY	
13	А.	I had—yeah, it's a good question.	13	A.	I don't know the—yeah.
14	MR. O'BRIE		14	MR. O'BRIEN	
15	Q.	Yes.	15	Q.	I know you said flat earlier, but I'm
16	MS. DALLE	Y:	16		wondering whether or not inflation comes
17	A.	I think Mr. Haynes touched on this	17		into it when it comes to labour costs.
18		yesterday, but we would have discussions	18	MS. DALLEY	
19		between, you know, whether it's myself and	19		I think that at this point, and again, this
20		Human Resources and Nalcor, my compatriot	20		is one of the items that consider to be
21		or, you know, our HR managers, but we would	21		somewhat of an evolution for us and for
22		have discussions about the compensation's	22		Hydro. What's important from a compensation
23		team's results. We do a general market	23		perspective at this time in the structure
23		survey annually. It's fair to say that the	24		that we have is that we're first on
25		last couple of years have been—we've	25		principle aligned with what Nalcor is doing.
23			23		
1		Page 86 understood the constraints and we're seeing	1		Page 88
		that in the market. I think we've had some	1		There's a degree of exchange that happens
$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$			2 3		between our employees as they move between
3		fairly—and whether or not it was written			the various entities. So, from a
		direction or not, but you know, the	4		compensation perspective we are cognizant
)		government has given clear direction to all	3		that we don't want to create inequities
6		the crowns that there is an expectation	6		inside the company. Then, yes, we would
		around cost control that dovetails with	1		look to the market to see what was happening
8		what—certainly from the Hydro executive	8		in the market from a market survey
9		team, what we see as our mandate anyway, but	9		perspective. And I think we filed the, I
10		we would have taken that—had those	10		believe, the last results in an RFI, but
11		discussions at, I'll say the staff or	11		then, we would also have consideration to
12		management level around compensation	12		what was happening in the local market. So,
13		results, and then, aligned on the	13		we haven't made a determination long term,
14		recommendations to take to the Compensation	14		whether it's to maintain it at an
15		Committee of the Board which at this point	15		inflationary level, but that is a point of
16		is a Nalcor Compensation Committee of the	16		discussion which I expect that we will
17		Board. And those recommendations would be	17		settle on going forward.
18		put forward to the Nalcor Board as well as	18	MR. O'BRIEN	J:
19		the Hydro Board for approval. And then	19	Q.	And you talk about aligning yourself with
20		subsequently, those would be worked into the	20		Nalcor in that regard. Can you square that
21		budgets if approved.	21		circle with trying to keep Hydro independent
22	MR. O'BRIE	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	22		from Nalcor?
23	Q.	And are those worked in as recommendations?	23	MS. DALLEY	7.
24		In other words, is Hydro able to modify	24	А.	I can, yes.
25		those once you get them back from the	25	MR. O'BRIEN	1:

	25, 2018				NL Hydro 2017 GRA
1.	0	Page 89			Page 91
	Q.	Okay.	1		I'm party to that process, and active
2	MS. DALLE		2		member.
3	A.	Because I think thatagain, I think I just	3	(10:30 a.m.)	
4		spoke to it, but I'll touch on it briefly	4	MR. O'BRIEN	J:
5		again that, you know, an engineer in Hydro	5	Q.	And I may be jumping ahead a little bit, but
6		working in the electricity operations or on	6		you mentioned yesterday in terms of monthly
7		the engineering team is the-essentially the	7		management operation costs, you get a
8		same position as is being-within the	8		monthly report and have a look at that. Do
9		operations in Nalcor. So, if we are not in	9		you see overall costs as well, outside of
10		lockstep as to our compensation structure,	10		your department? Do you see overall labour
11		we are at risk of either us being out of	11		costs that you look at monthly or is –
12		step with them or them being out of step	12	MS. DALLEY	
13		with us. We also do look, and I think has	13	A.	Yes.
14		been brought up in past proceedings before	14	MR. O'BRIEN	J:
15		the Board, to what is happening at	15	Q.	Okay.
16		Newfoundland Power and what their—certainly	16	MS. DALLEY	
17		from a trades perspective, what their rates	17	A.	Yeah.
18		are to make sure again we're not losing line	18	MR. O'BRIEN	
19		workers, PLTs, common trades which generally	19	Q.	And when you get those reports, if anything
20		we have, to Newfoundland Power as well to	20	χ.	is out of step, say from an overall labour
20		the Atlantic Canadian Utilities.	21		perspective in the company, what steps would
21	MR. O'BRIE		22		you take in terms of managing that budget?
$\frac{22}{23}$	Q.	Okay. And I touched on this a bit earlier,	22	MS. DALLEY	
23	Q.	just in terms of overall labour forecasts	23	A.	Yeah, it's—we're managing it to the process,
25		and staffing. And in your role as head over	25	11.	in the process that we put in place for
<u> </u>			25		
		Page 90	1		Page 92
		Human Resources, what role do you plan in	1		managing the FTE budget. So, this is part—
$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$		terms of other departments not under your	2		and again, this is a process that we put in
3		head and under your purview in terms of	3		place in 2016, and we've continued to
	MCDALL	staffing them?	4		refine. And I'll just step out very
5	MS. DALL		5		quickly, but one of the things that we found
6	A.	I think twofold.	6		when the team, the management team, was
7	MR. O'BRI		/		fully formed and focused on this coming into
8	Q.	Yes.	8		late 2016, early 2017, was that having data
9	MS. DALL		9		to make informed management decisions was a
10	Q.	One from, I mean just from a process	10		gap that we needed to close. So, the
11		perspective, as I mentioned, we would	11		monthly O&M budget reports and status
12		provide. Again the—and control indeed the	12		reports and forecast reports are part of
13		data that is incorporated into the budget	13		that mechanism. We also see capitalized
14		just from a quality control perspective, as	14		labour and overtime on a monthly basis, so
15		well from an FTE, from the gate-in process	15		that we're able to see and control. So, and
		perspective. And as a member of the	16		then we have monthly cost management, cost
16			4 -		
16 17		executive I share responsibility with the	17		control meetings with senior executives,
16 17 18		executive, and I question and, you know,	18		where we question those things. So, yes, if
16 17 18 19		executive, and I question and, you know, query their request for controls and, you	18 19		where we question those things. So, yes, if I see things that are looking off, overtime
16 17 18 19 20		executive, and I question and, you know, query their request for controls and, you know, people and budgets. So, it's part of	18 19 20		where we question those things. So, yes, if I see things that are looking off, overtime down, for example, to a granular level –
16 17 18 19 20 21		executive, and I question and, you know, query their request for controls and, you know, people and budgets. So, it's part of a control, I'll say mechanism.	18 19 20 21	MR. O'BRIEN	where we question those things. So, yes, if I see things that are looking off, overtime down, for example, to a granular level –
16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MR. O'BRI	executive, and I question and, you know, query their request for controls and, you know, people and budgets. So, it's part of a control, I'll say mechanism.	18 19 20 21 22	Q.	where we question those things. So, yes, if I see things that are looking off, overtime down, for example, to a granular level – I: Yes.
16 17 18 19 20 21	Q.	executive, and I question and, you know, query their request for controls and, you know, people and budgets. So, it's part of a control, I'll say mechanism. EN: Yes.	18 19 20 21 22 23		where we question those things. So, yes, if I see things that are looking off, overtime down, for example, to a granular level – I: Yes.
16 17 18 19 20 21 22		executive, and I question and, you know, query their request for controls and, you know, people and budgets. So, it's part of a control, I'll say mechanism. EN: Yes.	18 19 20 21 22	Q.	where we question those things. So, yes, if I see things that are looking off, overtime down, for example, to a granular level – I: Yes.

		~			NE Hydro 2017 ORA
		Page 93			Page 95
1		ship. It is however, an ongoing improvement	1	MR. O'BRIEN	
2		process, but we've got mechanisms in place	2	Q.	Yes.
3		today that afford us a level of insight and	3	MS. DALLEY	Y:
4		control that I-again, I can't speak to	4	А.	But when the Board's order came down last
5		previous processes that were structured, but	5		time, we had the-there was some very-the
6		that certainly wasn't available in the last	6		Board's order was very informative and
7		number of years.	7		instructive. And there were some very
		5	0		direct discussions about what we needed to
8	MR. O'BRIE		8		
9	Q.	Yes, I was going to ask you that. Just—	9		change the way that we were doing business
10		okay, and in terms of mechanisms, once you	10		and to be able to demonstrate to the Board,
11		see something that may be out of whack in	11		but also to customers, that we were running
12		terms of your budget, what sort of	12		a very efficient operation. And again, I
13		mechanisms do you have in terms of stepping	13		think it's fair that—and you should question
14		in and altering that? Is it just your	14		each executive that hits the stand on that
15		discussions amongst executive or do you have	15		because that is a very active discussion and
16		any written protocols on how you're going to	16		everyone can speak to it.
17		deal with that?	17	MR. O'BRIEN	
18	MS. DALLE		18	Q.	So, in terms of your—I take it from your
			10	Q.	
19	А.	I think that that's party to good management			personal point of view, that that hits you
20		and executive oversight. So, I can't say	20		as an executive as something that Hydro
21		that we've had issues that don't find their	21		needs to deal with in terms of managing
22		way through insight and resolution. If we	22		costs in the future? It's important.
23		have discussions about a particular issue,	23	MS. DALLEY	Y:
24		and I'll say that it's non-controllable in	24	А.	Absolutely.
25		the sense that it's explainable and we will	25	MR. O'BRIEN	N:
		Page 94			Page 96
1		Page 94 accept that	1	0	Page 96 It's important to show that you're managing
1	MR O'BRIF	accept that.	1	Q.	It's important to show that you're managing
2	MR. O'BRIE	accept that. N:	1 2 3	Q.	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a
2 3	Q.	accept that. N: Yes.	3		It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility?
2 3 4	Q. MS. DALLE	accept that. N: Yes. Y:		MS. DALLEY	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility?
2 3 4 5	Q.	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of	3 4 5	MS. DALLEY A.	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? <i>Y</i> : Yes.
2 3 4 5 6	Q. MS. DALLE	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently	3	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Y: Yes. N:
2 3 4 5 6 7	Q. MS. DALLE	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware	3 4 5 6 7	MS. DALLEY A.	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. N: Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Q. MS. DALLE	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and	3 4 5 6 7 8	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. V: Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. MS. DALLE	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q.	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. V: Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Q. MS. DALLE	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and	3 4 5 6 7 8	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. V: Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. MS. DALLE	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q.	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. V: Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Q. MS. DALLE	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be good and effective steps in the time that we've had, and that we know that there are	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Y: Yes. V: Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs? Y: Transition change and culture.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Q. MS. DALLE	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be good and effective steps in the time that we've had, and that we know that there are still some improvements to come.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. V: Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs? Y: Transition change and culture.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be good and effective steps in the time that we've had, and that we know that there are still some improvements to come. N:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q.	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Q. MS. DALLE A.	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be good and effective steps in the time that we've had, and that we know that there are still some improvements to come. N: You don't take issue, I take it, with the	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. Yes. V: Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs? Y: Transition change and culture. N: And just explain that for me.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be good and effective steps in the time that we've had, and that we know that there are still some improvements to come. N: You don't take issue, I take it, with the fact that prior to 2016 Hydro did have some	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q.	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. Ves. N: Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs? Transition change and culture. N: And just explain that for me.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be good and effective steps in the time that we've had, and that we know that there are still some improvements to come. N: You don't take issue, I take it, with the fact that prior to 2016 Hydro did have some difficulty with managing costs? Is that a	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. V: Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs? Transition change and culture. N: And just explain that for me.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q.	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be good and effective steps in the time that we've had, and that we know that there are still some improvements to come. N: You don't take issue, I take it, with the fact that prior to 2016 Hydro did have some difficulty with managing costs? Is that a fair statement?	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. Yes. V: Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs? Y: Transition change and culture. N: And just explain that for me. Y: I think that we've still—we had come through a period of transition and change. The way we describe it internally is, you know, the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be good and effective steps in the time that we've had, and that we know that there are still some improvements to come. N: You don't take issue, I take it, with the fact that prior to 2016 Hydro did have some difficulty with managing costs? Is that a fair statement? Y:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs? Transition change and culture. And just explain that for me. Hink that we've still—we had come through a period of transition and change. The way we describe it internally is, you know, the outages in 2014 and '13, '14 and '15, were a
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q.	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be good and effective steps in the time that we've had, and that we know that there are still some improvements to come. N: You don't take issue, I take it, with the fact that prior to 2016 Hydro did have some difficulty with managing costs? Is that a fair statement? Y: I think that's fair, and I think the Board	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs? Transition change and culture. And just explain that for me.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A.	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be good and effective steps in the time that we've had, and that we know that there are still some improvements to come. N: You don't take issue, I take it, with the fact that prior to 2016 Hydro did have some difficulty with managing costs? Is that a fair statement? Y: I think that's fair, and I think the Board reflected that clearly in the order.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. Yes. V: Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs? Y: Transition change and culture. Y: And just explain that for me. Y: I think that we've still—we had come through a period of transition and change. The way we describe it internally is, you know, the outages in 2014 and '13, '14 and '15, were a clear message that what we were doing was not what needed to be doing. And I think
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be good and effective steps in the time that we've had, and that we know that there are still some improvements to come. N: You don't take issue, I take it, with the fact that prior to 2016 Hydro did have some difficulty with managing costs? Is that a fair statement? Y: I think that's fair, and I think the Board reflected that clearly in the order. N:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. N: Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs? Transition change and culture. N: And just explain that for me. I think that we've still—we had come through a period of transition and change. The way we describe it internally is, you know, the outages in 2014 and '13, '14 and '15, were a clear message that what we were doing was not what needed to be doing. And I think the company swung the pendulum, you know,
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q.	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be good and effective steps in the time that we've had, and that we know that there are still some improvements to come. N: You don't take issue, I take it, with the fact that prior to 2016 Hydro did have some difficulty with managing costs? Is that a fair statement? Y: I think that's fair, and I think the Board reflected that clearly in the order. N: Yes.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs? Transition change and culture. And just explain that for me.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be good and effective steps in the time that we've had, and that we know that there are still some improvements to come. N: You don't take issue, I take it, with the fact that prior to 2016 Hydro did have some difficulty with managing costs? Is that a fair statement? Y: I think that's fair, and I think the Board reflected that clearly in the order. N: Yes.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. N: Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs? Transition change and culture. N: And just explain that for me. I think that we've still—we had come through a period of transition and change. The way we describe it internally is, you know, the outages in 2014 and '13, '14 and '15, were a clear message that what we were doing was not what needed to be doing. And I think the company swung the pendulum, you know,
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q.	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be good and effective steps in the time that we've had, and that we know that there are still some improvements to come. N: You don't take issue, I take it, with the fact that prior to 2016 Hydro did have some difficulty with managing costs? Is that a fair statement? Y: I think that's fair, and I think the Board reflected that clearly in the order. N: Yes.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs? Transition change and culture. And just explain that for me.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	accept that. N: Yes. Y: But you know, there is a great deal of pressure to manage the business efficiently and control costs. But we are also aware that the trajectory—we are on a path and that we have taken what I consider to be good and effective steps in the time that we've had, and that we know that there are still some improvements to come. N: You don't take issue, I take it, with the fact that prior to 2016 Hydro did have some difficulty with managing costs? Is that a fair statement? Y: I think that's fair, and I think the Board reflected that clearly in the order. N: Yes. Y:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN Q. MS. DALLEY	It's important to show that you're managing costs in a—within least-cost principles as a utility? Yes. Yes. V: Okay. And what's the biggest challenge do you see for Hydro in terms of managing its costs? Y: Transition change and culture. Y: And just explain that for me. Y: I think that we've still—we had come through a period of transition and change. The way we describe it internally is, you know, the outages in 2014 and '13, '14 and '15, were a clear message that what we were doing was not what needed to be doing. And I think the company swung the pendulum, you know, back a certain way. And again, I wasn't at the time close to it, but I think in

	B 07		B 00
1	Page 97	1	Page 99 MR. O'BRIEN:
	to see that. There was a regard for		
$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	reliability. We are trying to find the	$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	Q. The biggest part?
3	right balance and, yeah, I think we've made	3	MS. DALLEY:
	that point in the evidence and I can	4	A O&M salary is, you know, between, given
5	certainly—I did have a few months to work	5	the year, 60 to 65 percent of those costs.
6	with Mr. MacIsaac when he came in, and you		MR. O'BRIEN:
7	know what his perception was and what he	7	Q. Yes, it's the biggest part.
8	saw. And I think we swung it back to do	8	MS. DALLEY:
9	very much, Mr. O'Brien, what I think you	9	A. So, it is almost impossible to control
10	spoke to, was why not just cut ten percent?	10	withoutyour O&Ms without controlling your
11	Why not just cut 20 percent? And I think	11	salaries.
12	you can do that, and I think there are	12	MR. O'BRIEN:
13	industries that indeed do do it, but I think	13	Q. And in terms ofwe talked earlier about the
14	for us to do it inside of the mandate we	14	Board's order.
15	have, which is very balanced around, you	15	MS. DALLEY:
16	know, still being able to deliver customer—	16	A. Yes.
17	service to customers at an appropriate level	17	MR. O'BRIEN:
17	and not, you know, not have unintended	18	Q. One of the things that we saw in that order
10	consequences as a result of the actions that	10	was that the Board has disallowed 4 million
20	we've taken. So, this executive feels that—	19 20	dollars for salaries on the basis that
21	and I certainly feel that we need to be	21	really that Hydro hadn't proven that the
22	again judicious in how we go about it, and	22	salaries that were included in the tests
23	we have a very clear end in mind from the	23	year were reasonable at that point. I'm
24	perspective of being a well-managed and	24	wondering in terms of the test year now, has
25	efficient organization, but it will take us	25	Hydro taken those comments into account in
	Page 98		Page 100
1	some time. And so, there's a transition	1	preparing what salaries are expected in the
2	period that I think we're going through.	2	test years for 2018 and 2019?
3	We also have the integration work happening	3	MS. DALLEY:
4	on the Muskrat Falls assets that we've seen,	4	A. I think the—yes would be the answer to that
5	for example in '17, just tremendous inter-	5	because we've looked at the Board's order in
6	company out, labour out, as a result of work	6	detail when it came out. We met as a team
7	that was being done which we feel was	7	at the time and went through it and talked
8	judicious for our crews to do, but again, it	8	about what we needed to do, again to in that
9	led us to some swings in labour that we	9	case right that ship, and give the Board
10	weren't anticipating. So, you know, as we	10	confidence in the processes and structures
10	get to a more steady state and as we get the	10	that we had in place. We would have had
	e , e		-
12	right data and information in place to make	12	the—you would have seen the, for example,
13	informed decisions, we are not instituting	13	the FTE management process or the gate-in
14	the processes and putting those in place,	14	sessions come out of that discussion. So, I
15	that we can make informed decisions that	15	think that there's consideration for that
16	don't have, as I say, unintended	16	inside of what we do. I think our
17	consequences.	17	compensation philosophy overall is the same
	MR. O'BRIEN:	18	from the perspective of again getting to the
19	Q. In terms of your operating costs and	19	P50 of the Atlantic Canadian Utilities, that
20	controlling your operating costs, would	20	had not changed at this time. So, yes, I
21	salaries be the most difficult side of that?	21	think that we've considered that.
22	MS. DALLEY:	22	MR. O'BRIEN:
23	A. I don't know if it's the most difficult	23	Q. So, you're more focused on head-count really
24	side, Mr. O'Brien, but I think it's fair to	24	than a change in compensation?
25	say that inside of our –	25	MS. DALLEY:
	Discoveries Unlimite		

1	25, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 101		Page 103
1	A. Well, I think we've hadsince 2015, we've		Q. Okay.
2	gotten to the end from a non-union	2	MS. DALLEY:
3	perspective, to the end of the previous	3	A. As did—and the executive had input into this
4	collective agreement. So, those negotiated	4	approach.
5	adjustments have gone through, and we've had	5	MR. O'BRIEN:
6	since twenty—I think 2016, 2017, and the	6	Q. Yes.
7	2018 results have not been communicated to	7	MS. DALLEY:
8	employees yet, because it's still underway.	8	A. And we had meeting with them. Ms. Hutchens
9	But there's been zero and zero increases at	9	I think Mr. Haynes explained is the –
10	the non-union level over the last couple of	10	MR. O'BRIEN:
11	years. So, and the compensation review, the	11	Q. Okay, yes.
12	market review, I think the average is	12	MS. DALLEY:
13	probably around 1.6 or 1.8. So, there would	13	A executive contract from an administrative
14	be some levelizing of our salaries coming	14	perspective, but we've made it clear to the
15	from that process.	15	committee members that they have right and
16	MR. O'BRIEN:	16	ready access to the executive who are very
17	Q. And is that based into the—built into the	17	supportive of this initiative. And we've
17	test years?	18	met with them toagain on a periodic basis,
19	MS. DALLEY:	19	and established essentially a reporting
20		20	
	A. The zero and zero you mean? MR. O'BRIEN:		mechanism so we can see what they're doing
21		21	and hear directly from them on the interface
22	Q. No, no, any additional—and maybe I'd didn't	22	they're having, the ideas that they're
23	get your point. I understood that	23	receiving, the ones that they're, you know,
24	negotiations were ongoing now for a new	24	assessing, and those that are being
25	collective agreement? Is that -	25	implemented to ensure that there are no
	Page 102		Page 104
	MS. DALLEY:		roadblocks to what we're trying to achieve.
2	A. They're not underway.	2	MR. O'BRIEN:
3	MR. O'BRIEN:	3	Q. And are you, yourself, aware of any
4	Q. Okay.	1 /	
5		4	potential cost savings they've identified to
	MS. DALLEY:	5	date?
6	A. No.	5 6	date? MS. DALLEY:
6 7	A. No. MR. O'BRIEN:	5	date? MS. DALLEY:
6 7 8	A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right, okay. In terms of another point	5 6	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted -
7	A. No. MR. O'BRIEN:	5 6 7	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably
7 8	A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right, okay. In terms of another point	5 6 7 8	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes.
7 8 9	A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right, okay. In terms of another point before—I want to talk to just briefly about	5 6 7 8 9	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted - MR. O'BRIEN:
7 8 9 10	A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right, okay. In terms of another point before—I want to talk to just briefly about FTEs and how they're—just the numbers that	5 6 7 8 9 10	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes.
7 8 9 10 11	 A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right, okay. In terms of another point before—I want to talk to just briefly about FTEs and how they're—just the numbers that are built into the test year, but before I 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY:
7 8 9 10 11 12	 A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right, okay. In terms of another point before—I want to talk to just briefly about FTEs and how they're—just the numbers that are built into the test year, but before I get to that, I just want to confirm—Mr. Haynes talked about a dedicated productivity 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. I think Mr. Haynes mentioned December.
7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right, okay. In terms of another point before—I want to talk to just briefly about FTEs and how they're—just the numbers that are built into the test year, but before I get to that, I just want to confirm—Mr. Haynes talked about a dedicated productivity team going forward, and that's been 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. I think Mr. Haynes mentioned December. MR. O'BRIEN:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right, okay. In terms of another point before—I want to talk to just briefly about FTEs and how they're—just the numbers that are built into the test year, but before I get to that, I just want to confirm—Mr. Haynes talked about a dedicated productivity team going forward, and that's been established. You are not part of that team 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. I think Mr. Haynes mentioned December. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right, okay. In terms of another point before—I want to talk to just briefly about FTEs and how they're—just the numbers that are built into the test year, but before I get to that, I just want to confirm—Mr. Haynes talked about a dedicated productivity team going forward, and that's been established. You are not part of that team yourself, are you? 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. I think Mr. Haynes mentioned December. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. But it actually was probably more into the
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	A.No.MR. O'BRIEN:Q.All right, okay. In terms of another point before—I want to talk to just briefly about FTEs and how they're—just the numbers that are built into the test year, but before I get to that, I just want to confirm—Mr. Haynes talked about a dedicated productivity team going forward, and that's been established. You are not part of that team yourself, are you?MS. DALLEY:	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. I think Mr. Haynes mentioned December. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. But it actually was probably more into the February timeframe of this year.
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right, okay. In terms of another point before—I want to talk to just briefly about FTEs and how they're—just the numbers that are built into the test year, but before I get to that, I just want to confirm—Mr. Haynes talked about a dedicated productivity team going forward, and that's been established. You are not part of that team yourself, are you? MS. DALLEY: A. No.	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. I think Mr. Haynes mentioned December. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. But it actually was probably more into the February timeframe of this year. MR. O'BRIEN:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	A.No.MR. O'BRIEN:Q.All right, okay. In terms of another point before—I want to talk to just briefly about FTEs and how they're—just the numbers that are built into the test year, but before I get to that, I just want to confirm—Mr. Haynes talked about a dedicated productivity team going forward, and that's been established. You are not part of that team yourself, are you?MS. DALLEY: A.No.MR. O'BRIEN:	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. I think Mr. Haynes mentioned December. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. But it actually was probably more into the February timeframe of this year. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Oh, was it? Okay.
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right, okay. In terms of another point before—I want to talk to just briefly about FTEs and how they're—just the numbers that are built into the test year, but before I get to that, I just want to confirm—Mr. Haynes talked about a dedicated productivity team going forward, and that's been established. You are not part of that team yourself, are you? MS. DALLEY: A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And do you have any contact with that team 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. I think Mr. Haynes mentioned December. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. But it actually was probably more into the February timeframe of this year. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Oh, was it? Okay. MS. DALLEY:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right, okay. In terms of another point before—I want to talk to just briefly about FTEs and how they're—just the numbers that are built into the test year, but before I get to that, I just want to confirm—Mr. Haynes talked about a dedicated productivity team going forward, and that's been established. You are not part of that team yourself, are you? MS. DALLEY: A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And do you have any contact with that team on a regular basis? 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. I think Mr. Haynes mentioned December. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. But it actually was probably more into the February timeframe of this year. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Oh, was it? Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So, the team has been tasked withthrough
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right, okay. In terms of another point before—I want to talk to just briefly about FTEs and how they're—just the numbers that are built into the test year, but before I get to that, I just want to confirm—Mr. Haynes talked about a dedicated productivity team going forward, and that's been established. You are not part of that team yourself, are you? MS. DALLEY: A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And do you have any contact with that team on a regular basis? 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. I think Mr. Haynes mentioned December. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. But it actually was probably more into the February timeframe of this year. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Oh, was it? Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So, the team has been tasked withthrough last year as part of the executive and the
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right, okay. In terms of another point before—I want to talk to just briefly about FTEs and how they're—just the numbers that are built into the test year, but before I get to that, I just want to confirm—Mr. Haynes talked about a dedicated productivity team going forward, and that's been established. You are not part of that team yourself, are you? MS. DALLEY: A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And do you have any contact with that team on a regular basis? MS. DALLEY: A. They have—yes, I assisted in the development 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. I think Mr. Haynes mentioned December. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. But it actually was probably more into the February timeframe of this year. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Oh, was it? Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So, the team has been tasked withthrough last year as part of the executive and the cost control, we had amassed a number of
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right, okay. In terms of another point before—I want to talk to just briefly about FTEs and how they're—just the numbers that are built into the test year, but before I get to that, I just want to confirm—Mr. Haynes talked about a dedicated productivity team going forward, and that's been established. You are not part of that team yourself, are you? MS. DALLEY: A. No. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And do you have any contact with that team on a regular basis? 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	date? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't have the—so, the team was probably fully constituted - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. I think Mr. Haynes mentioned December. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY: A. But it actually was probably more into the February timeframe of this year. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Oh, was it? Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So, the team has been tasked withthrough last year as part of the executive and the

April 25, 2018

T prin	25, 2010		
	Page 105		Page 107
1	could see that there were opportunities	1	distinct skillset from project management to
2	there. Whether as I mentioned yesterday,	2	engineering who worked on capital jobs,
3	you know, something as simple as cell	3	who've worked operating aspects of the
4	phones, you know, renegotiating cell phone	4	business. Our internal energy efficiency
5	plans, making sure we have the right things	5	lead is there who has a background in
6	in place. Looking at fleet vehicles, is our	6	efficiency drives. That's, you know, how
7	policy, right? Which I can tell you it is	7	this individual thinks. We've got
8	not because it's probably 25 years old. So,	8	representation from Operations in the field
9	looking at that, rewriting that policy,	9	who understands how work is executed and
10	making sure that we get that implemented,	10	planned. So, we've tried to be very
11	that's active and underway today. So, as a	11	thoughtful and focused in how we've
12	result of that work, we haven't put a	12	approached that. I know Mr. Haynes
13	quantum of savings around it, but what we've		mentioned that the—you know, there's been a
14	asked the team to do very quickly is assess	14	terms of reference which all the executive
15	what the quantum of savings are. So, as	15	have had input into and approved for that
16	they are developing those ideas, looking at	16	team, and they understand very much what the
17	the business case around them, then giving	17	role is. And they are out—part of that is
18	us an estimate of what those savings are.	18	getting those savings, absolutely. That is
19	In the meantime, and I think Mr. Haynes	19	the end goal, and more. So, I don't like
20	explained this, we put forward the	$\begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ 2 \end{bmatrix}$	saying that I'm not very much living on hope
21	productivity allowance.	$\begin{vmatrix} 20\\21 \end{vmatrix}$	on these things. This team knows that they
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\22\end{vmatrix}$	MR. O'BRIEN:	21 22	are expected to deliver and that we think
23	Q. Yes.	23	that they can deliver, and they're out with
23	MS. DALLEY:	24	the business as well just to change the
25	A. I believe the 1.1 million, which is to take	25	culture. And I can tell you from the
	Page 106		Page 108
1	into account the components of the O&M that	1	initial meetings we've had with them,
2	would fall in that. So, that's not	2	they've gone out and met with our teams, out
3	vacancies or FTEs; it's the other side of	3	across the various regions and have been
4	the equation on O&Ms.	4	exceptionally well received. I think that
5	MR. O'BRIEN:	5	the front-line employees of Newfoundland and
6	Q. So, this is a productivity team, so to	6	Labrador Hydro want to deliver what is
7	speak, I guess and there's the link between		absolutely best for customers, and they're
8	that productivity allowance and what you	8	focused on delivering it and are coming up
9	expect maybe this team might be able to	9	withyou know, it's grassroots suggestions
10	achieve over the next couple of years? Is	10	and means and things that, you know, we may
10	that fair?	10	not see at our level. And they are giving
12	MS. DALLEY:	11 12	that team those suggestions. They've got a
12	A. Yes, I think that's what we've said. We do	12	catalogue, a database, that they're keeping
13	understand that again, we're trying to be	13	to, you know, essentially catalogue those
14	someone systematic without being overly	14	ideas and suggestions, bottom them out,
15	bureaucratic.	15	prioritize them. It's, I'll say, an
10	MR. O'BRIEN:	10	1
1/		17	excepted process based on the assessments
	Q. Yes. MS. DALLEY:	18	we've done. We've spoken with BC Hydro, for
19			example, who have a process similar to this
20	A. If I could put it that way. Where we, you	20	which we were pleased to hear when—we had a
1 21	Irnary wa nut a measage in alage that	1 21	contract there are used in the second out to
21	know, we put a process in place that	21	contact there, so we just reached out to
22	actually ends up, you know, creating	22	them. And they have a similar process in
22 23	actually ends up, you know, creating something that we just don't want. So, you	22 23	them. And they have a similar process in place for the last couple of years. So,
22	actually ends up, you know, creating	22	them. And they have a similar process in

1					
		Page 109	1		Page 111
		mentioned Lean Six Sigma. So, we've got		MR. O'BRIE	
$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$		people trained and there are different	2	Q.	Thank you, Ms. Dalley. I wonder if we could
3		levels in that. So, we've got people	3		move just to have a discussion about FTEs in
4		trained in that to make sure that we're	4		general and what's in rate case. And part
5		looking at ways to eliminate waste, look at	5		of this I'm going to ask you to just try to-
6		innovative ways to do our business.	6		I was a little bit confused when I looked
7	(10:45 a.m.)		7		through some of this information, but I just
8	MR. O'BRIE		8		want to get it straight in my head. I
9	Q.	And I don't mean to be facetious with this	9		wonder if we could pull up page 3.4 of the
10		question, and I'm just drawing on your	10		evidence, please. Table 3.1. Okay, so we
11		comment there that you would expect the team	11		have net FTEs from 2015 test year to 2019
12		to deliver on "finding efficiencies and	12		test year shown in that table. So, those
13		more." And I'm wondering whether or not you	13		are net of time charged into Hydro and out
14		do expect the team to find more than the	14		of Hydro, is that accurate?
15		million-dollar productivity allowance in	15	MS. DALLE	Y:
16		efficiencies. And the reason I ask that is	16	A.	That is correct.
17		because I—it's been put to Mr. Haynes that	17	MR. O'BRIEI	N:
18		the million-dollars that set aside for	18	Q.	And they don't include FTEs which would be
19		productivity allowance is a small	19	,	associated with administration fees?
20		percentage, a very small percentage of	20	MS. DALLE	
21		overall operating costs. So, if there's an	21	A.	No, they do not.
22		expectation of finding more efficiencies,	22	MR. O'BRIEI	
23		why not put forth more of a productivity	23	Q.	Okay. So, Hydro-based FTEs, they're the
24		allowance for the case?	24	X.	ones that are used or determined as part of
25	MS. DALLE		25		the process, the operating budget annually?
		Page 110			Page 112
1	A.	Yeah, I would make the same statement that I	1		Is that right?
2	11.	made earlier. I think we can do this. What	2	MS. DALLE	•
$\frac{2}{3}$		we wanted to demonstrate to the Board and	$\frac{2}{3}$	A.	That's correct.
1		hopefully to the parties is that we've made	4	MR. O'BRIEN	
- -		a number of process changes here, and that	т 5		Okay. So, we've got the 2017 forecast, 2018
6		we have the, you know, again the controls in	6	Q.	and '19 there. If we look at the 2015 test
7		place from a cost perspective, but we also			year, that figure is 888 for net FTEs. Can
8		want to be thoughtful in how we do that.	8		• •
0 9		So, the team is expected to data mine the	0 9		we pull up NP-NLH-13, please? And here
		, I			we've got a question which ask Hydro to fill out a table of FTEs and vacancies. If we
10		opportunities that come in and put savings	10		
11		around them. So, we've made—and you know,	11		scroll down to the table and the response,
12		I'm inclined to agree with you, on the	12		we see the 2015 test year as FTEs of 943,
13		bottom half of the operating and maintenance	13		and I understand from the Footnote 1 these
14		expenses, removing salary from that. So, if	14		are Hydro-based FTEs. Then, there's a 40
15		it's, you know, 40 to 50 million dollars, a	15		vacancy there. The 888 we looked at before,
16		million dollars on that is, you know—I don't	16		does that include an additional 15 from the
17		know. I probably shouldn't be the one doing	17		order of the Board increasing the 40
18		math on the stand, but you know, it's a	18		vacancies to 55, do you know?
19		percentage and so we're—it is underway is	19	MS. DALLEY	
20		what I would say, and I respect that neither	20	A.	I'm sorry, can you walk me through that
21		the Board nor the parties until we are able	21		again?
22		to demonstrate that there are savings, and	22	MR. O'BRIEI	N:
		we certainly have no issue doing that. As a	23	Q.	Yes. So, we have 943 here as to what the
23					
		Crown Corporation, as a regulated utility,	24		home-based FTEs were for the 2015 test year,

		- 1	
	Page 11	3	Page 115
1	looked at the previous table, we had net	1	826?
2	FTEs of 888. Now, in the Board's previous	2	MS. DALLEY:
3	order Hydro had put forth vacancies of 40,	3	A. Yes.
4	but ultimately the order included 55. I'm	4	MR. O'BRIEN:
5	wondering how we got from 943 down to 88		Q. Okay. And that netted out with time in and
	e e		· ·
6	MS. DALLEY:	6	out of Hydro to get a net FTE of 809 for
1	A. That's from the 2015 test year to the 2015 -	1	2016?
8	MR. O'BRIEN:	8	MS. DALLEY:
9	Q. Yes.	9	A. That's right.
10	MS. DALLEY:	10	MR. O'BRIEN:
11	A. Can you bring up the previous table again?	11	Q. And that doesn't include the administration
12	MR. O'BRIEN:	12	fees, FTEs, is that right?
12	Q. Sure.	12	MS. DALLEY:
14	MS. DALLEY:	14	A. No, that's right.
15	A. Okay. Sorry, just go back to the other one.	15	MR. O'BRIEN:
16	Off the top of my head, I don't know.	16	Q. Right, okay. So, and the administration
17	MR. O'BRIEN:	17	FTEs, if we pull up MP-NLH-10, Revision 1,
18	Q. Okay, and that's fine. And I wonder if you	18	so in chart we sort of see the net FTEs in
19	could just undertake to determine that for	19	2016 of 809 that we saw in the last one, and
20	me?	20	then there's 20 FTEs associated with
		$20 \\ 21$	
21	(10:53 a.m UNDERTAKING)		administration fees. So, a total net of 829
22	MS. DALLEY:	22	with everything included? Is that fair?
23	A. Sure, yeah.	23	MS. DALLEY:
24	MS. GLYNN:	24	A. Yes.
25	Q. Noted on the record.	25	MR. O'BRIEN:
	Page 11	4	Page 116
1	MR. O'BRIEN:	1	Q. Okay. So, the actual FTEs, if we can go
2	Q. If we go—if we look at 2016, there's FTEs or	2	back to the last table, the actual FTEs for
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	$\begin{bmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{bmatrix}$	2016 at the end was 826 with the net of 809.
3	this table here, and this is the NP-NLH-13		
//			
	2016 FTEs of 872, and there's a vacancy of	4	Now, that's well down from the actual figure
	46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe		Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked
4 5 6			Now, that's well down from the actual figure
5 6 7	46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be	4 5	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked
7	46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of	4 5 6 7	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY:
7 8	46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721	4 5 6 7 8	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes.
7 8 9	46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair	4 5 6 7 8 9	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN:
7 8 9 10	46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption?	4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is
7 8 9 10 11	 46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is a relation to the transfer of employees or
7 8 9 10 11 12	 46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. That looks to be the case, yes. 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is a relation to the transfer of employees or of FTEs to Nalcor?
7 8 9 10 11	 46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. That looks to be the case, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is a relation to the transfer of employees or
7 8 9 10 11 12	 46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. That looks to be the case, yes. 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is a relation to the transfer of employees or of FTEs to Nalcor?
7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. That looks to be the case, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I don't think there's anything nefarious 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is a relation to the transfer of employees or of FTEs to Nalcor? MS. DALLEY:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. That looks to be the case, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I don't think there's anything nefarious about that, and I think the 46 then comes 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is a relation to the transfer of employees or of FTEs to Nalcor? MS. DALLEY: A. It is. MR. O'BRIEN:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. That looks to be the case, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I don't think there's anything nefarious about that, and I think the 46 then comes off of that to give us an end of 2016 of 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is a relation to the transfer of employees or of FTEs to Nalcor? MS. DALLEY: A. It is. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is that a fair assumption?
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. That looks to be the case, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I don't think there's anything nefarious about that, and I think the 46 then comes off of that to give us an end of 2016 of 826. 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is a relation to the transfer of employees or of FTEs to Nalcor? MS. DALLEY: A. It is. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. That looks to be the case, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I don't think there's anything nefarious about that, and I think the 46 then comes off of that to give us an end of 2016 of 826. MS. DALLEY: MS. DALLEY: 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is a relation to the transfer of employees or of FTEs to Nalcor? MS. DALLEY: A. It is. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, the bulk of this is related to the
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. That looks to be the case, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I don't think there's anything nefarious about that, and I think the 46 then comes off of that to give us an end of 2016 of 826. MS. DALLEY: A. 2016. 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is a relation to the transfer of employees or of FTEs to Nalcor? MS. DALLEY: A. It is. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, the bulk of this is related to the reorganization moves, and then, the admin
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. That looks to be the case, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I don't think there's anything nefarious about that, and I think the 46 then comes off of that to give us an end of 2016 of 826. MS. DALLEY: A. 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is a relation to the transfer of employees or of FTEs to Nalcor? MS. DALLEY: A. It is. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, the bulk of this is related to the reorganization moves, and then, the admin fee added into that.
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. That looks to be the case, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I don't think there's anything nefarious about that, and I think the 46 then comes off of that to give us an end of 2016 of 826. MS. DALLEY: A. 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And maybe we can look at PUB-NLH-32. Yes 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 s, 21	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is a relation to the transfer of employees or of FTEs to Nalcor? MS. DALLEY: A. It is. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, the bulk of this is related to the reorganization moves, and then, the admin fee added into that. MR. O'BRIEN:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. That looks to be the case, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I don't think there's anything nefarious about that, and I think the 46 then comes off of that to give us an end of 2016 of 826. MS. DALLEY: A. 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is a relation to the transfer of employees or of FTEs to Nalcor? MS. DALLEY: A. It is. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, the bulk of this is related to the reorganization moves, and then, the admin fee added into that.
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. That looks to be the case, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I don't think there's anything nefarious about that, and I think the 46 then comes off of that to give us an end of 2016 of 826. MS. DALLEY: A. 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And maybe we can look at PUB-NLH-32. Ye so we have 872, 2015 actual, Hydro-based 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 s, 21	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is a relation to the transfer of employees or of FTEs to Nalcor? MS. DALLEY: A. It is. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, the bulk of this is related to the reorganization moves, and then, the admin fee added into that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right. And we see here as well, 2016 to
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. That looks to be the case, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I don't think there's anything nefarious about that, and I think the 46 then comes off of that to give us an end of 2016 of 826. MS. DALLEY: A. 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And maybe we can look at PUB-NLH-32. Ye so we have 872, 2015 actual, Hydro-based FTEs and then it comes down to 826. So, if 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 s, 21 22 23	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is a relation to the transfer of employees or of FTEs to Nalcor? MS. DALLEY: A. It is. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, the bulk of this is related to the reorganization moves, and then, the admin fee added into that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right. And we see here as well, 2016 to 2017, the actual Hydro-base FTEs go from 826
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 46 noted. Now that 872 appears to bethe way I'm reading the table, that would be what the FTEs would be at the beginning of 2016. If you take 943 and take the 721 away, you get down to 872? Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. That looks to be the case, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I don't think there's anything nefarious about that, and I think the 46 then comes off of that to give us an end of 2016 of 826. MS. DALLEY: A. 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And maybe we can look at PUB-NLH-32. Ye so we have 872, 2015 actual, Hydro-based 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 s, 21 22	Now, that's well down from the actual figure at the end of 2015 which we had, it looked to be 888? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I'm assuming a large portion of that is a relation to the transfer of employees or of FTEs to Nalcor? MS. DALLEY: A. It is. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is that a fair assumption? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, the bulk of this is related to the reorganization moves, and then, the admin fee added into that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right. And we see here as well, 2016 to

April 2	25, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 117		Page 119
1	40 there. If we go to PUB-NLH-32, that's it	1	Q. Thank you, Madam Chair. Now we do have a
2	there, sorry. We're at that one. If we	2	split screen here of a couple of RFIs, PUB-
3	could go to NP-NLH-13 again. We see	3	NL-32 and NP-NLH-13, and I'll just take you
4	forecast for—we see 2016 moving from 872 to	4	through, Ms. Dalley, I guess my query was
5	906 in the 2017 forecast. There's a	5	more if you look at 2016 actuals versus 2017
	forecast of 34 there versus the 40 we saw in	6	
			forecast in the top one, there's a
7	the previous slide. Are you able to tell me	7	difference of 40 Hydro based FTEs, and in
8	why there's 40 on one and 34 on another and	8	the bottom one, there's a difference of 34
9	which might be more accurate?	9	and the footnote on the bottom one, on 13 I
10	MS. DALLEY:	10	believe, indicates that we're talking about
11	A. Sorry, I missed in remarks where the 34 –	11	home based FTEs as well. Now, I believe we
12	MR. O'BRIEN:	12	had assumed, I assumed that the 872 on the
13	Q. If you go back, right here on this one here,	13	bottom one, that's the beginning of the year
14	if you look from 2016, we've got 872?	14	because the 826 as the end of the year, is
15	MS. DALLEY:	15	that fair? So I'm just wondering if that's
16	A. Yes.	16	, U
			the beginning. Was there 40 FTEs
17	MR. O'BRIEN:	17	transferred or forecast to be transferred in
18	Q. If you add 34 to that, you get 2017 forecast	18	2017 or 34?
19	of 906?	19	MS. DALLEY:
20	MS. DALLEY:	20	A. So I'm going to go back to a couple of
21	A. Oh yes.	21	points which—and this is points of
22	MR. O'BRIEN:	22	clarification.
23	Q. Okay? So, if we go back to the other slide,	23	MR. O'BRIEN:
24	we have 826 Hydro-based FTEs going up to	24	Q. Sure.
25	860. That's a 40 increase. And the 872 was	25	MS. DALLEY:
		20	
1	Page 118	1	Page 120
	the beginning of the year; 826 is the end of	1	A. One, in NP-13 the footnote is incorrect, so
2	year. So, I think we've sort of established	2	it's gross FTEs.
3	that.	3	MR. O'BRIEN:
4	MS. DALLEY:	4	Q. Okay, all right.
5	A. So, the difference between the 34 and 40?	5	MS. DALLEY:
6	MR. O'BRIEN:	6	A. And the number between 2016 and '17 and to
7	Q. Yes.	7	be fair, this should have been very easy for
8	MS. DALLEY:	8	me because at the beginning of the year we
9	A. Not off the top of my head, no.	9	start with the budget.
10	MR. O'BRIEN:	10	Ũ
1 10			MR O'BRIEN
11			MR. O'BRIEN:
11	Q. And maybe if we—actually, we're close to	11	Q. Okay.
12	Q. And maybe if we—actually, we're close to eleven. Maybe I can probably break here and	11 12	Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY:
12 13	Q. And maybe if we—actually, we're close to eleven. Maybe I can probably break here and I bring to another slide that might help us	11 12 13	Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So it's not carried over from subsequent
12 13 14	Q. And maybe if we—actually, we're close to eleven. Maybe I can probably break here and I bring to another slide that might help us get that.	11 12 13 14	Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So it's not carried over from subsequent years, it's a budget based on that year and
12 13 14 15	Q. And maybe if we—actually, we're close to eleven. Maybe I can probably break here and I bring to another slide that might help us get that. MS. DALLEY:	11 12 13 14 15	Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So it's not carried over from subsequent years, it's a budget based on that year and what we expect the vacancies to be, and so
12 13 14 15 16	Q. And maybe if we—actually, we're close to eleven. Maybe I can probably break here and I bring to another slide that might help us get that. MS. DALLEY: A. Sure.	11 12 13 14 15 16	 Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So it's not carried over from subsequent years, it's a budget based on that year and what we expect the vacancies to be, and so that's why you see the 40 there, right.
12 13 14 15	Q. And maybe if we—actually, we're close to eleven. Maybe I can probably break here and I bring to another slide that might help us get that. MS. DALLEY:	11 12 13 14 15	Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So it's not carried over from subsequent years, it's a budget based on that year and what we expect the vacancies to be, and so
12 13 14 15 16	Q. And maybe if we—actually, we're close to eleven. Maybe I can probably break here and I bring to another slide that might help us get that. MS. DALLEY: A. Sure.	11 12 13 14 15 16	 Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So it's not carried over from subsequent years, it's a budget based on that year and what we expect the vacancies to be, and so that's why you see the 40 there, right.
12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 Q. And maybe if we—actually, we're close to eleven. Maybe I can probably break here and I bring to another slide that might help us get that. MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. MR. O'BRIEN: 	11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So it's not carried over from subsequent years, it's a budget based on that year and what we expect the vacancies to be, and so that's why you see the 40 there, right. MR. O'BRIEN:
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 Q. And maybe if we—actually, we're close to eleven. Maybe I can probably break here and I bring to another slide that might help us get that. MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. CHAIR: 	11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So it's not carried over from subsequent years, it's a budget based on that year and what we expect the vacancies to be, and so that's why you see the 40 there, right. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And this is in '13, the footnote there.
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 Q. And maybe if we—actually, we're close to eleven. Maybe I can probably break here and I bring to another slide that might help us get that. MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. CHAIR: Q. Thank you. 	11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So it's not carried over from subsequent years, it's a budget based on that year and what we expect the vacancies to be, and so that's why you see the 40 there, right. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And this is in '13, the footnote there. MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I was talking about '17, but '16.
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 Q. And maybe if we—actually, we're close to eleven. Maybe I can probably break here and I bring to another slide that might help us get that. MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. CHAIR: Q. Thank you. (OFF RECORD – 10:59 A.M.) 	11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So it's not carried over from subsequent years, it's a budget based on that year and what we expect the vacancies to be, and so that's why you see the 40 there, right. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And this is in '13, the footnote there. MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I was talking about '17, but '16.
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. And maybe if we—actually, we're close to eleven. Maybe I can probably break here and I bring to another slide that might help us get that. MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. CHAIR: Q. Thank you. (OFF RECORD – 10:59 A.M.) (RESUME – 11:32 a.m.)	11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So it's not carried over from subsequent years, it's a budget based on that year and what we expect the vacancies to be, and so that's why you see the 40 there, right. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And this is in '13, the footnote there. MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I was talking about '17, but '16. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, all right. So in terms of—I'm going
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Q. And maybe if we—actually, we're close to eleven. Maybe I can probably break here and I bring to another slide that might help us get that. MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. CHAIR: Q. Thank you. (OFF RECORD – 10:59 A.M.) (RESUME – 11:32 a.m.) CHAIR:	11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So it's not carried over from subsequent years, it's a budget based on that year and what we expect the vacancies to be, and so that's why you see the 40 there, right. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And this is in '13, the footnote there. MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I was talking about '17, but '16. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, all right. So in terms of—I'm going to ask that we pull up separately now, we
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. And maybe if we—actually, we're close to eleven. Maybe I can probably break here and I bring to another slide that might help us get that. MS. DALLEY: A. Sure. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. CHAIR: Q. Thank you. (OFF RECORD – 10:59 A.M.) (RESUME – 11:32 a.m.)	11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So it's not carried over from subsequent years, it's a budget based on that year and what we expect the vacancies to be, and so that's why you see the 40 there, right. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And this is in '13, the footnote there. MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I was talking about '17, but '16. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, all right. So in terms of—I'm going

April	25, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 121		Page 123
	home-based FTEs for 2017. So this RFI, if	1	based FTEs, we looked at 2016, at the end of
2	we go right up to the top, Hydro is asked to	2	2016 we had 826; and then in 2017, we add 35
3	provide a list of the new FTE positions	3	positions, that's the plan, forecast plan.
4	added to Hydro for each of the years 2016 to		MS. DALLEY:
5	2019 test year, and if we scroll down to	5	A. Yes.
6	Table 1, there's a list here for 2016 added,	6	MR. O'BRIEN:
7	and if we scroll down to the next page, it	7	Q. So the forecast, I guess, for the end of
8	appears to be a total number of positions	8	2017 was to be at 861 home-based FTEs, is
9	added in 2016 of 9. Is that FTEs?	9	that fair?
10	MS. DALLEY:	10	MS. DALLEY:
11	A. It's positions, but they're comparable.	11	A. In 2017 the home-based forecast was 866.
12	MR. O'BRIEN:	12	MR. O'BRIEN:
13	Q. Okay, so that's in 2016, and in 2017, if we	13	Q. And that's sort of where I have a bit of a
14	scroll down, we see a total of 35, and is	14	gap between 866 and 861. If I had 826 and
15	that comparable as well?	15	added 35 positions to it, I would have
16	MS. DALLEY:	16	expected it to get to 861.
17	A. I think the FTEs are 36.	17	MS. DALLEY:
18	MR. O'BRIEN:	18	A. So some of them are partials, though.
19	Q. It's 36? Can we scroll it up here? So	19	MR. O'BRIEN:
20	starting at 2017 there, executive leadership	20	Q. Okay.
21	Hydro, vice-president finance services and	21	MS. DALLEY:
22	we scroll down, I think there's a total at	22	A. Right. So you wouldn't have a whole year on
23	the bottom there for a number of positions,	23	some of them. It would depend on when they
24	2017 are 35?	24	were brought onto the system.
25	MS. DALLEY:	25	MR. O'BRIEN:
	Page 122	-	Page 124
1	A. Just give me a second.	1	Q. Would that reduce it or increase it?
2	MR. O'BRIEN:	2	MS. DALLEY:
$\begin{bmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{bmatrix}$	Q. Sure.	$\frac{2}{3}$	A. Well how those positions would be borne out
4	MS. DALLEY:	4	would be in the actual numbers, in the
5	A. Yes, those were the positions that drove the	4 5	actuals, so the forecast may have been and
6	FTEs in that year.	6	we would go into the year, for example, and
7	MR. O'BRIEN:	7	say we need to add, you know, these six
8	Q. Okay. Now, if we started in 2016, I think	8	roles, these six people. Depending on when
9	we talked about having 826 in terms of home-	9	they were actually brought on board, that
10	based FTEs at the end of 2016 and you add	10	would have an impact on actuals, so we may
10	the 35 to that, you come up with 861. I	10	have forecast a certain amount.
11	think that's the figure that's in the test	11	MR. O'BRIEN:
	Ũ		
13	year for 2018. Does that sound right? MS. DALLEY:	13 14	Q. Okay, so if we look at the 2017, actuals that will bear out that?
14		14 15	
15	A. That test year has 846.		MS. DALLEY:
16	MR. O'BRIEN:	16 17	A. Yeah, it would bear out through the actuals.
17	Q. 846? Is that home based?	17	MR. O'BRIEN:
18	MS. DALLEY:	18	Q. All right, so I'll take you to that now in a minute. While up're on this PEL I want to
19	A. Sorry, net FTEs of—well with the settlement.	19 20	minute. While we're on this RFI, I want to
20	MR. O'BRIEN:	20	take you through some of the positions here
21	Q. Oh, I see, okay.	21	or ask you to take me through some of the
22	MS. DALLEY:	22	positions in terms of how it was that Hydro
23	A. So the additional vacancy, right.	23	established it was reasonable to add these
24	MR. O'BRIEN:	24	positions or FTEs in the 2017 year, and the
25	Q. Yeah, but if we're just looking at home- Discoveries Unlimite	25	rationale behind that, and we talked about (709)437-5028 Page 121 - Page 124

	D 125		Dec. 107
	Page 125	1	Page 127
1	the gating-in process and that had come in		put that forward. That was actually a term
2	late 2016, is that accurate?	2	role, so it wasn't a fulltime role, so it
3	MS. DALLEY:	3	was something that we had seen in other
4	A. No, it was earlier in 2016.	4	regulatory teams and so we had some
5	MR. O'BRIEN:	5	familiarity with and so we wanted to, I
6	Q. Earlier in 2016, okay, good. All right, so	6	guess assess whether or not that was an
7	let's scroll up to the beginning of 2016.	7	option for us, and so we did bring that role
8	We've got our executive leadership in Hydro	8	on as a result.
9	and they've all been added into, in that	9	MR. O'BRIEN:
10	year except for finance, is that right, if	10	Q. Okay, and in terms of, so you mentioned
11	we scroll down?	11	quality, I get the impression that the
12	MS. DALLEY:	12	reports that were being done were done by
13	A. Yes, finance would have been 2017.	13	other individuals at different times and you
14	MR. O'BRIEN:	14	sort of brought that together as to one role
15	Q. And I'm satisfied you've given us an	15	to do those reports, is that fair?
16	explanation as to the rationale behind the	16	MS. DALLEY:
17	executive team and the leadership, the	17	A. Yes.
17	executive leadership for financial services,	17	MR. O'BRIEN:
10	that falls into the same rationale of	10	
$\frac{19}{20}$			Q. Okay, and you felt that was better from a
	independent operation of Hydro, from an	20	quality perspective for the organization?
21	executive point of view?	21	MS. DALLEY:
22	MS. DALLEY:	22	A. Well certainly someone that had, you know,
23	A. Yes.	23	skills leaning more towards, again,
24	MR. O'BRIEN:	24	technical writing, you know, be it
25	Q. Okay. So if we scroll down a bit more, the	25	engineers, finance or otherwise.
	Page 126		Page 128
1	Page 126 regulatory affairs and corporate services,	1	Page 128 MR. O'BRIEN:
1 2	6	1 2	-
	regulatory affairs and corporate services,		MR. O'BRIEN:
2	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the	2	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before
2	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of	2 3	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role?
2 3 4 5	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate	2 3 4 5	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY:
2	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY:	$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3\\ 4 \end{vmatrix}$	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were
2 3 4 5 6 7	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward.	2 3 4 5 6 7	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, you would have brought them forward.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time we would have looked for other roles being
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, you would have brought them forward. The technical report specialist, was this a	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time we would have looked for other roles being eliminated, to be able to absorb, so that
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, you would have brought them forward. The technical report specialist, was this a role that was previously filled by somebody	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time we would have looked for other roles being eliminated, to be able to absorb, so that process had started then, so I don't
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, you would have brought them forward. The technical report specialist, was this a role that was previously filled by somebody else within their department?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time we would have looked for other roles being eliminated, to be able to absorb, so that process had started then, so I don't remember the specific discussion around that
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, you would have brought them forward. The technical report specialist, was this a role that was previously filled by somebody else within their department? MS. DALLEY:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time we would have looked for other roles being eliminated, to be able to absorb, so that process had started then, so I don't remember the specific discussion around that one whether or not, I think we had that role
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, you would have brought them forward. The technical report specialist, was this a role that was previously filled by somebody else within their department? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I think it's fair to say that at the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time we would have looked for other roles being eliminated, to be able to absorb, so that process had started then, so I don't remember the specific discussion around that one whether or not, I think we had that role in place for about six months and then we
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, you would have brought them forward. The technical report specialist, was this a role that was previously filled by somebody else within their department? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I think it's fair to say that at the time when we were providing, again what we	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time we would have looked for other roles being eliminated, to be able to absorb, so that process had started then, so I don't remember the specific discussion around that one whether or not, I think we had that role in place for about six months and then we actually moved it into a different role.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, you would have brought them forward. The technical report specialist, was this a role that was previously filled by somebody else within their department? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I think it's fair to say that at the time when we were providing, again what we felt were fairly operational or technical	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time we would have looked for other roles being eliminated, to be able to absorb, so that process had started then, so I don't remember the specific discussion around that one whether or not, I think we had that role in place for about six months and then we actually moved it into a different role.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, you would have brought them forward. The technical report specialist, was this a role that was previously filled by somebody else within their department? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I think it's fair to say that at the time when we were providing, again what we felt were fairly operational or technical reports, that we would have had various	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time we would have looked for other roles being eliminated, to be able to absorb, so that process had started then, so I don't remember the specific discussion around that one whether or not, I think we had that role in place for about six months and then we actually moved it into a different role. (11:42 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, you would have brought them forward. The technical report specialist, was this a role that was previously filled by somebody else within their department? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I think it's fair to say that at the time when we were providing, again what we felt were fairly operational or technical reports, that we would have had various people in the business writing those	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time we would have looked for other roles being eliminated, to be able to absorb, so that process had started then, so I don't remember the specific discussion around that one whether or not, I think we had that role in place for about six months and then we actually moved it into a different role. (11:42 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And can you just follow up with that and let
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, you would have brought them forward. The technical report specialist, was this a role that was previously filled by somebody else within their department? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I think it's fair to say that at the time when we were providing, again what we felt were fairly operational or technical reports, that we would have had various people in the business writing those reports, creating them, investigating them	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time we would have looked for other roles being eliminated, to be able to absorb, so that process had started then, so I don't remember the specific discussion around that one whether or not, I think we had that role in place for about six months and then we actually moved it into a different role. (11:42 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And can you just follow up with that and let me know whether or not there were any other
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, you would have brought them forward. The technical report specialist, was this a role that was previously filled by somebody else within their department? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I think it's fair to say that at the time when we were providing, again what we felt were fairly operational or technical reports, that we would have had various people in the business writing those reports, creating them, investigating them and putting them together. We assess from a	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time we would have looked for other roles being eliminated, to be able to absorb, so that process had started then, so I don't remember the specific discussion around that one whether or not, I think we had that role in place for about six months and then we actually moved it into a different role. (11:42 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And can you just follow up with that and let me know whether or not there were any other roles eliminated as a result of that
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, you would have brought them forward. The technical report specialist, was this a role that was previously filled by somebody else within their department? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I think it's fair to say that at the time when we were providing, again what we felt were fairly operational or technical reports, that we would have had various people in the business writing those reports, creating them, investigating them and putting them together. We assess from a quality perspective that we had a choice to	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time we would have looked for other roles being eliminated, to be able to absorb, so that process had started then, so I don't remember the specific discussion around that one whether or not, I think we had that role in place for about six months and then we actually moved it into a different role. (11:42 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And can you just follow up with that and let me know whether or not there were any other roles eliminated as a result of that position.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, you would have brought them forward. The technical report specialist, was this a role that was previously filled by somebody else within their department? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I think it's fair to say that at the time when we were providing, again what we felt were fairly operational or technical reports, that we would have had various people in the business writing those reports, creating them, investigating them and putting them together. We assess from a quality perspective that we had a choice to either bring, you know, the skills and	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time we would have looked for other roles being eliminated, to be able to absorb, so that process had started then, so I don't remember the specific discussion around that one whether or not, I think we had that role in place for about six months and then we actually moved it into a different role. (11:42 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And can you just follow up with that and let me know whether or not there were any other roles eliminated as a result of that position. MS. DALLEY:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, you would have brought them forward. The technical report specialist, was this a role that was previously filled by somebody else within their department? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I think it's fair to say that at the time when we were providing, again what we felt were fairly operational or technical reports, that we would have had various people in the business writing those reports, creating them, investigating them and putting them together. We assess from a quality perspective that we had a choice to either bring, you know, the skills and abilities and structure off of everyone that	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time we would have looked for other roles being eliminated, to be able to absorb, so that process had started then, so I don't remember the specific discussion around that one whether or not, I think we had that role in place for about six months and then we actually moved it into a different role. (11:42 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And can you just follow up with that and let me know whether or not there were any other roles eliminated as a result of that position. MS. DALLEY: A. I can see if we have records that would be
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	regulatory affairs and corporate services, those two positions, would you have been the one to choose those positions and sort of decide whether or not they were appropriate for adding in 2017? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I would have brought them forward. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, you would have brought them forward. The technical report specialist, was this a role that was previously filled by somebody else within their department? MS. DALLEY: A. Yeah, I think it's fair to say that at the time when we were providing, again what we felt were fairly operational or technical reports, that we would have had various people in the business writing those reports, creating them, investigating them and putting them together. We assess from a quality perspective that we had a choice to either bring, you know, the skills and	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost analysis done before adding that particular role? MS. DALLEY: A. I can't recall specifically in back, but whether or not we had other roles that were being, again because generally in those sessions and particularly around that time we would have looked for other roles being eliminated, to be able to absorb, so that process had started then, so I don't remember the specific discussion around that one whether or not, I think we had that role in place for about six months and then we actually moved it into a different role. (11:42 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And can you just follow up with that and let me know whether or not there were any other roles eliminated as a result of that position. MS. DALLEY:

					NE Hydro 2017 ORT
		Page 129			Page 131
1	Q.	Okay, all right.	1	Q.	And is that as a result of any cost analysis
2	MS. GLYNN:		2		that Hydro has looked at?
3	Q.	We'll note that as an undertaking.	3	MS. DALLEY	Y:
4	MR. O'BRIEN	N:	4	А.	I think it's a combination of costs and to
5	Q.	And how about the regulatory project	5		be fair, process improvement and quality, so
6	C.	manager, was this a position that had been	6		those were the drivers.
7		previously performed by other individuals or		MR. O'BRIE	
8		is this a new position?	8	Q.	In terms of other positions that we see
9	MS. DALLEY		9	Q٠	here, say for production or engineering
10	A.	Yes, that was something that the regulatory	10		services and in the other areas, are you
10	л.	council at the time actually was also	10		able to speak to the logic behind the
11		2	11		
		conducting that role and the regulatory			addition of these positions, or is it better
13		council role is currently vacant, but when	13	MC DALLEY	I take that up with the VPs –
14		we constructed that role, we had that as a	14	MS. DALLEY	
15		council role, but also more of an	15	A.	It's better for the recusant executives to
16		administrative role and what was borne	16		speak to them, so –
17		through 2017 was that that was, it was too	17	MR. O'BRIE	
18		much workload for that role, so we've	18	Q.	Can you say on a higher level whether a cost
19		subsequently taken essentially those two	19		benefit analysis would have been done for
20		roles that are there and we have a role now	20		the adding of each of these roles?
21		which is regulatory compliance, so we've	21	MS. DALLEY	
22		merged those roles into one to allow the	22	А.	Some of them were and the context was around
23		regulatory council the appropriate focus.	23		reorganization, so they would have been done
24	MR. O'BRIEN	N:	24		in the context of that, and the individual,
25	Q.	Did you say the regulatory council role is	25		anything that was outside of that would have
		Page 130			Page 132
1		Page 130 currently vacant?	1		Page 132 had you know business reasons for them
1	MS DALLEY	currently vacant?	1		had, you know, business reasons for them
2	MS. DALLEY	currently vacant?		MR O'BRIE	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward.
2 3	A.	currently vacant? <i>Y</i> : Yes, it is.	1 2 3 4	MR. O'BRIE	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN:
2 3 4	A. MR. O'BRIEI	currently vacant?		MR. O'BRIE Q.	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons
2 3 4 5	A.	currently vacant? Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which	3 4 5	Q.	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved.
2 3 4 5 6	A. MR. O'BRIEI Q.	currently vacant? ?: Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again?	3 4 5 6	Q. MS. DALLE	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. Y:
2 3 4 5 6 7	A. MR. O'BRIEI Q. MS. DALLEY	currently vacant? Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? Y:	3 4 5 6 7	Q. MS. DALLE A.	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. Y: Yes.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	A. MR. O'BRIEI Q.	currently vacant? Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? Y: So the regulatory project manager is a	3 4 5 6 7 8	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. IY: Yes. EN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	A. MR. O'BRIEI Q. MS. DALLEY	currently vacant? Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? Y: So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. MS. DALLE A.	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. IY: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	A. MR. O'BRIEI Q. MS. DALLEY	currently vacant? Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? X: So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate Application, so it's short-term assistance.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q.	 had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. EY: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be Ms. Williams, is that right?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	A. MR. O'BRIEI Q. MS. DALLEY	currently vacant? Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? Z: So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate Application, so it's short-term assistance. The technical report specialist role and the	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. Y: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be Ms. Williams, is that right? Y:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	A. MR. O'BRIEI Q. MS. DALLEY	currently vacant? Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? Y: So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate Application, so it's short-term assistance. The technical report specialist role and the role that the regulatory project manager are	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A.	 had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. Y: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be Ms. Williams, is that right? Y: Yes.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	A. MR. O'BRIEI Q. MS. DALLEY	currently vacant? Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? C: So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate Application, so it's short-term assistance. The technical report specialist role and the role that the regulatory project manager are performing are now being coalesced into a	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE	 had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. EY: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be Ms. Williams, is that right? EY: Yes. EN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	A. MR. O'BRIEL Q. MS. DALLEY A.	currently vacant? Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? C: So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate Application, so it's short-term assistance. The technical report specialist role and the role that the regulatory project manager are performing are now being coalesced into a regulatory compliance role.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q.	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. Y: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be Ms. Williams, is that right? Y: Yes. EN: And engineering services –
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	A. MR. O'BRIED Q. MS. DALLEY A.	currently vacant? (: Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? (: So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate Application, so it's short-term assistance. The technical report specialist role and the role that the regulatory project manager are performing are now being coalesced into a regulatory compliance role. N:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. Y: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be Ms. Williams, is that right? Y: Yes. EN: And engineering services – Y:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	A. MR. O'BRIEL Q. MS. DALLEY A.	currently vacant? Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? Y: So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate Application, so it's short-term assistance. The technical report specialist role and the role that the regulatory project manager are performing are now being coalesced into a regulatory compliance role. N: So these two positions that we have here are	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q.	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. Y: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be Ms. Williams, is that right? Y: Yes. EN: And engineering services – Y: And engineering, Mr. Gardiner; and finance,
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	A. MR. O'BRIED Q. MS. DALLEY A.	currently vacant? (: Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? (: So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate Application, so it's short-term assistance. The technical report specialist role and the role that the regulatory project manager are performing are now being coalesced into a regulatory compliance role. N:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. Y: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be Ms. Williams, is that right? Y: Yes. EN: And engineering services – Y:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	A. MR. O'BRIED Q. MS. DALLEY A.	currently vacant? Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? Y: So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate Application, so it's short-term assistance. The technical report specialist role and the role that the regulatory project manager are performing are now being coalesced into a regulatory compliance role. N: So these two positions that we have here are now being merged?	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. Y: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be Ms. Williams, is that right? Y: Yes. EN: And engineering services – Y: And engineering, Mr. Gardiner; and finance, Ms. Hutchens.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	A. MR. O'BRIEL Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEL Q.	currently vacant? Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? Y: So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate Application, so it's short-term assistance. The technical report specialist role and the role that the regulatory project manager are performing are now being coalesced into a regulatory compliance role. N: So these two positions that we have here are now being merged?	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A.	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. Y: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be Ms. Williams, is that right? Y: Yes. EN: And engineering services – Y: And engineering, Mr. Gardiner; and finance, Ms. Hutchens.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	A. MR. O'BRIED Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIED Q. MS. DALLEY	currently vacant? <i>Y</i> : Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? <i>X</i> : So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate Application, so it's short-term assistance. The technical report specialist role and the role that the regulatory project manager are performing are now being coalesced into a regulatory compliance role. N: So these two positions that we have here are now being merged? <i>X</i> :	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE A. MS. DALLE A.	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. Y: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be Ms. Williams, is that right? Y: Yes. EN: And engineering services – Y: And engineering, Mr. Gardiner; and finance, Ms. Hutchens. EN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	A. MR. O'BRIED Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIED Q. MS. DALLEY	currently vacant? Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? Y: So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate Application, so it's short-term assistance. The technical report specialist role and the role that the regulatory project manager are performing are now being coalesced into a regulatory compliance role. N: So these two positions that we have here are now being merged? Y: I think that's a fair assessment of it. It's not just those roles, but yes.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE A. MS. DALLE A.	 had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. EY: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be Ms. Williams, is that right? EN: And engineering services – EN: And engineering, Mr. Gardiner; and finance, Ms. Hutchens. EN: Okay. In terms of all of these roles in
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	A. MR. O'BRIEI Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEI Q. MS. DALLEY A.	currently vacant? <i>Y</i> : Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? <i>X</i> : So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate Application, so it's short-term assistance. The technical report specialist role and the role that the regulatory project manager are performing are now being coalesced into a regulatory compliance role. N: So these two positions that we have here are now being merged? <i>X</i> : I think that's a fair assessment of it. It's not just those roles, but yes. N:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE A. MS. DALLE A.	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. Y: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be Ms. Williams, is that right? Y: Yes. EN: And engineering services – Y: And engineering, Mr. Gardiner; and finance, Ms. Hutchens. EN: Okay. In terms of all of these roles in 2017, have they all been filled? Were they all filled in 2017?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A. MR. O'BRIEI Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEI Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEI Q.	currently vacant? Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? Y: So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate Application, so it's short-term assistance. The technical report specialist role and the role that the regulatory project manager are performing are now being coalesced into a regulatory compliance role. N: So these two positions that we have here are now being merged? Y: I think that's a fair assessment of it. It's not just those roles, but yes. N: Okay.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MS. DALLE A. MS. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. Y: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be Ms. Williams, is that right? Y: Yes. EN: And engineering services – Y: And engineering, Mr. Gardiner; and finance, Ms. Hutchens. EN: Okay. In terms of all of these roles in 2017, have they all been filled? Were they all filled in 2017? Y:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	A. MR. O'BRIEU Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEU Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEU Q. MS. DALLEY	currently vacant? Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? Y: So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate Application, so it's short-term assistance. The technical report specialist role and the role that the regulatory project manager are performing are now being coalesced into a regulatory compliance role. N: So these two positions that we have here are now being merged? Y: I think that's a fair assessment of it. It's not just those roles, but yes. N: Okay. Y:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MS. O'BRIE Q.	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. Y: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be Ms. Williams, is that right? Y: Yes. EN: And engineering services – Y: And engineering, Mr. Gardiner; and finance, Ms. Hutchens. EN: Okay. In terms of all of these roles in 2017, have they all been filled? Were they all filled in 2017? Y: No, they were not. Some have subsequently
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A. MR. O'BRIEI Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEI Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEI Q.	currently vacant? (: Yes, it is. N: So the merger is with respect to which positions again? (: So the regulatory project manager is a temporary role through the General Rate Application, so it's short-term assistance. The technical report specialist role and the role that the regulatory project manager are performing are now being coalesced into a regulatory compliance role. N: So these two positions that we have here are now being merged? (: I think that's a fair assessment of it. It's not just those roles, but yes. N: Okay. (: Essentially these are temporary roles.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. MS. DALLE A. MR. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE A. MS. DALLE A. MS. O'BRIE Q. MS. DALLE	had, you know, business reasons for them being brought forward. EN: Okay, so I can take up the business reasons with the individuals involved. Y: Yes. EN: Okay. And so for production, that would be Ms. Williams, is that right? Y: Yes. EN: And engineering services – Y: And engineering, Mr. Gardiner; and finance, Ms. Hutchens. EN: Okay. In terms of all of these roles in 2017, have they all been filled? Were they all filled in 2017? Y:

	Page 133		Page 135
1	MR. O'BRIEN:	1	scroll over, when I look through Table 2, so
2	Q. Okay, and are you able to look at it, at the	2	there's a number of positions there that
$\frac{2}{3}$	screen there, and go through and tell me	$\frac{2}{3}$	were traded off or eliminated from 2015 to
	which ones were filled and which ones were	-	2019 test year. There also seems to be
			5
5	not, or can you give me an undertaking to	5	positions that are added and increased in
6	look at it?	6	that timeframe that don't show up on PUB-33.
7	MS. DALLEY:	7	Can you tell me whether or not those were
8	A. Whether some are vacant today or there's	8	added in 2015, 2018—or when they might have
9	changes, the individual executives	9	been added?
10	accountable can certainly take you through	10	MS. DALLEY:
11	that.	11	A. I don't have that handy, but yes, we would
12	MR. O'BRIEN:	12	know that.
13	Q. Okay. Will that flush its way through the	13	(11:49 a.m UNDERTAKING)
14	actuals really in 2017, we'll see a little	14	MR. O'BRIEN:
15	bit of that when we see the actual figure of	15	
	•		
16	FTEs for 2017?	16	MS. DALLEY:
17	MS. DALLEY:	17	A. Uh-hm.
18	A. I think we have seen the figures for 2017.	18	MR O'BRIEN:
19	MR. O'BRIEN:	19	Q. And are any of those positions that are
20	Q. And that's why I'm wondering if that will	20	added, under Table 3, do they fall under
21	show up essentially when we look at those	21	your purview?
22	actuals.	22	MS. DALLEY:
23	MS. DALLEY:	23	A. The environmental coordinator would.
24	A. Yes, yeah.	24	MR. O'BRIEN:
25	(11:48 a.m UNDERTAKING)	25	Q. Okay, and is that a position that was
	Page 134		Page 136
1	Page 134 MR. O'BRIEN:	1	Page 136 recently added, do you recall?
1 2	MR. O'BRIEN:		recently added, do you recall?
2	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could	2	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY:
2 3	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is	2 3	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have
2 3 4	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so	2 3 4	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016.
2 3 4 5	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm	2 3 4 5	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an	2 3 4 5 6	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016?
2 3 4 5 6 7	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include	2 3 4 5 6 7	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY: A. Absolutely.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in Hydro, but it was part of the transition of
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in Hydro, but it was part of the transition of the environmental services group.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, thanks.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in Hydro, but it was part of the transition of the environmental services group. (11:50 a.m UNDERTAKING)
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, thanks. MS. GLYNN:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in Hydro, but it was part of the transition of the environmental services group. (11:50 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, thanks. MS. GLYNN: Q. Noted on the record. 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in Hydro, but it was part of the transition of the environmental services group. (11:50 a.m UNDERTAKING)
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, thanks. MS. GLYNN:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in Hydro, but it was part of the transition of the environmental services group. (11:50 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, thanks. MS. GLYNN: Q. Noted on the record. 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in Hydro, but it was part of the transition of the environmental services group. (11:50 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, and can you find out for me, just to confirm that, so with all of those positions
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, thanks. MS. GLYNN: Q. Noted on the record. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And could we turn to PUB-NLH-59, and there 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in Hydro, but it was part of the transition of the environmental services group. (11:50 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, and can you find out for me, just to
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, thanks. MS. GLYNN: Q. Noted on the record. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And could we turn to PUB-NLH-59, and there appears to be on the next page—sorry, at the 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in Hydro, but it was part of the transition of the environmental services group. (11:50 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, and can you find out for me, just to confirm that, so with all of those positions when they were added? MS. DALLEY:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, thanks. MS. GLYNN: Q. Noted on the record. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And could we turn to PUB-NLH-59, and there appears to be on the next page—sorry, at the bottom of the first page, "In addition to 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in Hydro, but it was part of the transition of the environmental services group. (11:50 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, and can you find out for me, just to confirm that, so with all of those positions when they were added? MS. DALLEY: A. Oh, sure.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, thanks. MS. GLYNN: Q. Noted on the record. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And could we turn to PUB-NLH-59, and there appears to be on the next page—sorry, at the bottom of the first page, "In addition to the position listings provided in Hydro's 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in Hydro, but it was part of the transition of the environmental services group. (11:50 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, and can you find out for me, just to confirm that, so with all of those positions when they were added? MS. DALLEY: A. Oh, sure. MS. GLYNN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, thanks. MS. GLYNN: Q. Noted on the record. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And could we turn to PUB-NLH-59, and there appears to be on the next page—sorry, at the bottom of the first page, "In addition to the position listings provided in Hydro's response to PUB-NLH-33"—so that's what we 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in Hydro, but it was part of the transition of the environmental services group. (11:50 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, and can you find out for me, just to confirm that, so with all of those positions when they were added? MS. DALLEY: A. Oh, sure. MS. GLYNN: Q. We will note both those undertakings on the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, thanks. MS. GLYNN: Q. Noted on the record. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And could we turn to PUB-NLH-59, and there appears to be on the next page—sorry, at the bottom of the first page, "In addition to the position listings provided in Hydro's response to PUB-NLH-33"—so that's what we were looking at earlier, the 35 positions in 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in Hydro, but it was part of the transition of the environmental services group. (11:50 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, and can you find out for me, just to confirm that, so with all of those positions when they were added? MS. DALLEY: A. Oh, sure. MS. GLYNN: Q. We will note both those undertakings on the record.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, thanks. MS. GLYNN: Q. Noted on the record. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And could we turn to PUB-NLH-59, and there appears to be on the next page—sorry, at the bottom of the first page, "In addition to the position listings provided in Hydro's response to PUB-NLH-33"—so that's what we were looking at earlier, the 35 positions in 2017, "the balance of the list of positions 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in Hydro, but it was part of the transition of the environmental services group. (11:50 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, and can you find out for me, just to confirm that, so with all of those positions when they were added? MS. DALLEY: A. Oh, sure. MS. GLYNN: Q. We will note both those undertakings on the record. MR. YOUNG:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, thanks. MS. GLYNN: Q. Noted on the record. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And could we turn to PUB-NLH-59, and there appears to be on the next page—sorry, at the bottom of the first page, "In addition to the position listings provided in Hydro's response to PUB-NLH-33"—so that's what we were looking at earlier, the 35 positions in 2017, "the balance of the list of positions that showed a net changes in FTEs from the 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in Hydro, but it was part of the transition of the environmental services group. (11:50 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, and can you find out for me, just to confirm that, so with all of those positions when they were added? MS. DALLEY: A. Oh, sure. MS. GLYNN: Q. We will note both those undertakings on the record. MR. YOUNG: Q. Just so I understand, Mr. O'Brien, those
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I wonder before we leave this if we could pull up NP-NLH-11, Revision 1. So this is net FTEs for each functional area, so there's a table there, Table 1. And I'm wondering whether or not I could ask for an undertaking to update that table to include 2017 actuals? MS. DALLEY: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, thanks. MS. GLYNN: Q. Noted on the record. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And could we turn to PUB-NLH-59, and there appears to be on the next page—sorry, at the bottom of the first page, "In addition to the position listings provided in Hydro's response to PUB-NLH-33"—so that's what we were looking at earlier, the 35 positions in 2017, "the balance of the list of positions 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	recently added, do you recall? MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is that position would have transferred over in 2016. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2016? MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, or whether it was transferred or sitting in—I don't think it was sitting in Hydro, but it was part of the transition of the environmental services group. (11:50 a.m UNDERTAKING) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, and can you find out for me, just to confirm that, so with all of those positions when they were added? MS. DALLEY: A. Oh, sure. MS. GLYNN: Q. We will note both those undertakings on the record. MR. YOUNG:

	25, 2010				
		Page 137	4		Page 139
	MR. O'BRIE		l		recent past.
2	Q.	Yeah, I mean, it looks as though they	2	MR. O'BRIE	
3		weren't-there's a previous indication that	3	Q.	The most recent pass, yes. And could we
4		they weren't included in PUB-33 as positions	4		pull up NP-NLH-10. I just wanted to confirm
5		added in 2016 or 2017, so I just wanted to	5		the figures here for—so for the net FTEs
6		know when they were added.	6		2018 and 2019, we see 852 and 850, correct?
7	MR. YOUNC		7		And we have a forecast in 2017 of net FTEs
8	Q.	Okay, thank you.	8		of 860, and we talked earlier about the
9	MR. O'BRIE		9		actuals from 2017 and maybe we can have a
10	Q.	And the environmental coordinator, in terms	10		quick look at that, and that would be in
11	بر .	of the rationale behind bringing that	11		Information 1, page 8 of, I think it's 118,
12		position in or transferring that in, can you	12		Table 3-1. Right, so we see the forecast
12		give me any background on that?	12		there of 860 and the actuals of 815, and is
13	MS. DALLE	0 0	13 14		
					that a result of some of the positions we
15	А.	My recollection at the time because we had	15		talked about earlier, the 35 positions not
16		some fairly detailed discussion about it,	16		being filled or being filled to a smaller
17		because if I recall, the plan or the request	17		degree in terms of not an overall, not a
18		was to actually have two environmental	18		full year?
19		coordinators as part of the transfer and	19	MS. DALLEY	
20		through discussions with the manager of	20	А.	The primary driver of the net FTEs in 2017
21		environment we were able to reduce that to	21		was actually the intercompany transfers in
22		one and that was based on and justified with	22		and out, so you would have had less coming
23		they typically do very in-depth resource	23		in as a result of the reorganization and the
24		charts through the year of the projects and	24		movement of individuals over, and we had
25		what resources are required, so that's what	25		significant charges out primarily a result
		Page 138			Page 140
1		would have driven that.	1		of the work being done on, I'll say Muskrat
2	MR. O'BRIE		2		Falls or integration, so we would have had
$\frac{2}{3}$	Q.	And would that have been based on sort of a	3		resources doing work on, you know, Soldiers
4	χ.	cost benefit analysis of what was required,	4		Pond and the integration of those assets,
5		versus justifying –	5		transmission assets. I can't remember the
· ·	MS. DALLE		6		number off the top of my head, but it's
$\begin{vmatrix} 6 \\ 7 \end{vmatrix}$	A.	It would have been based on the	0		
0	А.		0		either 27 or 32 equivalent FTEs that were
8		environmental work that needed to be	8		working on those projects through the year,
9		completed and then resources required to	9		so that work now we expect to not be as
10		complete much of that work is compliance	10		predominant, so that's where you would have
11		focussed.	11		seen the difference in 2018. And again, as
12	MR. O'BRIE		12		we spoke about earlier, the adjustments we
13	Q.	So this individual or this FTE came from	13		made which I don't think the settlement
14		Nalcor, is that right?	14		discussions are reflected in here, but we
15	MS. DALLE	Y:	15		would have seen a reduction of 15 off of
16	A.	At the time, yes, I think the enviro-again,	16		that, so I don't know the exact math, Mr.
17		that's something I can confirm, but the	17		O'Brien, but you would have seen 852 less 15
18		resources would have been sitting in that	18		and then whatever the intercompany in and
19		joint Nalcor team.	19		out is. I don't have that handy, but it's
20	MR. O'BRIE	5	20		significantly less.
21	Q.	And previously I guess the environmental	21	MR. O'BRIEN	
22	χ.	resources were mostly outside of Hydro and	22	Q.	Okay, so the 2017 forecast of 860 was based—
$\begin{vmatrix} 22\\23 \end{vmatrix}$		in Nalcor, is that correct?	22	ب	wasn't based on any administrative fees, but
1/4	MS DALLE	V.	- 24		It was based on in and out of time it's a
24 25	MS. DALLE A.	Y: Yes, that's correct. Well in the most	24 25		it was based on in and out of time, it's a net forecast, so it's based on time in and

	25, 2016		NE Hydro 2017 ORA
1	Page 141	1	Page 143
	out of Nalcor, is that right?		A. PUB-32 shows FTE time charged in and out.
2	MS. DALLEY:	2	MR. O'BRIEN:
3	A. Yes, that's correct.	3	Q. Okay, there you go.
4	MR. O'BRIEN:	4	MS. DALLEY:
5	Q. And the 815 is based on time in and out of	ř 5	A. So I understand what you're looking for is
6	Nalcor as well?	6	put the administration fees in that, so you
7	MS. DALLEY:	7	can see the –
8	A. Yeah, it's consistent across, net FTEs are	8	MR. O'BRIEN:
9	net of in and out.	9	Q. Sure.
10	MR. O'BRIEN:	10	MS. DALLEY:
11	Q. Okay, and so is it that the difference of 45	1	A. Is that what you're asking for?
12	is associated with that time going out to	12	MR. O'BRIEN:
13	Nalcor?	13	Q. No, no, I'm asking to see the time in and
13	MS. DALLEY:	13	out, so I want the actual from 2017 updated,
14	A. In between '17 forecast and '17 actuals?	14	can we get that table updated?
	MR. O'BRIEN:		MS. DALLEY:
16		16	
17	Q. Yes.	17	A. Oh, the updated, yes.
18	MS. DALLEY:	18	MS. GLYNN:
19	A. That's the primary driver, but there would		Q. I have to confess that I'm a little bit
20	be some, as we talked about, timing of	20	unclear on what the undertaking is now.
21	onboarding some of those resources, but	21	(11:57 a.m UNDERTAKING)
22	yeah, fundamentally that's the biggest	22	MR. O'BRIEN:
23	driver.	23	Q. So what we're going to ask for, the
24		24	undertaking is to have Table 31 in PUB-32
25	MR. O'BRIEN:	25	updated to show 2017 actuals, so we'll see
	Page 142		Page 144
1	Q. Are you able to find out for me sort of how	1	the time in and out of Nalcor for that.
2	much of it was associated with the timing in	2	MS. GLYNN:
3	and out of Nalcor, like an actual, the	3	Q. Okay, that's noted on the record.
4		1	
	actual time in and out of Nalcor for 2017?	4	MR. O'BRIEN:
5	MS. DALLEY:	5	Q. Okay, thank you.
5 6	MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I	5 6	Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON:
5 6 7	MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much	5 6 7	Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of
5 6 7 8	MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by	5 6 7 8	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking
5 6 7 8 9	MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of.	5 6 7 8 9	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that
5 6 7 8 9 10	MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of. MR. O'BRIEN:	5 6 7 8 9 10	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that going to be two separate undertakings or the
5 6 7 8 9 10 11	MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I know one of the tables we	5 6 7 8 9 10 11	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that going to be two separate undertakings or the one? It was in relation to Table 2 and
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I know one of the tables we looked at earlier shows, if we look at NP-	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that going to be two separate undertakings or the one? It was in relation to Table 2 and Table 3, are we going to treat those as two
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I know one of the tables we looked at earlier shows, if we look at NP-NLH-10 Revision 1, we do see that there's 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that going to be two separate undertakings or the one? It was in relation to Table 2 and Table 3, are we going to treat those as two separate undertakings or just as one?
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I know one of the tables we looked at earlier shows, if we look at NP- NLH-10 Revision 1, we do see that there's times in and out of Nalcor shown and I	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that going to be two separate undertakings or the one? It was in relation to Table 2 and Table 3, are we going to treat those as two separate undertakings or just as one? MS. GLYNN:
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I know one of the tables we looked at earlier shows, if we look at NP-NLH-10 Revision 1, we do see that there's times in and out of Nalcor shown and I wonder can you update that to include 2017 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that going to be two separate undertakings or the one? It was in relation to Table 2 and Table 3, are we going to treat those as two separate undertakings or just as one? MS. GLYNN: Q. So it's the same request, it was just for
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I know one of the tables we looked at earlier shows, if we look at NP-NLH-10 Revision 1, we do see that there's times in and out of Nalcor shown and I wonder can you update that to include 2017 actuals so that would show then what FTEs 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that going to be two separate undertakings or the one? It was in relation to Table 2 and Table 3, are we going to treat those as two separate undertakings or just as one? MS. GLYNN: Q. So it's the same request, it was just for the different positions, so we can use that
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I know one of the tables we looked at earlier shows, if we look at NP-NLH-10 Revision 1, we do see that there's times in and out of Nalcor shown and I wonder can you update that to include 2017 actuals so that would show then what FTEs associated with administrative fees, what 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that going to be two separate undertakings or the one? It was in relation to Table 2 and Table 3, are we going to treat those as two separate undertakings or just as one? MS. GLYNN: Q. So it's the same request, it was just for the different positions, so we can use that as one undertaking.
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I know one of the tables we looked at earlier shows, if we look at NP-NLH-10 Revision 1, we do see that there's times in and out of Nalcor shown and I wonder can you update that to include 2017 actuals so that would show then what FTEs associated with administrative fees, what associated with-actually, that's not the one 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that going to be two separate undertakings or the one? It was in relation to Table 2 and Table 3, are we going to treat those as two separate undertakings or just as one? MS. GLYNN: Q. So it's the same request, it was just for the different positions, so we can use that as one undertaking. MR. O'BRIEN:
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I know one of the tables we looked at earlier shows, if we look at NP-NLH-10 Revision 1, we do see that there's times in and out of Nalcor shown and I wonder can you update that to include 2017 actuals so that would show then what FTEs associated with administrative fees, what associated with—actually, that's not the one with the in and out. 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that going to be two separate undertakings or the one? It was in relation to Table 2 and Table 3, are we going to treat those as two separate undertakings or just as one? MS. GLYNN: Q. So it's the same request, it was just for the different positions, so we can use that as one undertaking. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, sure. So in terms of 2018 test year,
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I know one of the tables we looked at earlier shows, if we look at NP-NLH-10 Revision 1, we do see that there's times in and out of Nalcor shown and I wonder can you update that to include 2017 actuals so that would show then what FTEs associated with administrative fees, what associated with—actually, that's not the one with the in and out. 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that going to be two separate undertakings or the one? It was in relation to Table 2 and Table 3, are we going to treat those as two separate undertakings or just as one? MS. GLYNN: Q. So it's the same request, it was just for the different positions, so we can use that as one undertaking. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, sure. So in terms of 2018 test year, is Hydro tracking towards 852 in terms of
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I know one of the tables we looked at earlier shows, if we look at NP-NLH-10 Revision 1, we do see that there's times in and out of Nalcor shown and I wonder can you update that to include 2017 actuals so that would show then what FTEs associated with administrative fees, what associated with administrative fees, what associated with much actually, that's not the one with the in and out. MS. DALLEY: A. I was going to say, yeah. 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that going to be two separate undertakings or the one? It was in relation to Table 2 and Table 3, are we going to treat those as two separate undertakings or just as one? MS. GLYNN: Q. So it's the same request, it was just for the different positions, so we can use that as one undertaking. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, sure. So in terms of 2018 test year, is Hydro tracking towards 852 in terms of net FTEs?
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I know one of the tables we looked at earlier shows, if we look at NP-NLH-10 Revision 1, we do see that there's times in and out of Nalcor shown and I wonder can you update that to include 2017 actuals so that would show then what FTEs associated with administrative fees, what associated with—actually, that's not the one with the in and out. 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that going to be two separate undertakings or the one? It was in relation to Table 2 and Table 3, are we going to treat those as two separate undertakings or just as one? MS. GLYNN: Q. So it's the same request, it was just for the different positions, so we can use that as one undertaking. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, sure. So in terms of 2018 test year, is Hydro tracking towards 852 in terms of
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I know one of the tables we looked at earlier shows, if we look at NP-NLH-10 Revision 1, we do see that there's times in and out of Nalcor shown and I wonder can you update that to include 2017 actuals so that would show then what FTEs associated with administrative fees, what associated with administrative fees, what associated with much actually, that's not the one with the in and out. MS. DALLEY: A. I was going to say, yeah. 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that going to be two separate undertakings or the one? It was in relation to Table 2 and Table 3, are we going to treat those as two separate undertakings or just as one? MS. GLYNN: Q. So it's the same request, it was just for the different positions, so we can use that as one undertaking. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, sure. So in terms of 2018 test year, is Hydro tracking towards 852 in terms of net FTEs?
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I know one of the tables we looked at earlier shows, if we look at NP-NLH-10 Revision 1, we do see that there's times in and out of Nalcor shown and I wonder can you update that to include 2017 actuals so that would show then what FTEs associated with administrative fees, what associated with—actually, that's not the one with the in and out. MS. DALLEY: A. I was going to say, yeah. 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that going to be two separate undertakings or the one? It was in relation to Table 2 and Table 3, are we going to treat those as two separate undertakings or just as one? MS. GLYNN: Q. So it's the same request, it was just for the different positions, so we can use that as one undertaking. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, sure. So in terms of 2018 test year, is Hydro tracking towards 852 in terms of net FTEs? MS. DALLEY:
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 MS. DALLEY: A. I think we can check on that, certainly I don't see any reason why not, but how much detail is required to do that position by position, I'm just not aware of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And I know one of the tables we looked at earlier shows, if we look at NP-NLH-10 Revision 1, we do see that there's times in and out of Nalcor shown and I wonder can you update that to include 2017 actuals so that would show then what FTEs associated with administrative fees, what associated with administrative fees, what associated with much actually, that's not the one with the in and out. MS. DALLEY: A. I was going to say, yeah. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. No, sorry. I think it's 13, is it—or sorry, 	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 Q. Okay, thank you. MR. TEMPLETON: Q. Apologies, Jacqui, just a point of clarification, the previous undertaking which was in respect to PUB-NLH-59, is that going to be two separate undertakings or the one? It was in relation to Table 2 and Table 3, are we going to treat those as two separate undertakings or just as one? MS. GLYNN: Q. So it's the same request, it was just for the different positions, so we can use that as one undertaking. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, sure. So in terms of 2018 test year, is Hydro tracking towards 852 in terms of net FTEs? MS. DALLEY: A. It's early in the year, so I will say that,

r pm	23, 2010				
		Page 145			Page 147
1		time, so you see more impacts coming through	1		for a manager of tax and treasury that when
2		as you go through the year. So as we head	2		we were doing the initial assessment, Ms.
3		later into the year, we will have a better	3		Hutchens had not yet joined the company, and
4		sense of that, but certainly we have the	4		so there were some roles we didn't fill at
5		controls in place to ensure that that's the	5		the time because we felt it was important
6		case and that's our objective.	6		for the vice-president of finance, once that
7	MR. O'BRIE		7		individual was in, to have the ability to
8	Q.	And so the 35 positions that we looked at	8		assess the need and shape the team the way
9		previously, are they intended to be-the ones	9		that that individual felt the team should be
10		that haven't been filled, are they intended	10		shaped to deliver on what was required, so
11		to be filled in 2018?	11		that's an example of a role that wasn't
12	MS. DALLE	Y:	12		filled and has subsequently been eliminated.
13	A.	You'd have to ask the individuals there as	13	MR. O'BRIE	N:
14		we talked about on that list, but what I	14	Q.	Okay, so anything that wasn't filled out of
15		would say is they cannot be filled and cause	15		that list would have been eliminated?
16		an increase in the complement, so if someone	16	MS. DALLEY	Y:
17		has a position that they require, when	17	А.	Well it would have contributed to the
18		positions are eliminated, they go into, only	18		vacancy, but it's either been, the role, and
19		way to describe it is a central pool. So	19		again, it's positions versus FTEs, but that
20		they go into a central pool and from a FTE	20		position is no longer there.
21		perspective, it's eliminated, not really a	21	MR. O'BRIE	N:
22		pool, it's eliminated, so when a position	22	Q.	Okay, so the FTE still may be necessary?
23		comes back in, if we have the ability to	23	-	And I'm just trying to clarify.
24		trade off and stay flat and it makes	24	MS. DALLE	
25		business sense to have that role, then we	25	A.	No. Yeah, I know. The FTE is removed when
		Page 146			Page 148
1		would do that. A good example that we	1		the position is removed.
2		already talked about was the energy control	2	MR. O'BRIEI	-
3		center operators, my understanding, and Mr.	3	Q.	Right, okay. And I can speak to the
4		LeBlanc could speak to this in more detail,	4		individuals responsible for those. Why
5		but those roles are required, as is a	5		don't we turn to operating costs? We looked
6		reliability and commercial manager within	6		at 2016 and Mr. Haynes gave some evidence on
7		the NLSO, so those are six roles that we've	7		
8					having come on in June of 2016 and Hydro's
9		understood we would have to absorb, and so,	8		having come on in June of 2016 and Hydro's budget for that year had already been
		understood we would have to absorb, and so, as we went through 2017 we identified other	8 9		budget for that year had already been
10		as we went through 2017 we identified other	9		budget for that year had already been produced or I guess that was back in 2015.
10		as we went through 2017 we identified other positions that could be eliminated, and in	9 10		budget for that year had already been produced or I guess that was back in 2015. Did you play a role in the 2016 budget, the
11		as we went through 2017 we identified other positions that could be eliminated, and in early 2018 we eliminated—it's the equivalent	9 10 11	MS. DALLEY	budget for that year had already been produced or I guess that was back in 2015. Did you play a role in the 2016 budget, the initial 2016 budget and when it was put out?
11 12		as we went through 2017 we identified other positions that could be eliminated, and in early 2018 we eliminated—it's the equivalent of, I think probably 13, 14 FTEs to	9 10 11 12	MS. DALLEY	budget for that year had already been produced or I guess that was back in 2015. Did you play a role in the 2016 budget, the initial 2016 budget and when it was put out?
11 12 13		as we went through 2017 we identified other positions that could be eliminated, and in early 2018 we eliminated—it's the equivalent of, I think probably 13, 14 FTEs to essentially enable us to absorb those new	9 10 11 12 13	MS. DALLEY A.	budget for that year had already been produced or I guess that was back in 2015. Did you play a role in the 2016 budget, the initial 2016 budget and when it was put out? I would have for the departments that I
11 12 13 14	MR O'RRIF	as we went through 2017 we identified other positions that could be eliminated, and in early 2018 we eliminated—it's the equivalent of, I think probably 13, 14 FTEs to essentially enable us to absorb those new roles with no net increase.	9 10 11 12 13 14		budget for that year had already been produced or I guess that was back in 2015. Did you play a role in the 2016 budget, the initial 2016 budget and when it was put out? I would have for the departments that I would have had responsibility for at that
11 12 13 14 15	MR. O'BRIE O	as we went through 2017 we identified other positions that could be eliminated, and in early 2018 we eliminated—it's the equivalent of, I think probably 13, 14 FTEs to essentially enable us to absorb those new roles with no net increase. EN:	9 10 11 12 13 14 15		budget for that year had already been produced or I guess that was back in 2015. Did you play a role in the 2016 budget, the initial 2016 budget and when it was put out? I would have for the departments that I would have had responsibility for at that time, so it would have been customer service
11 12 13 14 15 16	MR. O'BRIE Q.	as we went through 2017 we identified other positions that could be eliminated, and in early 2018 we eliminated—it's the equivalent of, I think probably 13, 14 FTEs to essentially enable us to absorb those new roles with no net increase. EN: Okay, so in terms and just so I'm clear, so	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	A.	budget for that year had already been produced or I guess that was back in 2015. Did you play a role in the 2016 budget, the initial 2016 budget and when it was put out? I would have for the departments that I would have had responsibility for at that time, so it would have been customer service and energy efficiency.
11 12 13 14 15 16 17		as we went through 2017 we identified other positions that could be eliminated, and in early 2018 we eliminated—it's the equivalent of, I think probably 13, 14 FTEs to essentially enable us to absorb those new roles with no net increase. EN: Okay, so in terms and just so I'm clear, so in terms of the PUB-33 where we looked at	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	A. MR. O'BRIEI	budget for that year had already been produced or I guess that was back in 2015. Did you play a role in the 2016 budget, the initial 2016 budget and when it was put out? I would have for the departments that I would have had responsibility for at that time, so it would have been customer service and energy efficiency. N:
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18		as we went through 2017 we identified other positions that could be eliminated, and in early 2018 we eliminated—it's the equivalent of, I think probably 13, 14 FTEs to essentially enable us to absorb those new roles with no net increase. EN: Okay, so in terms and just so I'm clear, so in terms of the PUB-33 where we looked at those 35 positions that were intended to be	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	A.	budget for that year had already been produced or I guess that was back in 2015. Did you play a role in the 2016 budget, the initial 2016 budget and when it was put out? I would have for the departments that I would have had responsibility for at that time, so it would have been customer service and energy efficiency. N: And in 2016, I understand that in early 2016
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19		as we went through 2017 we identified other positions that could be eliminated, and in early 2018 we eliminated—it's the equivalent of, I think probably 13, 14 FTEs to essentially enable us to absorb those new roles with no net increase. EN: Okay, so in terms and just so I'm clear, so in terms of the PUB-33 where we looked at those 35 positions that were intended to be added in 2017, some of which may not have	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	A. MR. O'BRIEI	budget for that year had already been produced or I guess that was back in 2015. Did you play a role in the 2016 budget, the initial 2016 budget and when it was put out? I would have for the departments that I would have had responsibility for at that time, so it would have been customer service and energy efficiency. N: And in 2016, I understand that in early 2016 there was some instructions given to
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20		as we went through 2017 we identified other positions that could be eliminated, and in early 2018 we eliminated—it's the equivalent of, I think probably 13, 14 FTEs to essentially enable us to absorb those new roles with no net increase. EN: Okay, so in terms and just so I'm clear, so in terms of the PUB-33 where we looked at those 35 positions that were intended to be added in 2017, some of which may not have been added, is that fair or filled, I should	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	A. MR. O'BRIEI	budget for that year had already been produced or I guess that was back in 2015. Did you play a role in the 2016 budget, the initial 2016 budget and when it was put out? I would have for the departments that I would have had responsibility for at that time, so it would have been customer service and energy efficiency. N: And in 2016, I understand that in early 2016 there was some instructions given to management to try to control cost, some cost
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Q.	as we went through 2017 we identified other positions that could be eliminated, and in early 2018 we eliminated—it's the equivalent of, I think probably 13, 14 FTEs to essentially enable us to absorb those new roles with no net increase. EN: Okay, so in terms and just so I'm clear, so in terms of the PUB-33 where we looked at those 35 positions that were intended to be added in 2017, some of which may not have been added, is that fair or filled, I should say.	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	A. MR. O'BRIEI	budget for that year had already been produced or I guess that was back in 2015. Did you play a role in the 2016 budget, the initial 2016 budget and when it was put out? I would have for the departments that I would have had responsibility for at that time, so it would have been customer service and energy efficiency. N: And in 2016, I understand that in early 2016 there was some instructions given to management to try to control cost, some cost savings on a short-term basis, do you recall
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. MS. DALLE	as we went through 2017 we identified other positions that could be eliminated, and in early 2018 we eliminated—it's the equivalent of, I think probably 13, 14 FTEs to essentially enable us to absorb those new roles with no net increase. EN: Okay, so in terms and just so I'm clear, so in terms of the PUB-33 where we looked at those 35 positions that were intended to be added in 2017, some of which may not have been added, is that fair or filled, I should say. EY:	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A. MR. O'BRIEI	budget for that year had already been produced or I guess that was back in 2015. Did you play a role in the 2016 budget, the initial 2016 budget and when it was put out? I would have for the departments that I would have had responsibility for at that time, so it would have been customer service and energy efficiency. N: And in 2016, I understand that in early 2016 there was some instructions given to management to try to control cost, some cost savings on a short-term basis, do you recall that? Were you party to any discussions in
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Q.	as we went through 2017 we identified other positions that could be eliminated, and in early 2018 we eliminated—it's the equivalent of, I think probably 13, 14 FTEs to essentially enable us to absorb those new roles with no net increase. EN: Okay, so in terms and just so I'm clear, so in terms of the PUB-33 where we looked at those 35 positions that were intended to be added in 2017, some of which may not have been added, is that fair or filled, I should say. EY: I saw one, Mr. O'Brien, yeah, and again,	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	A. MR. O'BRIEI Q.	budget for that year had already been produced or I guess that was back in 2015. Did you play a role in the 2016 budget, the initial 2016 budget and when it was put out? I would have for the departments that I would have had responsibility for at that time, so it would have been customer service and energy efficiency. N: And in 2016, I understand that in early 2016 there was some instructions given to management to try to control cost, some cost savings on a short-term basis, do you recall that? Were you party to any discussions in that regard?
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. MS. DALLE	as we went through 2017 we identified other positions that could be eliminated, and in early 2018 we eliminated—it's the equivalent of, I think probably 13, 14 FTEs to essentially enable us to absorb those new roles with no net increase. EN: Okay, so in terms and just so I'm clear, so in terms of the PUB-33 where we looked at those 35 positions that were intended to be added in 2017, some of which may not have been added, is that fair or filled, I should say. EY:	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A. MR. O'BRIEI	budget for that year had already been produced or I guess that was back in 2015. Did you play a role in the 2016 budget, the initial 2016 budget and when it was put out? I would have for the departments that I would have had responsibility for at that time, so it would have been customer service and energy efficiency. N: And in 2016, I understand that in early 2016 there was some instructions given to management to try to control cost, some cost savings on a short-term basis, do you recall that? Were you party to any discussions in that regard?

r tpm	125, 2010				
		Page 149	4		Page 151
	MR. O'BRI				discussions around this was an immediate
2	Q.	Okay, and what do you recall about it as	2		course correction, if I could say probably a
3		part of the senior leadership, what would	3		slam on the brakes, and that the culture of
4		you told about what you should be doing,	4		cost control and cost management needed to
5		what you should be looking for, that kind of	5		be pushed out to operations to all the
6		thing?	6		service departments and that this was going
7	MS. DALLE		7		to enable that. That was my interpretation
8	A.	Sure. I recall that Mr. MacIsaac had	8		of what was happening, it was going to
9		assumed a role, as I spoke about yesterday,	9		enable that and that we subsequently also
10		I believe, in November of that year. 2015	10		needed to start looking for sustainable
11		actuals were at that time coming through and	11		savings.
12		we had yet to have a decision on the last	12	MR. O'BRIE	N:
13		hearing, so we understood that there was	13	Q.	And I guess that's where I'm going, I mean
14		uncertainty and Mr. MacIsaac felt there was	14		the answer to this particular question about
15		uncertainty heading into the year about	15		targeted reductions in 2016 starts with an
16		whether we were going to be able to recover	16		indication that executive-there was
17		costs at the level that we were expending.	17		direction given by the executive, to
18		And again, I can't speak for Mr. MacIsaac, I	18		management, to identify options to reduce
19		can speak for the messages that I feel that	19		costs in the short term, but I understand
20		I received and heard from Mr. MacIsaac which	20		from what you're saying there was also sort
21		was to go back through the budgets that had	21		of a direction to look at sustainable
22		been set earlier in 2015 and find	22		reductions as well, is that true?
23		substantive savings to bring that budget	23	MS. DALLE	
24		back to a level and to not impact	24	A.	Yes, I think that that was the, for example,
25		reliability at that time, and he made a	25		around some of the process changes that
		Page 150			Page 152
1		number of changes in cuts to travel, cuts to	1		would have started under Mr. MacIsaac and to
2		training, anything that was essentially not	2		be fair to him, he had, you know, four
3		related to keeping maintaining service,	3		months in the role to get himself underneath
4		immediate service to customers was to be	4		a lot of that work, so he would have started
5		eliminated from the budget and the same	5		it and again, as a year of transition, you
6		thing with hiring at the time. So those	6		would have seen a few bumps in the road, you
7		would have been the most predominant things	7		know, as we started, but yes, the executive
8		that I recall. He also made some structural	8		at the time were focussed on trying to enact
9		recommendations around the visibility of	9		and underlie thoughtful long-term savings
10		costs. We talked about, you know, the	10		opportunities.
11		gating-in sessions for management of	11	MR. O'BRIEI	11
12		vacancies, et cetera, but you put some	12	Q.	And is that as you went along, or did you
13		control measures around that to ensure that	13	<u>ب</u>	actually get instructions to do that?
13		there was visibility at this level of what	13		Because the answer to this question seems to
15		was happening.	15		be the instructions were short-term
16	MR. O'BRIE		16		reductions and I just want to clarify.
17	Q.	And can we bring up PUB-NLH-54? While we're	10	MS. DALLEY	
17	Q.	doing that, I just want to follow up just in	17	A.	I think the instructions were short term,
10		terms of the instructions that you received,	10	17.	but I think that, you know, short-term
$\frac{19}{20}$		were the instructions to focus on short-term	20		savings are—I mean, yeah, some of them are
$20 \\ 21$		cost cutting versus long-term, do you	20 21		sustainable, but very rarely are they and I
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\22 \end{vmatrix}$		recall?	21		could speak to training within that context
1 44		ittail!	44		could speak to training within that context
	MS DALLE	V.	22		just because again we controlized training
23	MS. DALLE'		23 24		just because, again, we centralized training in the HR department and managed that on
	MS. DALLE A.	Y: I don't recall the granularity of the instructions, but what I do recall are	23 24 25		just because, again, we centralized training in the HR department and managed that on behalf of the business and since that time,

April	25, 2018				NL Hydro 2017 GRA
		Page 153			Page 155
1	we put in	n more controls, more rigor around	1		cost category. There's a number of columns
2	training	assessment, training approval, the	2		there, 2016 original budget, so this would
3	ability to	consolidate training together and	3		have been what was prepared in mid-2015 or
4	package	it in ways which we hope to enable	4		by the end of 2015, is that fair?
5	1 0	better cost savings around how we	5	MS. DALLE	2
6		aining, assessment training in-	6	A.	Ms. Hutchens can speak to the detailed
7		rsus external, so you know, we put a	7		timing and to be fair, the details of what's
8		rigor around training, but in 2016	8		here as well.
9		tion was cut training, so if it's	9	MR. O'BRIE	
10		ed, required to meet regulatory	10	Q.	Okay. Do you recall—and I'll just ask a
11		ents, then it's not happening. And,	11	×٠	couple of questions for you, do you recall,
12	-	v, that was, I think I can generally	12		there's a target reduction column there, was
12		ported that direction at the time	12		there anything circulated to executive or
13		I think that we needed that kind of	13		management about here's our target for
15	shock.	timik that we needed that kind of	14		reduction in 2016, there appears to be two
15	MR. O'BRIEN:		15 16		/ 11
		r in terms of how this would	10		tables that are added together to get the
17	-	r, in terms of how this would			actuals, there's a target reduction and in
18		ustomers, the short-term reduction	18		additional reductions as well. Were you
19		n 2016, 2017 wouldn't benefit	19		given a written target as to what you had to
20		s, you'd agree with me?	20	MODALLE	try and reduce?
21	MS. DALLEY:	1 1 1	21	MS. DALLE	
22		, you know, exceeding test year	22	А.	My recollection is that there was discussion
23		I rates, you know, what we had	23		over, yes, a target that I don't recall. I
24		d at that time in 2015, so I would	24		mean, the amount is there, so it shows as 10
25	say that	n the short term, the short-term	25		million, so my guess here is that that is
		Page 154			Page 156
1	e	ouldn't have, but what it would	1		the target reduction.
2		e over the long time, which it has	2	MR. O'BRIEN	
3		ngendered the beginnings of a	3	Q.	Okay, and do you recall receiving a written
4		hange and I can, again, I'm going	4		document saying here's what you need to
5	to say wh	at I said earlier, I can appreciate	5		reduce, where's what another area needs to
6	that what	I'm trying to demonstrate here is	6		reduce?
7	that we'v	e got processes and structures in	7	MS. DALLEY	<i>:</i>
8	place. Th	here will be more processes and	8	А.	I don't recall that specifically, but that
9	structures	and customers will end up seeing	9		doesn't mean that the instructions weren't
10	the result	s of this. Whether they see it	10		discussed.
11		-we put some of it into this GRA and	11	MR. O'BRIEN	N:
12		ked about some of it with respect	12	Q.	When Mr. Haynes came on as president in June
13		now, the productivity allowance,	13	,	of 2016, did you receive any additional
14		onal vacancy adjustments, you	14		direction concerning cost reductions?
15		me of those are as we're moving	15	MS. DALLEY	C C
16		we're getting more confident, I'll	16	A.	In 2016?
17		comfortable with our understanding	17	MR. O'BRIEN	
18		ne drivers are in the business and	18	Q.	Yeah.
19		are in place to do more of that in	19	MS. DALLEY	
20	-	blans that we have, and again, the	20	A.	Again, my recollection was Mr. Haynes was
20		that will be cost management for	20	11.	made aware of the work that was underway -
$21 \\ 22$	customer	-	21	MR. O'BRIEN	
$\begin{bmatrix} 22\\23 \end{bmatrix}$	MR. O'BRIEN:	э.	22		N. Okay.
23		sorall down have to Attachment 1	23 24	Q. MS. DALLEY	2
	•	e scroll down here to Attachment 1,			
25	there s a	table here for total expenses by	25	A.	- and the decisions that had been made. He

Discoveries Unlimited Inc. (709)437-5028

Page 153 - Page 156

April	25, 2018				NL Hydro 2017 GRA
		Page 157			Page 159
		did question it to a great deal about	1	•	6 period and is that the
2		whether these cuts were sustainable and	2		s that we've talked about
3		whether we were inadvertently having an	3	today?	
4		impact that again unintended consequences	4	MS. DALLEY:	
5		that we may not have been aware of. So, we	5	A. Yes.	
6		started then to talk about it in more – with	6	MR. O'BRIEN:	
7		more rigour – the long-term – you know,	7	· · · ·	our mind, any different
8		approach to long-term sustainable savings.	8	than what a utilit	y should be engaged in, in
9		We started that discussion. There was again	9	terms of hiring st	taff?
10		a lot of transition happening through 2016.	10	MS. DALLEY:	
11		I think it's fair to say that we started	11	A. Do you mean fro	m an outcome or a process
12		some of those process discussions,	12	perspective?	
13		collecting the data we needed to make	13	MR. O'BRIEN:	
14		informed decisions, but the discussion	14	Q. From a process p	perspective.
15		started in earnest upon receipt of the	15	MS. DALLEY:	
16		Board's order.	16	A. I think it's what	we require for where we
17	MR. O'BRIEN	N:	17	are right now.	1
18	Q.	That would have been the end of 2016, is it?	18	(12:15 p.m.)	
19	MS. DALLEY	,	19	MR. O'BRIEN:	
20	A.	Yes. By that time too, the $-$ not all of	20	Q. And what do you	umean by that?
21	11.	the, but the structure had been put in	21	MS. DALLEY:	initian by that.
21		place. The executive, not all of them, but	22		he process that is meeting
$\begin{vmatrix} 22\\23 \end{vmatrix}$		most of them at that point had been	23		management of the budget
23		identified. For example, Ms. Hutchens	23		that we have, and by
25		joined us in early January, but we had	25		n the actual systems for
23			23	systems i mea	-
		Page 158 started discussions with her before she hit	1	recording and mar	Page 160
			1 2		naging the data around FTEs
$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	MR. O'BRIEN	the ground running.	$\frac{2}{3}$		approach is the approach
				-	However, an optimal
4	Q.	And we see here, in terms – I guess in terms	4	11	opinion, is to get us to
5		of Hydro's success in reducing from its	5	-	e – like how we manage the
$\begin{bmatrix} 6\\7 \end{bmatrix}$		original budget for 2016, we see there's	6	•	e is a good example. It's a
7		significant success in the labour reduction;	7		ement of that. So, it
8		a five million dollar reduction. Is that	8		zed control over the
9		fair?	9	budget when in rea	
10	MS. DALLEY		10		should be able to push
11	A.	Yes.	11	your salary budget	
12	MR. O'BRIEN		12	11 I U	s out to business unit
13	Q.	Okay. And is that as a result of the	13		. So, we've had lots of
14		gating-in process that was established, do	14		e gone through this
15		you think?	15		point – and the systems
16	MS. DALLEY		16		in place and the processes
17	А.	I think it's a combination of that plus the	17	to ensure appropri	-
18		– and you can see it here, the capital	18		lecentralized manner of
19		labour, and intercompany in and out would	19		ut for where we are right
20		also be factored in there. So, we'd have to	20		ed control is appropriate.
21		look underneath that to see what the drivers	21	MR. O'BRIEN:	
22		were.	22	Q. And do you anticip	pate in the future – and
23	MR. O'BRIEN	N:	23	I'm trying to sort of	of square the circle
24	Q.	And earlier on in this response, there's	24	between the aggre	ssive management of hiring
1 - '				1	-
25		discussion about aggressive management of	25	and a stilling a shi	gation to hire on a

April .	25, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 161		Page 163
1	least cost basis, will that change in the		vegetation management, training and
2	future? If it's where you are now, what we		conferences" you've mentioned that, "and
3	need right now is to keep a handle on	3	travel". I believe you – both yourself and
4	managing FTEs. Is that something that's	4	Mr. Haynes may have mentioned that.
5	going to change in the future or is this a	5	In terms of them not being sustainable,
6	process you've set up now and you're	6	if we scroll down to that chart again, the
7	satisfied this is the way we need to	7	savings that were obtained say from
8	approach things going forward?	8	vegetation management – and I don't know if
9	MS. DALLEY:	9	you can speak to that specifically, but we
10	A. I would go back to what I had just said. I	10	see a systems equipment and maintenance
11	think that this process is appropriate for	11	figure of 29 million going down to 25. Is
12	where we are right now. It facilitates the	12	that where vegetation management would fall,
13	appropriate insights and control that we	13	do you know?
14	feel is required. It also helps us from a –	14	MS. DALLEY:
15	you know, if I can say, a horizontal	15	A. I'm not the right person to speak to that,
16	perspective, so that we're able to shift.	16	Mr. O'Brien.
17	If we need additional resources in a certain	17	MR. O'BRIEN:
18	area, we have more flexibility at that	18	Q. Okay.
19	level. But that's not saying that there	19	MS. DALLEY:
20	aren't other processes and tools that can be	20	A. But I would think that either Mr. Gardiner
21	used to do that and we understand the pros	21	from a vegetation management perspective or
22	and cons of the approach that we're taking,	22	certainly Ms. Hutchens.
23	but for right now, we feel that this is the	23	MR. O'BRIEN:
24	appropriate approach, but it's – you know,	24	Q. Okay. And travel and training, in terms of
25	it's a fairly active discussion. You know,	25	the savings associated with those two,
	Page 162		Page 164
1	if you're a regional manager in Transmission	1	travel we see went from 3.5 down to 1.9, so
2	and Rural Operations in Labrador, you know,	2	you get a million and a half savings in 2016
3	you want another resource. You have to go	3	and even less, about half a million in
4	through a fairly vigorous process to get	4	training. And those are items that were
5	there and you know, suffice it to say right	5	identified as being not sustainable. And
6	now that they feel the weight of having to	6	when I look through the actuals in 2017,
7	justify, you know, the resources that they	7	they don't come up that much in 2017. So,
8	require and we think that's appropriate and	8	it doesn't appear to me that there's been a
9	is appropriate through the company. I'm not	9	real issue with sustaining travel and
10	saying that they – you know, they don't want	10	training as a problem in terms of your
11	to do that. I think they want to, and I	11	overall costs.
12	think with the system we have in place, you	12	MS. DALLEY:
13	know, it's a balance and we're facilitating	13	A. I don't have the 2017 figures, but -
14	that.	14	MR. O'BRIEN:
15	MR. O'BRIEN:	15	Q. Did you find that – and maybe we can bring
16	Q. If we scroll up on this RFI, there's some	16	up 2017, Information 1, page 39.
17	mention in – and you've already mentioned	17	MS. DALLEY:
18	this in your evidence, and so has Mr.	18	A. I can't certainly speak to -
19	Haynes, in terms of some of the areas – we	19	MR. O'BRIEN:
20	go to page 2, you see at line 19 there,	20	Q. Just look at the full picture of that.
20	"while cost reduction measures were very	21	MS. DALLEY:
21	successful" which we see a reduction in the	22	A training, but Ms. Hutchens would be the
23	overall cost 124 million, "a number of these	23	right person to speak to the other ones.
24	costs were not sustainable." So, we've	24	MR. O'BRIEN:
25	discussed that. "Examples include	25	Q. Yeah. So, we see the actuals here. So, if
			(700)/27 5028 Page 161 Page 164

	25, 2010				NE Hydio 2017 OKA
		Page 165	1		Page 167
		we looked at travel, say, the 2015 actual	l	MR. O'BRIE	
2		was 32. 2016 actual was 19. 2017 forecast	2	Q.	Go from 64 to 68, so there's a four million
3		went up by, I guess, five and a half. And	3		dollar increase. You can speak to the
4		then 2018, 2019 seems to be fairly	4		overall labour costs, can you?
5		sustainable, not much increase. Would you	5	MS. DALLE	Y:
6		agree with me?	6	А.	Yes.
7	MS. DALLE	Y:	7	MR. O'BRIE	N:
8	А.	Based on the actuals, yes.	8	Q.	Okay. And the specific question I have on
9	MR. O'BRIE	N:	9		that, and I just want a little clarification
10	Q.	And training, I'm not sure where that fits	10		on is that in terms of net FTEs, we only saw
11		in. So, I might have to ask someone else on	11		an increase from 2016 to 2017 of six, from
12		that, but what I see as being the bigger	12		809 to 815, but we see an increase in labour
13		issue in terms of sustainability seems to be	13		costs of four million dollars. Can you tell
14		in the labour side of things. We got a 2016	14		me why that is?
15		actual of 64 going up to 68.	15	MS. DALLE	-
16	MS. DALLE		16	A.	Sorry, can you tell me those FTE numbers
17	A.	That's right. Those would be impacts of the	17		again?
18	11.	reorganization and again, additional FTEs	18	MR. O'BRIE	
19		that would have been business required	19	Q.	Yeah. It's 809 for 2016, that's the net
$\begin{vmatrix} 1 \\ 20 \end{vmatrix}$		through that year.	20	Q.	FTEs, and 815 for 2017. And there may be
$20 \\ 21$	MR. O'BRIE		20		other puts and takes in there, so I just
$21 \\ 22$	Q.	And I didn't see that as being flagged as an	21		want to get the -
$\begin{vmatrix} 22\\23 \end{vmatrix}$	Q.	• • • • •	22	MS. DALLE	
		issue of sustainability; of labour being an	23 24		
24	MC DALLE	issue.		A.	Yeah. I'm just looking for the previous
25	MS. DALLE		25		just give me one second.
		Page 166			Page 168
	A.	What do you mean?	l	MR. O'BRIEN	
2	MR. O'BRIEN		2	Q.	And the reason, I guess, I'm asking is I
3	Q.	Well, there's a number of issues that we saw	3		don't want to assume that there's a six
4		that cost reductions were unsustainable and	4		percent increase in labour costs from six
5		what was flagged was vegetation management,	5		FTEs. So, I just want to -
6		training and travel. Labour wasn't flagged	6	MS. DALLEY	
7		as an issue with sustainability. But in	7	А.	No.
8		terms of the increase in costs, that's where	8	MR. O'BRIEN	J:
9		we're mainly seeing the increase in costs.	9	Q.	I just want to get that clarification on
10	MS. DALLEY	<i>I</i> :	10		that.
11	А.	Yeah, we're seeing the addition of the FTEs	11	MS. DALLEY	7.
12		as a result of the reorganization and again,	12	А.	Some of that would be structure. So, it
13		as we got more comfortable coming through	13		would be a combination of addition of FTEs
14					
15		'17 with our controls and processes in	14		and then some structural increase around
		'17 with our controls and processes in place, we felt comfortable reducing that			
16		place, we felt comfortable reducing that	15		progression and merit as well which would go
16 17	MR. O'BRIEN	place, we felt comfortable reducing that budget.	15 16		progression and merit as well which would go through there, and yesterday we spoke to –
17	MR. O'BRIEN	place, we felt comfortable reducing that budget. N:	15 16 17		progression and merit as well which would go through there, and yesterday we spoke to – well, I think Mr. Haynes actually spoke to a
17 18	MR. O'BRIEN Q.	place, we felt comfortable reducing that budget. N: Okay. So, let's talk about the labour	15 16 17 18		progression and merit as well which would go through there, and yesterday we spoke to – well, I think Mr. Haynes actually spoke to a little bit about short term incentive, so
17 18 19		place, we felt comfortable reducing that budget. N: Okay. So, let's talk about the labour related costs that we see there. So, there	15 16 17 18 19		progression and merit as well which would go through there, and yesterday we spoke to – well, I think Mr. Haynes actually spoke to a little bit about short term incentive, so that too would have been factored into those
17 18 19 20		place, we felt comfortable reducing that budget. N: Okay. So, let's talk about the labour related costs that we see there. So, there is an increase from – of about four million	15 16 17 18 19 20	MR O'RDIEN	progression and merit as well which would go through there, and yesterday we spoke to – well, I think Mr. Haynes actually spoke to a little bit about short term incentive, so that too would have been factored into those costs.
17 18 19 20 21		place, we felt comfortable reducing that budget. V: Okay. So, let's talk about the labour related costs that we see there. So, there is an increase from – of about four million from the 2016 actuals to the – then, and I'm	15 16 17 18 19 20 21	MR. O'BRIEN	progression and merit as well which would go through there, and yesterday we spoke to – well, I think Mr. Haynes actually spoke to a little bit about short term incentive, so that too would have been factored into those costs. J:
17 18 19 20 21 22		place, we felt comfortable reducing that budget. N: Okay. So, let's talk about the labour related costs that we see there. So, there is an increase from – of about four million from the 2016 actuals to the – then, and I'm just looking at labour related costs, not	15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MR. O'BRIEN Q.	progression and merit as well which would go through there, and yesterday we spoke to – well, I think Mr. Haynes actually spoke to a little bit about short term incentive, so that too would have been factored into those costs. J: And are you able to give an undertaking just
17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Q.	place, we felt comfortable reducing that budget. N: Okay. So, let's talk about the labour related costs that we see there. So, there is an increase from – of about four million from the 2016 actuals to the – then, and I'm just looking at labour related costs, not the total.	15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23		progression and merit as well which would go through there, and yesterday we spoke to – well, I think Mr. Haynes actually spoke to a little bit about short term incentive, so that too would have been factored into those costs. J: And are you able to give an undertaking just to put together the reason for that increase
17 18 19 20 21 22		place, we felt comfortable reducing that budget. N: Okay. So, let's talk about the labour related costs that we see there. So, there is an increase from – of about four million from the 2016 actuals to the – then, and I'm just looking at labour related costs, not the total.	15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22		progression and merit as well which would go through there, and yesterday we spoke to – well, I think Mr. Haynes actually spoke to a little bit about short term incentive, so that too would have been factored into those costs. J: And are you able to give an undertaking just

	$\mathbf{D}_{\text{res}} = 1.0$		
	Page 169	1	Page 171
	(12:25 p.m. UNDERTAKING)		what has – what came in in 2017 of those new
$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	MS. DALLEY:	$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	positions versus what's in for the full year
3	A. Yes. I'm not entirely sure that there's not	3	of 2018, so I can see that breakdown?
4	something on the record -	4	(12:26 p.m., UNDERTAKING)
5	MR. O'BRIEN:	5	MS. DALLEY:
6	Q. Or even to point me to it and I might not -	6	A. Yeah.
7	MS. DALLEY:	7	MR. O'BRIEN:
8	A on that, but regardless, off the top of my	8	Q. Okay.
9	head, I don't have it.	9	MS. GLYNN:
10	MR. O'BRIEN:	10	Q. Would that be provided as part of the
11	Q. It won't embarrass me to point me to	11	original undertaking or is that a -
12	something that's already on the record.	12	MR. O'BRIEN:
13	MS. DALLEY:	13	Q. That's fine. The original undertaking is
14	A. No.	14	fine, as part of that, yeah. In terms of
15	MS. GLYNN:	15	total operating costs, we see an increase in
16	Q. The undertaking is noted.	16	total operating costs. I'm not going to ask
17	MR. O'BRIEN:	17	you to speak to each one of those areas, but
18	Q. So, on top of the four million dollar	18	as a vice-president of Hydro, when you look
19	increase in 2016, however, we've got a 2018		at an increase from an actual of 130 to 142
20	test year increase of what looks to be	20	in the test year, is that the kind of
20	another five and a half million for labour.	20	increase on a year-over-year basis that
$\frac{21}{22}$	Is that fair?	$21 \\ 22$	suggests cost control within Hydro to you?
22 23	MS. DALLEY:	$\begin{vmatrix} 22\\23 \end{vmatrix}$	MS. DALLEY:
23	A. Yes.	23	A. I think what we're saying is that the
24	MR. O'BRIEN:	24	
23	MR. O DRIEN.	23	reorganization and the subsequent –
	Page 170	1	Page 172
1	Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the	1	certainly on the labour side, so I can speak
2	Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a	2	certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the
$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase?	2 3	certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes
2 3 4	Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY:	2	certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to –
2 3 4 5	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. 	2 3 4 5	certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us
2 3 4 5 6	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: 	2 3 4 5 6	certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro
2 3 4 5 6 7	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? 	2 3 4 5 6 7	certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: A. Well, yeah, because you're carrying those 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that investment is prudent for customers.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: A. Well, yeah, because you're carrying those costs forward. They don't – labour costs don't come in for one year. They stay. So, 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: A. Well, yeah, because you're carrying those costs forward. They don't – labour costs don't come in for one year. They stay. So, those FTEs that were brought in, even if 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that investment is prudent for customers.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: A. Well, yeah, because you're carrying those costs forward. They don't – labour costs don't come in for one year. They stay. So, 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that investment is prudent for customers. MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: A. Well, yeah, because you're carrying those costs forward. They don't – labour costs don't come in for one year. They stay. So, those FTEs that were brought in, even if 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that investment is prudent for customers. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I guess the concern we have, I guess, as
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: A. Well, yeah, because you're carrying those costs forward. They don't – labour costs don't come in for one year. They stay. So, those FTEs that were brought in, even if they were partial years or partial FTEs in 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that investment is prudent for customers. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I guess the concern we have, I guess, as intervenors is we see Hydro has done a
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: A. Well, yeah, because you're carrying those costs forward. They don't – labour costs don't come in for one year. They stay. So, those FTEs that were brought in, even if they were partial years or partial FTEs in 2017, so if they were brought in at some point during the year, they would have 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that investment is prudent for customers. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I guess the concern we have, I guess, as intervenors is we see Hydro has done a relatively good job of reducing costs in
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: A. Well, yeah, because you're carrying those costs forward. They don't – labour costs don't come in for one year. They stay. So, those FTEs that were brought in, even if they were partial years or partial FTEs in 2017, so if they were brought in at some point during the year, they would have caused – you know, if you had an employee 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that investment is prudent for customers. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I guess the concern we have, I guess, as intervenors is we see Hydro has done a relatively good job of reducing costs in 2016 and 2017 and then the test years jump
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: A. Well, yeah, because you're carrying those costs forward. They don't – labour costs don't come in for one year. They stay. So, those FTEs that were brought in, even if they were partial years or partial FTEs in 2017, so if they were brought in at some point during the year, they would have caused – you know, if you had an employee making \$70-80,000 and they were brought in 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that investment is prudent for customers. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I guess the concern we have, I guess, as intervenors is we see Hydro has done a relatively good job of reducing costs in 2016 and 2017 and then the test years jump up. You can see that.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: A. Well, yeah, because you're carrying those costs forward. They don't – labour costs don't come in for one year. They stay. So, those FTEs that were brought in, even if they were partial years or partial FTEs in 2017, so if they were brought in at some point during the year, they would have caused – you know, if you had an employee making \$70-80,000 and they were brought in September of 2017, we would have seen a 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that investment is prudent for customers. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I guess the concern we have, I guess, as intervenors is we see Hydro has done a relatively good job of reducing costs in 2016 and 2017 and then the test years jump up. You can see that. MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, I think that's fair and we're aware of
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: A. Well, yeah, because you're carrying those costs forward. They don't – labour costs don't come in for one year. They stay. So, those FTEs that were brought in, even if they were partial years or partial FTEs in 2017, so if they were brought in at some point during the year, they would have caused – you know, if you had an employee making \$70-80,000 and they were brought in September of 2017, we would have seen a quarter of that FTE in that year, give or 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that investment is prudent for customers. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I guess the concern we have, I guess, as intervenors is we see Hydro has done a relatively good job of reducing costs in 2016 and 2017 and then the test years jump up. You can see that. MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, I think that's fair and we're aware of that.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: A. Well, yeah, because you're carrying those costs forward. They don't – labour costs don't come in for one year. They stay. So, those FTEs that were brought in, even if they were partial years or partial FTEs in 2017, so if they were brought in at some point during the year, they would have caused – you know, if you had an employee making \$70-80,000 and they were brought in September of 2017, we would have seen a quarter of that FTE in that year, give or take, and then you would have seen the full 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that investment is prudent for customers. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I guess the concern we have, I guess, as intervenors is we see Hydro has done a relatively good job of reducing costs in 2016 and 2017 and then the test years jump up. You can see that. MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, I think that's fair and we're aware of that.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: A. Well, yeah, because you're carrying those costs forward. They don't – labour costs don't come in for one year. They stay. So, those FTEs that were brought in, even if they were partial years or partial FTEs in 2017, so if they were brought in at some point during the year, they would have caused – you know, if you had an employee making \$70-80,000 and they were brought in September of 2017, we would have seen a quarter of that FTE in that year, give or take, and then you would have seen the full FTE and therefore the full salary as well 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that investment is prudent for customers. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I guess the concern we have, I guess, as intervenors is we see Hydro has done a relatively good job of reducing costs in 2016 and 2017 and then the test years jump up. You can see that. MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, I think that's fair and we're aware of that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. So that's the concern.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: A. Well, yeah, because you're carrying those costs forward. They don't – labour costs don't come in for one year. They stay. So, those FTEs that were brought in, even if they were partial years or partial FTEs in 2017, so if they were brought in at some point during the year, they would have caused – you know, if you had an employee making \$70-80,000 and they were brought in September of 2017, we would have seen a quarter of that FTE in that year, give or take, and then you would have seen the full FTE and therefore the full salary as well and subsequent benefits that go with it into 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that investment is prudent for customers. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I guess the concern we have, I guess, as intervenors is we see Hydro has done a relatively good job of reducing costs in 2016 and 2017 and then the test years jump up. You can see that. MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, I think that's fair and we're aware of that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. So that's the concern.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: A. Well, yeah, because you're carrying those costs forward. They don't – labour costs don't come in for one year. They stay. So, those FTEs that were brought in, even if they were partial years or partial FTEs in 2017, so if they were brought in at some point during the year, they would have caused – you know, if you had an employee making \$70-80,000 and they were brought in September of 2017, we would have seen a quarter of that FTE in that year, give or take, and then you would have seen the full FTE and therefore the full salary as well and subsequent benefits that go with it into that year. 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that investment is prudent for customers. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I guess the concern we have, I guess, as intervenors is we see Hydro has done a relatively good job of reducing costs in 2016 and 2017 and then the test years jump up. You can see that. MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, I think that's fair and we're aware of that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. So that's the concern.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 Q. So, I wonder how you'd square that with the reasonable cost control of your labour, on a year-to-year basis, that type of increase? MS. DALLEY: A. It's primarily driven by the reorganization. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. In 2018? MS. DALLEY: A. Well, yeah, because you're carrying those costs forward. They don't – labour costs don't come in for one year. They stay. So, those FTEs that were brought in, even if they were partial years or partial FTEs in 2017, so if they were brought in at some point during the year, they would have caused – you know, if you had an employee making \$70-80,000 and they were brought in September of 2017, we would have seen a quarter of that FTE in that year, give or take, and then you would have seen the full FTE and therefore the full salary as well and subsequent benefits that go with it into 	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	 certainly on the labour side, so I can speak to that because I think that's one of the primary drivers and there are puts and takes in here which Ms. Hutchens can speak to – that the reorganization was necessary for us to deliver long term the mandate that Hydro has been given for least cost power, again I guess, to some degree balanced with reliable service. And yes, we feel that that investment is prudent for customers. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And I guess the concern we have, I guess, as intervenors is we see Hydro has done a relatively good job of reducing costs in 2016 and 2017 and then the test years jump up. You can see that. MS. DALLEY: A. Yes, I think that's fair and we're aware of that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. So that's the concern.

	25, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
1	Page 173		Page 175
1	year figures are reasonable commitments to	1	and Regulatory Affairs. Are you able to
2	cost control as you indicate in your	2	speak to any of the areas, say, under
3	evidence?	3	General and Administration itself or would
4	MS. DALLEY:	4	it just be the Corporate and Regulatory
5	A. Again, I think you'll see there's some	5	Affairs?
6	dollars going to come out of that with	6	MS. DALLEY:
7	respect to settlement.	7	A. Just my area.
8	MR. O'BRIEN:	8	MR. O'BRIEN:
9	Q. Sure.	9	Q. Just that area, okay. And one of the – and
10	MS. DALLEY:	10	I'm going to ask you one question outside of
11	A. And you know, even on $-$ if I could speak	11	that and you can tell me if you can answer
12	just briefly to overtime.	12	it or not. It has to do with executive
12	MR. O'BRIEN:	12	leadership and that's -
13	Q. I was going to ask you about that. Go	13	MS. DALLEY:
14	ahead.	14	A. Ms. Hutchens can speak to that.
15	MS. DALLEY:	15	MR. O'BRIEN:
17	A. Yeah. So, you know, that's a very	17	Q. Okay. So, Corporate Services and Regulatory
18	aggressive target in 2018 compared to the	18	Affairs, obviously you were involved in
19	trend line overall. I don't think there's a	19	preparing the 2017 budget for that area.
20	year in the last few years where we've met	20	The 2016 budget information that we had
21	that. So, you know, we are putting the	21	doesn't break down the costs by cost type
22	appropriate rigour, and again, the entire	22	for that area, but I'm going to ask that we
23	team can speak to the detail around this and	23	look at NP-NLH-76, Attachment 1, and that
24	what is planned, but we're putting the	24	kind of breaks it down for cost type by
25	structures and processes in place to control	25	area. Yeah, so this is your area with the
	Page 174		Page 176
1	that, and that's why we felt comfortable	1	different departments.
2	with the target. So, the budget admittingly	2	So, if we look at the total operating
3	was set early in these processes. So, we've	3	costs down here, we have 2015 actual of 24
4	tried, through some of these measures, to	4	million; 2016 actual of 17 million. Are you
5	demonstrate as much as we can inside of the	5	able to tell us or generally speaking, why
6	process that there's some aggressive numbers	6	there was such a reduction? There's a 25
7	in these targets and overtime is one of	7	percent reduction there in that area from
8	them.	8	'15 actuals to '16 actuals. And it might
9	MR. O'BRIEN:		
		9	•
		9 10	help if we turn to 77, NP-NLH-77. I think
10	Q. So, the overtime – and I take your point in	10	help if we turn to 77, NP-NLH-77. I think there's – my understanding is largely it may
10 11	Q. So, the overtime – and I take your point in terms of the reduction in overtime, but	10 11	help if we turn to 77, NP-NLH-77. I think there's – my understanding is largely it may be due to Regulatory Affairs reduction in
10 11 12	Q. So, the overtime – and I take your point in terms of the reduction in overtime, but you'll agree with me that the higher figures	10 11 12	help if we turn to 77, NP-NLH-77. I think there's – my understanding is largely it may be due to Regulatory Affairs reduction in that area.
10 11 12 13	Q. So, the overtime – and I take your point in terms of the reduction in overtime, but you'll agree with me that the higher figures in overtime say in 2015 actuals were as a	10 11 12 13	help if we turn to 77, NP-NLH-77. I think there's – my understanding is largely it may be due to Regulatory Affairs reduction in that area. MS. DALLEY:
10 11 12 13 14	Q. So, the overtime – and I take your point in terms of the reduction in overtime, but you'll agree with me that the higher figures in overtime say in 2015 actuals were as a result of a catch-up phase for Hydro in	10 11 12 13 14	help if we turn to 77, NP-NLH-77. I think there's – my understanding is largely it may be due to Regulatory Affairs reduction in that area. MS. DALLEY: A. There was, yeah, a significant decrease at
10 11 12 13 14 15	Q. So, the overtime – and I take your point in terms of the reduction in overtime, but you'll agree with me that the higher figures in overtime say in 2015 actuals were as a result of a catch-up phase for Hydro in outstanding, I guess, maintenance and that	10 11 12 13 14 15	help if we turn to 77, NP-NLH-77. I think there's – my understanding is largely it may be due to Regulatory Affairs reduction in that area. MS. DALLEY: A. There was, yeah, a significant decrease at the time going into '16 and a number of, you
10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. So, the overtime – and I take your point in terms of the reduction in overtime, but you'll agree with me that the higher figures in overtime say in 2015 actuals were as a result of a catch-up phase for Hydro in outstanding, I guess, maintenance and that sort of thing. Is that fair? That's a bit	10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 help if we turn to 77, NP-NLH-77. I think there's – my understanding is largely it may be due to Regulatory Affairs reduction in that area. MS. DALLEY: A. There was, yeah, a significant decrease at the time going into '16 and a number of, you know, accruals that came through that same
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Q. So, the overtime – and I take your point in terms of the reduction in overtime, but you'll agree with me that the higher figures in overtime say in 2015 actuals were as a result of a catch-up phase for Hydro in outstanding, I guess, maintenance and that sort of thing. Is that fair? That's a bit of an anomaly.	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 help if we turn to 77, NP-NLH-77. I think there's – my understanding is largely it may be due to Regulatory Affairs reduction in that area. MS. DALLEY: A. There was, yeah, a significant decrease at the time going into '16 and a number of, you know, accruals that came through that same period that we're speaking of.
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 Q. So, the overtime – and I take your point in terms of the reduction in overtime, but you'll agree with me that the higher figures in overtime say in 2015 actuals were as a result of a catch-up phase for Hydro in outstanding, I guess, maintenance and that sort of thing. Is that fair? That's a bit of an anomaly. MS. DALLEY: 	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 help if we turn to 77, NP-NLH-77. I think there's – my understanding is largely it may be due to Regulatory Affairs reduction in that area. MS. DALLEY: A. There was, yeah, a significant decrease at the time going into '16 and a number of, you know, accruals that came through that same period that we're speaking of. MR. O'BRIEN:
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 Q. So, the overtime – and I take your point in terms of the reduction in overtime, but you'll agree with me that the higher figures in overtime say in 2015 actuals were as a result of a catch-up phase for Hydro in outstanding, I guess, maintenance and that sort of thing. Is that fair? That's a bit of an anomaly. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I think it's an anomaly. The details of 	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 help if we turn to 77, NP-NLH-77. I think there's – my understanding is largely it may be due to Regulatory Affairs reduction in that area. MS. DALLEY: A. There was, yeah, a significant decrease at the time going into '16 and a number of, you know, accruals that came through that same period that we're speaking of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. No, it's not in there. Okay, let's go back
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 Q. So, the overtime – and I take your point in terms of the reduction in overtime, but you'll agree with me that the higher figures in overtime say in 2015 actuals were as a result of a catch-up phase for Hydro in outstanding, I guess, maintenance and that sort of thing. Is that fair? That's a bit of an anomaly. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I think it's an anomaly. The details of it I can't speak to. 	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 help if we turn to 77, NP-NLH-77. I think there's – my understanding is largely it may be due to Regulatory Affairs reduction in that area. MS. DALLEY: A. There was, yeah, a significant decrease at the time going into '16 and a number of, you know, accruals that came through that same period that we're speaking of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. No, it's not in there. Okay, let's go back to 76. Sorry, yeah, okay. So, we see a
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 Q. So, the overtime – and I take your point in terms of the reduction in overtime, but you'll agree with me that the higher figures in overtime say in 2015 actuals were as a result of a catch-up phase for Hydro in outstanding, I guess, maintenance and that sort of thing. Is that fair? That's a bit of an anomaly. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I think it's an anomaly. The details of it I can't speak to. 	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 help if we turn to 77, NP-NLH-77. I think there's – my understanding is largely it may be due to Regulatory Affairs reduction in that area. MS. DALLEY: A. There was, yeah, a significant decrease at the time going into '16 and a number of, you know, accruals that came through that same period that we're speaking of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. No, it's not in there. Okay, let's go back to 76. Sorry, yeah, okay. So, we see a reduction there of – there's almost a four
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 Q. So, the overtime – and I take your point in terms of the reduction in overtime, but you'll agree with me that the higher figures in overtime say in 2015 actuals were as a result of a catch-up phase for Hydro in outstanding, I guess, maintenance and that sort of thing. Is that fair? That's a bit of an anomaly. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I think it's an anomaly. The details of it I can't speak to. (12:30 p.m.) MR. O'BRIEN: 	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 help if we turn to 77, NP-NLH-77. I think there's – my understanding is largely it may be due to Regulatory Affairs reduction in that area. MS. DALLEY: A. There was, yeah, a significant decrease at the time going into '16 and a number of, you know, accruals that came through that same period that we're speaking of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. No, it's not in there. Okay, let's go back to 76. Sorry, yeah, okay. So, we see a reduction there of – there's almost a four and a half million dollar difference in
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 Q. So, the overtime – and I take your point in terms of the reduction in overtime, but you'll agree with me that the higher figures in overtime say in 2015 actuals were as a result of a catch-up phase for Hydro in outstanding, I guess, maintenance and that sort of thing. Is that fair? That's a bit of an anomaly. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I think it's an anomaly. The details of it I can't speak to. (12:30 p.m.) MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. Can we turn to page 40? This is the 	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 help if we turn to 77, NP-NLH-77. I think there's – my understanding is largely it may be due to Regulatory Affairs reduction in that area. MS. DALLEY: A. There was, yeah, a significant decrease at the time going into '16 and a number of, you know, accruals that came through that same period that we're speaking of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. No, it's not in there. Okay, let's go back to 76. Sorry, yeah, okay. So, we see a reduction there of – there's almost a four and a half million dollar difference in Regulatory Affairs. So, that's the big
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 Q. So, the overtime – and I take your point in terms of the reduction in overtime, but you'll agree with me that the higher figures in overtime say in 2015 actuals were as a result of a catch-up phase for Hydro in outstanding, I guess, maintenance and that sort of thing. Is that fair? That's a bit of an anomaly. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I think it's an anomaly. The details of it I can't speak to. (12:30 p.m.) MR. O'BRIEN: 	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 help if we turn to 77, NP-NLH-77. I think there's – my understanding is largely it may be due to Regulatory Affairs reduction in that area. MS. DALLEY: A. There was, yeah, a significant decrease at the time going into '16 and a number of, you know, accruals that came through that same period that we're speaking of. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. No, it's not in there. Okay, let's go back to 76. Sorry, yeah, okay. So, we see a reduction there of – there's almost a four and a half million dollar difference in

	23, 2018		NL IIYUIO 2017 OKA
	Page 177		Page 179
1	for this area of 17 million, there was a	1	could get an undertaking to update NP-NLH-
2	forecast of 20 million. So, there was a	2	77, Attachment 1, just to include the 2017
3	forecast for 2017 to increase to that point.	3	actuals?
4	If we go to Information 1, page 40, it	4	(12:35 p.m. UNDERTAKING)
5	appears that the forecast didn't materialize	5	MS. DALLEY:
6	that increase. In fact, there was a minor	6	A. Um-hm.
7	or small decrease. Is that true?	7	MS. GLYNN:
8	MS. DALLEY:	8	Q. The undertaking is noted.
9	A. Between -	9	MR. O'BRIEN:
10	MR. O'BRIEN:	10	Q. Is it 77 or 76? 76, sorry. Yeah, this one
10	Q. From '16 actuals -	11	here.
		11	
12	MS. DALLEY:		MS. DALLEY:
13	A. And '17?	13	A. Yes.
14	MR. O'BRIEN:	14	MR. O'BRIEN:
15	Q. Yeah, and '17 actuals.	15	Q. If we can update 76 to include 2017 actuals.
16	MS. DALLEY:	16	And that might give us a better picture as
17	A. Yes.	17	to where that difference might be. But you
18	MR. O'BRIEN:	18	would expect, just on your recollection,
19	Q. And in terms of the reason for that	19	it's likely in the Regulatory Affairs area?
20	decrease, are you able to tell me what the	20	Is that fair? It's based on delays for -
21	reason for that decrease might be?	21	MS. DALLEY:
22	MS. DALLEY:	22	A. Yeah, I've got – we got them by functional
23	A. Between '17 -	23	area the same way.
$23 \\ 24$	MR. O'BRIEN:	23	MR. O'BRIEN:
25	Q. The failure to reach the forecast, yeah.	25	Q. Yeah. And I won't hold you to that, but I'd
25	Q. The failure to reach the forecast, yeah.	4.)	
	P 150		
1	Page 178		Page 180
1	MS. DALLEY:	1	Page 180 just ask for -
2	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 -	1 2	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY:
	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN:	1 2 3	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like
2	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah.	1 2	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here.
23	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN:	1 2 3	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN:
23	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals.	1 2 3	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here.
2 3 4 5	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY:	1 2 3 4 5	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN:	1 2 3 4 5 6	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that.	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY:	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is a good portion of that	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million dollar increase into the 2018 test year in
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is a good portion of that was delays associated with the timing of the	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million dollar increase into the 2018 test year in the overall costs in this area?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is a good portion of that was delays associated with the timing of the application.	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million dollar increase into the 2018 test year in the overall costs in this area? MS. DALLEY:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is a good portion of that was delays associated with the timing of the application. MR. O'BRIEN:	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million dollar increase into the 2018 test year in the overall costs in this area? MS. DALLEY: A. Which number are you referencing?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is a good portion of that was delays associated with the timing of the application. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million dollar increase into the 2018 test year in the overall costs in this area? MS. DALLEY: A. Which number are you referencing? MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is a good portion of that was delays associated with the timing of the application. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY:	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million dollar increase into the 2018 test year in the overall costs in this area? MS. DALLEY: A. Which number are you referencing? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Looking at the Corporate Services and
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is a good portion of that was delays associated with the timing of the application. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. The same thing with the Cost of Service.	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\end{array} $	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million dollar increase into the 2018 test year in the overall costs in this area? MS. DALLEY: A. Which number are you referencing? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Looking at the Corporate Services and Regulatory Affairs, right.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is a good portion of that was delays associated with the timing of the application. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. The same thing with the Cost of Service. So, there would have been a great deal of	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\end{array} $	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million dollar increase into the 2018 test year in the overall costs in this area? MS. DALLEY: A. Which number are you referencing? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Looking at the Corporate Services and Regulatory Affairs, right.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is a good portion of that was delays associated with the timing of the application. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. The same thing with the Cost of Service. So, there would have been a great deal of professional services fees, legal fees, that	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\end{array} $	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million dollar increase into the 2018 test year in the overall costs in this area? MS. DALLEY: A. Which number are you referencing? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Looking at the Corporate Services and Regulatory Affairs, right. MS. DALLEY: A. Oh yes, yeah.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is a good portion of that was delays associated with the timing of the application. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. The same thing with the Cost of Service. So, there would have been a great deal of	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\end{array} $	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million dollar increase into the 2018 test year in the overall costs in this area? MS. DALLEY: A. Which number are you referencing? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Looking at the Corporate Services and Regulatory Affairs, right.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is a good portion of that was delays associated with the timing of the application. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. The same thing with the Cost of Service. So, there would have been a great deal of professional services fees, legal fees, that	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\end{array} $	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million dollar increase into the 2018 test year in the overall costs in this area? MS. DALLEY: A. Which number are you referencing? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Looking at the Corporate Services and Regulatory Affairs, right. MS. DALLEY: A. Oh yes, yeah.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is a good portion of that was delays associated with the timing of the application. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. The same thing with the Cost of Service. So, there would have been a great deal of professional services fees, legal fees, that would have been pushed out as a result of 	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\end{array} $	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million dollar increase into the 2018 test year in the overall costs in this area? MS. DALLEY: A. Which number are you referencing? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Looking at the Corporate Services and Regulatory Affairs, right. MS. DALLEY: A. Oh yes, yeah. MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is a good portion of that was delays associated with the timing of the application. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. The same thing with the Cost of Service. So, there would have been a great deal of professional services fees, legal fees, that would have been pushed out as a result of that. MR. O'BRIEN: 	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\end{array} $	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million dollar increase into the 2018 test year in the overall costs in this area? MS. DALLEY: A. Which number are you referencing? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Looking at the Corporate Services and Regulatory Affairs, right. MS. DALLEY: A. Oh yes, yeah. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. So, we had a forecast of 20 million, which would have been an increase in three
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is a good portion of that was delays associated with the timing of the application. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. The same thing with the Cost of Service. So, there would have been a great deal of professional services fees, legal fees, that would have been pushed out as a result of that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. So, that previous slide we looked at, NP- 	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\end{array} $	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million dollar increase into the 2018 test year in the overall costs in this area? MS. DALLEY: A. Which number are you referencing? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Looking at the Corporate Services and Regulatory Affairs, right. MS. DALLEY: A. Oh yes, yeah. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. So, we had a forecast of 20 million, which would have been an increase in three million, but it didn't materialize in 2017.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is a good portion of that was delays associated with the timing of the application. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. The same thing with the Cost of Service. So, there would have been a great deal of professional services fees, legal fees, that would have been pushed out as a result of that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. So, that previous slide we looked at, NP-NLH-77, included the 2017 forecast but 	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\\23\end{array} $	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million dollar increase into the 2018 test year in the overall costs in this area? MS. DALLEY: A. Which number are you referencing? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Looking at the Corporate Services and Regulatory Affairs, right. MS. DALLEY: A. Oh yes, yeah. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. So, we had a forecast of 20 million, which would have been an increase in three million, but it didn't materialize in 2017. Do you still forecast that there's going to
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MS. DALLEY: A. The '17 forecast and '17 - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And actual, yeah. MS. DALLEY: A and actuals. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah, the difference between that. MS. DALLEY: A. My recollection is a good portion of that was delays associated with the timing of the application. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. The same thing with the Cost of Service. So, there would have been a great deal of professional services fees, legal fees, that would have been pushed out as a result of that. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. So, that previous slide we looked at, NP- 	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\2\\3\\4\\5\\6\\7\\8\\9\\10\\11\\12\\13\\14\\15\\16\\17\\18\\19\\20\\21\\22\\23\\24\end{array} $	Page 180 just ask for - MS. DALLEY: A. No, that's fine. That's what it looks like from my notes here. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And so, if we go back to Information 1, page 40. With the failure to the forecast – the 2017 forecast to materialize in 2017 actuals, do you still expect a four million dollar increase into the 2018 test year in the overall costs in this area? MS. DALLEY: A. Which number are you referencing? MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Looking at the Corporate Services and Regulatory Affairs, right. MS. DALLEY: A. Oh yes, yeah. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. So, we had a forecast of 20 million, which would have been an increase in three million, but it didn't materialize in 2017.

1		Page 181		Page 183
1	MS. DALLEY	-	1	justification coming through that was some
2	А.	Notwithstanding things that we've – so, for	2	of the holds that were done in 2016 to, you
3		example, any redistribution of vacancies	3	know, slow down or manage the budget. So,
4		inside of that. So, some of the changes	4	as a result, there was some back-off on
5		that we've made which would again see some	5	apprentices. The apprentice program, from a
6		reflection inside of those numbers, but yes.	6	succession program, is actually quite
7	MR. O'BRIEN		7	critical to us and even more so with the
8	Q.	So, you still expect to see that increase in	8	integration of the Muskrat Falls asset. So,
9	Q.	the $20 - $ in the four million dollar range?	9	that program, from a succession standpoint,
10	MS. DALLEY		10	is – it's really important to add some of
10	A.	Yes, and that's been the $-$ the buildup of	10	our system operators we train ourselves
11	Λ.	the budget for that year reflects that.	11	through an internal apprenticeship program.
	MR. O'BRIEN	č		
13			13	You don't get those people off the streets,
14	Q.	Because that appears to be a significant	14	so as we see Muskrat Falls come online, our
15		percentage increase from actual to year-	15	expectation is we will see some turnover
16		over-year.	16	inside of those operators. So, yes, we are
17	MS. DALLEY		17	staffing the apprentice program at full
18	A.	It is, and a good portion of that is driven	18	complement and you know, there's a lot of
19		through professional services, both in	19	pressure to actually increase that from a
20		Regulatory. There's some as well sitting in	20	succession standpoint.
21		environmental services. So, for example,	21	MR. O'BRIEN:
22		we've got a compliance obligation with the	22	Q. So, that was put on hold -
23		start-up of TL267, which is a fairly	23	MS. DALLEY:
24		significant and costly monitoring program	24	A. If that's what you're asking.
25		which is built into these budgets as well.	25	MR. O'BRIEN:
		Page 182		Page 184
1	MR. O'BRIEN		1	Q was it, in the -
2	Q.	And where is that covered under, Regulatory	2	MS. DALLEY:
3		Affairs?	3	A. Pardon?
4	MS. DALLEY		4	MR. O'BRIEN:
5	٨			
6	А.	No, no, no. That would be under – I'm still	5	Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year?
	A.	looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes,	5 6	Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY:
7	A.	looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services.	6 7	Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was
7 8	A. MR. O'BRIEN	looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N:	6 7 8	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions
7 8 9	A. MR. O'BRIEN Q.	looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N: Yeah. And for Human Resources and Labour	6 7	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions which wouldn't have been filled. As a
7 8		looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N: Yeah. And for Human Resources and Labour Relations, I wonder if we could pull up NP-	6 7 8	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions which wouldn't have been filled. As a result of that, decisions were made.
7 8 9 10 11		looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N: Yeah. And for Human Resources and Labour Relations, I wonder if we could pull up NP- NLH-198. Just had a quick question on that.	6 7 8 9 10 11	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions which wouldn't have been filled. As a result of that, decisions were made. MR. O'BRIEN:
7 8 9 10 11 12		looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N: Yeah. And for Human Resources and Labour Relations, I wonder if we could pull up NP- NLH-198. Just had a quick question on that. There's a forecast increase in operating	6 7 8 9 10	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions which wouldn't have been filled. As a result of that, decisions were made. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost benefit analysis from
7 8 9 10 11		looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N: Yeah. And for Human Resources and Labour Relations, I wonder if we could pull up NP- NLH-198. Just had a quick question on that. There's a forecast increase in operating costs from 2016 to 2019 of about a million	6 7 8 9 10 11	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions which wouldn't have been filled. As a result of that, decisions were made. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost benefit analysis from the perspective of reliability done at that
7 8 9 10 11 12		looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N: Yeah. And for Human Resources and Labour Relations, I wonder if we could pull up NP- NLH-198. Just had a quick question on that. There's a forecast increase in operating	6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions which wouldn't have been filled. As a result of that, decisions were made. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost benefit analysis from
7 8 9 10 11 12 13		looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N: Yeah. And for Human Resources and Labour Relations, I wonder if we could pull up NP- NLH-198. Just had a quick question on that. There's a forecast increase in operating costs from 2016 to 2019 of about a million	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions which wouldn't have been filled. As a result of that, decisions were made. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost benefit analysis from the perspective of reliability done at that
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14		looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N: Yeah. And for Human Resources and Labour Relations, I wonder if we could pull up NP- NLH-198. Just had a quick question on that. There's a forecast increase in operating costs from 2016 to 2019 of about a million and a half and the indication is that this	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions which wouldn't have been filled. As a result of that, decisions were made. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost benefit analysis from the perspective of reliability done at that time? Was there a concern that if that was
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15		looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N: Yeah. And for Human Resources and Labour Relations, I wonder if we could pull up NP- NLH-198. Just had a quick question on that. There's a forecast increase in operating costs from 2016 to 2019 of about a million and a half and the indication is that this is primarily due to an increase in hiring	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions which wouldn't have been filled. As a result of that, decisions were made. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost benefit analysis from the perspective of reliability done at that time? Was there a concern that if that was put on hold that that might result in some
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16		looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N: Yeah. And for Human Resources and Labour Relations, I wonder if we could pull up NP- NLH-198. Just had a quick question on that. There's a forecast increase in operating costs from 2016 to 2019 of about a million and a half and the indication is that this is primarily due to an increase in hiring within the apprenticeship program, as well	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions which wouldn't have been filled. As a result of that, decisions were made. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost benefit analysis from the perspective of reliability done at that time? Was there a concern that if that was put on hold that that might result in some reliability concerns down the road, not
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17		looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N: Yeah. And for Human Resources and Labour Relations, I wonder if we could pull up NP- NLH-198. Just had a quick question on that. There's a forecast increase in operating costs from 2016 to 2019 of about a million and a half and the indication is that this is primarily due to an increase in hiring within the apprenticeship program, as well as the training budget. Can you just give	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions which wouldn't have been filled. As a result of that, decisions were made. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost benefit analysis from the perspective of reliability done at that time? Was there a concern that if that was put on hold that that might result in some reliability concerns down the road, not having enough manpower, that kind of thing?
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18		looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N: Yeah. And for Human Resources and Labour Relations, I wonder if we could pull up NP- NLH-198. Just had a quick question on that. There's a forecast increase in operating costs from 2016 to 2019 of about a million and a half and the indication is that this is primarily due to an increase in hiring within the apprenticeship program, as well as the training budget. Can you just give me a little bit more information on that and what the status is of that program?	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions which wouldn't have been filled. As a result of that, decisions were made. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost benefit analysis from the perspective of reliability done at that time? Was there a concern that if that was put on hold that that might result in some reliability concerns down the road, not having enough manpower, that kind of thing?
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Q.	looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N: Yeah. And for Human Resources and Labour Relations, I wonder if we could pull up NP- NLH-198. Just had a quick question on that. There's a forecast increase in operating costs from 2016 to 2019 of about a million and a half and the indication is that this is primarily due to an increase in hiring within the apprenticeship program, as well as the training budget. Can you just give me a little bit more information on that and what the status is of that program?	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions which wouldn't have been filled. As a result of that, decisions were made. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost benefit analysis from the perspective of reliability done at that time? Was there a concern that if that was put on hold that that might result in some reliability concerns down the road, not having enough manpower, that kind of thing? MS. DALLEY: A. I think that was – and again, I don't recall
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Q. MS. DALLEY	looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N: Yeah. And for Human Resources and Labour Relations, I wonder if we could pull up NP- NLH-198. Just had a quick question on that. There's a forecast increase in operating costs from 2016 to 2019 of about a million and a half and the indication is that this is primarily due to an increase in hiring within the apprenticeship program, as well as the training budget. Can you just give me a little bit more information on that and what the status is of that program? Y: The apprenticeship program?	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions which wouldn't have been filled. As a result of that, decisions were made. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost benefit analysis from the perspective of reliability done at that time? Was there a concern that if that was put on hold that that might result in some reliability concerns down the road, not having enough manpower, that kind of thing? MS. DALLEY: A. I think that was – and again, I don't recall the specific discussion, but that would have
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Q. MS. DALLEY A.	looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N: Yeah. And for Human Resources and Labour Relations, I wonder if we could pull up NP- NLH-198. Just had a quick question on that. There's a forecast increase in operating costs from 2016 to 2019 of about a million and a half and the indication is that this is primarily due to an increase in hiring within the apprenticeship program, as well as the training budget. Can you just give me a little bit more information on that and what the status is of that program? Y: The apprenticeship program?	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions which wouldn't have been filled. As a result of that, decisions were made. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost benefit analysis from the perspective of reliability done at that time? Was there a concern that if that was put on hold that that might result in some reliability concerns down the road, not having enough manpower, that kind of thing? MS. DALLEY: A. I think that was – and again, I don't recall the specific discussion, but that would have been considered inside of it, and in those
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. MS. DALLEY A. MR. O'BRIEN	looking at Schedule 3 of 10. So, yes, Corporate Services. N: Yeah. And for Human Resources and Labour Relations, I wonder if we could pull up NP- NLH-198. Just had a quick question on that. There's a forecast increase in operating costs from 2016 to 2019 of about a million and a half and the indication is that this is primarily due to an increase in hiring within the apprenticeship program, as well as the training budget. Can you just give me a little bit more information on that and what the status is of that program? Y: The apprenticeship program? N: Yes.	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 Q. That was put on hold in the 2016 year? MS. DALLEY: A. I don't think it was put on hold, but it was adjusted. So, there were some positions which wouldn't have been filled. As a result of that, decisions were made. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And was there a cost benefit analysis from the perspective of reliability done at that time? Was there a concern that if that was put on hold that that might result in some reliability concerns down the road, not having enough manpower, that kind of thing? MS. DALLEY: A. I think that was – and again, I don't recall the specific discussion, but that would have been considered inside of it, and in those early 2016 days, I'm not sure that the

	D 105	1	ne nyaro 2017 Giai
	Page 185	1	Page 187
	of Hydro and the new, what is now the Power		MS. DALLEY:
$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	Supply group, and Hydro would have been	$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	A. Yes.
3	providing services to the Muskrat Falls	3	MR. O'BRIEN:
	group. I believe that was the operating	4	Q. Okay. And are you able to put a dollar
5	model, the assumptions. And so there would	5	figure or undertake to put a dollar figure,
6	have been some change as a result of that.	6	if possible, on kind of what reductions have
7	So, my point being that in an	1	resulted from those conservation and demand
8	integrated model, you have – you know, might		management programs and Hydro's internal
9	be more flexibility. I don't have the	9	initiatives that have been realized say
10	details on that, but that was my	10	since 2015? Is it doing anything?
11	recollection of the understanding. So, even	11	(12:45 p.m. UNDERTAKING)
12	the assessment of the future state impacts	12	MS. DALLEY:
13	at that time would have been different	13	A. Yeah, I can certainly provide the figures
14	because a future state would have been	14	related to CDM.
15	different.	15	MR. O'BRIEN:
16	MR. O'BRIEN:	16	Q. Okay.
17	Q. And we looked at operating expenses. I	17	MS. DALLEY:
18	assume you can't speak to the operations	18	A. Because all those programs are economically
19	functional area group in terms of operating	19	justified and tracked very closely.
20	expenses, so anyone in Engineering or -	20	MR. O'BRIEN:
21	MS. DALLEY:	21	Q. And in terms of what effect Hydro's internal
22	A. Yeah, those would be appropriately -	22	operating initiatives might be having on the
23	MR. O'BRIEN:	23	rural deficit, are you able to provide any
24	Q. They'd be outside of your -	24	detail on that?
25	MS. DALLEY:	25	MS. DALLEY:
1	Page 186	1	Page 188
1	A. Yeah, subject to those folks.	1	A. I'm not the right person to speak to it.
2	A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN:	$\begin{vmatrix} 1\\ 2\\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3	A. Yeah, subject to those folks.MR. O'BRIEN:Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in	3	A. I'm not the right person to speak to it.MR. O'BRIEN:Q. And who would I speak to about that?
2	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the 	3 4	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY:
2 3 4 5	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring 	3 4 5	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking -
2 3 4 5 6	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So 	3 4 5	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table 	3 4 5 6 7	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we 	3 4 5 6 7 8	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we see that right now, as of yesterday anyway, 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus. MS. DALLEY:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we see that right now, as of yesterday anyway, which you accept, subject to check, the 2017 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus. MS. DALLEY: A. No. Well, no, I honestly don't know.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we see that right now, as of yesterday anyway, which you accept, subject to check, the 2017 figure is actually – it's not in the table 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus. MS. DALLEY: A. No. Well, no, I honestly don't know.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we see that right now, as of yesterday anyway, which you accept, subject to check, the 2017 figure is actually – it's not in the table here, but it's – the figure is around 60.4 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus. MS. DALLEY: A. No. Well, no, I honestly don't know. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we see that right now, as of yesterday anyway, which you accept, subject to check, the 2017 figure is actually – it's not in the table here, but it's – the figure is around 60.4 million? Would you agree with that, subject 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus. MS. DALLEY: A. No. Well, no, I honestly don't know. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we see that right now, as of yesterday anyway, which you accept, subject to check, the 2017 figure is actually – it's not in the table here, but it's – the figure is around 60.4 million? Would you agree with that, subject to check? 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus. MS. DALLEY: A. No. Well, no, I honestly don't know. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I'm trying to be helpful. I think it's
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we see that right now, as of yesterday anyway, which you accept, subject to check, the 2017 figure is actually – it's not in the table here, but it's – the figure is around 60.4 million? Would you agree with that, subject to check? 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus. MS. DALLEY: A. No. Well, no, I honestly don't know. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I'm trying to be helpful. I think it's – you know, Mr. LeBlanc would be aware of
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we see that right now, as of yesterday anyway, which you accept, subject to check, the 2017 figure is actually – it's not in the table here, but it's – the figure is around 60.4 million? Would you agree with that, subject to check? MS. DALLEY: A. Subject to check, yes. 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus. MS. DALLEY: A. No. Well, no, I honestly don't know. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I'm trying to be helpful. I think it's – you know, Mr. LeBlanc would be aware of what's happening in his area, but if it came
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we see that right now, as of yesterday anyway, which you accept, subject to check, the 2017 figure is actually – it's not in the table here, but it's – the figure is around 60.4 million? Would you agree with that, subject to check? MS. DALLEY: A. Subject to check, yes. 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus. MS. DALLEY: A. No. Well, no, I honestly don't know. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I'm trying to be helpful. I think it's – you know, Mr. LeBlanc would be aware of what's happening in his area, but if it came to the tracking of costs related to that, it
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we see that right now, as of yesterday anyway, which you accept, subject to check, the 2017 figure is actually – it's not in the table here, but it's – the figure is around 60.4 million? Would you agree with that, subject to check? MS. DALLEY: A. Subject to check, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. So, we can see that the rural deficit 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus. MS. DALLEY: A. No. Well, no, I honestly don't know. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I'm trying to be helpful. I think it's – you know, Mr. LeBlanc would be aware of what's happening in his area, but if it came to the tracking of costs related to that, it may indeed be Ms. Hutchens that would have
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we see that right now, as of yesterday anyway, which you accept, subject to check, the 2017 figure is actually – it's not in the table here, but it's – the figure is around 60.4 million? Would you agree with that, subject to check? MS. DALLEY: A. Subject to check, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. So, we can see that the rural deficit continues sort of at an increasing kind of, 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus. MS. DALLEY: A. No. Well, no, I honestly don't know. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I'm trying to be helpful. I think it's – you know, Mr. LeBlanc would be aware of what's happening in his area, but if it came to the tracking of costs related to that, it may indeed be Ms. Hutchens that would have some granularity detail, but it's likely Mr.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we see that right now, as of yesterday anyway, which you accept, subject to check, the 2017 figure is actually – it's not in the table here, but it's – the figure is around 60.4 million? Would you agree with that, subject to check? MS. DALLEY: A. Subject to check, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. So, we can see that the rural deficit continues sort of at an increasing kind of, I guess, direction. And I'm wondering, it 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus. MS. DALLEY: A. No. Well, no, I honestly don't know. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I'm trying to be helpful. I think it's – you know, Mr. LeBlanc would be aware of what's happening in his area, but if it came to the tracking of costs related to that, it may indeed be Ms. Hutchens that would have some granularity detail, but it's likely Mr. LeBlanc.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we see that right now, as of yesterday anyway, which you accept, subject to check, the 2017 figure is actually – it's not in the table here, but it's – the figure is around 60.4 million? Would you agree with that, subject to check? MS. DALLEY: A. Subject to check, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. So, we can see that the rural deficit continues sort of at an increasing kind of, I guess, direction. And I'm wondering, it appears from the reports that we see that 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus. MS. DALLEY: A. No. Well, no, I honestly don't know. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I'm trying to be helpful. I think it's – you know, Mr. LeBlanc would be aware of what's happening in his area, but if it came to the tracking of costs related to that, it may indeed be Ms. Hutchens that would have some granularity detail, but it's likely Mr. LeBlanc. MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we see that right now, as of yesterday anyway, which you accept, subject to check, the 2017 figure is actually – it's not in the table here, but it's – the figure is around 60.4 million? Would you agree with that, subject to check? MS. DALLEY: A. Subject to check, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. So, we can see that the rural deficit continues sort of at an increasing kind of, I guess, direction. And I'm wondering, it appears from the reports that we see that really the only efforts to control it seems 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus. MS. DALLEY: A. No. Well, no, I honestly don't know. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I'm trying to be helpful. I think it's – you know, Mr. LeBlanc would be aware of what's happening in his area, but if it came to the tracking of costs related to that, it may indeed be Ms. Hutchens that would have some granularity detail, but it's likely Mr. LeBlanc. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe we'll speak with counsel
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we see that right now, as of yesterday anyway, which you accept, subject to check, the 2017 figure is actually – it's not in the table here, but it's – the figure is around 60.4 million? Would you agree with that, subject to check? MS. DALLEY: A. Subject to check, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. So, we can see that the rural deficit continues sort of at an increasing kind of, I guess, direction. And I'm wondering, it appears from the reports that we see that really the only efforts to control it seems to be through conservation and demand 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus. MS. DALLEY: A. No. Well, no, I honestly don't know. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I'm trying to be helpful. I think it's – you know, Mr. LeBlanc would be aware of what's happening in his area, but if it came to the tracking of costs related to that, it may indeed be Ms. Hutchens that would have some granularity detail, but it's likely Mr. LeBlanc. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe we'll speak with counsel later and figure out -
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 A. Yeah, subject to those folks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Let me ask you just a couple of questions in terms of the rural deficit, only because the new report came in yesterday. Can we bring up NP-NLH-55? Second revision, sorry. So, if we scroll down here, we've got a table with Hydro's rural deficit outlined. So, we see that right now, as of yesterday anyway, which you accept, subject to check, the 2017 figure is actually – it's not in the table here, but it's – the figure is around 60.4 million? Would you agree with that, subject to check? MS. DALLEY: A. Subject to check, yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. So, we can see that the rural deficit continues sort of at an increasing kind of, I guess, direction. And I'm wondering, it appears from the reports that we see that really the only efforts to control it seems 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 A. I'm not the right person to speak to it. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And who would I speak to about that? MS. DALLEY: A. That is a good question. I'm thinking - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You're not going to throw anyone under the bus. MS. DALLEY: A. No. Well, no, I honestly don't know. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. So, I'm trying to be helpful. I think it's – you know, Mr. LeBlanc would be aware of what's happening in his area, but if it came to the tracking of costs related to that, it may indeed be Ms. Hutchens that would have some granularity detail, but it's likely Mr. LeBlanc. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And maybe we'll speak with counsel

April .	25, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GKA
	Page 189		Page 191
1	can figure that out.		MR. O'BRIEN:
2	MR. O'BRIEN:	2	Q. Would Mr. LeBlanc be the person to speak to
3	Q. Okay.	3	about sort of any visibility on the outlook
4	MS. GLYNN:	4	after the 2019 test year as to where this,
5	Q. And we'll note the CDM costs as an	5	where the deficit might be going?
6	undertaking.	6	MS. DALLEY:
7	MS. DALLEY:	7	A. Yeah, I think so.
8	A. Yeah.	8	MR. O'BRIEN:
9	MR. O'BRIEN:	9	Q. Just to switch directions here, I did have a
10	Q. Yeah, the CDM cost. Are you aware of any		question in terms of in the evidence, Hydro
11	other alternatives that Hydro has taken or	11	has indicated that in 2016 it engaged
12	considered in terms of reducing the rural	12	representatives at different levels of
13	deficit?	13	Newfoundland Power on how it could help
14	MS. DALLEY:	14	serve and build a stronger relationship
15	A. Do you mean alternative supply options or	15	between the two companies. How has that
16	alternatives within that?	16	progressed, in Hydro's mind?
17	MR. O'BRIEN:	17	MS. DALLEY:
18	Q. Well, alternatives to reducing the deficit	18	A. Sorry, can you reference that again?
19	or any other options that are being	19	MR. O'BRIEN:
20	considered right now.	20	Q. Yeah, sure. I think it's in 2 – yeah, page
21	MS. DALLEY:	21	210, I think that's it. Sorry, 211. Bring
22	A. I think what is filed in the report is a	22	that up of the evidence.
23	fair representation. I think we've had some	23	MS. DALLEY:
24	– and I'll say they're very preliminary	24	A. Thank you.
25	discussions, but we've had under very – I'll	25	MR. O'BRIEN:
	Page 190		Page 192
1	say reasonably active discussions with	1	Q. At the top there, line 2. "In 2016, Hydro
2	Government about alternative supplies from a	2	engaged representatives at different levels
3	renewable perspective and so, there is some	3	of Newfoundland Power on how it can help
4	assessments being done by Planning, which	4	serve and build stronger relationship
5	again I expect Mr. LeBlanc can speak to in	5	between the two companies with the aim of
6	more detail. And as well, and again, I	6	improving the end user customer experience."
7	haven't had deep discussions, but I have	7	MS. DALLEY:
8	questioned whether or not rate structures	8	A. I think we've taken a few approaches to that
9	are appropriate inside and whether there's	9	which I'll mention. One inside the role of
10	anything we can do from that perspective.	10	Key Account Management, which we've spoken
11	There are a number of pressures, as I think	11	to, Mr. Coish's role. We've also asked Mr.
12	everyone here would be aware of, with the	12	Coish, if I could say, to steward which is
13	subsidies being provided by Government which	13	probably more administratively than anything
14	are, you know, basically putting cost	14	else, the relationship with Newfoundland
15	pressures on those systems as well and so,	15	Power. So, we have regular executive
16	trying to reconcile and manage the policy	16	meetings with Newfoundland Power, our
17	direction of Government around rate	17	executive and them. We do agendas for those
18	structures that they're putting in place and	18	meetings. They're generally monthly during
19	then the pressures on, you know, capital for	19	the operating season and then during the
20	that is, you know, a discussion that we've	20	summer, they might be bimonthly or, you
21	had and I think it's probably a lament	21	know, periodically, but we do have a
22	around that, but you know, I think the	22	tendency to meet and then it's regular over
23	policy objective from Government, it's	23	the winter, where we talk through a host of
24	ultimately their decision. So, that's a	24	topics. Again, both companies contribute
25	direction that we are following.	25	equally to that.
		<u> </u>	

1	23, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 OKA
	Page 193		Page 195
	We actually did a survey of a series of	1	that out to make sure that he has some sense
2	representatives from Newfoundland Power back		of how that's happening. But my inclination
3	– don't remember the timing line on this,	3	would be that if we were to put that same
4	but I believe it was 2015. It was prior –	4	level of oversight that Mr. Coish has
5	leading up to the implementation of the Key	5	demonstrated inside of the Industrial
6	Account Management role. So that we could	6	Customer relationships into Newfoundland
7	assess opportunities and areas that we	7	Power, we would require another Mr. Coish.
8	needed to improve, again, at the time,	8	MR. O'BRIEN:
9	looking at Newfoundland Power as a utility	9	Q. It'd be different.
10	customer of Hydro's, and I think the	10	MS. DALLEY:
11	feedback that we received from Newfoundland	11	A. Yeah, and I don't know that that's required.
12	Power at the time, and I can be corrected on	12	Certainly, we haven't seen that. And at
13	this, but I think the feedback was – and	13	this point, we're able to manage it. I
14	again, I'm paraphrasing, you know, "yes, we	14	think we have fairly good and open
15	are your biggest customer, but we're also a	15	relationships at the senior levels and I
16	partner in delivering the electricity to	16	would say at the working levels. I
17	customers," which we agreed.	17	certainly haven't heard anything different.
18	So, we treat that relationship in that	18	If there's was an issue on the west coast,
19	vein. That's certainly our intention. And	19	we work collaboratively to resolve it for
20	we've increased and enhanced the	20	customers.
21	communication. I think, again, a lot of	21	MR. O'BRIEN:
22	that came out of the outages in 2013, '14	22	Q. And how about sort of with respect to
23	and '15; the enhanced advance notification	23	Regulatory Affairs? Is there anybody
24	protocol that we have, working together and	24	designated as key contact person between
25	collaborating on that, testing that	25	Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro and
	Page 194		Page 196
1	protocol.	1	Newfoundland Power when it comes to that?
2	At an operational level, there are	2	Would that be Mr. Fagan?
3	various relationships, but you know, to give	3	MS. DALLEY:
4	you some sense. I think it is better today	4	A. Mr. Fagan generally does, but again, we've
5	than it was.	5	
	than it was.)	had some discussions at the executive level
6	MR. O'BRIEN:	5 6	had some discussions at the executive level as well.
6	MR. O'BRIEN:	6	as well.
6 7	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is Mr. Coish, in terms of the Key Account,	6 7	as well. MR. O'BRIEN:
6 7 8	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is Mr. Coish, in terms of the Key Account, I'll call him liaison, is that a fair -	6 7 8	as well. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. If I could ask you justI'm going to
6 7 8 9	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is Mr. Coish, in terms of the Key Account, I'll call him liaison, is that a fair - MS. DALLEY:	6 7 8 9	as well. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. If I could ask you justI'm going to revert right back to earlier on when we
6 7 8 9 10	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is Mr. Coish, in terms of the Key Account, I'll call him liaison, is that a fair - MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's – I don't want to stretch	6 7 8 9 10	as well. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. If I could ask you justI'm going to revert right back to earlier on when we talked about the off-island purchases
6 7 8 9 10 11	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is Mr. Coish, in terms of the Key Account, I'll call him liaison, is that a fair - MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's – I don't want to stretch that, but a key administratively on behalf 	6 7 8 9 10 11	as well. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. If I could ask you justI'm going to revert right back to earlier on when we talked about the off-island purchases deferral account, and I'm going to ask you
6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is Mr. Coish, in terms of the Key Account, I'll call him liaison, is that a fair - MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's – I don't want to stretch that, but a key administratively on behalf of myself and the executive. 	6 7 8 9 10 11 12	as well. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. If I could ask you justI'm going to revert right back to earlier on when we talked about the off-island purchases deferral account, and I'm going to ask you given Newfoundland Power is, as you've said,
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is Mr. Coish, in terms of the Key Account, I'll call him liaison, is that a fair - MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's – I don't want to stretch that, but a key administratively on behalf of myself and the executive. MR. O'BRIEN: 	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	as well. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. If I could ask you justI'm going to revert right back to earlier on when we talked about the off-island purchases deferral account, and I'm going to ask you given Newfoundland Power is, as you've said, sort of a partner as providing electricity
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is Mr. Coish, in terms of the Key Account, I'll call him liaison, is that a fair - MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's – I don't want to stretch that, but a key administratively on behalf of myself and the executive. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	as well. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. If I could ask you justI'm going to revert right back to earlier on when we talked about the off-island purchases deferral account, and I'm going to ask you given Newfoundland Power is, as you've said, sort of a partner as providing electricity to customers, why there was no discussion
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is Mr. Coish, in terms of the Key Account, I'll call him liaison, is that a fair - MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's – I don't want to stretch that, but a key administratively on behalf of myself and the executive. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY:	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	as well. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. If I could ask you justI'm going to revert right back to earlier on when we talked about the off-island purchases deferral account, and I'm going to ask you given Newfoundland Power is, as you've said, sort of a partner as providing electricity to customers, why there was no discussion with Newfoundland Power at the time the rate
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is Mr. Coish, in terms of the Key Account, I'll call him liaison, is that a fair - MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's – I don't want to stretch that, but a key administratively on behalf of myself and the executive. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. You know, he coordinates the meetings. He 	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	as well. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. If I could ask you justI'm going to revert right back to earlier on when we talked about the off-island purchases deferral account, and I'm going to ask you given Newfoundland Power is, as you've said, sort of a partner as providing electricity to customers, why there was no discussion with Newfoundland Power at the time the rate case was being developed in terms of this
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is Mr. Coish, in terms of the Key Account, I'll call him liaison, is that a fair - MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's – I don't want to stretch that, but a key administratively on behalf of myself and the executive. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. You know, he coordinates the meetings. He takes the minutes. He follows up on action 	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	as well. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. If I could ask you justI'm going to revert right back to earlier on when we talked about the off-island purchases deferral account, and I'm going to ask you given Newfoundland Power is, as you've said, sort of a partner as providing electricity to customers, why there was no discussion with Newfoundland Power at the time the rate case was being developed in terms of this off-island purchases deferral account as
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is Mr. Coish, in terms of the Key Account, I'll call him liaison, is that a fair - MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's – I don't want to stretch that, but a key administratively on behalf of myself and the executive. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. You know, he coordinates the meetings. He takes the minutes. He follows up on action items. 	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	as well. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. If I could ask you justI'm going to revert right back to earlier on when we talked about the off-island purchases deferral account, and I'm going to ask you given Newfoundland Power is, as you've said, sort of a partner as providing electricity to customers, why there was no discussion with Newfoundland Power at the time the rate case was being developed in terms of this off-island purchases deferral account as being a rate mitigation strategy?
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is Mr. Coish, in terms of the Key Account, I'll call him liaison, is that a fair - MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's – I don't want to stretch that, but a key administratively on behalf of myself and the executive. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. You know, he coordinates the meetings. He takes the minutes. He follows up on action items. MR. O'BRIEN: 	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	as well. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. If I could ask you justI'm going to revert right back to earlier on when we talked about the off-island purchases deferral account, and I'm going to ask you given Newfoundland Power is, as you've said, sort of a partner as providing electricity to customers, why there was no discussion with Newfoundland Power at the time the rate case was being developed in terms of this off-island purchases deferral account as being a rate mitigation strategy? MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's a good question. MR. O'BRIEN:
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is Mr. Coish, in terms of the Key Account, I'll call him liaison, is that a fair - MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's – I don't want to stretch that, but a key administratively on behalf of myself and the executive. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. You know, he coordinates the meetings. He takes the minutes. He follows up on action items. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right. 	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	as well. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. If I could ask you justI'm going to revert right back to earlier on when we talked about the off-island purchases deferral account, and I'm going to ask you given Newfoundland Power is, as you've said, sort of a partner as providing electricity to customers, why there was no discussion with Newfoundland Power at the time the rate case was being developed in terms of this off-island purchases deferral account as being a rate mitigation strategy? MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's a good question. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is Mr. Coish, in terms of the Key Account, I'll call him liaison, is that a fair - MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's – I don't want to stretch that, but a key administratively on behalf of myself and the executive. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. You know, he coordinates the meetings. He takes the minutes. He follows up on action items. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right. MS. DALLEY: M. You know, but our relationship with Newfoundland Power is – it's so deep and 	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	as well. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. If I could ask you justI'm going to revert right back to earlier on when we talked about the off-island purchases deferral account, and I'm going to ask you given Newfoundland Power is, as you've said, sort of a partner as providing electricity to customers, why there was no discussion with Newfoundland Power at the time the rate case was being developed in terms of this off-island purchases deferral account as being a rate mitigation strategy? MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's a good question. MR. O'BRIEN:
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Is Mr. Coish, in terms of the Key Account, I'll call him liaison, is that a fair - MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's – I don't want to stretch that, but a key administratively on behalf of myself and the executive. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MS. DALLEY: A. You know, he coordinates the meetings. He takes the minutes. He follows up on action items. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right. MS. DALLEY: M. You know, but our relationship with 	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	as well. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. If I could ask you justI'm going to revert right back to earlier on when we talked about the off-island purchases deferral account, and I'm going to ask you given Newfoundland Power is, as you've said, sort of a partner as providing electricity to customers, why there was no discussion with Newfoundland Power at the time the rate case was being developed in terms of this off-island purchases deferral account as being a rate mitigation strategy? MS. DALLEY: A. I think that's a good question. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.

Fage 197Page 1971Inhaking around engaging early, reaching at it Newfoundland Power, industrial customers at and others, is a point of evolution. And we dia have, as we were discussing options, dia have, as were discussing options, dia have, have being driven primarily dia horough the government committee and, you dia have, have being driven primarily dia horough the government committee and, you dia have, have being driven primarily dia have, have, have being driven primarily dia horough the government committee and, you dia have, have, have being driven primarily dia have, have		120,2010				
2 out, doing more stakeholder engagement, be it Newfoundland Power, industrial customers and others, is a point of evolution. And we did have, as we were discussing options, did have, we're being driven primarily did have, we're talkap option did have did have, we're being driven primarily did have, we're being driven primarily did have, we're bailed to our contacts in government did haven, being option as who did have you have, did have doct haven, being option as who did have you have, did have doct haven, and have did have you know, as and down the importance of Newfoundland Power did haven, and haven, did haven, discussions at that dever hat lean speak of. 2 A A did appreciate that industrial did haven, we're haven, did haven, discussions did dever that lean speak of. 2 3 2 2 3,8000 drivet did haven, so we means dever, and haven, so we have did dever, that haven, we're haven, we're did haven, you know, discussions at that dever haven we're haven, we're dimstrate mitigation, are the dever haven you have. 2 3 2 3,000 resi did dever haven you have.				1	DROWNE O	
3 it Newfoundland Power, industrial customers 3 questions put to you by Mr. O'Brien as to exactly who are your customers and who are customers? 4 and others, is a point of evolution. And we did have, as we were discussing options, rate mitigation issues and I—to be fair, 1 6 exactly who are your customers? 6 rate mitigation issues and I—to be fair, 1 6 customers? Customers? 7 think Mr. Hynes touched on this a little 7 Hydro's customers? MS. DALLEY: 9 MR_O'BRIEN: 9 A. And 1 appreciate that that should be an easy customers that are served by Hydro are eustomers that are served by Hydro are unsomers that are served by Hydro are eustomers that are served by Hydro are through the government committee and, you 14 10 question, and to some degree it is. The eustomers and in essence, Newfoundland Power 15 11 customers. And in prevince from, if you 14 want to say, an ed (phonetic) consumer 15 perspective, but we do have, you know, as 1 16 about the importance of Newfoundland Power 16 16 that can epsk of. 17 retai customers. As well as the industrial 16 18 customers. An ed (phonetic) customers. 21 MR_O'BRIEN: 19 Power, to some degree as, you how, a means 16 18 customers. An edonesite cus					, ,	
4 and others, is a point of evolution. And we 4 exactly who are your customers and who are 5 did have, as we were discussing options, 5 you speaking for publicly, who are your 7 think Mr. Haynes touched on this a little 6 rate mitigation issues and 1—obe far, 1 8 bit in his testimony. 8 MS. DALLEY: 9 A. And I appreciate that that should be an easy question, and to some depret its. The customers far are served by Hydro are 10 Q. Yes. 10 customers f. Can are of (bond) are 11 MS. DALLEY: 9 A. And I appreciate that that should be an easy question, and to some depret its. The customers that are served by Hydro are 12 Q. Right now, we're being driven primarily 12 anyone who is ultimately receiving 13 through the government committee and, you 13 electricity in the province from if you are 14 know. J Deliex e1 that point certainly 14 watto to say, and (bond) are were as well as the industrial 18 that I can speak of. 18 customers f. and in essence, Newfoundland Power 19 MR, O'BRIEN: 19 Power, to some depret as you know, as and the industrial 21 MS, DALLEY: 21 BROWNE, Q.C.: 22 A. Ultimately, you kno					Q.	
5 did have, as we'were discussing options, rate mitigation issues and I—to be fair, 1 5 you speaking for publicly, who are your customers? Can you tell us that? Who are Hydro's ocusomers? 8 bit in his testimony. 8 MS. DALLEY: 9 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 A. And 1 appreciate that that should be an easy question, and to some degree it is. The ustromers that are served by 11 gdro are 10 Q. Yes. 10 customers? 11 MS. DALLEY: 11 customers and to some degree it is. The question, and to some degree it is. The ustromers that are served by 11 gdro are 12 Q. Kight now, we're being driven primarily through the government committee and, you the we're taked to our contast in government 13 electricity in the province commute to rate mitigation. So, that's the most that can speak of. 16 about the importance of Newfoundland Power 10 14 want to say, an end (phonetic) consumer 18 that can speak of. 19 Power, to some degree as, you know, as 1 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Power, to some degree as, you know, and mater 12 20 Q. Okay. 20 to get from a wholesale perspective, to 21 20 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 BROWNE, Q.C.: 22 A. Utimately, you know, discussions at that 23 20 Q. In terms of domestic customers? 23 MR. O'BRIEN:	3					
6 rate mitigation issues and I—to be fair, I 6 customers? Can you tell us that? Who are INydro's customers? 7 think Mr. Haynes touched on this a little 7 INydro's customers? 9 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 A. And 1 appreciate that the should be an easy question, and to some degree it is. The customers that are served by Hydro are any question, and to some degree it is. The customers that are served by Hydro are any question, and to some degree it. The customers that are served by Hydro are any question, and to some degree it. The customers that are served by Hydro are any question, and to some degree at its. The customers that are served by Hydro are any question, and to some degree at the province from, if you the now, the lever at that point certaintly 13 through the government committee and, you the appoint certaintly 13 electricity in the province from, if you the any question, and uses, question, and use, question, and use, question, and ease question, and uses question, and ease question, and use, question, and ease question, and the section, the province form, and the section, question, and to appendix the most that are mitigation, are the questions of government. 18 customers? 20 0 NB, O'BRIEN: 19 Power, to some degree as, you know, aneans the find string at the minutes, jost on questions. Make sure 1 21 BROWNE, Q.C.: 22 NA Otherwise, you have 1 23 0 In terms of domestic customers? Page 200 1 Q. Okay. 1 appreciate that 1 wonder			· 1			, , ,
7 think Mr. Haynes touched on this a little 7 Hydro's customers? 8 bit in his testimony. 8 MS. DALLEY: 10 Q. Yes. 10 And I appreciate that that should be an easy question, and to some degree it is. The customers that are served by Hydro are anyone who is ulimately receiving 11 MS. DALLEY: 11 customers that are served by Hydro are anyone who is ulimately receiving 12 Q. Right now, we're being driven primarily 12 anyone who is ulimately receiving 13 through the government committee and, you 13 electricity in the province from, if you 14 know, believe at that point certainly 14 want to say, an end (phonetic) consumer 15 we've talked to our contacts in government 15 perspective, but we do have, you know, as I 18 that I can speak of. 18 customers. And in essence, Newfoundland 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Power, to some degree as, you know, an enass 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 deliver that power to those customers. 22 A. Ultimately, you know, discussions at that 22 BROWNE, Q.C.: 38,000 residential customers? 23 Ivevel, a that are mitigation, are the 23 Q. In terms of domestic customers? Page 200 1 Q. Okay, 1 appreciate that. I wonder, Madam <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>01</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>			01			
8 bit in his testimony. 8 MS. DALLEY: 9 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 A. And appreciate that that should be an easy question, and to some degree it is. The question, and to some degree it is. The customers that are served by Hydro are anyone who is ultimately receiving 12 Q. Right now, we're being driven primarily 12 anyone who is ultimately receiving 13 through the government committee and, you 13 celestricity in the province from, if you 14 know, I believe at that point certainly 14 wan one obasic points of the province from, if you appreciate that that should be an easy 15 we've talked to our contacts in government 15 perspective, but we do have, you know, as 1 16 about the importance of NewYoundland Power 16 think zeryone understands, 38,000 direct 17 to rate mitigation, are the questions of government. 18 customers. And in essence, NewYoundland 20 Q. Okay. 20 to get from a wholesale perspective, to 21 21 deliver that zer mitigation, are the questions of government. 23 BROWNE, QC.C: 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 200 2 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>6</td> <td></td> <td></td>				6		
9 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 A. And I appreciate that that should be an easy question, and to some degree it is. The customers that are served by Hydro are using the government committee and, you the know. I believe at that point certainly 12 Q. Right now, we're being driven primarily through the government committee and, you the know. I believe at that point certainly 12 anyone who is ultimately receiving 13 through the government containt and, you the we've talked to our contacts in government 15 perspective, but we do have, you know, as I think everyone understands, 38,000 direct 16 about the importance of Newfoundland Power to trat mitigation. St, that's the most that I can speak of. 18 customers. And in essence, Newfoundland Power, to some degree at, you know, as nemas to to get from a wholesale perspective, to to get from a wholesale perspective, to to get from a wholesale perspective, to to get from a wholesale perspective, to deliver that power to those customers. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 BROWNE, Q.C: 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MS. DALLEY: 24 decisions of government. 24 38,000 residential customers? 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MS. DALLEY: 26 Chair, I'l could have five minutes, just to thinked with my questions. Make sure I 3 Q. 3 0.01 returns of domestric customers? 28 4 fin phrough my nocks, but think'I'n 3 Q. </td <td>· ·</td> <td></td> <td>-</td> <td>7</td> <td></td> <td>5</td>	· ·		-	7		5
10 Q. Yes. 10 question, and to some degree it is. The customers that are served by Hydro are anyone who is ultimately receiving 11 MS. DALLEY: 11 customers that are served by Hydro are anyone who is ultimately receiving 13 through the government committee and, you 13 electricity in the province from, if you 14 know, I believe at that point certainly 14 want to say, an end (phonetic) consumer 15 we've talked to our contacts in government 15 perspective, but we do have, you know, as 1 16 about the importance of Newfoundland Power 16 think everyone understands, 38,000 direct 17 to rate mitigation. So, that's the most 17 retail customers as well as the industrial 18 that I can speak of. 18 customers. And in essence, Newfoundland 20 Q. Okay. 20 to get from a wholesale perspective, to 21 deliver that rate mitigation, are the decisions of government. 23 Q. In terms of domestic customers? 23 fley dub havefree minutes, just to 1 A. Yes, I thinki it's been slightly – 24 Ghair if could have fire minutes, just to 1 A. Yes, I thinki it corteret? And 1 3			5			
11 MS. DALLEY: 11 customers that are served by Hydro are 12 Q. Right now, we're being driven primarily 12 anyone who is ultimately receiving 13 through the government committee and, you 13 electricity in the province from, if you 14 know, I believe at that point certainly 14 want to say, an end (phonetic) consumer 15 we've talked to our contacts in government 16 think everyone understands, 3000 direct 18 math 1 can speak of. 18 customers. And in sessence, Newfoundland Power 14 WR. OBRIEN: 19 Power, to some degree as, you know, a means 20 Q. Okay. 20 to get from a wholesale perspective, to 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 BROWNE, Q.C.: 21 23 level, at that rate mitigation, are the 23 Q. In terms of domestic customers, you have 24 decisions of government. 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 200 1 A. Steps in think in the minutes, gist to 2 BROWNE, Q.C.: 25 MR. OBRIEN: 2 BROWNE, Q.C.: Page 200 1 A. Yes, 1 think it's been slightly - </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>-</td> <td>А.</td> <td></td>				-	А.	
12 Q. Right now, we're being driven primarily trough the government committee and, you know, it believe at that point certainly 13 electricity in the province from, if you want to say, an end (phonetic) consumer 13 we've talked to our contacts in government 15 perspective, but we do have, you know, as I 16 about the importance of Newfoundland Power 16 think everyone understands, 38,000 direct 17 to rate mitigation. So, that's the most 17 retail customers. And in essence, Newfoundland 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Power, to some degree as, you know, as and the industrial 20 Q. Okay. 20 to get from a wholesale perspective, to 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 BROWNE, Q.C.: 23 Q. In terms of domestic customers, you have 23 level, at that rate mitigation, are the 24 38,000 residential customers? 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 198 Page 200 1 Q. Okay. I appreciate that. I wonder, Madam 1 A. Yes, I think it's been slightly – Page 200 2 Ghair, if Louid have five minutes, just to 1 A. Yes, I think it's been slightly – Page 200 1 Q						
13 through the government committee and, you 13 electricity in the province from, if you 14 know, I believe at that point certainly 14 want to say, an end (phonetic) consumer 15 we've talked to our contacts in government 15 perspective, but we do have, you know, as I 16 about the importance of Newfoundland Power 16 think veryone understands, 38,000 direct 18 that I can speak of. 18 customers. And in essence, Newfoundland 20 Q. Okay. 20 to get from a wholesale perspective, to 21 MS. DALLEY: 20 to get from a wholesale perspective, to 22 A. Ultimately, you know, discussions at that 22 BROWNE, Q.C.: 23 Q. Okay. Lappreciate that. I wonder, Madam 1 A. Yes, I think it's been slightly – 24 Chair, if Loudh Are free minutes, isst to 2 BROWNE, Q.C.: BROWNE, Q.C.: 3 flip through my notes, but I think I'n 3 Q. Okay, 38,000. Then otherwise, your A customers are the industrials and 5 minutes and – 7 BROWNE, Q.C.: BROWNE, Q.C.: 18 minutes and – 8 MS. DALLEY: Page						
14 know, I believe at that point certainly 14 wart to say, an end (phonetic) consumer 15 we've talked to our contacts in government 15 perspective, but we do have, you know, as 1 16 about the importance of NewYoundland Power 16 think veryone understands, 38,000 direct 17 to rate mitigation. So, that's the most 17 retail customers as well as the industrial 18 that I can speak of. 18 customers. And in essence, NewYoundland 20 Q. Okay. 20 to get form a wholesale perspective, to deliver that power to those customers. 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 deliver that power to those customers. 23 level, at that rate mitigation, are the 23 Q. In terms of domestic customers? 24 decisions of government. 24 38,000 residential customers? 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 200 1 Q. Okay. 1 appreciate that.1 wonder, Madam 1 A. Yes, 1 think it's been slightly – 2 Chair, fil could have five minutes, isis to 2 BROWNE, Q.C.: BROWNE, Q.C.: 3 flip through my notes, but I think I'm 3 Q. Okay, 38,000. Then otherwise	12	Q.		12		, , ,
15 we've talked to our contacts in government 15 perspective, but we do have, you know, as 1 16 about the importance of Newfoundland Power 16 think everyone understands, 38,000 direct 17 to rate mitigation. So, that's the most 17 retail customers as well as the industrial 18 that I can speak of. 18 customers. And in essence, Newfoundland 19 MR. O'BRLEN: 19 Power, to some degree as, you know, a means 20 Q. Okay. 20 to get from a wholesale perspective, to 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 deliver that power to those customers. 23 level, at that rate mitigation, are the 23 Q. In terms of domestic customers, you have 24 decisions of government. 24 38,000 residential customers? 25 MR. O'BRLEN: 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 200 1 Q. Okay, 1appreciate that. I wonder, Madam 1 A. Yes, I think it's been slightly – 2 Chair, if louid have five minutes, just to 2 BROWNE, Q.C.: Page 200 3 flip through my notes, but I think I'm 3 Q. Okay, 38,000. Then otherwise, your customers and the industrials and <td>13</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>13</td> <td></td> <td>electricity in the province from, if you</td>	13			13		electricity in the province from, if you
16 about the importance of Newfoundland Power 16 think everyone understands, 38,000 direct 17 to rate mitigation. So, that's the most 17 retail customers as well as the industrial 18 that I can speak of. 18 customers. And in essence, Newfoundland 20 Q. Okay. 20 to get from a wholesale perspective, to 21 MS. DALLEY: 20 Level, at that rate mitigation, are the 23 23 A. Ultimately, you know, discussions at that 24 38,000 residential customers? 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 198 1 Q. Okay. 1 appreciate that. I wonder, Madam A. Yes, I think it's been slightly – 2 Chair, if I could have five minutes, just to 2 BROWNE, Q.C.: Page 200 3 filp through my notes, but I think I'm 3 Q. Okay. 38,000. Then otherwise, your 4 finished with my questions. Make sure I 4 customers are the industrials and 5 Newfoundland Power, is that correct? And I guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the interconcet system as well? 6 CHAR: 9 A. That'	14		know, I believe at that point certainly	14		want to say, an end (phonetic) consumer
17 to rate mitigation. So, that's the most 17 retail customers as well as the industrial customers. And in essence, Newfoundland 18 that I can speak of. 18 customers. And in essence, Newfoundland 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Power, to some degree as, you know, a means 20 Q. Okay. 20 to get from a wholesale perspective, to 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 deliver that power to those customers. 22 A. Ultimately, you know, discussions at that 22 23 level, at that rate mitigation, are the 23 Q. In terms of domestic customers, you have 24 decisions of government. 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 200 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 200 2 Chair, if l could have five minutes, just to 2 BROWNE, Q.C.: 9 3 flip through my notes, but I think I'm 3 Q. Okay, 38,000. Then otherwise, your 4 finished with my questions. Make sure I 4 S. DALLEY: 9 6 CHAR: 9 A. That's true. 10 Q. Yes.	15		we've talked to our contacts in government	15		perspective, but we do have, you know, as I
18 that I can speak of. 18 customers. And in essence, Newfoundland 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Power, to some degree as, you know, a means 20 Q. Okay. 20 to get from a wholesale perspective, to 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 deliver that power to those customers. 22 A. Ultimately, you know, discussions at that 22 23 level, at that rate mitigation, are the 23 Q. In terms of domestic customers, you have 24 decisions of government. 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 200 1 Q. Okay. 1 appreciate that. I wonder, Madam 1 A. Yes, I think it's been slightly – 2 Chair, if loudd have five minutes, just to 3 Q. Okay. 38,000. Then otherwise, your 2 Chair, if oudd have five minutes, just to 3 Q. Newfoundland Power, is that correct? And I 5 haven't got any – 6 guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the 6 CHAIR: 9 A. That's true. 10 Q. Yes, thank you. 12 and you're talking about consumers and 13 (OFF RECORD	16		about the importance of Newfoundland Power	16		think everyone understands, 38,000 direct
18 that I can speak of. 18 customers. And in essence, Newfoundland 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Power, to some degree as, you know, a means 20 Q. Okay. 20 to get from a wholesale perspective, to 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 deliver that power to those customers. 22 A. Ultimately, you know, discussions at that 22 23 level, at that rate mitigation, are the 23 Q. In terms of domestic customers, you have 24 decisions of government. 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 200 1 Q. Okay. 1 appreciate that. I wonder, Madam 1 A. Yes, 1 think it's been slightly – 2 Chair, if loudd have five minutes, just to 2 BROWNE, Q.C.: 2 BROWNE, Q.C.: 3 flip through my notes, but I think 1'm 3 Q. Okay, 38,000. Then otherwise, your 4 finished with my questions. Make sure I 4 customers are the industrials and 5 haven't got any – 5 Newrfoundland Power, is that correct? And I 6 CHAIR: 9 A. That's true. 10 Q	17		to rate mitigation. So, that's the most	17		retail customers as well as the industrial
19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Power, to some degree as, you know, a means 20 Q. Okay. 20 to get from a wholesale perspective, to 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 deliver that power to those customers. 22 A. Ultimately, you know, discussions at that 23 level, at that rate mitigation, are the 23 Q. In terms of domestic customers, you have 24 decisions of government. 24 38,000 residential customers? MS. DALLEY: 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 200 2 Chair, if I could have five minutes, just to 2 BROWNE, Q.C.: 3 3 flip through my notes, but I think I'm 3 Q. Okay, 38,000. Then otherwise, your 4 fmished with my questions. Make sure I 4 customers are the industrials and 5 haven't got any- 5 Newfoundland Power, is that correct? And I 6 CHAIR: 19 A. That's true. 10 Q. Yes. 10 BROWNE, Q.C.: 11 CHAR: 11 Q. So, when you bring forward this application, and you're talking about consumers and and you're talking about consumers and industrials and you're talking about con	18			18		customers. And in essence, Newfoundland
20 Q. Okay. 20 to get from a wholesale perspective, to deliver that power to those customers. 21 MS. DALLEY: 21 deliver that power to those customers. 22 A. Ultimately, you know, discussions at that 22 BROWNE, Q.C.: 23 Q. In terms of domestic customers, you have 24 24 decisions of government. 24 38,000 residential customers? 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 200 1 Q. Okay. I appreciate that. I wonder, Madam 1 A. Yes, I think it's been slightly - 2 Chair, if lould have five minutes, just to 2 BROWNE, Q.C.: 3 flip through my notes, but I think I'm 3 Q. Okay, 38,000. Then otherwise, your 4 fnished with my questions. Make sure I 4 customers are the industrials and 5 haven't got any - 5 Newfoundland Power, is that correct? And I 6 CHAIR: 9 A. That's true. 10 Q. Yes. 10 BROWNE, Q.C.: 11 Q. So, when you bring forward this application, and you're talking about consumers and customers generally that you're talking about consumers and customeres generally that you're		MR. O'BRI	-	19		
21 MS. DALLEY: 21 deliver that power to those customers. 22 A. Ultimately, you know, discussions at that 22 23 level, at that rate mitigation, are the 23 Q. In terms of domestic customers, you have 24 decisions of government. 23 Q. In terms of domestic customers, you have 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 200 1 Q. Okay. 1 appreciate that. 1 wonder, Madam 1 A. Yes, I think it's been slightly – 2 Chair, if I could have five minutes, just to 3 Q. Okay. 38,000. Then otherwise, your 3 flip through my questions. Make sure I 4 customers are the industrials and 5 5 haven't got any – 6 guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the interconnected system as well? 6 CHAIR: 6 guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the interconnected system as well? 8 minutes and – 8 MS. DALLEY: 9 A. That's true. 10 Q. Yes, thank you. 12 and you're talking about consumers and customers; generally that you're talking about. 1	20	Q.	Okay.	20		
22 A. Ultimately, you know, discussions at that 22 BROWNE, Q.C.: 23 level, at that rate mitigation, are the 23 Q. In terms of domestic customers, you have 24 decisions of government. 24 38,000 residential customers? 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 200 1 Q. Okay, 1 appreciate that. 1 wonder, Madam 1 A. Yes, 1 think it's been slightly – 2 Chair, if I could have five minutes, just to 3 BROWNE, Q.C.: BROWNE, Q.C.: 3 flip through my notes, but 1 think 1m 3 Q. Okay, 38,000. Then otherwise, your 4 fnished with my questions. Make sure 1 4 customers are the industrials and 5 haven't got an – 6 guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the 6 CHAIR: 9 A. That's true. 10 Q. Yes. 10 BROWNE, Q.C.: 11 Q. So, when you bring forward this application, and you're talking about consumers and and you're talking about consumers and instruction and you're talking about customers's enerally that you're talking about. 12 Q. Yes. 10 BROWNE, Q.C.: 11 Q. Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was thelpful	21			21		
23 level, at thar ate mitigation, are the 23 Q. In terms of domestic customers, you have 24 38,000 residential customers? 24 38,000 residential customers? 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 200 1 Q. Okay. I appreciate that. I wonder, Madam 1 A. Yes, I think it's been slightly – 2 Chair, if I could have five minutes, just to 3 flip through my notes, but I think I'm 3 Q. Okay, 38,000. Then otherwise, your 4 fnished with my questions. Make sure I 4 customers are the industrials and 5 5 haven't got any – 6 guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the 6 CHAIR: 7 guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the 7 Q. Do you want to have-to step out for five 8 MS. DALLEY: 9 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 A. That's true. 10 Q. Yes, thank you. 12 and you're talking about consumers and 13 (OFF RECORD - 12:33 P.M.) 13 customers generally that you're talking about? 16 Q. Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was t	22	A.	Ultimately, you know, discussions at that	22	BROWNE, Q.	
24 decisions of government. 24 38,000 residential customers? 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 200 1 Q. Okay. I appreciate that. I wonder, Madam 1 A. Yes, I think it's been slightly – 2 Chair, if I could have five minutes, just to 2 BROWNE, Q.C.: 3 flip through my notes, but I think I'm 3 Q. Okay, 38,000. Then otherwise, your 4 fmished with my questions. Make sure I 4 customers are the industrials and 5 haven't got any – 5 Newfoundland Power, is that correct? And I 6 CHAIR: 6 guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the interconnected system as well? 8 minutes and – 8 MS. DALLEY: 9 9 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 A. That's true. 10 10 Q. Yes. 10 BROWNE, Q.C.: 11 Q. So, when you bring forward this application, and you're talking about consumers and customers generally that you're talking about? 15 CHAIR: 11 Q. So, when you bring forward this application, at you're talking about? 13 customers generally that you're talking about? 15 CHAIR:	23			23	Q.	In terms of domestic customers, you have
25 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MS. DALLEY: Page 200 1 Q. Okay. I appreciate that. I wonder, Madam 1 A. Yes, I think it's been slightly – Page 200 2 Chair, if I could have five minutes, just to 2 BROWNE, Q.C.: BROWNE, Q.C.: BROWNE, Q.C.: BROWNE, Q.C.: Customers are the industrials and 4 customers are the industrials and 5 haven't got any – 6 guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the 7 interconnected system as well? MS. DALLEY: 9 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 A. That's true. 10 Q. Yes. 10 Q. Yes. 10 Q. Yes. 11 Q. So, when you bring forward this application, 12 Q. Yes, thank you. 12 and you're talking about consumers and 13 (OFF RECORD - 12:33 P.M.) 13 customers generally that you're talking 15 CHAIR: 15 about? 16 MS. DALLEY: 14 (RESUME - 1:01 P.M.) 14 customers generally that you're talking about. 15 CHAIR: 17 A. It depends on what we're talkin				24		
1Q.Okay. I appreciate that. I wonder, Madam1A.Yes, I think it's been slightly –2Chair, if I could have five minutes, just to3flip through my notes, but I think I'm3Q.Okay, 38,000. Then otherwise, your4finished with my questions. Make sure I4customers are the industrials and5Newfoundland Power, is that correct? And I5haven't got any –5Newfoundland Power, is that correct? And I6guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the6CHAIR:6guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the7interconnected system as well?8minutes and –8MS. DALLEY:9MR. O'BRIEN:9A.That's true.10Q.Yes.10BROWNE, Q.C.:11CHAIR:11Q.So, when you bring forward this application,12Q.Yes, thank you.12and you're talking about consumers and13(OFF RECORD - 12:33 P.M.)14customers, it's Newfoundland Power's14(RESUME - 1:01 P.M.)14customers generally that you're talking about.15CHAIR:15about?16Q.Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful?1617MR. O'BRIEN:17A.It depends on what we're talking about.18Q.That was helpful, and I think everyone else18BROWNE, Q.C.:19will think it's helpful. I have no more19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic20 <td< td=""><td></td><td>MR. O'BRI</td><td></td><td>25</td><td>MS. DALLEY</td><td></td></td<>		MR. O'BRI		25	MS. DALLEY	
1Q.Okay. I appreciate that. I wonder, Madam1A.Yes, I think it's been slightly –2Chair, if I could have five minutes, just to3flip through my notes, but I think I'm3Q.Okay, 38,000. Then otherwise, your4finished with my questions. Make sure I4customers are the industrials and5Newfoundland Power, is that correct? And I5haven't got any –5Newfoundland Power, is that correct? And I6guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the6CHAIR:6guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the7interconnected system as well?8minutes and –8MS. DALLEY:9MR. O'BRIEN:9A.That's true.10Q.Yes.10BROWNE, Q.C.:11CHAIR:11Q.So, when you bring forward this application,12Q.Yes, thank you.12and you're talking about consumers and13(OFF RECORD - 12:33 P.M.)14customers, it's Newfoundland Power's14(RESUME - 1:01 P.M.)14customers generally that you're talking about.15CHAIR:15about?16Q.Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful?1617MR. O'BRIEN:17A.It depends on what we're talking about.18Q.That was helpful, and I think everyone else18BROWNE, Q.C.:19will think it's helpful. I have no more19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic20 <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>Page 198</td><td></td><td></td><td>Page 200</td></td<>			Page 198			Page 200
2Chair, if I could have five minutes, just to 32BROWNE, Q.C.:3flip through my notes, but I think I'm 43Q.Okay, 38,000. Then otherwise, your customers are the industrials and4finished with my questions. Make sure I haven't got any –4customers are the industrials and6CHAIR:6guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the r7Q. Do you want to haveto step out for five minutes and –8MS. DALLEY:9MR. O'BRIEN:9A.That's true.10Q. Yes.10BROWNE, Q.C.:1111CHAIR:11Q.So, when you bring forward this application, and you're talking about consumers and customers generally that you're talking about?15CHAIR:15about?16Q. Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful?16MS. DALLEY:17MR. O'BRIEN:17A.It depends on what we're talking about.18Q.That was helpful, and I think everyone else18BROWNE, Q.C.:19will think it's helpful. I have no more questions.19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic rates.20Q.Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready to start your cross?22A.Oh yes.23to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:24Q.And this application is effectively about	1	0. 0		1	А.	-
3flip through my notes, but I think I'm3Q.Okay, 38,000. Then otherwise, your4finished with my questions. Make sure I4customers are the industrials and5haven't got any -5Newfoundland Power, is that correct? And I6CHAIR:6guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the7Q. Do you want to have-to step out for five7interconnected system as well?8minutes and -8MS. DALLEY:9MR. O'BRIEN:9A.That's true.10Q. Yes.10BROWNE, Q.C.:11CHAIR:11Q.So, when you bring forward this application,12Q. Yes, thank you.12and you're talking about consumers and13(OFF RECORD - 12:33 P.M.)13customers, it's Newfoundland Power's14(RESUME - 1:01 P.M.)14customers generally that you're talking15CHAIR:15about?16Q. Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful?16MS. DALLEY:17MR. O'BRIEN:17A.It depends on what we're talking about.18Q. That was helpful, and I think everyone else18BROWNE, Q.C.:19will think it's helpful.14MS. DALLEY:20Q.That was helpful, and I think everyone else1821CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:22Q.Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready22A.23to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:<	2			2	BROWNE, Q	
4finished with my questions. Make sure I4customers are the industrials and5haven't got any -5Newfoundland Power, is that correct? And I6CHAIR:6guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the7Q. Do you want to have-to step out for five7interconnected system as well?8minutes and -8MS. DALLEY:9MR. O'BRIEN:9A.That's true.10Q. Yes.10BROWNE, Q.C.:11CHAIR:11Q.So, when you bring forward this application,12Q. Yes, thank you.12and you're talking about consumers and13(OFF RECORD - 12:33 P.M.)13customers, it's Newfoundland Power's14(RESUME - 1:01 P.M.)14customers generally that you're talking15CHAIR:15about?16Q. Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful?16MS. DALLEY:17MR. O'BRIEN:17A.It depends on what we're talking about.18Q. That was helpful, and I think everyone else18BROWNE, Q.C.:20questions.20rates.21CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:22Q.Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready2223to start your cross?2324MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,24Q.24MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,24Q.24MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE, <td>3</td> <td></td> <td>, ,</td> <td>3</td> <td></td> <td></td>	3		, ,	3		
5haven't got any-5Newfoundland Power, is that correct? And I6CHAIR:6guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the7Q. Do you want to have-to step out for five7interconnected system as well?8minutes and -8MS. DALLEY:9MR. O'BRIEN:9A.That's true.10Q. Yes.10BROWNE, Q.C.:11CHAIR:11Q.So, when you bring forward this application,12Q. Yes, thank you.12and you're talking about consumers and13(OFF RECORD - 12:33 P.M.)13customers, it's Newfoundland Power's14(RESUME - 1:01 P.M.)14customers generally that you're talking15CHAIR:15about?16Q. Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful?16MS. DALLEY:17MR. O'BRIEN:17A.It depends on what we're talking about.18Q. That was helpful, and I think everyone else19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic20questions.21MS. DALLEY:12MS. DALLEY:22Q. Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready22A.Oh yes.23to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:24Q.24MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,24Q.And this application is effectively about	4			4		
6CHAIR:6guess, up in Labrador you have IOC and the7Q. Do you want to have-to step out for five minutes and -8MS. DALLEY:9MR. O'BRIEN:9A.That's true.10Q. Yes.10BROWNE, Q.C.:1111CHAIR:11Q.So, when you bring forward this application,12Q. Yes, thank you.12and you're talking about consumers and13(OFF RECORD - 12:33 P.M.)13customers, it's Newfoundland Power's14(RESUME - 1:01 P.M.)14customers generally that you're talking15CHAIR:15about?16Q. Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful?16MS. DALLEY:17MR. O'BRIEN:17A.It depends on what we're talking about.18Q. That was helpful, and I think everyone else18BROWNE, Q.C.:19will think it's helpful. I have no more19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic20questions.21MS. DALLEY:22A.Oh yes.21CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:22A.Oh yes.22Q.Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready22A.Oh yes.23to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:24Q.And this application is effectively about	5			5		
7Q.Do you want to have-to step out for five minutes and -7interconnected system as well?8minutes and -8MS. DALLEY:9MR. O'BRIEN:9A.That's true.10Q.Yes.10BROWNE, Q.C.:11CHAIR:11Q.So, when you bring forward this application,12Q.Yes, thank you.12and you're talking about consumers and13(OFF RECORD - 12:33 P.M.)13customers, it's Newfoundland Power's14(RESUME - 1:01 P.M.)14customers generally that you're talking15CHAIR:15about?16Q.Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful?16MS. DALLEY:17MR. O'BRIEN:17A.It depends on what we're talking about.18Q.That was helpful, and I think everyone else18BROWNE, Q.C.:19will think it's helpful. I have no more19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic20questions.21MS. DALLEY:22A.Oh yes.21CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:22A.Oh yes.23to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:24Q.And this application is effectively about	6			6		,
8 minutes and - 8 MS. DALLEY: 9 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 A. That's true. 10 Q. Yes. 10 BROWNE, Q.C.: 11 CHAIR: 11 Q. So, when you bring forward this application, 12 Q. Yes, thank you. 12 and you're talking about consumers and 13 (OFF RECORD - 12:33 P.M.) 13 customers, it's Newfoundland Power's 14 (RESUME - 1:01 P.M.) 14 customers generally that you're talking 15 CHAIR: 15 about? 16 Q. Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful? 16 MS. DALLEY: 17 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 A. It depends on what we're talking about. 18 Q. That was helpful, and I think everyone else 18 BROWNE, Q.C.: 19 will think it's helpful. I have no more 19 Q. Okay. But if you're talking about domestic 20 questions. 21 MS. DALLEY: 22 A. Oh yes. 23 to start your cross? 22 A. Oh yes. 23 <td>7</td> <td></td> <td>to you want to haveto step out for five</td> <td>7</td> <td></td> <td></td>	7		to you want to haveto step out for five	7		
9MR. O'BRIEN:9A.That's true.10Q.Yes.10BROWNE, Q.C.:11CHAIR:11Q.So, when you bring forward this application,12Q.Yes, thank you.12and you're talking about consumers and13(OFF RECORD - 12:33 P.M.)13customers, it's Newfoundland Power's14(RESUME - 1:01 P.M.)14customers generally that you're talking15CHAIR:15about?16Q.Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful?16MS. DALLEY:17MR. O'BRIEN:17A.It depends on what we're talking about.18Q.That was helpful, and I think everyone else18BROWNE, Q.C.:19will think it's helpful. I have no more19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic20questions.20rates.2121CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:2222Q.Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready22A.Oh yes.23to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:24Q.And this application is effectively about	8		5	8	MS DALLEY	2
10Q.Yes.10BROWNE, Q.C.:11CHAIR:11Q.So, when you bring forward this application,12Q.Yes, thank you.12and you're talking about consumers and13(OFF RECORD - 12:33 P.M.)13customers, it's Newfoundland Power's14(RESUME - 1:01 P.M.)14customers generally that you're talking15CHAIR:15about?16Q.Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful?16MS. DALLEY:17MR. O'BRIEN:17A.It depends on what we're talking about.18Q.That was helpful, and I think everyone else18BROWNE, Q.C.:19will think it's helpful. I have no more19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic20questions.21CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:22Q.Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready22A.Oh yes.23to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:2324MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,24Q.And this application is effectively about						
11CHAIR:11Q.So, when you bring forward this application, and you're talking about consumers and12Q.Yes, thank you.12and you're talking about consumers and13(OFF RECORD - 12:33 P.M.)13customers, it's Newfoundland Power's14(RESUME - 1:01 P.M.)14customers generally that you're talking15CHAIR:15about?16Q.Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful?16MS. DALLEY:17MR. O'BRIEN:17A.It depends on what we're talking about.18Q.That was helpful. I have no more19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic20questions.21CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:22A.Oh yes.21CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:22A.Oh yes.23to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:24MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,24Q.And this application is effectively about			lec .			
12Q.Yes, thank you.12and you're talking about consumers and13(OFF RECORD - 12:33 P.M.)13customers, it's Newfoundland Power's14(RESUME - 1:01 P.M.)14customers generally that you're talking15CHAIR:15about?16Q.Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful?16MS. DALLEY:17MR. O'BRIEN:17A.It depends on what we're talking about.18Q.That was helpful, and I think everyone else19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic20questions.20rates.21CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:22Q.Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready22A.Oh yes.2323to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:23BROWNE, Q.C.:24MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,24Q.And this application is effectively about		•			, (
13(OFF RECORD - 12:33 P.M.)13customers, it's Newfoundland Power's14(RESUME - 1:01 P.M.)14customers generally that you're talking15CHAIR:15about?16Q.Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful?16MS. DALLEY:17MR. O'BRIEN:17A.It depends on what we're talking about.18Q.That was helpful, and I think everyone else19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about.19will think it's helpful. I have no more19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic20questions.20rates.21CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:22Q.Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready23to start your cross?2324MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,24Q.And this application is effectively about			es thank you		×۰	
14(RESUME - 1:01 P.M.)14customers generally that you're talking15CHAIR:15about?16Q.Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful?16MS. DALLEY:17MR. O'BRIEN:16MS. DALLEY:18Q.That was helpful, and I think everyone else18BROWNE, Q.C.:19will think it's helpful. I have no more19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about.20questions.20rates.21CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:2222Q.Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready23to start your cross?2323to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:2424MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,24Q.And this application is effectively about		ų. I				
15CHAIR:15about?16Q. Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful?16MS. DALLEY:17MR. O'BRIEN:16MS. DALLEY:18Q. That was helpful, and I think everyone else17A. It depends on what we're talking about.19will think it's helpful. I have no more19Q. Okay. But if you're talking about domestic20questions.19Q. Okay. But if you're talking about domestic21CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:22Q. Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready23to start your cross?24MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,24Q. And this application is effectively about						
16Q.Okay, Mr. O'Brien. Was that helpful?16MS. DALLEY:17MR. O'BRIEN:17A.It depends on what we're talking about.18Q.That was helpful, and I think everyone else17A.It depends on what we're talking about.19will think it's helpful. I have no more19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic20questions.19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic21CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:2222Q.Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready23to start your cross?2324MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,24Q.And this application is effectively about		CUAID				
17MR. O'BRIEN:17A.It depends on what we're talking about.18Q.That was helpful, and I think everyone else17A.It depends on what we're talking about.19will think it's helpful. I have no more19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic20questions.19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic21CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:22A.Oh yes.23to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:23BROWNE, Q.C.:24MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,24Q.And this application is effectively about			New Mr O'Drian Was that halpful?		MC DALLES	
18Q.That was helpful, and I think everyone else18BROWNE, Q.C.:19will think it's helpful. I have no more19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic20questions.19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic21CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:22Q.Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready22A.Oh yes.23to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:2324MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,24Q.And this application is effectively about			vkay, wit. O Ditett. was utat theipitut?			
19will think it's helpful. I have no more questions.19Q.Okay. But if you're talking about domestic rates.20questions.20rates.21CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:22Q.Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready to start your cross?22A.Oh yes.23to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:24Q.And this application is effectively about			hat was halpful and I think avay on a las			
20questions.20rates.21CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:22Q.Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready22A.23to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:24MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,24Q.And this application is effectively about						
21CHAIR:21MS. DALLEY:22Q.Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready22A.Oh yes.23to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:2424MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,24Q.And this application is effectively about			1		Q.	
22Q.Thank you, sir. Mr. Browne, are you ready22A.Oh yes.23to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:24MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,24Q.And this application is effectively about			uestions.			
23to start your cross?23BROWNE, Q.C.:24MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,24Q.And this application is effectively about			1			
24 MS. DAWN DALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE, 24 Q. And this application is effectively about						
			•			
25Q.U.25domestic rates. So, the application then			ALLEY, CROSS-EXAMINATION BY DENNIS BROWNE,		Q.	11 5
	1.25	Q.C.		25		domestic rates. So, the application then

<u>April</u>	25, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 201		Page 203
1	affects Newfoundland Power's customers and	1	customers during the interim period? This
2	your 38,000 residential customers? Is that	2	application is going to be deferred now
3	fair to say?	3	until the summer months. Are you
4	MS. DALLEY:	4	anticipating a time to meet with
5	A. That's correct, along with the other	5	Newfoundland Power and the industrial
	customers which you mentioned.		customers to tell them what you're doing,
$\begin{bmatrix} 6\\7 \end{bmatrix}$	•	6	
	BROWNE, Q.C.:	7	what your plans are and where it's all
8	Q. Pardon?	8	happening?
9	MS. DALLEY:	9	MS. DALLEY:
10	A. The industrial customers.	10	A. Again, subject to my recollection, but we
11	BROWNE, Q.C.:	11	would have had discussions once the filing
12	Q. Yes. Okay. So, and your evidence is that	12	had taken place through the executive
13	you're bringing in this so-called mitigation	13	meetings that we have had on things that
14	plan or deferral account or whatever way you	14	were before the Board, and then we have the
15	want to term it. And you're doing so	15	evidence which has been presented on the
16	without having had any discussions at all	16	record.
17	with Newfoundland Power? Is that your	17	BROWNE, Q.C.:
17	evidence?	17	
10	MS. DALLEY:	10 19	-
1			about expenses and I've asked before about
20	A. There were no discussions prior to.	20	bonuses. And there seems, if I can premise
21	BROWNE, Q.C.:	21	my question in this fashion, there seems to
22	Q. How could that possibly be? How could you	22	be a disconnect between what consumers, what
23	not have discussions with Newfoundland Power	23	my client anticipates of Hydro and what-and
24	in reference to some mitigation plan which	24	Hydro anticipates of itself. And when
25	affects Newfoundland Power's bottom-line,	25	you're coming, looking for an extraordinary
	Page 202		Page 204
1	but also their customers? How could you	1	remedy from this Board, because what you're
2	possibly have proceeded in that fashion?	2	looking for is far from the norm, consumers
$\frac{2}{3}$	MS. DALLEY:	$\frac{2}{3}$	are—realize that they're going to get hit if
4	A. I think I answered that with Mr. O'Brien.	4	your application is successful, based upon
		_	
5	BROWNE, Q.C.:	5	some future costing whichit's all a bit
6	Q. Pardon?	6	dubious, but we'll deal with all that later
1	MS. DALLEY:	7	on. But the disconnect is this, when we had
8	A. I think I answered that with Mr. O'Brien	8	Dark NL which deprived customers of
9	that it's something that, yes, makes sense	9	electricity and resulted in economic loss
10	to be done, and certainly as a partner in	10	for the businesses of the province, and
11	delivery, but the rate mitigation approaches	11	indeed some personal tragedy, Newfoundland
12	that are being taken, not Hydro's, but at a	12	Hydro, Newfoundland Hydro and Nalcor, you
13	high level are happening via the government	13	gave yourselves bonuses that year, didn't
14	committee that is in place. But that from a	14	you? Do you recall that?
15	Hydro perspective, yes, those discussions	15	MS. DALLEY:
16	should have taken place.	16	A. I recall that. I don't know the details of
10	BROWNE, Q.C.:	10	it.
18	Q. Are they going to take place now?	18	BROWNE, Q.C.:
1		19	Q. Okay. Well, can you confirm it in an
19	MS. DALLEY:	• •	1 . 1
19 20	A. I don't understand the question. We're –	20	undertaking that you gave yourselves
19 20 21	A. I don't understand the question. We're – BROWNE, Q.C.:	21	bonuses? Can someone confirm that, during
19 20	A. I don't understand the question. We're –	21 22	bonuses? Can someone confirm that, during the period of Dark NL?
19 20 21	A. I don't understand the question. We're – BROWNE, Q.C.:	21	bonuses? Can someone confirm that, during
19 20 21 22	 A. I don't understand the question. We're – BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Well, the question is, are you—is Newfoundland—you're head of Regulation at 	21 22	bonuses? Can someone confirm that, during the period of Dark NL?
19 20 21 22 23	A. I don't understand the question. We're – BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Well, the question is, are you—is	21 22 23	bonuses? Can someone confirm that, during the period of Dark NL? (1:07 p.m UNDERTAKING)

	20,2010			
		Page 205	1	Page 207
		what you've asked. So –	l	taking 10 percent less in our salaries or
2	BROWNE, Q		2	we're going to hit ourselves first. We're
3	Q.	And now, in this application, while we're in	3	going to make some sacrifice here first.
4		what some might say is a period of crisis	4	Where is your sacrifice in this matter, in
5		from an costing perspective and consumers	5	this application? Where is the sacrifice of
6		are getting really concerned out there,	6	Hydro in those terms, the monetary
7		you're bringing on an application again	7	sacrifice?
8		which has bonuses in it for yourselves. Can	8	MS. DALLEY:
9		you appreciate where there might be a	9	A. I think what we've put forward is, again, a
10		disconnect with what you are receiving and	10	balance of what we feel is needed to achieve
11		what consumers are expected to spend in	11	the objectives that—again the business
12		reference to these matters?	12	objectives of the company, the mandate that
13	MS. DALLE		13	we have which is to achieve reliable
14	A.	I think the position that the company takes	13	service, again, balanced least cost. Inside
15	11.	with respect to short-term incentives and	15	of that construct we've got to look
16		the performance contracts, and this bears	16	definitely at compensation and making sure
17		1	17	
17		out in the compensation policy as well that- -well, two things. One, from a compensation	17	that we are competitive but we are also paying fairly to our team so that we can—and
1				
19		perspective, it facilitates us to be	19	individuals again who all have, you know,
20		competitive in the recruitment and retention	20	roles to play in the province, indeed
21		of people into senior level positions. Our-	21	consumers as well. So, that's a discussion
22		the short-term incentive program by design	22	that we have with them. We've done no wage
23		is—I think it's about one percent of our	23	increases as a result of the economy over
24		labour costs, give or take, and is modest in	24	the last two years. And again, we'll soon
25		the sense of the, you know, the quantums	25	have the outcome going into 2018. So, there
		Page 206		Page 208
1		that are available to each individual who is	1	is a tightening inside of the cost, but we
2		subject to a performance contract. The	2	still want to make sure that we are
3		intention is to put a level of stretch and	3	incenting people to do the right things and
4		rigor into those contracts to make it very	4	deliver on their objectives.
5		challenging to achieve them, but to also-we	5	BROWNE, Q.C.:
6		certainly read carefully the Board's	6	Q. Now, throughout your evidence and we're
7		direction on this from the last hearing, and	7	hearing a lot out Atlantic. We're going to
8		Mr. Haynes spoke to this about the level of	8	
9			0	
		5 1		be-you want to head to where the Atlantic
10		detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific	9	be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their
10		detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific measures which were incorporated into the	9 10	be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their electricity costs. Why is the Atlantic a
11		detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific measures which were incorporated into the short-term incentive contracts. So, this	9 10 11	be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their electricity costs. Why is the Atlantic a comparator for this province, the other
11 12		detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific measures which were incorporated into the short-term incentive contracts. So, this portion of it is a portion of compensation	9 10 11 12	be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their electricity costs. Why is the Atlantic a comparator for this province, the other Atlantic provinces?
11 12 13		detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific measures which were incorporated into the short-term incentive contracts. So, this portion of it is a portion of compensation that is variable. It is at risk, and it is	9 10 11 12 13	be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their electricity costs. Why is the Atlantic a comparator for this province, the other Atlantic provinces? MS. DALLEY:
11 12 13 14		detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific measures which were incorporated into the short-term incentive contracts. So, this portion of it is a portion of compensation that is variable. It is at risk, and it is part of our overall compensation package for	9 10 11 12 13 14	 be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their electricity costs. Why is the Atlantic a comparator for this province, the other Atlantic provinces? MS. DALLEY: A. Do you mean from a compensation perspective
11 12 13 14 15		detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific measures which were incorporated into the short-term incentive contracts. So, this portion of it is a portion of compensation that is variable. It is at risk, and it is part of our overall compensation package for a group of individuals that have the ability	9 10 11 12 13 14 15	be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their electricity costs. Why is the Atlantic a comparator for this province, the other Atlantic provinces? MS. DALLEY: A. Do you mean from a compensation perspective or just rates –
11 12 13 14 15 16		detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific measures which were incorporated into the short-term incentive contracts. So, this portion of it is a portion of compensation that is variable. It is at risk, and it is part of our overall compensation package for a group of individuals that have the ability to really influence and direct the change	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their electricity costs. Why is the Atlantic a comparator for this province, the other Atlantic provinces? MS. DALLEY: A. Do you mean from a compensation perspective or just rates – BROWNE, Q.C.:
11 12 13 14 15 16 17		detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific measures which were incorporated into the short-term incentive contracts. So, this portion of it is a portion of compensation that is variable. It is at risk, and it is part of our overall compensation package for a group of individuals that have the ability to really influence and direct the change that we need in the organization for	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their electricity costs. Why is the Atlantic a comparator for this province, the other Atlantic provinces? MS. DALLEY: A. Do you mean from a compensation perspective or just rates – BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. I mean from a rate perspective. I'm moving
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	(1.15	detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific measures which were incorporated into the short-term incentive contracts. So, this portion of it is a portion of compensation that is variable. It is at risk, and it is part of our overall compensation package for a group of individuals that have the ability to really influence and direct the change	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their electricity costs. Why is the Atlantic a comparator for this province, the other Atlantic provinces? MS. DALLEY: A. Do you mean from a compensation perspective or just rates – BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. I mean from a rate perspective. I'm moving onto rates now.
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	(1:15 p.m.)	detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific measures which were incorporated into the short-term incentive contracts. So, this portion of it is a portion of compensation that is variable. It is at risk, and it is part of our overall compensation package for a group of individuals that have the ability to really influence and direct the change that we need in the organization for customers.	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their electricity costs. Why is the Atlantic a comparator for this province, the other Atlantic provinces? MS. DALLEY: A. Do you mean from a compensation perspective or just rates – BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. I mean from a rate perspective. I'm moving onto rates now.
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	BROWNE, Q	detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific measures which were incorporated into the short-term incentive contracts. So, this portion of it is a portion of compensation that is variable. It is at risk, and it is part of our overall compensation package for a group of individuals that have the ability to really influence and direct the change that we need in the organization for customers.	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their electricity costs. Why is the Atlantic a comparator for this province, the other Atlantic provinces? MS. DALLEY: A. Do you mean from a compensation perspective or just rates – BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. I mean from a rate perspective. I'm moving onto rates now. MS. DALLEY: A. Sure, okay.
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	· • /	detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific measures which were incorporated into the short-term incentive contracts. So, this portion of it is a portion of compensation that is variable. It is at risk, and it is part of our overall compensation package for a group of individuals that have the ability to really influence and direct the change that we need in the organization for customers.	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their electricity costs. Why is the Atlantic a comparator for this province, the other Atlantic provinces? MS. DALLEY: A. Do you mean from a compensation perspective or just rates – BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. I mean from a rate perspective. I'm moving onto rates now. MS. DALLEY: A. Sure, okay. BROWNE, Q.C.:
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	BROWNE, Q	detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific measures which were incorporated into the short-term incentive contracts. So, this portion of it is a portion of compensation that is variable. It is at risk, and it is part of our overall compensation package for a group of individuals that have the ability to really influence and direct the change that we need in the organization for customers. C.: But I don't know if you appreciate my question. We see it in the political sphere	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their electricity costs. Why is the Atlantic a comparator for this province, the other Atlantic provinces? MS. DALLEY: A. Do you mean from a compensation perspective or just rates – BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. I mean from a rate perspective. I'm moving onto rates now. MS. DALLEY: A. Sure, okay. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. You got my point on the compensation, I
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	BROWNE, Q	detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific measures which were incorporated into the short-term incentive contracts. So, this portion of it is a portion of compensation that is variable. It is at risk, and it is part of our overall compensation package for a group of individuals that have the ability to really influence and direct the change that we need in the organization for customers. C.: But I don't know if you appreciate my question. We see it in the political sphere all the time. If there's going to be a huge	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their electricity costs. Why is the Atlantic a comparator for this province, the other Atlantic provinces? MS. DALLEY: A. Do you mean from a compensation perspective or just rates – BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. I mean from a rate perspective. I'm moving onto rates now. MS. DALLEY: A. Sure, okay. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. You got my point on the compensation, I hope.
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	BROWNE, Q	detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific measures which were incorporated into the short-term incentive contracts. So, this portion of it is a portion of compensation that is variable. It is at risk, and it is part of our overall compensation package for a group of individuals that have the ability to really influence and direct the change that we need in the organization for customers. C.: But I don't know if you appreciate my question. We see it in the political sphere all the time. If there's going to be a huge tax increase and people are getting hit, the	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	 be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their electricity costs. Why is the Atlantic a comparator for this province, the other Atlantic provinces? MS. DALLEY: A. Do you mean from a compensation perspective or just rates – BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. I mean from a rate perspective. I'm moving onto rates now. MS. DALLEY: A. Sure, okay. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. You got my point on the compensation, I hope.
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	BROWNE, Q	detailyou know, I guess Hydro specific measures which were incorporated into the short-term incentive contracts. So, this portion of it is a portion of compensation that is variable. It is at risk, and it is part of our overall compensation package for a group of individuals that have the ability to really influence and direct the change that we need in the organization for customers. C.: But I don't know if you appreciate my question. We see it in the political sphere all the time. If there's going to be a huge	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 be—you want to head to where the Atlantic provinces are going in terms of their electricity costs. Why is the Atlantic a comparator for this province, the other Atlantic provinces? MS. DALLEY: A. Do you mean from a compensation perspective or just rates – BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. I mean from a rate perspective. I'm moving onto rates now. MS. DALLEY: A. Sure, okay. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. You got my point on the compensation, I hope.

Page 209Page1that I made or was involved with, so I can't1year and that's the only reason I ask the2speak to why the general comparison was made2question.3to Atlantic Canada.3BROWNE, Q.C.:4BROWNE, Q.C.:4Q. Yes, but generally you would agree with r5Q. Because I don't quite get it why we would be5MS. GLYNN:6comparable to Nova Scotia, for instance.7Nova Scotia, do you know what the electric7Nova Scotia, do you know what the electric8Space heating is in Nova Scotia in terms of9electric, in your regulator per capacity?9BROWNE, Q.C.:10MS. DALLEY:10Q. Sure, but generally you would agree with11A. I wouldn't want to take the number off the11that we are a province that has primarily12top of my head, it's less than Newfoundland,12hydrology and producing our electricity14BROWNE, Q.C.:14MS. DALLEY:15Q. You got that right, it's 30 percent and15A. Yes, that's the case.16that's subject to check. So, thre's space17Q. And when you compare that with, say, Ne19some use oil, some use propane, some use19Brunswick, we'd have to sot they on't ha20wood, some use pellets, but in terms of21thermal and they have Point Lepreau. An21electric space heating, it's 30 percent.21thermal and some hydrology. They use21electric space heating it's
2 speak to why the general comparison was made 3 2 question. 3 to Atlantic Canada. 3 BROWNE, Q.C.: 4 BROWNE, Q.C.: 4 Q. Yes, but generally you would agree with r 5 Q. Because I don't quite get it why we would be comparable to Nova Scotia, for instance. 7 Nova Scotia, do you know what the electric 8 5 G. The undertaking is noted on the record. 7 Nova Scotia, do you know what the electric 8 space heating is in Nova Scotia in terms of 9 6 Q. The undertaking is noted on the record. 7 Nova Scotia, do you know what the electric 8 sprace heating is in Nova Scotia in terms of 9 8 (1:12 p.m. – UNDFRTAKING) 9 BROWNE, Q.C.: 10 Q. Stree, but generally you would agree with 11 14 12 top of my head, it's less than Newfoundland, 16 that's subject to check. So, there's space 17 14 MS. DALLEY: 15 Q. You got that right, it's 30 percent and 16 14 BROWNE, Q.C.: 14 18 other forms, they use natural gas there, 19 some use oil, some use propane, some use 20 And when you compare that with, say, Ne 18 21 electric space heating, it's 30 percent. 22 And furthermore, in terms of 23 19
3 to Atlantic Canada. 3 BROWNE, Q.C.: 4 BROWNE, Q.C.: 4 Q. Yes, but generally you would agree with r 5 Q. Because I don't quite get it why we would be 6 Comparable to Nova Scotia, for instance. 7 Nova Scotia, do you know what the electric. 6 Q. The undertaking is noted on the record. 7 Nova Scotia, in your regulator per capacity? 9 BROWNE, Q.C.: 10 MS. DALLEY: 10 Q. Sure, but generally you would agree with 11 A. I wouldn't want to take the number off the 11 that we are a province that has primarily 12 top of my head, it's less than Newfoundland, 12 hydrology and producing our electricity 13 the Island. 11 that subject to check. So, there's space 16 16 that's subject to check. So, there's space 16 BROWNE, Q.C.: 17 heating, electric space heating, it's 30 percent and 16 Brunswick, we'd have to say they don't hat's subject to check. So, there's space 18 other forms, they use natural gas there, 19 some use pollets, but in terms of 20 as much in terms of hydrology. They use 21 electric space heati
4 BROWNE, Q.C.: 4 Q. Yes, but generally you would agree with r 5 Q. Because I don't quite get it why we would be 6 comparable to Nova Scotia, for instance. 6 Q. The undertaking is noted on the record. 7 Nova Scotia, do you know what the electric 8 Sorry, Mr. Browne. 8 9 electric, in your regulator per capacity? 9 BROWNE, Q.C.: 10 Q. Sure, but generally you would agree with r 11 A. I wouldn't want to take the number off the 11 that we are a province that has primarily 12 top of my head, it's less than Newfoundland, 11 that we are a province that has primarily 13 the Island. 11 that was re a province that has primarily 14 BROWNE, Q.C.: 14 MS. DALLEY: 15 Q. You got that right, it's 30 percent and 15 A. Yes, that's the case. 16 that's subject to check. So, there's space 16 BROWNE, Q.C.: 17 Q. And when you compare that with, say, Ne 19 some use oil, some use propane, some use 19 Brunswick for instance, the province of N 18
5 Q. Because I don't quite get it why we would be comparable to Nova Scotia, for instance. 5 MS. GLYNN: 6 comparable to Nova Scotia, for instance. 7 Nova Scotia, do you know what the electric space heating is in Nova Scotia in terms of electric, in your regulator per capacity? 6 Q. The undertaking is noted on the record. 7 Nova Scotia, do you know what the electric space heating is in Nova Scotia in terms of electric, in your regulator per capacity? 6 Q. The undertaking is noted on the record. 9 electric, in your regulator per capacity? 0 Sure, but generally you would agree with that we are a province that has primarily hydrology and producing our electricity through Hydro. 14 BROWNE, Q.C.: 10 Q. Sure, but generally you would agree with that we are a province that has primarily hydrology and producing our electricity through Hydro. 14 BROWNE, Q.C.: 14 MS. DALLEY: 15 15 Q. Yes, that's the case. 16 16 that's subject to check. So, there's space 17 18 Ms. DALLEY: 18 other forms, they use natural gas there, 19 19 Brunswick for instance, the province of N 20 20 wood, some use propane, some use 21 electric space heating, it's 30 percent. 21
6 comparable to Nova Scotia, for instance. 6 Q. The undertaking is noted on the record. 7 Nova Scotia, do you know what the electric 7 Sorry, Mr. Browne. 8 space heating is in Nova Scotia in terms of 8 (1:12 p.m. – UNDERTAKING) 9 electric, in your regulator per capacity? 9 BROWNE, Q.C.: 10 MS. DALLEY: 10 Q. Sure, but generally you would agree with 11 A. I wouldn't want to take the number off the 10 Q. Sure, but generally you would agree with 11 A. I wouldn't want to take the number off the 11 that sprimarily 12 top of my head, it's less than Newfoundland, 12 hydrology and producing our electricity 13 the Island. 11 through Hydro. 13 14 BROWNE, Q.C.: 14 MS. DALLEY: 15 A. Yes, that's the case. 16 that's subject to check. So, there's space 17 Q. And when you compare that with, say, Ne 18 other forms, they use natural gas there, 18 Brunswick for instance, the province of N 19 some use oil, some use pellets, but in terms of 20 as much in terms of hydrology. They use </td
7 Nova Scotia, do you know what the electric 7 Sorry, Mr. Browne. 8 space heating is in Nova Scotia in terms of 8 (1:12 p.m. – UNDERTAKING) 9 electric, in your regulator per capacity? 9 BROWNE, Q.C.: 10 MS. DALLEY: 10 Q. Sure, but generally you would agree with 11 A. I wouldn't want to take the number off the 11 that we are a province that has primarily 12 top of my head, it's less than Newfoundland, 12 hydrology and producing our electricity 13 the Island. 13 through Hydro. 13 14 BROWNE, Q.C.: 14 MS. DALLEY: 15 A. Yes, that's the case. 16 that's subject to check. So, there's space 15 A. Yes, that's the case. 16 18 other forms, they use natural gas there, 18 Brunswick for instance, the province of N 19 20 wood, some use pilets, but in terms of 20 as much in terms of hydrology. They use 21 thermal and they have Point Lepreau. An 21 electric space heating, it's 30 percent. 21 there in this province the last time I
8 space heating is in Nova Scotia in terms of 9 8 (1:12 p.m. – UNDERTAKING) 9 electric, in your regulator per capacity? 9 BROWNE, Q.C.: 10 MS. DALLEY: 10 Q. Sure, but generally you would agree with 11 11 A. I wouldn't want to take the number off the 12 10 Q. Sure, but generally you would agree with 11 12 top of my head, it's less than Newfoundland, 13 the Island. 12 hydrology and producing our electricity 14 14 BROWNE, Q.C.: 14 BROWNE, Q.C.: 14 15 Q. You got that right, it's 30 percent and 16 15 A. Yes, that's the case. 16 that's subject to check. So, there's space 17 heating, electric space heating, they go to 18 16 BROWNE, Q.C.: 17 heating, electric space heating, it's 30 percent. 18 Brounswick, we'd have to say they don't hat 20 wood, some use pillets, but in terms of 20 as much in terms of hydrology. They use 21 electric space heating, it's 30 percent. 21 thermal and they have Point Lepreau. An 22 23 here in this province the last time I 23 23 know what hydrology they would have thu 24 tooked, 85 percent of our electricity was 25
9electric, in your regulator per capacity?9BROWNE, Q.C.:10MS. DALLEY:10Q.Sure, but generally you would agree with11A.I wouldn't want to take the number off the11that we are a province that has primarily12top of my head, it's less than Newfoundland,12hydrology and producing our electricity13the Island.13through Hydro.14BROWNE, Q.C.:14MS. DALLEY:15Q.You got that right, it's 30 percent and13that's subject to check. So, there's space16that's subject to check. So, there's space16BROWNE, Q.C.:17heating, electric space heating, they go to17Q.18other forms, they use natural gas there,18Brunswick for instance, the province of N19some use oil, some use propane, some use19Brunswick, we'd have to say they don't ha20wood, some use pellets, but in terms of20as much in terms of hydrology. They use21electric space heating, it's 30 percent.21thermal and they have Point Lepreau. An22And furthermore, in terms of our systems,22we'd have to look at, I guess, PEI. I don't23here in this province the last time I23know what hydrology, they would have the24looked, 85 percent of our electricity was24it would certainly be minimal. And we km25produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent25Nova Scotia has very little hydrology.1by Holyrood a
9electric, in your regulator per capacity?9BROWNE, Q.C.:10MS. DALLEY:10Q.Sure, but generally you would agree with11A.I wouldn't want to take the number off the11that we are a province that has primarily12top of my head, it's less than Newfoundland,12hydrology and producing our electricity13the Island.13through Hydro.14BROWNE, Q.C.:14MS. DALLEY:15Q.You got that right, it's 30 percent and15A.16that's subject to check. So, there's space16BROWNE, Q.C.:17heating, electric space heating, they go to17Q.And when you compare that with, say, Ne18other forms, they use natural gas there,18Brunswick for instance, the province of N19some use oil, some use propane, some use19Brunswick, we'd have to say they don't ha20wood, some use pellets, but in terms of20as much in terms of hydrology. They use21electric space heating, it's 30 percent.21thermal and they have Point Lepreau. An22And furthermore, in terms of our systems,22we'd have to look at, I guess, PEI. I don't23here in this province the last time I23know what hydrology, they would have the24looked, 85 percent of our electricity was24it would certainly be minimal. And we km25produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent25Nova Scotia has very little hydrology.1by Ho
10MS. DALLEY:10Q.Sure, but generally you would agree with11A.I wouldn't want to take the number off the11that we are a province that has primarily12top of my head, it's less than Newfoundland,12hydrology and producing our electricity13the Island.12hydrology and producing our electricity14BROWNE, Q.C.:14MS. DALLEY:15Q.You got that right, it's 30 percent and15A.16that's subject to check. So, there's space16BROWNE, Q.C.:17heating, electric space heating, they go to17Q.18other forms, they use natural gas there,18Brunswick for instance, the province of N19some use oil, some use propane, some use19Brunswick, we'd have to say they don't h20wood, some use pellets, but in terms of20as much in terms of hydrology. They use21electric space heating, it's 30 percent.21thermal and they have Point Lepreau. An22And furthermore, in terms of our electricity was22we'd have to look at, I guess, PEI. I don't23here in this province the last time I23know what hydrology they would have the24looked, 85 percent of our electricity was25Nova Scotia has very little hydrology.25produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent1They're into thermal and some hydrology, by1by Holyrood and 2 percent by wind and that's1They're into coal fired and so on. So, I2
11A.I wouldn't want to take the number off the top of my head, it's less than Newfoundland, 1311that we are a province that has primarily hydrology and producing our electricity 1213the Island.13through Hydro.14BROWNE, Q.C.:14MS. DALLEY:15Q.You got that right, it's 30 percent and that's subject to check. So, there's space16MS. DALLEY:16that's subject to check. So, there's space16BROWNE, Q.C.:17heating, electric space heating, they go to17Q.And when you compare that with, say, Ne18other forms, they use natural gas there,18Brunswick for instance, the province of N19some use oil, some use propane, some use19Brunswick, we'd have to say they don't ha20wood, some use pellets, but in terms of20as much in terms of hydrology. They use21electric space heating, it's 30 percent.21thermal and they have Point Lepreau. And22And furthermore, in terms of our systems,22we'd have to look at, I guess, PEI. I don't23here in this province the last time I23know what hydrology they would have the24looked, 85 percent of our electricity was25produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent25produced by Hydro.14They're into thermal and some hydrology, b2all subject to check and I'm going to ask2they're into coal fired and so on. So, I3you to provide updated figures on that3come back to my pre
12top of my head, it's less than Newfoundland, 1312hydrology and producing our electricity ithough Hydro.13the Island.13through Hydro.14BROWNE, Q.C.:14MS. DALLEY:15Q.You got that right, it's 30 percent and that's subject to check. So, there's space15A.16that's subject to check. So, there's space16BROWNE, Q.C.:17heating, electric space heating, they go to 1817Q.And when you compare that with, say, Ne18other forms, they use natural gas there, 19some use oil, some use propane, some use19Brunswick for instance, the province of N20wood, some use pellets, but in terms of 2020as much in terms of hydrology. They use21electric space heating, it's 30 percent.21thermal and they have Point Lepreau. And22And furthermore, in terms of our systems, 2322we'd have to look at, I guess, PEI. I don't there in this province the last time I 242325produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent25Nova Scotia has very little hydrology, but they're into thermal and some hydrology, but 2511by Holyrood and 2 percent by wind and that's 21They're into coal fired and so on. So, I and some hydrology to they're into coal fired and so on. So, I23you to provide updated figures on that 43come back to my premise, why are we comp2all subject to check and I'm going to ask 52they're into coal fired and so on. So, I to —if all we have her
13the Island.13through Hydro.14BROWNE, Q.C.:14MS. DALLEY:15Q.You got that right, it's 30 percent and15A.16that's subject to check. So, there's space16BROWNE, Q.C.:17heating, electric space heating, they go to17Q.18other forms, they use natural gas there,18Brunswick for instance, the province of N19some use oil, some use propane, some use19Brunswick, we'd have to say they don't ha20wood, some use pellets, but in terms of20as much in terms of hydrology. They use21electric space heating, it's 30 percent.21there in this province the last time I23here in this province the last time I23know what hydrology they would have the24looked, 85 percent of our electricity was24it would certainly be minimal. And we know25produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent25Nova Scotia has very little hydrology, but2all subject to check and I'm going to ask2they're into coal fired and so on. So, I3you to provide updated figures on that3come back to my premise, why are we comp4today, if your counsel will undertake to do4to—if all we have here are hydrology to5that on your behalf to show what percentage5these other provinces which are producing
14BROWNE, Q.C.:14MS. DALLEY:15Q.You got that right, it's 30 percent and15A.Yes, that's the case.16that's subject to check. So, there's space16BROWNE, Q.C.:17heating, electric space heating, they go to17Q.And when you compare that with, say, Ne18other forms, they use natural gas there,18Brunswick for instance, the province of N19some use oil, some use propane, some use19Brunswick, we'd have to say they don't hat20wood, some use pellets, but in terms of20as much in terms of hydrology. They use21electric space heating, it's 30 percent.21there in this province the last time I22And furthermore, in terms of our systems,22we'd have to look at, I guess, PEI. I don't23here in this province the last time I23know what hydrology they would have the24looked, 85 percent of our electricity was25Nova Scotia has very little hydrology.25produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent25Nova Scotia has very little hydrology, but26all subject to check and I'm going to ask2they're into thermal and some hydrology, but3you to provide updated figures on that3come back to my premise, why are we comp4today, if your counsel will undertake to do4to—if all we have here are hydrology to5that on your behalf to show what percentage5these other provinces which are producing
15Q.You got that right, it's 30 percent and that's subject to check. So, there's space heating, electric space heating, they go to 1815A.Yes, that's the case.17heating, electric space heating, they go to 18other forms, they use natural gas there, 1916BROWNE, Q.C.:19some use oil, some use propane, some use 20wood, some use pellets, but in terms of 2120And when you compare that with, say, Ne Brunswick for instance, the province of N 2021electric space heating, it's 30 percent. 2221there in this province the last time I 2322we'd have to look at, I guess, PEI. I don't 2423here in this province the last time I 2423know what hydrology they would have the 242425produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent 225Nova Scotia has very little hydrology, br 2511by Holyrood and 2 percent by wind and that's 21They're into thermal and some hydrology, br 2511by Holyrood and 2 percent by wind and that's 21They're into thermal and some hydrology, br 2512all subject to check and I'm going to ask 32they're into coal fired and so on. So, I 326you to provide updated figures on that 43come back to my premise, why are we comp 414today, if your counsel will undertake to do 54they on provinces which are producing
16that's subject to check. So, there's space16BROWNE, Q.C.:17heating, electric space heating, they go to17Q.And when you compare that with, say, Ne18other forms, they use natural gas there,18Brunswick for instance, the province of N19some use oil, some use propane, some use19Brunswick, we'd have to say they don't ha20wood, some use pellets, but in terms of20as much in terms of hydrology. They use21electric space heating, it's 30 percent.21thermal and they have Point Lepreau. And22And furthermore, in terms of our systems,22we'd have to look at, I guess, PEI. I don't23here in this province the last time I23know what hydrology they would have the24looked, 85 percent of our electricity was24it would certainly be minimal. And we know25produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent1They're into thermal and some hydrology, bu1by Holyrood and 2 percent by wind and that's1They're into coal fired and so on. So, I2all subject to check and I'm going to ask2they're into coal fired and so on. So, I3you to provide updated figures on that3come back to my premise, why are we comp4today, if your counsel will undertake to do4to—if all we have here are hydrology to5that on your behalf to show what percentage5these other provinces which are producing
17heating, electric space heating, they go to other forms, they use natural gas there, 1917Q.And when you compare that with, say, Ne Brunswick for instance, the province of N Brunswick, we'd have to say they don't he as much in terms of hydrology. They use 2020wood, some use pellets, but in terms of 2120as much in terms of hydrology. They use 2122And furthermore, in terms of our systems, 2321there in this province the last time I 232324looked, 85 percent of our electricity was 2524it would certainly be minimal. And we know 2525produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent 225Nova Scotia has very little hydrology, bu 251by Holyrood and 2 percent by wind and that's 21They're into thermal and some hydrology, bu 251by Holyrood and 2 percent by wind and that's 21They're into coal fired and so on. So, I 201vou to provide updated figures on that 43come back to my premise, why are we comp 44today, if your counsel will undertake to do 54to-if all we have here are hydrology to 4
18other forms, they use natural gas there, 1918Brunswick for instance, the province of N Brunswick, we'd have to say they don't have 2020wood, some use pellets, but in terms of 2120as much in terms of hydrology. They use as much in terms of hydrology. They use 2121electric space heating, it's 30 percent. 2221thermal and they have Point Lepreau. And 2322And furthermore, in terms of our systems, 2322we'd have to look at, I guess, PEI. I don't know what hydrology they would have the 2423here in this province the last time I 2523know what hydrology they would have the it would certainly be minimal. And we know 2524looked, 85 percent of our electricity was 2524it would certainly be minimal. And we know 2525produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent 2625Page 21027Page 210 27Page 2828you to provide updated figures on that 43come back to my premise, why are we comp 44today, if your counsel will undertake to do 54to—if all we have here are hydrology to these other provinces which are producing
19some use oil, some use propane, some use19Brunswick, we'd have to say they don't have20wood, some use pellets, but in terms of20as much in terms of hydrology. They use21electric space heating, it's 30 percent.21thermal and they have Point Lepreau. And22And furthermore, in terms of our systems,22we'd have to look at, I guess, PEI. I don't23here in this province the last time I23know what hydrology they would have the24looked, 85 percent of our electricity was24it would certainly be minimal. And we know25produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent25Nova Scotia has very little hydrology, bu1by Holyrood and 2 percent by wind and that's1They're into thermal and some hydrology, bu2all subject to check and I'm going to ask2they're into coal fired and so on. So, I3you to provide updated figures on that3come back to my premise, why are we comp4today, if your counsel will undertake to do4to—if all we have here are hydrology to5that on your behalf to show what percentage5these other provinces which are producing
20wood, some use pellets, but in terms of electric space heating, it's 30 percent.20as much in terms of hydrology. They use thermal and they have Point Lepreau. And we'd have to look at, I guess, PEI. I don't know what hydrology they would have the 2423here in this province the last time I 2423know what hydrology they would have the 2425produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent 225Nova Scotia has very little hydrology.Page 210Page 210Page 2101by Holyrood and 2 percent by wind and that's 22all subject to check and I'm going to ask 32they're into thermal and some hydrology, but they're into coal fired and so on. So, I come back to my premise, why are we comp 44today, if your counsel will undertake to do 54to—if all we have here are hydrology to these other provinces which are producing
21electric space heating, it's 30 percent.21thermal and they have Point Lepreau. And22And furthermore, in terms of our systems,22we'd have to look at, I guess, PEI. I don't23here in this province the last time I23know what hydrology they would have the24looked, 85 percent of our electricity was24it would certainly be minimal. And we know25produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent25Nova Scotia has very little hydrology.Page 210Page 210Page1by Holyrood and 2 percent by wind and that's1They're into thermal and some hydrology, bu2all subject to check and I'm going to ask2they're into coal fired and so on. So, I3you to provide updated figures on that3come back to my premise, why are we comp4today, if your counsel will undertake to do4to—if all we have here are hydrology to5that on your behalf to show what percentage5these other provinces which are producing
22And furthermore, in terms of our systems, here in this province the last time I looked, 85 percent of our electricity was 2522we'd have to look at, I guess, PEI. I don't know what hydrology they would have the 24 2524looked, 85 percent of our electricity was 2524it would certainly be minimal. And we know 2525produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent 225Nova Scotia has very little hydrology.26Page 210 2Page 210 2Page 21by Holyrood and 2 percent by wind and that's 21They're into thermal and some hydrology, bu 21by Holyrood and 2 percent by wind and that's 21They're into coal fired and so on. So, I 32all subject to check and I'm going to ask 32they're into coal fired and so on. So, I 33you to provide updated figures on that 43come back to my premise, why are we comp 44today, if your counsel will undertake to do 54to—if all we have here are hydrology to these other provinces which are producing
23here in this province the last time I23know what hydrology they would have the it would certainly be minimal. And we know 2424looked, 85 percent of our electricity was 2524it would certainly be minimal. And we know 2525produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent25Nova Scotia has very little hydrology.Page 210Page 210Page 2102all subject to check and I'm going to ask 33you to provide updated figures on that today, if your counsel will undertake to do 54today, if your counsel will undertake to do 55they on your behalf to show what percentage
24looked, 85 percent of our electricity was produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent24it would certainly be minimal. And we know Nova Scotia has very little hydrology.Page 210Page 210Deleter 1000000000000000000000000000000000000
25produced by Hydro. And less than 13 percent25Nova Scotia has very little hydrology.Page 210Page 210Page1by Holyrood and 2 percent by wind and that's1They're into thermal and some hydrology, but2all subject to check and I'm going to ask2they're into coal fired and so on. So, I3you to provide updated figures on that3come back to my premise, why are we comp4today, if your counsel will undertake to do4to—if all we have here are hydrology to5that on your behalf to show what percentage5these other provinces which are producing
Page 210Page 210Page 2101by Holyrood and 2 percent by wind and that's2all subject to check and I'm going to ask3you to provide updated figures on that4today, if your counsel will undertake to do5that on your behalf to show what percentage5
1by Holyrood and 2 percent by wind and that's1They're into thermal and some hydrology, but2all subject to check and I'm going to ask2they're into coal fired and so on. So, I3you to provide updated figures on that3come back to my premise, why are we comp4today, if your counsel will undertake to do4to—if all we have here are hydrology to5that on your behalf to show what percentage5these other provinces which are producing
2all subject to check and I'm going to ask you to provide updated figures on that today, if your counsel will undertake to do 52they're into coal fired and so on. So, I come back to my premise, why are we comp to—if all we have here are hydrology to these other provinces which are producing
3you to provide updated figures on that3come back to my premise, why are we comp4today, if your counsel will undertake to do4to—if all we have here are hydrology to5that on your behalf to show what percentage5these other provinces which are producing
4 today, if your counsel will undertake to do 5 that on your behalf to show what percentage 5 to—if all we have here are hydrology to these other provinces which are producing
5 that on your behalf to show what percentage 5 these other provinces which are producing
5 that on your behan to show what percentage 5 these other provinces which are producing
6 wa're using right now in the province 6 alectricity and adapting other former of
6 we're using right now in the province, 6 electricity and adopting other forms of
7 consumers generally, households, residences, 7 space heating in their population. Why that
8 are using Hydro. What percentage is 8 comparison? I don't get it.
9 produced by Hydro; what percentage is 9 MS. DALLEY:
10 produced by Holyrood; what percentage is 10 A. I don't know the background behind it, Mr.
11 produced by wind. Can someone undertake to 11 Browne. I think that was a decision and I
12 do that? 12 bit while the solution of the solution and
1213MS. DALLEY:13forward perspective.
14 A. Oh, I'm certain we can. 14 BROWNE, Q.C.:
15 MR. YOUNG: 15 Q. I'm asking why you are using Atlantic
15Q.I in asking why you are using Atlantic16Q.Mr. Browne, just as a point of16comparators here in this hearing. You're
10Q.Mr. Browne, just as a point of10Comparators nere in this nearing. Four re-17clarification, would that be on a forecast17saying the comparator we use is Atlantic.
19 BROWNE, Q.C.: 19 Atlantic would be 17 or 18 cents, but that 20 No just today. If you can do it on a
20 Q. No, just today. If you can do it on a 20 would be different factors built into how they are acting their easting as annead to
21 forecast basis and for today, if you can do balk data and he had been a held for today if you can do
both, that would be very helpful.
23 MR. YOUNG: 23 not true?
23MR. YOUNG:23not true?24Q.Yes, the difference is, it depends very much24MS. DALLEY:25on the amount of water that you get in a25A.Mr. Browne, I can't help but agree with your

	25, 2018		INL HYDIO 2017 OKA
	Page 213		Page 215
1	premise because the systems are different	1	Manitoba and British Columbia?
2	and the drivers are different, the	2	MS. DALLEY:
3	consumption is different, indeed that's the	3	A. My understanding and I'm not entirely clear
4	case, it's the case for all the electricity	4	on the request for the data, but my
5	systems across Canada. And from a rate	5	understanding is this chart was compiled at
6	perspective with respect to the target	6	a time based on what was publically
7	around 17/18 cents that has been set.	7	available. So, it would have been through,
8	BROWNE, Q.C.:	8	you know, whether it was rate hearings or
9	Q. Hang on now, that hasn't been set, that has	9	publically websites of various utilities.
10	been –	10	So, this would have been the nature of the
11	MS. DALLEY:	11	group is driven by what was publically
12	A. Sorry, that has been –	12	available, whether or not other data—that's
13	BROWNE, Q.C.:	13	what I'm told. I was told this is what was
14	Q. Just one moment. That has been proposed.	14	publically available.
15	MS. DALLEY:	15	BROWNE, Q.C.:
16	A. Proposed.	16	Q. And is this your chart, as the regulator,
17	BROWNE, Q.C.:	17	have you come forward with this chart? Did
18	Q. Yes.	17	-
	MS. DALLEY:	10 19	this come out of your shop? MS. DALLEY:
19			
20	A. My apologies for the wording.	20	A. I was going to say, I'm certainly not the
21	BROWNE, Q.C.:	21	regulator, but –
22	Q. That's okay.	22	BROWNE, Q.C.:
23	MR. SMITH:	23	Q. I'm sorry, but as in charge of regulation,
24	Q. That has been proposed and I think there's	24	sorry.
25	been some discussion, I'm not even fully	25	MS. DALLEY:
	Page 214		Page 216
1 1			
	abreast of the discussion but there's been	1	A. Yes, I think I understood what you meant,
$\begin{vmatrix} 1\\2 \end{vmatrix}$	some discussion about the in the context of	1 2	just wanted to be clear.
$\begin{bmatrix} 1\\ 2\\ 3 \end{bmatrix}$		1 2 3	
	some discussion about the in the context of		just wanted to be clear.
3	some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't	3	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.:
3 4 5	some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the	3 4 5	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize.
3 4 5	some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were.	3 4 5	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the
3 4 5 6	some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.:	3 4 5 6	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY:
3 4 5 6 7	some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to	3 4 5 6 7	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and
3 4 5 6 7 8	some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to apples when you look at their systems and	3 4 5 6 7 8	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and would have done the assessment just because
3 4 5 6 7 8 9	some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to apples when you look at their systems and look at our system, why you're using an	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and would have done the assessment just because we would have known where to look; we would
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to apples when you look at their systems and look at our system, why you're using an Atlantic average or even using the Atlantic	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and would have done the assessment just because we would have known where to look; we would have known where to go and there would have
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	 some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to apples when you look at their systems and look at our system, why you're using an Atlantic average or even using the Atlantic as a comparator at all seems puzzling to me. 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and would have done the assessment just because we would have known where to look; we would have known where to go and there would have been a familiarity with that. So, our team
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to apples when you look at their systems and look at our system, why you're using an Atlantic average or even using the Atlantic as a comparator at all seems puzzling to me. MS. DALLEY: A. Well, I don't think there is an apple to	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and would have done the assessment just because we would have known where to look; we would have known where to go and there would have been a familiarity with that. So, our team was asked if we could assist with that and
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to apples when you look at their systems and look at our system, why you're using an Atlantic average or even using the Atlantic as a comparator at all seems puzzling to me. MS. DALLEY: A. Well, I don't think there is an apple to apple comparison.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and would have done the assessment just because we would have known where to look; we would have known where to go and there would have been a familiarity with that. So, our team was asked if we could assist with that and we did. BROWNE, Q.C.:
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to apples when you look at their systems and look at our system, why you're using an Atlantic average or even using the Atlantic as a comparator at all seems puzzling to me. MS. DALLEY: A. Well, I don't think there is an apple to apple comparison. BROWNE, Q.C.:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and would have done the assessment just because we would have known where to look; we would have known where to go and there would have been a familiarity with that. So, our team was asked if we could assist with that and we did.
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to apples when you look at their systems and look at our system, why you're using an Atlantic average or even using the Atlantic as a comparator at all seems puzzling to me. MS. DALLEY: A. Well, I don't think there is an apple to apple comparison. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in reference to Atlantic and we can go	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and would have done the assessment just because we would have known where to look; we would have known where to go and there would have been a familiarity with that. So, our team was asked if we could assist with that and we did. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in the chart there now below, it says
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to apples when you look at their systems and look at our system, why you're using an Atlantic average or even using the Atlantic as a comparator at all seems puzzling to me. MS. DALLEY: A. Well, I don't think there is an apple to apple comparison. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in reference to Atlantic and we can go to, if just for a moment, to IC-NLH-122, 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and would have done the assessment just because we would have known where to look; we would have known where to go and there would have been a familiarity with that. So, our team was asked if we could assist with that and we did. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in the chart there now below, it says rate effective for Newfoundland Interconnected Domestic rates is 11.7 cents
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to apples when you look at their systems and look at our system, why you're using an Atlantic average or even using the Atlantic as a comparator at all seems puzzling to me. MS. DALLEY: A. Well, I don't think there is an apple to apple comparison. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in reference to Atlantic and we can go to, if just for a moment, to IC-NLH-122, page 22 of 26. Thank you. And now we're	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and would have done the assessment just because we would have known where to look; we would have known where to go and there would have been a familiarity with that. So, our team was asked if we could assist with that and we did. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in the chart there now below, it says rate effective for Newfoundland Interconnected Domestic rates is 11.7 cents a kilowatt. And we got an explanation of
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to apples when you look at their systems and look at our system, why you're using an Atlantic average or even using the Atlantic as a comparator at all seems puzzling to me. MS. DALLEY: A. Well, I don't think there is an apple to apple comparison. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in reference to Atlantic and we can go to, if just for a moment, to IC-NLH-122, page 22 of 26. Thank you. And now we're into the—it was supposed to be an Atlantic 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and would have done the assessment just because we would have done the assessment just because we would have known where to look; we would have known where to go and there would have been a familiarity with that. So, our team was asked if we could assist with that and we did. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in the chart there now below, it says rate effective for Newfoundland Interconnected Domestic rates is 11.7 cents a kilowatt. And we got an explanation of that, it's a unit costing which includes the
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to apples when you look at their systems and look at our system, why you're using an Atlantic average or even using the Atlantic as a comparator at all seems puzzling to me. MS. DALLEY: A. Well, I don't think there is an apple to apple comparison. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in reference to Atlantic and we can go to, if just for a moment, to IC-NLH-122, page 22 of 26. Thank you. And now we're into the—it was supposed to be an Atlantic comparator, but there's a few other 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and would have done the assessment just because we would have known where to look; we would have known where to go and there would have been a familiarity with that. So, our team was asked if we could assist with that and we did. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in the chart there now below, it says rate effective for Newfoundland Interconnected Domestic rates is 11.7 cents a kilowatt. And we got an explanation of that, it's a unit costing which includes the basic customer charge. But the rates that
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to apples when you look at their systems and look at our system, why you're using an Atlantic average or even using the Atlantic as a comparator at all seems puzzling to me. MS. DALLEY: A. Well, I don't think there is an apple to apple comparison. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in reference to Atlantic and we can go to, if just for a moment, to IC-NLH-122, page 22 of 26. Thank you. And now we're into the—it was supposed to be an Atlantic comparator, but there's a few other provinces thrown in there for reasons which	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and would have done the assessment just because we would have known where to look; we would have known where to go and there would have been a familiarity with that. So, our team was asked if we could assist with that and we did. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in the chart there now below, it says rate effective for Newfoundland Interconnected Domestic rates is 11.7 cents a kilowatt. And we got an explanation of that, it's a unit costing which includes the basic customer charge. But the rates that you refer to above, Nova Scotia, 15.8, 16,
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to apples when you look at their systems and look at our system, why you're using an Atlantic average or even using the Atlantic as a comparator at all seems puzzling to me. MS. DALLEY: A. Well, I don't think there is an apple to apple comparison. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in reference to Atlantic and we can go to, if just for a moment, to IC-NLH-122, page 22 of 26. Thank you. And now we're into the—it was supposed to be an Atlantic comparator, but there is a few other provinces thrown in there for reasons which are not quite clear. We have Ontario in 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and would have done the assessment just because we would have known where to look; we would have known where to go and there would have been a familiarity with that. So, our team was asked if we could assist with that and we did. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in the chart there now below, it says rate effective for Newfoundland Interconnected Domestic rates is 11.7 cents a kilowatt. And we got an explanation of that, it's a unit costing which includes the basic customer charge. But the rates that you refer to above, Nova Scotia, 15.8, 16, 16.2 and 17.2, is that a unit? Is that
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to apples when you look at their systems and look at our system, why you're using an Atlantic average or even using the Atlantic as a comparator at all seems puzzling to me. MS. DALLEY: A. Well, I don't think there is an apple to apple comparison. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in reference to Atlantic and we can go to, if just for a moment, to IC-NLH-122, page 22 of 26. Thank you. And now we're into the—it was supposed to be an Atlantic comparator, but there's a few other provinces thrown in there for reasons which are not quite clear. We have Ontario in there and Manitoba and British Columbia and	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and would have done the assessment just because we would have known where to look; we would have known where to go and there would have been a familiarity with that. So, our team was asked if we could assist with that and we did. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in the chart there now below, it says rate effective for Newfoundland Interconnected Domestic rates is 11.7 cents a kilowatt. And we got an explanation of that, it's a unit costing which includes the basic customer charge. But the rates that you refer to above, Nova Scotia, 15.8, 16, 16.2 and 17.2, is that a unit? Is that based on units or it's based on the actual
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 some discussion about the in the context of Atlantic Canada. But my point is I wouldn't be party to those discussions and what the drivers were. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. But given the—it's really not apples to apples when you look at their systems and look at our system, why you're using an Atlantic average or even using the Atlantic as a comparator at all seems puzzling to me. MS. DALLEY: A. Well, I don't think there is an apple to apple comparison. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in reference to Atlantic and we can go to, if just for a moment, to IC-NLH-122, page 22 of 26. Thank you. And now we're into the—it was supposed to be an Atlantic comparator, but there is a few other provinces thrown in there for reasons which are not quite clear. We have Ontario in 	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	just wanted to be clear. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. At Hydro, I apologize. MS. DALLEY: A. My understanding is yes, that someone on the regulatory team compiled this chart and would have done the assessment just because we would have known where to look; we would have known where to go and there would have been a familiarity with that. So, our team was asked if we could assist with that and we did. BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Now, in the chart there now below, it says rate effective for Newfoundland Interconnected Domestic rates is 11.7 cents a kilowatt. And we got an explanation of that, it's a unit costing which includes the basic customer charge. But the rates that you refer to above, Nova Scotia, 15.8, 16, 16.2 and 17.2, is that a unit? Is that

Г	23; 2010		
1	Page 217	1	Page 219
	that basic charge there.		New Brunswick might be the same with some
2	MS. DALLEY:	2	degree of government interjection or
3	A. I'm going to take a stab at this which may	3	influence over caps or rate setting. I'm
4	or may not be appropriate, but based on the	4	not that terribly familiar with their
5	footnote which says, "assuming average use	5	system.
6	of 1517 kilowatts per month" which is the	6	BROWNE, Q.C.:
7	average that we use for the Island	7	Q. Yes. So, there are different circumstances
8	Interconnected System for average usage,	8	for different provinces, is that fair to
9	when we calculate that 11. cents that	9	say?
10	factors in that usage and factors in the	10	MS. DALLEY:
11	basic customer charge. So, again, we can	11	A. Yes, I think that's fair.
12	check with, but I would expect that those	12	BROWNE, Q.C.:
13	are, they're pre-tax numbers that include	13	Q. And your chart may be somewhat off base
14	the basic customer charge. But if they	14	perhaps, maybe, is that possible?
15	don't then, it would be an apples, to use	15	MS. DALLEY:
16	your, apples to apples comparison between	16	A. No, I don't know that, so.
17	the rate.	17	BROWNE, Q.C.:
18	BROWNE, Q.C.:	18	Q. But you'll check and let us know. That's an
10		10	
20	Q. You think it might be, but you're not sure,	20	undertaking? MS. DALLEY:
	is that fair to say? MS. DALLEY:		
21		21	A. Yes, to check how the –
22	A. That's what I'm saying. I think we need to	22	BROWNE, Q.C.:
23	check that to be sure.	23	Q. We'd like to know if your unit costing
24	BROWNE, Q.C.:	24	throughout and how it was derived, in
25	Q. Okay, thank you. If you can check it, that	25	particular for New Brunswick and Ontario
	Page 218		Page 220
1	would be appreciated.	1	where there are subsidized rates.
2	MS. DALLEY:	2	MS. DALLEY:
3	A. Sure.	3	A. Yes, I think I understand. You want to see
4	BROWNE, Q.C.:	4	the as close to apples to apples as you can
5	Q. Because New Brunswick is particularly an	5	get.
6	anomaly there. You got 12.2, 12.5, 12.8 and	6	BROWNE, Q.C.:
7	13 and the last time I looked New Brunswick	7	Q. And if we can go to the previous –
8	was a two-tier system. And I was wondering	8	MS. GLYNN:
9	how you factored that into your equation.	9	Q. We'll note that as an undertaking. I'm
10	MS. DALLEY:	10	looking at Hydro's –
11	A. And again, I don't know the details of that,	11	MR. YOUNG:
12	but we can certainly provide that as well	12	Q. Yes, just a couple of comments on that, Mr.
13	and it would have been based on publicly	13	Brown, just so I understand. So, this was
14	available information. So, whether that was	14	produced, this particularif you go to the
15	regulated information, the website's or	15	questions in the RFI, we don't need to go
16	other sources.	16	there, but it was a question to produce or
17	BROWNE, Q.C.:	17	provide a presentation that already existed.
18	Q. And Ontario, I understand, through articles	18	So, this information, I think, would have
10	I've read, there's some subsidization in	10	been last year's information and would have
20	their rate system from the government. Do	20	been essentially forecast data. So, there
20	you know anything about that?	20	might be a little bit of unscrambling to do
21 22	MS. DALLEY:	21	
		22	to come up with the exact numbers, but we'll
23	A. That is my probably, a similar recollection,		do our best to come up with the same basis
24	in the sense of what I've read about the	24	that was used at the time. And I don't
25	Ontario system and I'm not entirely sure but	25	because of the nature of this whether this
	Discoveries Unlimite		

П	25, 2016	-	NE HYdio 2017 OKA
	Page 221		Page 223
	was a Hydro table as such, but it obviously		corporate communications with Nalcor and
2	came from Nalcor. So, I just wanted to give	2	prior to that, essentially the same role
3	that caveat that we'll have to go back and	3	with Hydro which is where I started.
4	see what the basis was at that time. It	4	BROWNE, Q.C.:
5	won't be a current one; ifit will be	5	Q. And when you were hired, you were hired in a
6	consistent with this table.	6	communications capacity. Is that a fair
7	BROWNE, Q.C.:	7	comment?
8	Q. Yes, I just—I'm very curious because just in	8	MS. DALLEY:
9	my own review of it, I seem to be puzzled a	9	A. Yes.
10	bit, but I want to know if it's the energy	10	BROWNE, Q.C.:
11	charges that you're using, just to be	11	Q. And what is your regulatory training besides
12	specific, in Nova Scotia, PEI and New	12	your experience which is always training in
13	Brunswick, if these are actual energy	13	and of itself, of course, but did you go to
14	charges or if you're doing unit costing as	14	regulatory school, take any or those courses
15	referred down there in Newfoundland and	15	that they got on the go or programs?
16	Labrador and how the amounts were derived	16	MS. DALLEY:
17	for New Brunswick which has the dual system		A. I did actually. I attended the Camput
18	which is an anomaly and to other places in	18	course as well as my own reading and
19	Canada and the Ontario subsidization. It	19	briefings and then experience, yes.
20	seems—we need to see how it's—what's	20	BROWNE, Q.C.:
21	composed, the constituent parts perhaps, if	21	Q. Hydro has embarked upon a net metering
22	I can use that term.	22	program. How many have taken up the net
23	MR. YOUNG:	23	metering program since it was embarked upon,
24	Q. Okay, that's understood.	24	do you have any knowledge of that?
25	MR. GLYNN:	25	MS. DALLEY:
	Page 222		Page 224
1	Q. And the undertaking is noted.	1	A. I do, if you could bear with me.
2	(1:22 – UNDERTAKING)	2	BROWNE, Q.C.:
3	BROWNE, Q.C.:	3	Q. Sure.
4	Q. Now, in reference to yourself, Mr. Dalley,	4	MS. DALLEY:
5	you're Head of Regulatory Affairs at Hydro,	5	A. Or at least I believe that I do.
6	where did you work before that?	6	BROWNE, Q.C.:
7	MS. DALLEY:	7	Q. Well, you can undertake to provide it in the
8	A. Nalcor Energy.	8	interest of efficiency.
9	BROWNE, Q.C.:	9	(1:26 – UNDERTAKING)
10	Q. And what did you do there?	10	MS. DALLEY:
11	MS. DALLEY:	11	A. Yes, I was going to say, in the interest of
12	A. Prior to, going backwards from this role –	12	efficiency, but the uptake has not been
13	BROWNE, Q.C.:	13	significant.
14	Q. Yes, I know you had a lot of roles and I	14	BROWNE, Q.C.:
15	appreciate that.	15	Q. I think I might have read somewhere and it's
16	MS. DALLEY:	16	subject to check, I thought the uptake was
17	A. Well, my tendency is to go forward, not	17	0.
18	backwards, so. Going backward, my previous		MS. DALLEY:
19	role in Nalcor was vice-president for	19	A. Well, I'm thinking about those that may have
20	corporate relation and customer service.	20	been in the court of being evaluated in the
21	So, it would have been corporate	21	sense of working with those. And also I've
22	communications throughout all the Nalcor	22	looked at Newfoundland Power's as well,
1 00		23	hath
23	entities as well as customer service and	1	both.
24	energy efficiency within Hydro. And then	24	BROWNE, Q.C.:
		24 25	BROWNE, Q.C.: Q. Because I just noted in the press recently

Discoveries Unlimited Inc. (709)437-5028

Page 221 - Page 224

	23, 2018		NL IIYUU 2017 OKA
		Page 225	Page 227
1		that the town of Grand Falls/Windsor has	CERTIFICATE
2		announced that they are trying to use wind	
3		energy for their water treatment plant.	I, Judy Moss, do hereby certify that the foregoing is
4	MS. DALLEY		a true and correct transcript of a hearing in the
			matter of the 2017 General Rate Application by
5	A.	Okay.	Newfoundland Hydro heard on the 25th day of April,
6	BROWNE, Q		2018 at the Public Utilities Commission office, St.
7	Q.	And it sounded to me and I haven't checked	John's, Newfoundland and Labrador and was transcribed
8		with anyone there that they would be an	by me to the best of my ability by means of a sound
9		obvious candidate for net metering. Are you	
10		aware of that or does anyone at Hydro	apparatus from audio that was not recorded by
11			Discoveries Unlimited Inc
		monitor what people are looking for out	
12		there or go to them and help out?	Dated at St. John's, NL this
13	MS. DALLEY		25th day of April, 2018
14	А.	I wouldn't be aware of that. That's in	5 1 7
15		Newfoundland Power's service territory. So,	
16		my expectation would be that they would be	
17		in touch if the opportunity was there with	
18		Newfoundland Power.	Judy Moss
			Discoveries Unlimited Inc.
19	BROWNE, Q	•	
20	Q.	Well, it's 1:30, we can stop there. Is that	
21		fair enough?	
22	CHAIR:		
23	Q.	Yes.	
24	BROWNE, Q	.C.:	
25	Q.	Okay, we can continue tomorrow morning.	
		Page 226	
1		•	
1	CILLID	Thank you, Ms. Dalley.	
2	CHAIR:	~	
3	Q.	. See you tomorrow.	
4	Upon con	clusion at 1:27 p.m.	
5	-	-	
6			
8			
9			
10			
11			
12			
13			
14			
15			
16			
17			
18			
19			
20			
21			
22			
$\begin{vmatrix} 22\\23 \end{vmatrix}$			
$23 \\ 24$			
25			
		Discoveries Unlimite	d Inc. $(709)437-5028$ Page 225 - Page 227

NL Hydro 2017 GRA

ſ		0.10	404.40 404.40	404-4 404-05	0.000.4
	Α	2:10	131:12, 134:18,	101:4, 101:25	0, 203:4
	Abilities - 126:23	Across - 9:18, 14:19, 15:2, 15:9,	166:11, 168:13 Address - 8:3, 70:5	Agreements - 72:2	Anyway - 86:9, 186:9
	Ability - 6:16, 11:5,	16:16, 24:9, 78:9,	Addressed - 73:13	Ahead - 91:5,	Anywhere - 68:12
	13:20, 15:1, 22:18,	79:23, 83:12,	Adequate - 160:17	173:15	Apologies - 144:7,
	28:8, 58:16, 81:24,	108:3, 141:8, 213:5	Adjust - 83:18	Aim - 192:5	213:20
	83:13, 145:23,	Act - 49:11	Adjusted - 184:8	Aligned - 86:13,	Apologize - 216:4
	147:7, 153:3,	Action - 194:17	Adjustments - 101	87:25	Appeal - 3:20,
	206:15	Actions - 97:19	:5, 140:12, 154:14	Aligning - 88:19	3:21, 4:11, 4:12,
	Able - 13:9, 16:10,	Active - 26:7,	Admin - 116:19	Allow - 16:15,	4:15, 6:12
	16:22, 17:4, 18:5, 24:12, 34:18,	27:15, 34:13, 38:1,	Administration - 9:	32:23, 44:23,	Appear - 164:8
	51:15, 61:7, 61:19,	65:4, 81:16, 84:1,	7, 111:19, 115:11,	129:22	Appears - 74:9,
	64:19, 65:24,	91:1, 95:15, 105:11,	115:16, 115:21,	Allowance - 18:2,	114:5, 121:8,
	66:10, 83:18,	161:25, 190:1	143:6, 175:3	105:21, 106:8,	134:17, 155:15,
	86:24, 92:15,	Actively - 27:11 Actual - 114:22,	Administrative - 1 0:4, 14:5, 103:13,	109:15, 109:19, 109:24, 154:13,	177:5, 181:14, 186:21
	95:10, 97:16,	116:1, 116:2, 116:4,	129:16, 140:23,	160:6	Appellant - 3:22
	106:9, 110:21,	116:23, 124:4,	142:17	Allowed - 80:4,	Apple - 214:13,
	117:7, 128:10,	133:15, 142:3,	Administratively -	84:24	214:14
	131:11, 133:2,	142:4, 143:14,	82:14, 192:13,	Allows - 15:10	Apples - 214:7,
	137:21, 142:1,	159:25, 165:1,	194:11	Alluded - 21:24	214:8, 217:15,
	149:16, 160:10, 161:16, 168:22,	165:2, 165:15,	Admittingly - 174:	Alone - 62:25	217:16, 220:4
	175:1, 176:5,	171:19, 176:3,	2	Altering - 93:14	Application - 2:11,
	177:20, 187:4,	176:4, 178:4,	Adopt - 28:6, 28:9,	Alternative - 63:7,	4:5, 130:10,
	187:23, 195:13	181:15, 216:23,	28:11	189:15, 190:2	178:12, 200:11,
	Above - 216:21	221:13	Adopted - 27:7	Alternatives - 49:2	200:24, 200:25,
	Abreast - 214:1	Actuals - 96:25, 119:5, 124:5,	Adopting - 212:6 Advance - 35:21,	1, 63:13, 189:11, 189:16, 189:18	203:2, 204:4, 205:3, 205:7, 207:5
	Absorb - 75:7,	124:10, 124:13,	193:23	Amassed - 104:23	Applications - 60:1
	128:10, 146:8,	124:16, 133:14,	Advocate's - 73:12	Amend - 28:9	9, 65:18, 68:22,
	146:13	133:22, 134:8,	Affairs - 30:20,	Among - 73:13	68:24
	Accept - 94:1,	139:9, 139:13,	31:1, 37:20, 76:9,	Amongst - 93:15	Applied - 5:17
	186:10 Acceptable - 36:15	141:15, 142:16,	126:1, 175:1,	Amount - 41:17,	Applying - 3:12
	Access - 103:16	143:25, 149:11,	175:5, 175:18,	124:11, 155:24,	Appreciate - 45:23,
	Account - 17:11,	155:17, 164:6,	176:11, 176:23,	210:25	154:5, 198:1,
	32:5, 32:11, 32:13,	164:25, 165:8, 166:21, 174:13,	179:19, 180:16, 182:3, 195:23,	Amounts - 221:16 Analysis - 3:18,	199:9, 205:9, 206:21, 222:15
	32:23, 34:19, 35:2,	176:8, 177:11,	222:5	9:25, 10:8, 20:22,	Appreciated - 53:1
	36:19, 38:25, 44:6,	177:15, 178:6,	Affect - 68:25	38:4, 38:9, 59:5,	0, 218:1
	49:23, 51:9, 51:20,	178:24, 179:3,	Affects - 201:1,	81:3, 128:2, 131:1,	Appreciative - 49:4
	52:25, 53:24,	179:15, 180:9,	201:25	131:19, 138:4,	Apprentice - 183:5
	54:10, 55:12,	180:25	Afford - 93:3	170:25, 184:12	, 183:17
	55:20, 57:21, 59:15, 59:23, 61:3,	Adapted - 28:12	Against - 25:7	Analyst - 11:3	Apprentices - 183:
	61:8, 65:13, 69:22,	Add - 117:18,	Agendas - 39:5,	Analytical - 9:14	5
	72:1, 99:25, 106:1,	122:10, 123:2,	192:17	Analytics - 9:20	Apprenticeship - 1
	192:10, 193:6,	124:7, 124:23, 183:10	Aggressive - 64:14 , 158:25, 160:24,	Anchoring - 42:25 Announced - 225:	82:16, 182:21, 183:12
	194:7, 196:11,	Added - 116:20,	, 158.25, 160.24, 173:18, 174:6	2 Announced - 225.	Approach - 26:17,
	196:17, 201:14	121:4, 121:6,	Agree - 5:24,	Annual - 18:19,	31:14, 31:19,
	Accountable - 133:	121:9, 123:15,	28:23, 32:11, 44:8,	74:14	58:13, 61:5, 61:6,
	10	125:9, 135:5,	49:1, 110:12,	Annually - 85:24,	63:4, 73:19, 81:7,
	Accruals - 176:16	135:8, 135:9,	153:20, 165:6,	111:25	103:4, 157:8,
	Accurate - 111:14, 117:9, 125:2	135:20, 136:1,	174:12, 186:13,	Anomaly - 174:17,	160:2, 160:4,
	Achieve - 36:13,	136:16, 136:25,	204:25, 211:4,	174:19, 218:6,	161:8, 161:22,
	36:23, 104:1,	137:5, 137:6,	211:10, 212:25	221:18	161:24
	106:10, 206:5,	146:19, 146:20, 155:16	Agreed - 193:17 Agreement - 1:14,	Anticipate - 160:22 Anticipated - 33:4,	Approached - 33:1 8, 107:12
	207:10, 207:13	Adding - 78:6,	1:16, 1:22, 1:23,	44:11, 66:2	Approaches - 192:
	Achieved - 19:8	126:5, 128:3,	2:19, 3:2, 4:8, 4:20,	Anticipates - 6:19,	8, 202:11
	Achievement - 24:	131:20	4:22, 5:6, 5:10,	203:23, 203:24	Approaching - 81:
	14 Asknowledged 2	Addition - 116:25,	5:19, 6:16, 6:18,	Anticipating - 98:1	9
	Acknowledged - 3				
- 1					

Г	,				,
	Appropriate - 24:1	216:12	188:15, 189:10,	18:19, 25:7, 32:24,	95:10, 99:19,
	6, 97:17, 126:4,	Assistance - 130:1	190:12, 225:10,	47:24, 50:20,	100:9, 110:3,
	129:23, 160:12,	0	225:14	81:21, 83:19,	110:21, 112:17,
	160:17, 160:20,	Assistant - 19:24		92:14, 99:20,	124:9, 203:14,
	161:11, 161:13,	Assisted - 49:13,	В	102:21, 103:18,	204:1
	161:24, 162:8,	102:23		148:21, 161:1,	Board's - 95:4,
	162:9, 173:22,	Associated - 111:1	Back - 4:17, 10:3,	170:3, 171:21,	95:6, 99:14, 100:5,
I			10:5, 10:12, 21:2,		
I	190:9, 217:4	9, 115:20, 141:12,	35:22, 40:25, 64:1,	210:18, 210:21,	113:2, 157:16,
I	Appropriately - 18	142:2, 142:17,	69:5, 80:14, 84:14,	220:23, 221:4	206:6
I	5:22	142:18, 163:25,	86:25, 87:7, 96:22,	Bay - 68:5	Bonuses - 203:20,
I	Appropriateness -	178:11	97:8, 113:15, 116:2,	BC - 108:18	204:13, 204:21,
I	48:25	Assumed - 119:12,	117:13, 117:23,	Bear - 124:14,	205:8
	Approval - 4:8,	149:9	119:20, 128:5,	124:16, 224:1	Borne - 124:3,
I	44:4, 44:7, 86:19,	Assumption - 54:1	145:23, 148:9,	Bears - 205:16	129:16
I	153:2	4, 114:10, 116:16	149:21, 149:24,	Became - 33:21	Both - 9:5, 22:25,
I	Approved - 53:25,	Assumptions - 18	161:10, 176:19,	Beginnings - 154:3	85:11, 136:20,
I	54:10, 86:21,	5:5	180:6, 183:4,	Behind - 8:16,	163:3, 181:19,
I	107:15, 153:23	Astounding - 68:4	193:2, 196:9,	40:9, 43:3, 124:25,	192:24, 210:22,
I	Area - 41:12, 56:2,	Atlantic - 89:21,	212:3, 221:3	125:16, 131:11,	224:23
I	83:15, 134:4,	100:19, 208:7,		137:11, 212:10	Bottom - 77:11,
	156:5, 161:18,	208:8, 208:10,	Backed - 63:2	Below - 42:16,	108:15, 110:13,
	174:24, 174:25,	208:12, 209:3,	Background - 43:3	216:15	119:8, 119:9,
I	175:7, 175:9,	212:15, 212:17,	, 43:13, 107:5,	Bend - 64:19,	119:13, 121:23,
I	175:19, 175:22,	212:18, 212:19,	137:13, 212:10	83:25	134:18, 201:25
I	175:25, 176:7,	214:3, 214:10,	Backstopped - 70:	Beneficial - 12:2	Brakes - 151:3
I	176:12, 177:1,	214:16, 214:19,	7	Benefit - 9:25,	Break - 118:12,
I	179:19, 179:23,	214:24	Backward - 222:18	10:7, 10:24,	175:21
I	180:11, 185:19,	Attachment - 41:2	Backwards - 222:1	131:19, 138:4,	Breakdown - 168:2
I	188:16	2, 74:8, 154:24,	2, 222:18	153:18, 153:19,	5, 171:3
I	Areas - 16:10,	175:23, 179:2	Balance - 97:3,	184:12	Breakeven - 70:23
I	21:25, 24:20,	Attempted - 47:3	134:22, 162:13,	Benefits - 15:7,	Breaks - 175:24
I	25:13, 25:15,	Attendance - 28:2	207:10	51:16, 170:22	Briefings - 223:19
I	26:18, 26:21,		Balanced - 14:2,	Big - 176:23	British - 214:23,
I		Attended - 223:17	97:15, 172:8,		215:1
I	62:17, 131:10,	Attention - 26:10	207:14	Biggest - 96:7,	
I	162:19, 171:17,	Attractive - 66:16	Balancing - 14:13	99:2, 99:7, 141:22,	Broad - 15:9
I	175:2, 193:7	Attrition - 16:20	Base - 116:23,	193:15	Broaden - 14:17
I	Aren't - 33:6,	Auditor - 29:8	219:13	Bill - 216:25	Broke - 178:25
I	56:25, 161:20	August - 2:25	Based - 7:1, 33:7,	Bimonthly - 192:20	Brought - 26:10,
I	Arose - 52:6	Availability - 3:15,	46:4, 59:15, 64:23,	Bit - 14:11, 19:20,	49:6, 83:2, 84:18,
I	Articles - 218:18	57:20, 58:13, 59:11,	64:24, 66:5, 67:7,	30:19, 33:13,	84:19, 87:4, 89:14,
I	Articulated - 4:4	59:23, 65:24, 69:1	68:16, 77:13,	89:23, 91:5, 111:6,	123:24, 124:9,
I	Aspects - 14:19,	Available - 36:18,	78:22, 101:17,	123:13, 125:25,	126:7, 126:9,
I	15:3, 107:3	39:23, 40:3, 40:5,	108:17, 111:23,	133:15, 143:19,	127:14, 132:2,
	Assertive - 64:15	40:7, 46:23, 46:25,	112:14, 112:24,	168:18, 174:16,	170:12, 170:14,
I	Assess - 24:12,	48:2, 55:24, 56:13,	114:22, 117:24,	182:18, 197:8,	170:17
I	25:6, 25:7, 105:14,	57:5, 57:7, 58:20,	119:7, 119:11,	204:5, 220:21,	Brown - 220:13
I	126:20, 127:6,	66:3, 68:17, 93:6,	120:14, 121:1,	221:10	Brunswick - 211:1
I	147:8, 193:7	206:1, 215:7,	122:10, 122:17,	Biweekly - 82:16	8, 211:19, 218:5,
I	Assessing - 103:2	215:12, 215:14,	123:1, 123:8,	Block - 55:25	218:7, 219:1,
I	4	218:14	123:11, 137:22,	Blocks - 46:8	219:25, 221:13,
I	Assessment - 13:1	Average - 101:12,	138:3, 138:7,	Board - 2:12, 4:6,	221:17
I	7, 54:3, 57:3,	212:18, 214:10,	140:22, 140:23,	4:19, 7:6, 14:23,	Budget - 18:7,
I	130:19, 147:2,	217:5, 217:7, 217:8		15:2, 24:9, 25:21,	72:9, 74:3, 74:13,
I	153:2, 153:6,	Avoid - 44:25	140:24, 140:25, 141:5, 165:8,	29:8, 44:13, 44:20,	75:7, 77:1, 77:11,
I	185:12, 216:8	Aware - 5:7, 5:21,		44:23, 45:14, 46:1,	77:22, 78:8, 79:21,
	Assessments - 10	27:24, 36:12,	179:20, 204:4,	46:6, 48:24, 49:15,	80:1, 83:2, 85:6,
	8:17, 190:4	38:14, 48:13, 63:5,	215:6, 216:23,	50:23, 54:4, 73:10,	85:8, 85:11, 90:13,
	Asset - 183:8	75:25, 77:22, 94:7,	217:4, 218:13	81:17, 83:12,	91:22, 92:1, 92:11,
	Assets - 98:4,	104:3, 142:9,	Basic - 216:20,	86:15, 86:17,	93:12, 96:25,
	140:4, 140:5	148:25, 156:21,	217:1, 217:11,	86:18, 86:19,	111:25, 120:9,
	Assist - 45:9,	157:5, 172:18,	217:14 Regio 14:10	89:15, 94:19,	120:14, 148:8,
	,	, -,	Basis - 14:10,	, -,	,,
1				1	1

NL Hydro 2017 GRA

April 25, 2018				NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	00 4 00 00 400 F		70 40 444 40	
148:10, 148:11,	93:4, 93:20, 128:5,	Certain - 2:7, 3:14,	72:13, 111:13,	Collaborative - 31:
149:23, 150:5,	140:5, 149:18,	32:14, 79:8, 96:22,	143:1	21, 31:22, 47:17
155:2, 158:6,	164:18, 174:20,	124:11, 161:17,	Charges - 139:25,	Collaboratively - 1
159:23, 160:9,	185:18, 209:1,	188:25, 210:14	221:11, 221:14	95:19
160:11, 166:16,	212:25	Certainly - 11:24,	Chart - 115:18,	Collapsed - 6:20,
174:2, 175:19,	Capacity - 61:20,	25:24, 29:10,	163:6, 215:5,	17:3
175:20, 181:12,	209:9, 223:6	31:24, 49:3, 50:3,	215:16, 215:17,	Collect - 32:24
182:17, 183:3	Capital - 19:6,	62:20, 71:2, 86:8,	216:7, 216:15,	Collecting - 157:13
Budgeted - 80:2	63:17, 107:2,	89:16, 93:6, 97:5,	219:13	Collective - 101:4,
Budgets - 74:10,	158:18, 190:19	97:21, 110:23,	Charts - 22:6,	101:25
74:14, 74:21,	Capitalized - 92:13	127:22, 133:10,	83:22, 137:24	Collectively - 92:2
74:24, 75:21,	Caps - 219:3	142:6, 145:4,	Check - 142:6,	5
76:12, 76:19, 78:1,	Carefully - 206:6	163:22, 164:18,	186:10, 186:14,	Columbia - 214:23,
78:3, 79:15, 86:21,	Carried - 120:13	172:1, 187:13,	186:16, 209:16,	215:1
90:20, 149:21,	Carry - 118:24	193:19, 195:12,	210:2, 217:12,	Column - 42:17,
160:19, 181:25	Carrying - 170:9	195:17, 197:14,	217:23, 217:25,	155:12
Build - 191:14,	Case - 19:4, 30:22,	202:10, 206:6,	219:18, 219:21,	Columns - 155:1
192:4	31:2, 31:15, 31:24,	211:24, 215:20,	224:16	Combination - 20:
Building - 77:10	32:12, 33:15,	218:12	Checked - 225:7	19, 131:4, 158:17,
Buildup - 181:11	33:23, 33:24,	Cetera - 17:11,	Choice - 126:21	168:13
Built - 17:20,	35:14, 37:13, 39:11,	17:12, 150:12	Choose - 50:23,	Combined - 17:2
76:19, 79:19,	40:20, 40:25, 42:6,	CF - 2:20, 6:16,	126:3	Combining - 15:19
101:17, 102:11,	49:13, 50:17, 53:1,	55:25	Chosen - 214:25	Come - 5:8, 6:2,
181:25, 212:20	54:1, 54:7, 63:15,	CHAIR - 1:2, 1:8,	Churchill - 2:4,	6:24, 6:25, 13:25,
			,	
Bulb - 34:10	64:17, 100:9,	1:9, 4:25, 5:3, 7:4,	2:19, 3:4, 3:10,	18:14, 30:2, 39:19,
Bulk - 116:18	105:17, 109:24,	7:13, 7:18, 118:19,	3:22, 3:23, 4:9,	63:4, 64:4, 75:12,
Bumps - 152:6	111:4, 114:12,	118:23, 119:1,	6:12, 68:10	78:7, 79:5, 80:14,
Bureaucratic - 106	145:6, 196:16,	198:2, 198:6,	Circle - 88:21,	94:12, 96:15,
:16	211:15, 213:4	198:11, 198:15,	160:23	100:14, 110:10,
Bus - 188:8	Cases - 47:13,	198:21, 225:22,	Circulated - 155:13	122:11, 125:1,
Business - 14:2,	61:10, 63:8	226:2	Circumstances - 4	148:7, 164:7,
14:19, 19:3, 24:6,	Castonguay - 2:24	Challenge - 1:25,	4:12, 44:20, 44:21,	170:11, 173:6,
24:8, 64:17, 77:21,	Catalogue - 108:13	49:4, 49:5, 96:7	219:7	183:14, 212:3,
82:15, 94:6, 95:9,	, 108:14	Challenged - 5:12	Clarification - 5:23	215:17, 215:18,
105:17, 107:4,	Catch - 174:14	Challenging - 1:21,	, 119:22, 144:8,	220:22, 220:23
107:24, 109:6,	Category - 155:1	45:5, 45:6, 46:3,	167:9, 168:9,	Comes - 8:4, 15:6,
126:18, 132:1,	Cause - 145:15	206:5	210:17	28:4, 51:23, 79:21,
	Caused - 170:16	Change - 13:2,	Clarify - 1:15, 4:18,	81:14, 87:16,
132:4, 145:25,				
152:25, 154:18,	Caveat - 29:5,	13:5, 13:13, 22:11,	147:23, 152:16	87:17, 114:15,
160:12, 165:19,	221:3	22:16, 24:16, 53:11,	Climb - 52:3	114:23, 145:23,
207:11	CDM - 187:14,	73:8, 74:2, 95:9,	Close - 16:12,	196:1
Businesses - 204:	189:5, 189:10	96:11, 96:16,	66:14, 69:7, 92:10,	Comfortable - 28:1
10	Cell - 105:3, 105:4	100:24, 107:24,	96:23, 118:11,	6, 154:17, 166:13,
	Center - 146:3	154:4, 161:1,	220:4	166:15, 174:1
С				
	Central - 16:15,	161:5, 185:6, 206:16	Closely - 187:19	Coming - 3:3, 22:3,
Calculate - 217:9	145:19, 145:20		Clouded - 15:14	34:5, 34:6, 47:1,
Calculated - 43:6,	Centralize - 61:5	Changed - 71:13,	Co - 2:20, 6:16,	50:6, 79:2, 92:7,
43:13, 43:17	Centralized - 61:18	71:18, 71:19,	9:10, 11:18, 55:25	101:14, 108:8,
	, 76:15, 76:24,	100:20	Coal - 212:2	139:22, 145:1,
Call - 16:12, 35:17,	78:15, 126:24,	Changes - 14:20,	Coalesce - 34:7	149:11, 166:13,
78:11, 194:8	152:23, 160:2,	21:20, 22:16, 27:9,	Coalesced - 130:1	183:1, 203:25
Called - 201:13	160:7, 160:8,	56:21, 110:5, 133:9,	3	Comment - 109:11,
Calls - 66:14			-	
Camput - 223:17	160:20	134:23, 150:1,	Coast - 195:18	223:7
Canada - 209:3,	Centres - 60:20,	151:25, 181:4	Cognizance - 2:11	Commentary - 14:
	61:9, 64:3, 65:23,	Characterization -	Cognizant - 88:4	24
213:5, 214:3,	66:11, 66:16, 68:2	6:5	Coish - 61:14,	Comments - 99:25,
221:19	Cents - 40:1, 42:2,	Charge - 10:12,	192:12, 194:7,	220:12
Canadian - 89:21,	42:18, 43:11, 52:8,	215:23, 216:20,	195:4, 195:7	Commercial - 72:1
100:19				
Candidate - 225:9	52:12, 53:14,	216:24, 217:1,	Coish's - 192:11	9, 146:6
Can't - 26:6, 29:12,	212:19, 213:7,	217:11, 217:14	Collaborating - 19	Commissioners -
52:21, 62:21, 73:2,	216:17, 217:9	Charged - 10:5,	3:25	2:13, 4:7

April 25, 2018				NL Hydro 2017 GRA
Commitments - 17 3:1 Committed - 18:21 Committee - 26:21, 37:3, 37:5, 37:8, 37:22, 38:2, 38:6, 39:1, 39:4, 48:11, 52:7, 72:3, 73:4, 77:3, 77:4, 85:10, 86:15, 86:16, 87:1, 87:4, 87:5, 103:15, 197:13, 202:14 Common - 9:3, 27:4, 28:19, 89:19 Communicated - 2 :16, 101:7 Communication - 20:12, 193:21 Communications - 222:22, 223:1, 223:6 Companies - 12:11 , 15:10, 191:15, 192:5, 192:24 Company - 14:22, 16:16, 27:10, 28:6, 20:7, 91:12, 98:6	20, 207:17 Compiled - 215:5, 216:7 Complement - 145 :16, 183:18 Complete - 138:10 Completed - 138:9 Complex - 45:16 Compliance - 129: 21, 130:14, 138:10, 181:22 Component - 12:4 Components - 106 :1 Concept - 33:21, 49:22, 50:4 Concern - 28:25, 65:19, 68:20, 172:12, 172:21, 184:14 Concerned - 205:6 Concerning - 1:15, 48:6, 52:5, 156:14 Concerns - 87:3, 97:5 - 194:16	100:21, 184:21, 189:12, 189:20 Considering - 59:1 6 Consistent - 61:6, 141:8, 221:6 Consolidate - 61:7, 153:3 Constituent - 221: 21 Constituted - 104: 8 Constrained - 62:2 0 Constraints - 58:2 5, 59:10, 63:8, 63:9, 64:25, 65:1, 65:11, 67:8, 68:9, 68:11, 86:1 Construct - 207:15 Constructed - 129: 14 Construction - 63: 6, 64:1, 67:12 Consultants - 18:2 5, 19:5 Consultants - 18:2 5, 19:5	17 Contribution - 52:3 Contributor - 25:1 7 Control - 22:8, 76:25, 77:25, 78:1, 86:7, 90:12, 90:14, 90:21, 92:15, 92:17, 93:4, 94:7, 99:9, 104:23, 126:25, 146:2, 148:20, 150:13, 151:4, 159:23, 160:8, 160:20, 161:13, 170:2, 171:22, 173:2, 173:25, 186:22 Controllable - 93:2 4 Controllable - 93:2 4 Controls - 18:9, 18:13, 77:24, 90:19, 90:25, 110:6, 145:5, 153:1, 166:14 Convention 110	Council - 129:11, 129:13, 129:15, 129:23, 129:25 Counsel - 1:19, 5:5, 188:22, 210:4 Count - 100:23 Counterpart - 11:2 0 Couple - 17:6, 72:7, 84:4, 85:25, 101:10, 106:10, 108:23, 119:2, 119:20, 155:11, 186:3, 220:12 Course - 3:15, 22:15, 151:2, 223:13, 223:18 Courses - 223:14 Courses - 223:14 Court - 1:25, 2:2, 2:3, 2:23, 2:25, 3:19, 3:21, 4:12, 4:15, 4:23, 6:11, 224:20 Courts - 5:15 Covered - 182:2 Create - 88:5
29:7, 81:13, 88:6,	87:5, 184:16	Consultation - 22:	Conversation - 1:1	Created - 30:7
91:21, 96:21, 98:6,	Conclusion - 6:25,	13	8, 1:19	Creating - 22:3,
147:3, 162:9,	226:4	Consulted - 11:12,	Conversions - 18:	30:14, 106:22,
205:14, 207:12	Conclusions - 7:1	27:8	25	126:19
Comparable - 121:	Conducting - 129:	Consumer - 73:12,	Converted - 19:7	Creation - 19:22,
11, 121:15, 209:6	12	199:14	Converting - 19:4	20:7, 20:11
Comparator - 208:	Conferences - 163	Consumers - 200:	Coordinates - 194:	Crews - 98:8
11, 212:17, 214:11,	:2	12, 203:22, 204:2,	16	Crisis - 205:4
214:20	Confess - 143:19	205:5, 205:11,	Coordination - 10:	Critical - 183:7
Comparators - 212	Confidence - 18:6,	207:21, 210:7	25, 22:14	Cross - 7:16, 7:19,
:16	100:10	Consumption - 21	Coordinator - 8:22,	72:4, 198:23,
Compare - 29:12,	Confident - 154:16	3:3	8:25, 10:17,	198:24
211:17	Confirm - 1:18,	Contact - 102:20,	135:23, 137:10	Crown - 110:24
Compared - 57:1,	1:20, 54:24, 60:3,	108:21, 195:24	Coordinators - 137	Crowns - 86:6
173:18, 212:3	60:5, 60:10,	Contacts - 197:15	:19	Culture - 96:11,
Comparison - 12:2	102:12, 136:15,	Contained - 9:6	Copy - 2:15	107:25, 151:3,
1, 12:24, 209:2,	138:17, 139:4,	Containing - 2:21	Corporate - 25:9,	154:4
212:8, 214:14,	204:19, 204:21	Context - 11:23,	76:9, 126:1,	Curious - 221:8
217:16	Confused - 111:6	46:19, 72:1, 81:17,	174:25, 175:4,	Current - 42:1,
Compatriot - 85:20	Cons - 161:22	131:22, 131:24, 152:22, 214:2 Continue - 8:24, 70:24, 225:25 Continues - 186:19 Continuous - 3:3, 5:13, 18:11 Contract - 2:22, 3:13, 4:1, 4:4, 103:13, 206:2 Contracts - 205:16 , 206:4, 206:11 Contribute - 45:12, 50:9, 192:24 Contributed - 147:	175:17, 180:15,	43:9, 59:17, 60:7,
Compelling - 64:18	Consequences - 9		182:7, 222:20,	221:5
Compensation - 2	7:19, 98:17, 157:4		222:21, 223:1	Currently - 129:13,
6:18, 26:20, 28:17,	Conservation - 18		Corporation - 2:5,	130:1
28:23, 77:4, 77:19,	6:23, 187:7		3:23, 3:24, 6:13,	Customer - 15:19,
85:10, 86:12,	Consider - 48:24,		110:24	17:1, 17:7, 17:10,
86:14, 86:16,	70:23, 78:10,		Corrected - 193:12	24:10, 50:11, 61:11,
87:22, 88:4, 89:10,	87:20, 94:9		Correction - 151:2	64:21, 65:6, 97:16,
100:17, 100:24,	Considerable - 3:1		Costing - 204:5,	148:15, 192:6,
101:11, 205:17,	7, 4:10		205:5, 212:21,	193:10, 193:15,
205:18, 206:12,	Consideration - 51		212:22, 216:19,	195:6, 216:20,
206:14, 207:16,	:10, 54:11, 59:18,		219:23, 221:14	217:11, 217:14,
208:14, 208:22	88:11, 100:15		Costly - 14:11,	222:20, 222:23
Compensation's -	Considerations - 2		181:24	Customers' - 72:1
85:22	2:23, 45:24		Couldn't - 8:11,	5
Competitive - 205:	Considered - 60:8,		11:9	Cut - 80:23, 97:10,

April 20, 2010				
97:11, 153:9	55:20, 57:21,	Determination - 44	2, 204:7, 205:10	141:23, 176:24
Cuts - 150:1, 157:2	59:15, 65:13,	:13, 51:6, 88:13	Discretion - 49:15	Drivers - 131:6,
Cutting - 150:21	196:11, 196:17,	Determinations - 4	Discussing - 13:19	154:18, 158:21,
	201:14	6:7	, 34:25, 51:14,	172:3, 213:2, 214:5
D	Deferred - 203:2	Determine - 44:23,		
		,	70:2, 197:5	Drives - 107:6
Daily - 66:14	Deficit - 186:4,	78:21, 83:13,	Discussions - 27:1	Driving - 92:24
Dam - 6:17	186:8, 186:18,	83:24, 113:19	1, 34:7, 36:10,	Dropping - 24:21
Dark - 204:8,	187:23, 189:13,	Determined - 46:2	37:10, 39:6, 43:21,	Drove - 122:5
204:22	189:18, 191:5	1, 71:8, 111:24	48:13, 48:14, 50:4,	Dual - 221:17
Data - 60:20, 61:9,	Definitely - 207:16	Develop - 47:3	71:23, 72:2, 72:5,	Dubious - 204:6
64:3, 66:11, 66:16,	Degree - 18:6,	Developed - 49:22,	73:21, 81:16,	Due - 72:10,
68:2, 90:13, 92:8,	27:3, 29:6, 32:14,	196:16	82:22, 85:18,	176:11, 182:15
98:12, 110:9,	81:20, 88:1,	Developing - 31:24	85:22, 86:11, 93:15,	Duty - 68:22
157:13, 160:1,	139:17, 172:8,	, 42:12, 105:16	93:23, 95:8,	Dynamic - 83:19
215:4, 215:12,	199:10, 199:19,	Development - 9:1	137:20, 140:14,	
220:20	219:2	3, 28:15, 35:14,	148:22, 151:1,	E
	Delays - 178:11,	102:23	157:12, 158:1,	Each - 22:14,
Database - 9:15, 108:13	179:20	Dice - 35:18	189:25, 190:1,	
	Deliver - 13:21,	Didn't - 10:7,	190:7, 196:5,	78:16, 79:24,
Date - 22:17, 26:1,	14:7, 64:20, 81:24,	49:17, 101:22,	197:22, 201:16,	81:10, 81:13,
30:4, 104:5	97:16, 107:22,	147:4, 165:22,	201:20, 201:23,	95:14, 121:4,
Dated - 2:14, 2:25	107:23, 108:6,	177:5, 178:24,	202:15, 203:11,	131:20, 134:4,
Dates - 74:16	109:12, 147:10,	180:22, 204:13	214:4	136:25, 171:17,
DAWN - 7:19,	153:6, 172:6,	Difference - 5:20,	Distinct - 107:1	206:1
198:24	199:21, 208:4	118:5, 119:7, 119:8,	Distraction - 15:14	Earlier - 42:9, 80:7,
Day - 47:24, 56:21	Delivering - 108:8,	140:11, 141:11,	Distribution - 64:2	87:15, 89:23,
Days - 184:22	193:16	176:22, 178:8,	4	99:13, 110:2, 125:4,
Deal - 6:16, 64:3,	Delivery - 15:3,	179:17, 210:24	Diverse - 194:24	125:6, 134:21,
73:19, 93:17, 94:5,	202:11	Different - 15:4,	Divisional - 79:24	139:8, 139:15,
95:21, 157:1,	Demand - 186:23,	47:22, 77:5, 84:13,	Document - 8:24,	140:12, 142:12,
178:17, 204:6	187:7	109:2, 127:13,	9:1, 10:17, 40:24,	149:22, 154:5,
Dealt - 73:23				158:24, 196:9
December - 104:12	Demonstrate - 95:	128:15, 144:16,	42:21, 42:25, 156:4	Early - 4:16, 35:12,
Decentralized - 16	10, 110:3, 110:22,	159:7, 176:1,	Documents - 8:21	39:12, 92:8,
0:18	154:6, 174:5	184:24, 185:13,	Doesn't - 59:23,	144:23, 146:11,
Decide - 126:4	Demonstrated - 18	185:15, 188:25,	115:11, 156:9,	148:18, 157:25,
Decision - 6:11,	:23, 195:5	191:12, 192:2,	164:8, 175:21	174:3, 184:22,
45:15, 149:12,	DENNIS - 198:24	195:9, 195:17,	Dollar - 109:15,	184:25, 197:1
190:24, 208:25,	Dent - 51:21	212:20, 213:1,	158:8, 167:3,	Earnest - 157:15
212:11	Department - 31:2,	213:2, 213:3,	169:18, 176:22,	East - 62:16
Decisions - 31:22,	31:8, 37:20, 38:11,	219:7, 219:8	180:10, 180:24,	Easy - 120:7, 199:9
92:9, 98:13, 98:15,	61:1, 78:17, 91:10,	Differently - 35:4	181:9, 187:4, 187:5	Economic - 204:9
156:25, 157:14,	126:12, 152:24,	Difficult - 48:24,	Dollars - 99:20,	Economically - 18
184:10, 197:24	178:25	98:21, 98:23	109:18, 110:15,	7:18
Declaration - 2:6,	Departments - 76:	Difficulty - 94:16	110:16, 167:13,	Economics - 71:13
2:8, 3:20	8, 76:21, 90:2,	Diluting - 15:9	173:6	, 71:19
Declarations - 6:13	148:13, 151:6,	Direction - 31:13,	Domestic - 199:23,	Economy - 57:6,
, 7:3	176:1	38:19, 38:20,	200:19, 200:25,	207:23
, 7.3 Declared - 2:2	Deprived - 204:8	47:25, 53:13, 75:2,	216:17	Effect - 187:21
Decrease - 176:14,	Depth - 137:23	86:4, 86:5, 151:17,	Doubt - 13:14	Effective - 12:13,
177:7, 177:20,	Derived - 219:24,	151:21, 153:9,	Dovetails - 86:7	13:25, 24:2, 70:24,
177:21	221:16	153:13, 156:14,	Draw - 69:9, 69:18,	71:8, 94:10, 216:16
	Describe - 96:17,	186:20, 190:17,	69:19	
Dedicated - 14:1,	145:19	190:25, 206:7	Drawing - 109:10	Effectively - 16:22, 200:24
20:7, 102:13	Described - 4:2	Directions - 74:20,	Drawn - 71:9	
Deep - 190:7,	Design - 73:9,	74:23, 76:2, 191:9	Dreaming - 32:16	Effectiveness - 14:
194:23	73:13, 205:22	Directly - 6:3,	Driven - 22:23,	3, 22:24, 23:9,
Deferral - 32:5,	Designated - 195:2	10:20, 103:21	22:24, 138:1,	23:21
32:11, 32:13, 34:19,	4	Disagree - 5:25,	170:5, 181:18,	Efficiencies - 15:2
35:1, 36:19, 38:25,	Detailed - 38:6,	6:4	197:12, 215:11	5, 17:19, 21:6,
44:6, 49:23, 51:9,	51:12, 137:16,	Disallowed - 99:19	Driver - 23:3,	23:4, 109:12,
51:20, 52:25,	155:6	Disconnect - 203:2	139:20, 141:19,	109:16, 109:22
53:24, 54:9, 55:12,				Efficiency - 15:18,
1		1	1	1 1

15:21, 107:4,	Engineer - 89:5	47:18	125:21, 151:16,	Extract - 34:2
	-		151:17, 152:7,	
107:6, 148:16,	Engineering - 19:1	Everybody - 1:3		Extraordinary - 20
222:24, 224:8,	, 20:14, 89:7,	Everyone - 28:20,	155:13, 157:22,	3:25
224:12	107:2, 131:9,	95:16, 126:23,	175:12, 192:15,	Eye - 22:1
Efficient - 16:17,	132:14, 132:16,	190:12, 198:18,	192:17, 194:12,	
95:12, 97:25	185:20	199:16	196:5, 203:12	F
Efficiently - 94:6	Engineers - 127:25	Everyone's - 64:16	Executives - 19:25	
	-	-		Fabricated - 4:1
Efforts - 186:22	Enhanced - 193:20	Everything - 115:2	, 79:22, 82:23,	Faced - 2:10
Eight - 64:12,	, 193:23	2	92:17, 131:15,	Facetious - 109:9
64:13	Ensure - 103:25,	Evidence - 3:5,	133:9	
Elapsed - 49:9	145:5, 150:13,	5:13, 31:25, 44:10,	Exhibit - 53:6	Facilitates - 160:8,
Electric - 209:7,	160:17	45:1, 45:14, 45:19,	Existed - 220:17	161:12, 205:19
				Facilitating - 162:1
209:9, 209:17,	Entire - 173:22	46:4, 50:16, 51:2,	Existence - 12:23	3
209:21	Entirely - 169:3,	52:5, 80:7, 96:25,	Expect - 10:10,	Factored - 158:20,
Electricity - 72:16,	215:3, 218:25	97:4, 111:10, 148:6,	10:15, 14:10,	
89:6, 193:16,	Entities - 9:18,	162:18, 173:3,	18:18, 22:18, 27:6,	168:19, 218:9
196:13, 199:13,	12:3, 88:3, 222:23	191:10, 191:22,	53:4, 54:9, 71:9,	Factors - 25:18,
				212:20, 217:10
204:9, 208:10,	Entity - 28:24,	201:12, 201:18,	88:16, 106:9,	Factum - 6:12
209:24, 211:12,	29:1, 29:23	203:15, 208:6	109:11, 109:14,	Fagan - 38:15,
212:6, 213:4	Enviro - 138:16	Evolution - 87:21,	120:15, 140:9,	47:21, 51:2, 51:15,
Eleven - 118:12	Environment - 8:3,	196:25, 197:4	179:18, 180:9,	
Eligible - 22:1	8:17, 9:24, 20:14,	EXAMINATION - 7:	181:8, 190:5,	70:17, 72:1, 73:22,
Eliminate - 109:5	47:17, 137:21	19, 198:24	217:12	73:24, 196:2, 196:4
				Failure - 177:25,
Eliminated - 17:17,	Environmental - 9:	Examine - 4:17	Expectation - 86:6,	180:7
128:10, 128:20,	2, 10:19, 135:23,	Examined - 11:22	109:22, 183:15,	Fairly - 31:20,
132:25, 135:3,	136:11, 137:10,	Example - 10:15,	225:16	· · ·
145:18, 145:21,	137:18, 138:8,	19:10, 50:17,	Expected - 13:22,	36:20, 47:16, 53:8,
145:22, 146:10,	138:21, 181:21	83:16, 92:20, 98:5,	27:16, 33:7, 50:8,	86:3, 126:16,
				137:16, 161:25,
146:11, 147:12,	Equally - 192:25	100:12, 108:19,	54:5, 54:11, 54:16,	162:4, 165:4,
147:15, 150:5	Equation - 106:4,	124:6, 146:1,	54:22, 56:25,	181:23, 195:14,
Embarked - 223:21	218:9	147:11, 151:24,	82:21, 100:1,	207:18
, 223:23	Equipment - 163:1	157:24, 160:6,	107:22, 110:9,	
Embarrass - 169:1	0	181:3, 181:21	123:16, 184:25,	Fall - 73:14, 106:2,
1	Equivalent - 140:7,	Examples - 23:19,	205:11	135:20, 163:12
				Fallen - 12:5
Embedded - 18:25,	146:11	27:21, 30:2, 162:25	Expending - 149:1	Falls - 2:5, 3:8,
19:5	Escaping - 54:23	Exceeding - 153:2	7	3:16, 3:22, 3:23,
Employee - 170:16	Essence - 199:18	2	Expense - 63:17	
Employees - 88:2,	Essentially - 70:8,	Except - 125:10	Expenses - 110:14,	6:12, 6:20, 34:6,
101:8, 108:5,	77:20, 77:25, 89:7,	Excepted - 108:17	154:25, 174:24,	39:19, 51:23, 52:2,
116:11				68:10, 72:12,
	103:19, 108:14,	Exception - 8:20	185:17, 185:20,	72:17, 98:4,
EMS - 10:18	129:19, 130:24,	Exceptionally - 10	203:19	125:19, 140:2,
Enable - 146:13,	133:21, 146:13,	8:4	Experience - 192:6	183:8, 183:14,
151:7, 151:9, 153:4	150:2, 220:20,	Excess - 72:11	, 223:12, 223:19	
Enact - 152:8	223:2	Exchange - 3:8,	Expert - 45:19,	185:3
Ending - 17:15	Establish - 74:13	9:1, 88:1	73:12	Falls/
Ending - 17:15 Ends - 106:22	Established - 102:	Exchanging - 6:17	Expertise - 11:24,	Windsor - 225:1
				Familiarity - 127:5,
Energy - 3:3, 5:14,	15, 103:19, 118:2,	Execute - 13:21	108:25	216:11
15:20, 57:4, 57:6,	124:23, 158:14	Executed - 107:9	Experts - 45:20,	Far - 4:13, 8:10,
107:4, 146:2,	Establishment - 2:	Executive - 16:11,	51:3	
148:16, 221:10,	18	19:23, 19:24, 20:8,	Explain - 96:13	204:2
221:13, 222:8,	Estimate - 42:2,	22:14, 31:23, 77:8,	Explainable - 93:2	Fashion - 202:2,
			5	203:21
222:24, 225:3	42:18, 42:20, 43:8,	78:9, 80:1, 80:8,	-	Feasibility - 58:12
Engaged - 6:2,	43:9, 53:7, 105:18	80:23, 81:21, 86:8,	Explained - 103:9,	Feasible - 69:9
27:8, 29:13, 32:1,	Estimates - 46:22,	90:17, 90:18,	105:20	February - 104:17
36:11, 68:18, 159:8,	46:24, 47:4, 50:10,	93:15, 93:20,	Explanation - 125:	-
191:11, 192:2	59:14	95:14, 95:20,	16, 216:18	Fee - 9:7, 14:5,
Engagement - 197:	Et - 17:11, 150:12	97:20, 103:3,	Exploited - 3:10	116:20
2			Extensions - 81:11	Feedback - 193:11,
	Evaluate - 23:9,	103:13, 103:16,		193:13
Engaging - 197:1	23:20	104:22, 107:14,	Extent - 5:24,	Feel - 28:15, 36:14,
Engendered - 154:	Evaluated - 224:20	121:20, 125:8,	29:22, 65:22	45:12, 45:17,
3	Evaluation - 42:11,	125:17, 125:18,	External - 153:7	
1				51:19, 65:9, 68:21,
1		1		

				T
97:21, 98:7,	Finding - 109:12,	140:22, 140:25,	164:20, 170:20,	Get - 10:4, 12:5,
· · ·				
149:19, 161:14,	109:22	141:15, 165:2,	170:21, 171:2,	32:3, 36:18, 60:10,
161:23, 162:6,	Fine - 21:1, 113:18,	177:2, 177:3,	183:17	64:7, 67:10, 68:24,
172:9, 207:10	171:13, 171:14,	177:5, 177:25,	Fulltime - 127:2	72:8, 74:23, 86:25,
Feels - 97:20	180:3	178:2, 178:23,	Fully - 92:7, 104:8,	91:7, 91:19, 98:11,
Fees - 10:4,	Fired - 212:2	180:7, 180:8,	213:25	101:23, 102:12,
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		, ,		
111:19, 115:12,	Firm - 61:20	180:20, 180:23,	Functional - 134:4,	105:10, 111:8,
115:21, 140:23,	First - 4:5, 10:24,	182:12, 210:17,	174:24, 179:22,	114:9, 115:6,
142:17, 143:6,	18:23, 19:14,	210:21, 220:20	185:19	117:18, 118:14,
178:18	34:25, 35:25,	Forecasts - 89:24	Functions - 20:9,	120:25, 123:16,
Felt - 14:4, 14:6,	42:17, 52:18, 63:3,	Form - 212:12	20:12	127:11, 143:15,
36:18, 36:22,	63:4, 78:14, 84:6,	Formal - 10:7,	Fundamentally - 2	152:3, 152:13,
46:12, 48:21, 49:7,		12:21	6:9, 141:22	153:5, 155:16,
	87:24, 134:18,			
104:24, 126:16,	207:2, 207:3,	Formed - 92:7	Funds - 49:16	160:4, 162:4,
127:19, 147:5,	208:25	Forms - 209:18,	Further - 5:23,	164:2, 167:22,
147:9, 149:14,	Five - 64:9, 158:8,	212:6	46:16	168:9, 179:1,
166:15, 174:1	165:3, 169:21,	Forth - 109:23,	Furthermore - 209:	183:13, 199:20,
Field - 107:8	198:2, 198:7	113:3	22	204:3, 209:5,
Fielding - 61:4	Fixed - 57:6	Forum - 49:19,	Future - 21:22,	210:25, 212:8,
Figure - 52:9,	Flagged - 165:22,	73:23	36:4, 44:8, 44:22,	212:22, 220:5
52:14, 52:19, 112:7,	166:5, 166:6	Forward - 19:3,	47:5, 64:25, 95:22,	Gets - 66:13
116:4, 122:12,	Flat - 18:22, 75:7,	31:25, 35:15,	160:22, 161:2,	Give - 8:9, 8:15,
133:15, 163:11,	75:15, 75:21,	36:22, 37:18,	161:5, 185:12,	18:11, 27:20, 35:7,
186:11, 186:12,	87:15, 145:24	45:13, 49:6, 49:12,	185:14, 204:5	51:18, 61:19, 62:11,
187:5, 188:23,	Fleet - 105:6	50:22, 51:5, 51:6,		65:19, 67:3, 76:2,
189:1	Flex - 64:19, 83:25	54:5, 82:24, 83:2,	G	81:16, 100:9,
Figures - 43:4,	Flexibility - 68:2,	86:18, 87:4, 88:17,		114:16, 122:1,
			Gain - 19:9	
43:5, 43:8, 53:14,	83:13, 161:18,	102:14, 105:20,	Gap - 53:8, 62:7,	133:5, 137:13,
133:18, 139:5,	185:9	126:7, 126:9,	92:10, 123:14	167:25, 168:22,
164:13, 173:1,	Flip - 198:3	127:1, 132:2,	Gardiner - 19:2,	170:19, 179:16,
174:12, 187:13,	Fluid - 66:12	154:16, 161:8,	132:16, 163:20	182:17, 194:3,
210:3	Flush - 133:13	170:10, 200:11,		205:24, 221:2
File - 6:8, 6:9, 7:5	Focus - 14:19,	207:9, 212:13,	Garnered - 17:22	Given - 7:22, 7:25,
Filed - 4:5, 4:13,	15:2, 15:9, 15:12,	215:17, 222:17	Gas - 209:18	63:19, 86:5, 99:4,
6:12, 54:1, 73:10,	28:25, 29:15,	Found - 46:3,	Gate - 16:13,	125:15, 148:19,
		,	78:11, 82:2, 82:8,	
88:9, 189:22	30:19, 33:21, 52:6,	62:22, 92:5	82:16, 84:12,	151:17, 155:19,
Filing - 203:11	52:7, 129:23,	Four - 64:9, 152:2,	90:15, 100:13	172:7, 196:12,
Fill - 83:20, 112:9,	150:20	166:20, 167:2,	Gated - 80:4	214:7
147:4	Focused - 14:1,	167:13, 168:24,		Gives - 11:5, 83:12
Filled - 67:4, 81:10,	15:4, 92:7, 100:23,	169:18, 176:21,	Gating - 125:1,	GLYNN - 7:9, 55:2,
81:19, 126:11,	107:11, 108:8	180:9, 180:24,	150:11, 158:14,	55:6, 60:13, 67:17,
132:20, 132:21,	Focussed - 138:11,	181:9	159:2	113:24, 129:2,
133:4, 139:16,	152:8	Framework - 27:3	Gave - 5:9, 8:2,	134:13, 136:19,
			30:6, 52:5, 75:3,	
145:10, 145:11,	Folks - 48:3, 186:1	Frankly - 196:24	148:6, 204:13,	143:18, 144:2,
145:15, 146:20,	Follow - 19:21,	French - 2:17	204:20	144:14, 169:15,
147:12, 147:14,	63:9, 68:23, 84:5,	Front - 38:25, 87:6,	General - 5:22,	171:9, 179:7,
184:9	128:18, 150:18	108:5	12:8, 29:8, 43:16,	189:4, 211:5, 220:8,
Final - 3:17, 46:20	Following - 190:25	FTE - 13:16, 16:13,		221:25
Finance - 20:12,	Follows - 194:17	17:5, 77:1, 78:12,	72:8, 74:4, 85:23,	Go - 1:5, 4:17,
20:23, 121:21,	Footnote - 112:13,	90:15, 92:1,	111:4, 130:9, 175:3,	68:12, 80:24,
125:10, 125:13,	119:9, 120:1,	100:13, 115:6,	209:2	97:22, 113:15,
· · · · ·			Generally - 5:7,	
127:25, 132:16,	120:18, 217:5	121:3, 138:13,	16:19, 28:18,	114:2, 116:1,
147:6	Forecast - 39:18,	143:1, 145:20,	57:25, 89:19,	116:23, 117:1,
Financial - 12:16,	59:17, 59:22, 60:7,	147:22, 147:25,	128:7, 153:12,	117:3, 117:13,
125:18	92:12, 112:5, 117:4,	167:16, 170:19,	176:5, 192:18,	117:23, 119:20,
Financially - 69:9	117:5, 117:6,	170:21	196:4, 200:14,	121:2, 124:6,
Find - 28:19, 46:4,	117:18, 119:6,	FTE's - 9:24, 18:4,		133:3, 143:3,
93:21, 97:2,	119:17, 123:3,	18:16	210:7, 211:4,	145:2, 145:18,
109:14, 135:15,	123:7, 123:11,	Fuel - 50:8	211:10	145:20, 149:21,
136:14, 142:1,	124:5, 124:11,	Full - 10:11, 10:22,	Genesis - 32:5	161:10, 162:3,
149:22, 164:15	139:7, 139:12,	11:4, 48:21, 139:18,	Geographically - 1	162:20, 167:2,
143.22, 104.13	133.7, 133.12,	11. 4 , 4 0.21, 139.10,	94:24	102.20, 107.2,
1	1		1	1

April 25, 2018				NL Hydro 2017 GRA
168.15 170.22	Granularly - 47:20	68:5	Helpful - 38:20,	157:24, 163:22,
168:15, 170:22,				
173:14, 176:19,	Grassroots - 108:9	Harm - 71:5	188:14, 198:16,	164:22, 172:4,
177:4, 180:6,	Greene - 48:20	Hasn't - 1:23, 4:22,	198:18, 198:19,	175:15, 188:18
209:17, 212:12,	Gross - 120:2	73:7, 213:9	210:22	Hydrology - 211:12
214:16, 216:10,	Ground - 158:2	Haven't - 5:11,	Helps - 161:14	, 211:20, 211:23,
220:7, 220:14,	Group - 12:11,	71:23, 88:13,	Here's - 64:6, 80:9,	211:25, 212:1,
220:15, 221:3,	19:25, 27:14,	105:12, 145:10,	155:14, 156:4	212:4
222:17, 223:13,	27:16, 43:21, 59:5,	190:7, 195:12,	High - 22:4, 29:6,	Hydro's - 12:13,
223:15, 225:12	136:11, 185:2,	195:17, 198:5,	43:16, 50:3, 50:9,	14:12, 68:21,
Goal - 23:16,	185:4, 185:19,	225:7	50:19, 53:5, 81:20,	134:19, 148:7,
44:17, 44:19,	206:15, 215:11	Haynes - 21:6,	202:13	158:5, 186:8,
72:24, 107:19	Groups - 11:14	21:24, 28:3, 31:7,	Higher - 53:20,	187:8, 187:21,
Goals - 3:9, 25:7,	Growth - 59:1,	31:14, 31:18, 32:9,	79:10, 85:9,	191:16, 193:10,
26:14	59:19	33:13, 36:9, 36:16,	131:18, 174:12	199:7, 202:12,
Gone - 79:15,	Guaranteed - 3:14	37:2, 39:6, 40:1,	Hire - 160:25	220:10
101:5, 108:2,	Guess - 1:4, 10:4,	42:1, 48:9, 48:20,	Hired - 223:5	
160:14	12:12, 12:15,	52:5, 53:18, 55:21,	Hiring - 144:25,	
Good - 1:3, 16:20,	14:12, 15:18,	56:20, 58:24,	150:6, 159:1,	IC - 41:22, 214:17
27:5, 38:14, 54:21,	19:10, 28:24, 35:8,	60:17, 62:5, 62:19,	159:9, 160:24,	I'd - 1:14, 14:17,
57:15, 67:22, 70:1,	43:16, 45:8, 47:15,	62:24, 70:20, 72:2,	182:15	24:25, 66:12,
71:24, 71:25, 81:5,	48:1, 50:12, 51:7,	72:10, 73:2, 74:11,	Hit - 158:1, 204:3,	101:22, 179:25
85:13, 93:19,	51:13, 55:10,	75:2, 76:23, 85:17,	206:24, 207:2	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
94:10, 125:6,	65:19, 76:11, 79:24,	102:13, 103:9,	Hits - 95:14, 95:19	Ideas - 103:22,
146:1, 160:6,	106:7, 119:4, 123:7,	104:12, 105:19,	Hold - 18:22, 75:7,	105:16, 108:15
172:14, 178:10,	127:6, 138:21,	107:12, 108:25,	75:15, 75:21,	Identified - 26:2,
181:18, 188:5,	148:9, 151:13,	109:17, 148:6,	179:25, 183:22,	104:4, 146:9,
195:14, 196:20,	155:25, 158:4,	156:12, 156:20,	184:5, 184:7,	157:24, 164:5
196:25	165:3, 168:2,	162:19, 163:4,	184:15	lds - 78:4
Goose - 68:5	172:8, 172:12,	168:17, 197:7,	Holding - 50:10	I'II - 6:8, 13:24,
				18:6, 21:1, 21:25,
Got - 18:8, 28:10,	174:15, 186:20,	206:8	Holds - 183:2	22:10, 27:6, 28:5,
39:11, 43:5, 46:11,	200:6, 206:9,	Haynes' - 94:25	Holyrood - 55:18,	28:13, 31:21,
53:6, 63:1, 65:17,	211:22	Head - 11:10, 26:6,	57:1, 210:1, 210:10	34:21, 36:25, 50:3,
82:18, 93:2, 107:7,	Guidelines - 74:10,	31:1, 89:25, 90:3,	Home - 112:24,	55:1, 81:8, 82:6,
108:12, 109:1,	74:13	100:23, 111:8,	119:11, 121:1,	86:11, 89:4, 90:21,
109:3, 112:5, 112:9,		113:16, 118:9,	122:9, 122:17,	92:4, 93:24,
113:5, 116:25,	Н	140:6, 145:2,	122:25, 123:8,	108:16, 119:3,
117:14, 125:8,	Hadn't - 99:21	169:9, 202:23,	123:11	124:18, 140:1,
154:7, 165:14,	Half - 81:18,	208:8, 209:12,	Honestly - 28:16,	146:24, 154:16,
166:13, 169:19,		222:5	188:10	155:10, 189:24,
179:22, 181:22,	110:13, 164:2,	Heading - 149:15	Honourable - 2:24	
186:7, 198:5,	164:3, 165:3,	Health - 8:3, 8:17,	Hope - 107:20,	189:25, 192:9,
207:15, 208:22,	169:21, 176:22,	9:24, 20:13	153:4, 208:23	194:8, 199:2
209:15, 216:18,	182:14	Hear - 52:18,	Hopefully - 110:4	Illusion - 18:11
218:6, 223:15	Hand - 106:25	103:21, 108:20	Horizontal - 161:15	Immediate - 150:4,
Government - 36:1	Handle - 84:25,	Heard - 4:15,	Host - 192:23	151:1
3, 37:11, 37:16,	161:3	26:17, 34:1,	Hour - 40:2, 42:3,	Immense - 29:15,
48:5, 48:10, 86:5,	Handled - 60:25,	149:20, 195:17	42:18, 43:12, 52:9	45:7
190:2, 190:13,	62:4, 84:14, 85:8,	Hearing - 6:2, 12:8,	House - 108:25,	Impact - 13:19,
· · ·	85:9, 85:11			22:12, 27:10,
190:17, 190:23,	Handles - 60:25	14:25, 73:14,	153:7	65:23, 81:23,
197:13, 197:15,	Handy - 135:11,	149:13, 206:7,	Households - 210:	124:10, 149:24,
197:24, 202:13,	140:19	208:7, 212:16	7	154:21, 157:4
218:20, 219:2	Hang - 213:9	Hearings - 215:8	HR - 77:19, 82:12,	Impacted - 20:12
Government's - 48	Happening - 27:13,	Heating - 209:8,	85:21, 152:24	Impacting - 24:15
:22	29:9, 36:10, 38:5,	209:17, 209:21,	Huge - 206:23	Impacts - 12:17,
GRA - 73:7, 154:11	88:7, 88:12, 89:15,	212:7	Human - 8:1, 9:23,	13:1, 13:4, 24:11,
Grand - 56:23,	98:3, 150:15,	Held - 27:17	11:11, 20:13, 76:11,	26:2, 34:5, 83:3,
225:1	151:8, 153:11,	Help - 17:7, 17:13,	85:20, 90:1, 182:9	145:1, 165:17,
Granted - 3:19		36:23, 65:20,	Hutchens - 18:3,	
Granular - 92:20	157:10, 188:16,	118:13, 176:9,	20:23, 103:8,	185:12
Granularity - 150:2	195:2, 202:13,	191:13, 192:3,	132:17, 146:25,	Implementation - 1
4, 188:19	203:8	212:25, 225:12	147:3, 155:6,	7:10, 193:5
	Happy - 54:24,			Implemented - 27:

pril 25, 2018			
23, 28:2, 103:25,	:18	Integration - 98:3,	I've - 6:23, 20:21,
105:10	Indicated - 8:10,	140:2, 140:4,	34:1, 39:5, 61:10,
Importance - 3:3,	23:16, 74:12,	183:8, 184:25	73:22, 75:24,
6:10, 197:16	74:19, 191:11	Intended - 145:9,	179:22, 203:19,
Important - 45:25,	Indication - 20:10,	145:10, 146:18	218:19, 218:24,
87:22, 95:22, 96:1,	137:3, 151:16,	Intensely - 45:5	224:21
147:5, 183:10	182:14	Intention - 193:19,	<u></u>
Impossible - 99:9	Individual's - 11:6	206:3	J
Impression - 39:11	Industrial - 195:5,	Inter - 98:5	Jacqui - 144:7
, 127:11	197:3, 199:17,	Intercompany - 13	January - 157:25
Improve - 193:8	201:10, 202:25,	9:21, 140:18,	Job - 172:14
Improvement - 15:	203:5	158:19	Jobs - 107:2
15, 18:12, 93:1,	Industrials - 200:4	Interconnected - 7	Joined - 147:3,
131:5	Industries - 97:13	2:14, 200:7,	157:25
mprovements - 17	Inequities - 88:5	216:17, 217:8	Joint - 138:19
:8, 17:9, 94:12	Inevitable - 45:10	Interest - 72:16,	Jones - 44:1
mproving - 192:6	Inflation - 87:10,	224:8, 224:11	Judge - 4:2, 7:2
nadvertently - 157	87:16	Interface - 103:21	Judge's - 3:25
:3	Inflationary - 75:16	Interim - 203:1	Judgment - 2:24
Incenting - 208:3	, 87:11, 88:15	Interjection - 219:2	Judicious - 81:9,
Incentive - 168:18,	Influence - 206:16,	Internal - 107:4,	97:22, 98:8
205:22, 206:11	219:3	183:12, 187:8,	Jump - 172:15
Incentives - 205:15	Informative - 95:6	187:21	Jumped - 37:1
Inclination - 195:2	Informed - 25:21,	Internally - 96:17	
Inclined - 110:12	37:18, 92:9, 98:13,	Interpretation - 3:1	Jumping - 91:5
Incorporated - 90:	98:15, 157:14	3, 3:25, 4:3, 6:5,	Jumps - 16:2
13, 206:10	Initial - 108:1,	151:7	June - 17:15, 40:
Incorrect - 120:1	147:2, 148:11	Intervenors - 172:1	40:18, 40:24, 42:2
Increase - 18:8,	Initiative - 103:17	3	148:7, 156:12
27:22, 75:16,	Initiatives - 186:24,	Intriguing - 64:2,	Jurisdictional - 6
117:25, 124:1,	187:9, 187:22	65:16	25
145:16, 146:14,	Innovative - 109:6	Investigating - 126	Jurisdictions - 5
165:5, 166:8,	Input - 11:13,	:19	15
166:9, 166:20,	26:20, 26:22,	Investment - 42:11	Justification - 75
167:3, 167:11,	28:18, 47:23,	, 43:21, 47:18,	2, 78:8, 79:20,
167:12, 168:4,	103:3, 107:15	172:10	82:20, 83:4, 183:
168:14, 168:23,	Inquiries - 48:5	IOC - 200:6	Justified - 79:23
169:19, 169:20,	Ins - 82:16	Island - 32:4,	79:24, 137:22,
170:3, 171:15,	Inside - 10:25,	32:25, 33:5, 34:19,	187:19
171:19, 171:21,	14:5, 23:5, 28:9,	38:24, 49:22,	Justify - 78:2, 78
177:3, 177:6,	29:6, 51:4, 59:14,	51:20, 52:25,	79:1, 80:16, 162:
180:10, 180:21,	59:19, 78:10,	54:19, 55:12,	Justifying - 138:
180:24, 181:8,	81:13, 82:12, 88:6,	57:13, 65:12, 69:6,	
181:15, 182:12,	97:14, 98:25,	72:14, 72:17,	<u>к</u>
182:15, 183:19,	100:16, 174:5,	196:10, 196:17,	Key - 61:3, 61:8,
206:24	181:4, 181:6,	209:13, 217:7	74:16, 192:10,
Increased - 58:19,	183:16, 184:21,	lsn't - 53:24	193:5, 194:7,
135:5, 193:20	190:9, 192:9,	Isolated - 32:24	194:11, 195:24
Increases - 39:19,	195:5, 207:14,	Issue - 4:11, 6:3,	Kilowatt - 40:2,
44:11, 75:8, 87:11,	208:1	25:16, 46:14, 73:11,	42:3, 42:18, 43:12
	200.1	93:23, 94:14,	52:9, 216:18
	lnciaht = 02.2		02.0, 210.10
101:9, 207:23	Insight - 93:3, 93:22		Kilowatte - 217.0
101:9, 207:23 Increasing - 112:1	93:22	110:23, 164:9,	
101:9, 207:23 Increasing - 112:1 7, 186:19	93:22 Insights - 161:13	110:23, 164:9, 165:13, 165:23,	Knowledge - 4:1
101:9, 207:23 Increasing - 112:1 7, 186:19 Incumbent - 44:9,	93:22 Insights - 161:13 Instituting - 98:13	110:23, 164:9, 165:13, 165:23, 165:24, 166:7,	Knowledge - 4:13 223:24
101:9, 207:23 Increasing - 112:1 7, 186:19 Incumbent - 44:9, 45:13, 49:8	93:22 Insights - 161:13 Instituting - 98:13 Instructions - 148:	110:23, 164:9, 165:13, 165:23, 165:24, 166:7, 195:18	Knowledge - 4:13 223:24 Known - 34:4,
101:9, 207:23 Increasing - 112:1 7, 186:19 Incumbent - 44:9, 45:13, 49:8 Indeed - 13:23,	93:22 Insights - 161:13 Instituting - 98:13 Instructions - 148: 19, 150:19, 150:20,	110:23, 164:9, 165:13, 165:23, 165:24, 166:7, 195:18 Issues - 72:9,	Knowledge - 4:13 223:24 Known - 34:4, 87:5, 216:9, 216: ²
101:9, 207:23 Increasing - 112:1 7, 186:19 Incumbent - 44:9, 45:13, 49:8	93:22 Insights - 161:13 Instituting - 98:13 Instructions - 148:	110:23, 164:9, 165:13, 165:23, 165:24, 166:7, 195:18	

188:18, 204:11,

Independence - 23

207:20, 213:3

156:9

Instructive - 95:7

Integrated - 185:8

NL Hydro 2017 GRA

87:11, 87:17, 89:24, 91:10, 91:20, 92:14, 98:6, 98:9, 158:7, 158:19, 165:14, 165:23, 166:6, 166:18, 166:22, 167:4, 167:12, 168:4, 169:21, 170:2, 170:10, 172:1, 182:9, 205:24 Labrador - 2:5, 6:13, 33:5, 54:19, 56:8, 56:11, 57:13, 58:19, 58:25, 59:20, 60:20, 62:15, 62:16, 62:20, 64:21, 66:15, 69:6, 74:10, 108:6, 162:2, 195:25, 200:6,

Large - 116:10 2, Largely - 33:14, 176:10 62: Laser - 15:12 Late - 35:13, 39:12, 0: 92:8, 125:2 Later - 4:15, 145:3, 5:1 188:23, 204:6 Lead - 82:12, 107:5 1 Leadership - 121:2 0, 125:8, 125:17, 125:18, 149:3, 175:13 8:5, Leading - 193:5 7 Leads - 11:18 5 Lean - 109:1 Leaning - 127:23 Leave - 53:25, 134:2, 146:24 Leaving - 14:3, 28:22 Leblanc - 146:4, 188:15, 188:20, 2, 190:5, 191:2 Led - 98:9 Left - 7:21, 49:18 3 3, Legal - 178:18 Length - 3:17, 4:10 Lepreau - 211:21 10 Let's - 9:22, 125:7, 166:18, 176:19 Level - 16:11, 16:15, 22:5, 22:21, 27:1, 29:10, 38:6, 43:17, 47:19, 50:4, 76:12, 85:7, 87:9,

L

Labour - 20:18,

221:16 Lack - 11:17 Laid - 24:7, 25:8, 36:14, 81:25, 82:11 Lament - 190:21

lt'd - 195:9

Items - 87:20,

164:4, 194:18

50:10, 50:20, 53:5,	147:20	163:10, 174:15	Mature - 160:9	177:1, 177:2,
53:20, 73:5, 78:15,	Looked - 11:21,	Make - 18:1, 24:16,	Maximize - 72:25	180:9, 180:20,
78:16, 79:5, 79:10,	12:14, 19:1, 20:21,	44:13, 45:14, 46:6,	Maximized - 72:17	180:22, 180:24,
79:25, 80:23,	47:14, 50:5, 50:15,	48:5, 51:21, 58:8,	Means - 16:23,	181:9, 182:13,
81:21, 85:9, 85:11,	51:9, 57:11, 76:8,	69:8, 71:14, 83:14,	108:10, 199:19	186:13
86:12, 88:15,	100:5, 111:6,	87:5, 89:18, 92:9,	Meant - 216:1	Mine - 16:4, 110:9
92:20, 93:3, 97:17,	112:15, 113:1,	98:12, 98:15,	Meantime - 105:19	Mines - 59:24
101:10, 108:11,	116:5, 123:1, 128:9,	109:4, 110:1,	Measure - 24:8	Minimal - 211:24
131:18, 149:17,	131:2, 142:12,	157:13, 195:1,	Measures - 23:9,	Minor - 177:6
149:24, 150:14,	145:8, 146:17,	198:4, 206:4,	23:20, 23:22,	Missed - 117:11
161:19, 194:2,	148:5, 165:1,	207:3, 208:2	23:25, 24:11, 24:18,	Misunders-
195:4, 196:5,	178:22, 185:17,	Making - 13:2,	150:13, 162:21,	tanding - 80:6
197:23, 202:13,	209:24, 218:7,	13:4, 13:13, 22:11,	174:4, 206:10	Mitigate - 52:8
205:21, 206:3,	224:22	105:5, 105:10,	Mechanism - 36:19	Mitigation - 33:14,
206:8	Looking - 12:16,	170:17, 207:16	, 36:21, 90:21,	33:20, 35:3, 35:17,
Levelizing - 101:14	21:21, 23:4, 24:19,	Manage - 84:25,	92:13, 103:20	35:18, 36:10, 37:3,
Levels - 22:8,	25:12, 28:18, 34:8,	94:6, 160:5,	Mechanisms - 93:2	37:13, 37:22, 38:2,
87:11, 109:3,	40:20, 44:5, 44:7,	160:13, 183:3,	, 93:10, 93:13	38:5, 38:12, 39:1,
191:12, 192:2,	45:9, 47:20, 50:9,	190:16, 195:13	Meet - 3:8, 153:10,	44:6, 44:7, 48:6,
195:15, 195:16	52:23, 53:5, 65:5,	Managed - 97:24,	192:22, 203:4	48:22, 48:25,
Liaison - 194:8	65:21, 72:23,	152:24	Meeting - 42:11,	49:25, 52:7, 53:15,
Light - 34:10	92:19, 105:6,	Manager - 15:19,	83:9, 103:8,	72:3, 73:4, 196:18,
Lightly - 63:2	105:9, 105:16,	15:20, 17:1, 61:4,	159:22, 202:24	197:6, 197:17,
Limited - 2:5	109:5, 122:25,	61:8, 129:6, 130:8,	Meetings - 84:7,	197:23, 201:13,
Line - 50:7, 51:23,	134:21, 143:5,		92:17, 108:1,	201:24, 202:11
		130:12, 137:20,		
89:18, 108:5,	149:5, 151:10,	146:6, 147:1,	192:16, 192:18,	Model - 184:23,
162:20, 173:19,	166:22, 167:24,	162:1, 222:25	194:16, 203:13	185:5, 185:8
192:1, 193:3,	180:15, 182:6,	Managers - 77:21,	Megawatts - 56:1,	Modest - 205:24
201:25	193:9, 203:25,	77:25, 82:18, 85:21	56:13, 61:24, 64:5,	Modification - 29:2
Lines - 83:18	204:2, 212:18,	Manages - 9:5,	65:2, 66:23	2
Lineup - 62:23	220:10, 225:11	82:13	Member - 90:16,	Modified - 30:9,
Link - 33:5, 54:19,	Losing - 89:18	Managing - 91:22,	91:2	30:11, 30:13
56:24, 57:13, 69:6,	Loss - 204:9	91:24, 92:1, 94:16,	Members - 103:15	Modify - 29:21,
106:7	Lot - 5:15, 12:9,	95:21, 96:1, 96:8,	Mentally - 43:24	86:24
List - 121:3, 121:6,	13:18, 28:17,	160:1, 161:4	Merged - 129:22,	Modifying - 29:19
134:22, 145:14,	75:23, 83:8, 83:10,	Mandate - 86:9,	130:17	Monetary - 207:6
147:15	83:11, 152:4, 153:8,	97:14, 172:6,	Merger - 130:5	Money - 10:2,
Listings - 134:19	157:10, 183:18,	207:12	Merging - 10:23	13:10, 36:4, 44:24,
Literally - 64:10	193:21, 208:7,	Manitoba - 50:17,	Merit - 168:15	51:22, 57:23, 69:24
Litigated - 6:3	222:14	214:23, 215:1	Message - 96:19	Monitor - 225:11
Litigation - 1:15,	Lots - 160:13	Manpower - 184:1	Messages - 149:19	Monitoring - 181:2
1:21, 1:24, 4:21,	Lower - 72:10	7	Met - 100:6,	4
4:23, 5:7		Many - 25:18,	103:18, 108:2,	Month - 62:6,
Load - 56:9, 56:11,	М	65:17, 223:22	173:20	217:6
58:19, 59:1, 59:17,	Macisaac - 84:22,	Map - 194:25	Meter - 16:24	Monthly - 82:17,
59:18, 60:7, 62:16,	84:24, 97:6, 149:8,	Maritime - 56:24	Metering - 223:21,	84:7, 91:6, 91:8,
63:6, 63:18, 63:19,		Market - 72:11,	223:23, 225:9	91:11, 92:11, 92:14,
64:25	149:14, 149:18, 149:20, 152:1	85:23, 86:2, 88:7,	Methodology - 19:	92:16, 192:18
Local - 88:12		88:8, 88:12, 101:12	11	Months - 63:12,
Locate - 64:24	Madam - 5:3, 7:18,	Marshall - 40:16	Milk - 34:2	71:18, 97:5,
Located - 62:15	119:1, 198:1 Magnitude - 42:10,	Martin - 2:24, 3:12	Million - 20:16,	128:14, 152:3,
Location - 68:3		Materialize - 177:5,	99:19, 105:25,	203:3
Lockstep - 89:10	53:11 Main 30:22	180:8, 180:22	109:15, 109:18,	Morning - 1:3,
Logic - 8:16,	Main - 30:22	Math - 110:18,	110:15, 110:16,	225:25
131:11	Mainly - 166:9	140:16	155:25, 158:8,	Motion - 73:10
Long - 14:10,	Maintain - 19:12,	Matrix - 12:10,	162:23, 163:11,	Move - 51:6, 54:11,
55:21, 88:13,	87:10, 88:14	12:23, 13:20,	164:2, 164:3,	79:9, 88:2, 111:3
150:21, 152:9,	Maintained - 17:6	14:13, 15:5, 15:6	166:20, 167:2,	Moved - 128:15
154:2, 157:7,	Maintaining - 150:	Matters - 1:4, 2:7,	167:13, 168:24,	Movement - 79:7,
157:8, 172:6	3 Maintananaa 60:	5:16, 6:9, 7:14,	169:18, 169:21,	139:24
Longer - 63:12,	Maintenance - 69:	15:13, 205:12	176:4, 176:22,	Movements - 79:6
	16, 110:13, 144:25,			
1	1	1	1	

NL Hydro 2017 GRA

		100 10 170 0	101.01	10.00
Moves - 116:19	17:10, 17:14,	169:16, 179:8,	101:24	12:22
Moving - 117:4,	23:16, 23:21, 80:2,	211:6, 222:1,	Online - 34:6,	Organization - 12:
154:15, 208:17	101:24, 121:3,	224:25	39:20, 183:14	10, 12:12, 13:10,
MP - 115:17	129:8, 146:13,	Notes - 180:4,	Ontario - 214:22,	13:20, 14:15, 15:5,
Much - 4:24, 7:3,	171:1, 185:1,	198:3	214:25, 218:18,	15:6, 22:9, 22:25,
26:15, 36:4, 44:14,	186:5, 211:17,	Notification - 193:	218:25, 219:25,	97:25, 127:20,
44:23, 49:9, 50:8,	211:18, 218:5,	23	221:19	160:10, 206:17
55:23, 56:25,	218:7, 219:1,	Notwithstanding -	Op - 9:10	Organizational - 1
61:20, 66:22, 97:9,	219:25, 221:12,	181:2	Open - 49:18,	1:25, 22:5, 23:10,
107:16, 107:20,	221:17	Nova - 209:6,	195:14	23:17, 23:21, 24:1,
129:18, 138:10,	Newfoundland - 2:	209:7, 209:8,	Operating - 54:18,	24:5, 24:12, 24:22,
142:2, 142:7,	14, 4:6, 73:8, 74:9,	211:25, 216:21,	69:16, 78:1, 98:19,	25:5, 25:16, 26:8
164:7, 165:5,	89:16, 89:20,	221:12	98:20, 107:3,	Original - 155:2,
174:5, 210:24,	108:5, 191:13,	November - 2:15,	109:21, 110:13,	158:6, 171:11,
211:20	192:3, 192:14,	149:10	111:25, 148:5,	171:13
Multiple - 60:19,	192:16, 193:2,	NP - 19:19, 112:8,	171:15, 171:16,	Otherwise - 127:25
66:13	193:9, 193:11,	114:3, 117:3, 119:3,	174:24, 176:2,	, 200:3
Muskrat - 3:8,	194:23, 195:6,	120:1, 134:3,	176:25, 182:12,	Ourselves - 24:8,
3:16, 6:20, 34:6,	195:25, 196:1,	139:4, 142:12,	184:23, 185:4,	183:11, 207:2
39:19, 51:23, 52:1,	196:12, 196:15,	175:23, 176:9,	185:17, 185:19,	Outages - 96:18,
72:11, 72:17, 98:4,	197:3, 197:16,	178:22, 179:1,	186:24, 187:22,	193:22
140:1, 183:8,	199:18, 200:5,	182:10, 186:6	192:19	Outcome - 45:18,
183:14, 185:3	200:13, 201:1,	Numbers - 102:10,	Operation - 91:7,	45:19, 159:11,
,	201:17, 201:23,	124:4, 167:16,	95:12, 125:20	207:25
N	201:25, 202:23,	174:6, 181:6,	Operational - 83:2	Outline - 54:6,
	202:25, 203:5,	217:13, 220:22	3, 126:16, 194:2	66:21
Nalcor's - 1:19,	204:11, 204:12,	-, -	Operationally - 13:	Outlined - 23:23,
5:5, 27:19	209:12, 216:16,	0	23	186:8
Natural - 209:18	221:15, 224:22,		Operations - 20:15	Outlook - 191:3
Naturally - 14:25,	225:15, 225:18	O&M - 54:18,	, 26:22, 89:6, 89:9,	Outputs - 84:1
54:4	Night - 32:17	55:13, 69:5, 71:10,	107:8, 151:5,	Outstanding - 66:2
Necessary - 36:4,	NL - 119:3, 204:8,	71:20, 92:11, 99:4,	162:2, 185:18	4, 174:15
44:14, 147:22,	204:22	106:1	Operators - 146:3,	Overextend - 15:11
172:5	NLH - 7:20, 19:19,	O&Ms - 99:10,	183:11, 183:16	Overly - 106:15
Needed - 5:23,	23:7, 41:22, 74:8,	106:4	Opinion - 51:19,	Oversees - 8:25,
9:19, 16:16, 46:12,	112:8, 114:3,	Objective - 24:4,	85:4, 160:4	82:13
92:10, 95:8, 96:20,	114:21, 115:17,	71:3, 145:6, 190:23	Opportunities - 22:	Oversight - 29:11,
100:8, 138:8,	117:1, 117:3, 119:3,	Objectives - 24:6,	7, 35:16, 104:24,	76:25, 93:20, 195:4
151:4, 151:10,	120:24, 134:3,	24:7, 24:14, 24:15,	105:1, 110:10,	Overtime - 92:14,
153:14, 157:13,	134:16, 134:20,	25:8, 81:24,	152:10, 193:7	92:19, 173:12,
193:8, 207:10	139:4, 142:13,	194:25, 207:11,	Opposed - 33:23,	174:7, 174:10,
Nefarious - 114:14	144:9, 150:17,	207:12, 208:4	50:22, 212:21	174:11, 174:13
Negotiated - 101:4	175:23, 176:9,	Obligation - 65:9,	Opposite - 77:15	Overview - 8:15
Negotiation - 64:11	178:23, 179:1,	160:25, 181:22	Optimal - 160:3	Overviews - 22:5
Negotiations - 101	182:11, 186:6,	Observations 9:15	Option - 39:1, 50:5,	Owe - 69:24
:24 Noithor 110:20	214:17	Observations - 9:1	50:22, 51:13,	Own - 6:25, 16:18,
Neither - 110:20	NLSO - 146:7	6 Obtained 15:19	51:16, 127:7	47:4, 48:22, 221:9,
Net - 111:11,	Non - 57:6, 93:24,	Obtained - 15:18,	Options - 36:17,	223:18
111:13, 112:7,	101:2, 101:10	16:1, 163:7	38:12, 49:24, 57:11,	Owners - 82:15,
113:1, 115:6,	Nor - 110:21	Offset - 56:25,	72:23, 151:18,	160:13
115:18, 115:21,	Norm - 204:2	69:17	189:15, 189:19,	
116:3, 122:19,	Normal - 75:20	Oil - 209:19	197:5	Р
134:4, 134:23,	Normally - 212:22	Old - 105:8	Order - 14:25,	DE0 100:10
139:5, 139:7,	Note - 7:10, 55:3,	Onboard - 19:9	42:10, 44:22, 46:5,	P50 - 100:19
139:20, 140:25,	60:14, 129:3,	Onboarding - 141: 21	47:11, 53:10, 63:17,	Package - 153:4,
141:8, 141:9,	136:20, 189:5,		94:20, 95:4, 95:6,	206:14 Paraphrasing 10
144:21, 146:14,	220:9	Ones - 8:19, 67:3,	99:14, 99:18,	Paraphrasing - 19
167:10, 167:19, 223:21, 223:22,	Noted - 21:6,	103:23, 111:24,	100:5, 112:17,	3:14 Barant 28:6 20:7
	67:18, 74:17,	133:4, 145:9,	113:3, 113:4,	Parent - 28:6, 29:7
225:9 Netted - 115:5	113:25, 114:5,	164:23 Ongoing - 19:6,	157:16	Partial - 170:13
New - 2:10, 4:2,	134:14, 144:3,	25:6, 81:21, 93:1,	Org - 12:15, 12:17,	Partially - 44:19 Partials - 123:18
11011 - 2.10, 4.2,		20.0, 01.21, 30.1,		i altial3 - 120.10
1			1	

April	25,	2018	
-------	-----	------	--

				T
Participant - 27:16,	45:7, 46:22, 96:16,	190:18, 202:14,	148:1, 205:14	Premise - 203:20,
38:1	98:2, 159:1,	202:16, 202:18,	Positions - 7:23,	212:3, 213:1
Particularly - 128:8	176:17, 203:1,	203:12	8:19, 11:22, 22:2,	Preparation - 74:2
, 218:5	204:22, 205:4	Places - 17:25,	77:20, 78:4, 78:6,	1
Parties - 110:4,	Periodic - 103:18	221:18	78:7, 80:3, 81:18,	Prepared - 155:3
110:21	Periodically - 192:	Plan - 21:7, 21:15,	82:24, 83:11, 83:20,	Preparing - 100:1,
Partner - 193:16,	21	22:13, 25:21,	121:3, 121:8,	175:19
196:13, 202:10	Person - 10:18,	77:13, 90:1, 123:3,	121:11, 121:23,	Presence - 45:8
Parts - 221:21	11:6, 20:24, 30:22,	137:17, 201:14,	122:5, 123:3,	Presentation - 40:
Party - 48:14,	163:15, 164:23,	201:24	123:15, 124:3,	12, 220:17
71:23, 91:1, 93:19,	188:1, 191:2,	Planned - 107:10,	124:20, 124:22,	Presented - 2:12,
148:22, 214:4	195:24	173:24 Diamaina 25:0	124:24, 126:2,	3:5, 82:21, 203:15
Pass - 139:3 Past - 89:14, 139:1	Personal - 95:19, 204:11	Planning - 25:9, 79:21, 190:4	126:3, 130:6, 130:16, 131:8,	Presents - 49:3
Path - 15:15, 94:8	Personally - 37:11,	Plans - 48:6, 57:17,	131:12, 134:21,	President - 3:6, 121:21, 147:6,
Pattern - 144:24	61:10	105:5, 154:19,	134:22, 135:2,	156:12, 171:18,
Pay - 9:7, 69:11,	Personnel - 37:12	203:7	135:5, 135:19,	222:19
71:9	Perspective - 13:2	Plant - 225:3	136:15, 136:24,	Press - 224:25
Payer - 216:24	3, 13:25, 37:14,	Play - 37:21, 84:19,	137:4, 139:14,	Pressure - 65:11,
Paying - 11:1,	37:17, 44:17, 45:4,	148:10, 207:20	139:15, 144:16,	94:6, 183:19
35:21, 207:18	61:12, 62:4, 72:21,	Pleased - 108:20	145:8, 145:18,	Pressures - 190:11
Payment - 54:17,	76:20, 83:23,	Plts - 89:19	146:10, 146:18,	, 190:15, 190:19
71:20	87:23, 88:4, 88:9,	Pointed - 35:20	147:19, 171:2,	Presumptuous - 2
Payments - 26:19	89:17, 90:11, 90:14,	Points - 5:21, 6:1,	184:8, 205:21	5:4
Peak - 56:13, 56:18	90:16, 91:21,	31:23, 119:21	Positive - 63:23	Prevent - 59:1
PEI - 211:22,	97:24, 100:18,	Policies - 27:4,	Possibility - 62:5,	Previous - 42:17,
221:12	101:3, 103:14,	28:9, 29:19, 29:21,	70:22	42:20, 42:21,
Pellets - 209:20	110:7, 126:21,	30:7, 30:9	Potential - 22:3,	42:25, 43:8, 53:7,
Pendulum - 96:21	127:20, 145:21,	Policy - 27:1, 27:3,	25:17, 104:4	93:5, 101:3, 113:1,
People - 6:22,	159:12, 159:14,	27:9, 27:14, 27:18,	Power - 29:20,	113:2, 113:11,
6:25, 68:17, 79:14,	161:16, 163:21,	27:23, 27:25, 28:4,	55:14, 55:24,	117:7, 137:3, 144:8,
83:9, 90:20,	184:13, 190:3,	28:6, 28:10, 28:11,	58:14, 59:12,	167:24, 178:22,
106:24, 109:2, 109:3, 124:8,	190:10, 199:15, 199:20, 202:15,	28:15, 30:13, 105:7, 105:9,	60:19, 69:1, 69:8, 69:10, 69:19, 71:7,	220:7, 222:18 Previously - 27:24,
126:18, 183:13,	205:5, 205:19,	190:16, 190:23,	72:11, 89:16, 89:20,	126:11, 129:7,
205:21, 206:24,	208:14, 208:17,	205:17	172:7, 185:1,	138:21, 145:9
208:3, 225:11	212:13, 213:6	Polite - 64:16	191:13, 192:3,	Principle - 27:12,
Percent - 9:9,	Phase - 174:14	Political - 206:22	192:15, 192:16,	27:17, 49:5, 87:25
79:15, 81:1, 81:2,	Philosophy - 27:6,	Politicians - 206:2	193:2, 193:9,	Principles - 27:7,
97:10, 97:11, 99:5,	28:14, 100:17	5	193:12, 194:23,	28:13, 96:2
168:4, 176:7,	Phone - 105:4	Pond - 140:4	195:7, 196:1,	Prior - 94:15,
205:23, 207:1,	Phones - 105:4	Pool - 145:19,	196:12, 196:15,	193:4, 201:20,
209:15, 209:21,	Pick - 64:8	145:20, 145:22	197:3, 197:16,	222:12, 222:25,
209:24, 209:25,	Picture - 164:20,	Population - 212:7	199:19, 199:21,	223:2
210:1	179:16	Portion - 11:2,	200:5, 201:17,	Priorities - 28:8
Percentage - 109:2	Piece - 51:25	45:11, 116:10,	201:23, 202:25,	Prioritize - 108:16
0, 110:19, 181:15,	Pieces - 48:22	178:10, 181:18,	203:5, 225:18	Private - 29:1
210:5, 210:8,	Place - 12:10,	206:12 Position - 8:1,	Power's - 73:8,	Privy - 37:5, 47:10
210:9, 210:10	16:14, 27:24, 28:1, 48:10, 70:4, 76:25,	9:11, 10:11, 11:1,	200:13, 201:1,	Probable - 58:1, 58:6
Perception - 97:7 Performance - 23:	77:8, 77:24, 79:1,	11:5, 15:21, 16:23,	201:25, 224:22, 225:15	Probation - 27:25
24, 25:15, 26:19,	82:18, 82:25,	57:25, 68:21, 71:4,	Practical - 55:19	Probationary - 27:
27:22, 205:16,	90:25, 91:25, 92:3,	78:4, 81:10, 81:13,	Pre - 217:13	23
206:2	93:2, 98:12, 98:14,	81:14, 81:15,	Predicament - 65:8	Problem - 164:10
Performed - 129:7	100:11, 105:6,	82:23, 89:8,	Predominant - 140	Proceed - 7:15
Performing - 130:1	106:21, 108:23,	128:21, 129:6,	:10, 150:7	Proceeded - 202:2
3	110:7, 128:14,	129:8, 134:19,	Predominantly - 2	Proceedings - 2:2,
Perhaps - 5:24,	145:5, 154:8,	135:25, 136:3,	7:2	89:14
49:25, 219:14,	154:19, 157:22,	137:12, 142:8,	Preferable - 73:18	Processes - 93:5,
221:21	160:16, 162:12,	142:9, 145:17,	Preliminary - 1:4,	98:14, 100:10,
Period - 17:13,	166:15, 173:25,	145:22, 147:20,	1:7, 189:24	154:7, 154:8,

NL Hydro 2017 GRA

160:16, 161:20, 166:14, 173:25, 174:3 Produce - 220:16 Produced - 148:9, 209:25, 210:9, 210:10, 210:11, 220:14 Producing - 211:12, , 212:5 Production - 3:9, 3:16, 131:9, 132:9 Productivity - 13:2 4, 18:1, 102:13, 105:21, 106:6, 106:8, 109:15, 109:19, 109:23, 154:13 Professional - 178: 18, 181:19 Profiles - 62:16 Program - 28:2, 181:24, 182:16, 182:19, 182:21, 183:5, 183:6, 183:9, 183:12, 183:17, 205:22, 223:22, 223:23 Programs - 19:6, 187:8, 187:18, 223:15 Progressed - 191: 16	38:11, 38:22, 48:2, 63:17, 65:25, 66:10, 66:20, 90:12, 121:3, 170:25, 187:13, 187:23, 210:3, 218:12, 220:17, 224:7 Provided - 14:24, 83:22, 134:19, 134:25, 171:10, 190:13 Providing - 12:3, 29:6, 126:15, 185:3, 196:13 Province - 199:13, 204:10, 207:20, 208:11, 209:23, 210:6, 211:11, 211:18 Provinces - 208:9, 208:12, 212:5, 214:21, 214:24, 219:8 Prudent - 172:10 PUB - 2:13, 7:20, 23:7, 74:8, 114:21, 117:1, 119:2, 120:24, 134:16, 134:20, 135:6, 137:4, 143:1, 143:24, 144:9, 146:17, 150:17	39:10, 42:5, 49:14, 51:11, 52:24, 74:24, 85:7, 98:14, 126:20, 173:21, 173:24, 190:14, 190:18 Puzzled - 221:9 Puzzling - 214:11 Q Quality - 90:14, 126:21, 126:25, 127:11, 127:20, 131:5 Quantum - 36:12, 41:7, 52:1, 105:13, 105:15 Quantums - 205:2 5 Quarter - 18:24, 19:14, 170:19 Quebec - 2:2, 2:4, 2:6, 2:9, 2:10, 2:21, 2:23, 2:25, 3:19, 3:21, 4:11, 4:12, 4:15, 5:14, 6:11, 57:12 Quebec's - 3:19 Questioned - 190: 8	Rationale - 7:25, 124:25, 125:16, 125:19, 137:11 Re - 4:17, 12:15, 12:17, 12:22, 13:10 Reach - 82:14, 177:25 Reached - 108:21 Reaching - 197:1 Ready - 103:16, 198:22 Reality - 160:9 Realize - 72:24, 204:3 Realized - 187:9 Reason - 18:5, 109:16, 142:7, 168:2, 168:23, 177:19, 177:21, 211:1 Reasonable - 36:2 2, 45:17, 45:22, 48:21, 48:23, 49:7, 50:14, 50:21, 51:4, 54:14, 99:23, 124:23, 170:2, 173:1 Reasonably - 190: 1 Reasons - 55:10, 132:1, 132:4, 214:21 Recapture - 57:20,	1:3 Reduce - 18:7, 18:18, 124:1, 137:21, 151:18, 155:20, 156:5, 156:6 Reducing - 158:5, 166:15, 172:14, 189:12, 189:18 Reduction - 18:16, 21:4, 58:20, 79:11, 140:15, 153:18, 155:12, 155:15, 155:17, 156:1, 158:7, 158:8, 162:21, 162:22, 174:11, 176:6, 176:7, 176:11, 176:21, 176:24 Reductions - 21:5, 151:15, 151:22, 152:16, 155:18, 156:14, 166:4, 187:6 References - 2:9 Referencing - 180: 13 Referred - 221:15 Refers - 2:9, 3:24 Refilled - 81:15 Refine - 92:4 Reflected - 94:20, 140:14
Project - 46:20, 72:12, 107:1, 129:5, 130:8, 130:12 Projections - 46:4, 46:11, 47:4, 47:15 Projects - 137:24, 140:8 Propane - 209:19 Proposal - 34:15, 34:17, 35:1, 35:5, 45:22, 49:1, 49:7, 50:14, 51:4 Proposals - 33:6 Proposed - 12:22, 45:17, 73:8, 213:14, 213:16, 213:24 Pros - 161:21 Protocol - 193:24,	Publically - 46:23, 215:6, 215:9, 215:11, 215:14 Publicly - 39:23, 199:5, 218:13 Pull - 111:9, 112:8, 115:17, 120:23, 134:3, 139:4, 182:10 Purchase - 38:24, 49:23, 55:12 Purchases - 32:4, 34:19, 51:20, 52:25, 56:24, 57:12, 196:10, 196:17 Pursuing - 65:3 Purview - 8:4, 90:3, 135:21 Push - 160:10	Queue - 63:3, 63:23 Quick - 8:15, 139:10, 182:11 Quickly - 21:2, 41:21, 92:5, 105:14 Quoting - 1:17 Radar - 27:19 Raised - 5:21, 73:11 Range - 52:9, 55:25, 56:12, 181:9 Rarely - 152:21 Ratepayers' - 57:2 2 Rates - 32:24, 41:8, 44:22, 47:17, 50:11, 51:22, 52:8,	Receive - 156:13 Received - 71:10, 108:4, 149:20, 150:19, 193:11 Receiving - 103:23 , 156:3, 199:12, 205:10 Recent - 15:18, 139:1, 139:3 Recently - 34:1, 136:1, 224:25 Recommen- dations - 86:14, 86:17, 86:23, 150:9 Reconcile - 190:16 Recording - 160:1 Records - 4:18, 8:21, 8:25, 9:18, 10:17, 128:23 Recover - 149:16	Regional - 162:1 Regions - 108:3 Regular - 102:21, 192:15, 192:22 Regulated - 28:24, 110:24, 218:15 Regulation - 202:2 3, 215:23 Regulator - 209:9, 215:16, 215:21 Regulatory - 29:12 , 29:23, 30:20, 31:1, 31:8, 37:20, 59:5, 76:9, 126:1, 127:4, 129:5, 129:10, 129:12, 129:21, 129:23, 129:25, 130:8, 130:12, 130:14, 153:10, 175:1,
194:1 Protocols - 70:4, 93:16 Proven - 99:21 Provide - 19:5, 37:24, 38:3, 38:8,	Pushback - 83:8 Pushed - 151:5, 178:19 Puts - 77:12, 167:21, 172:3 Putting - 37:18,	53:9, 72:8, 72:11, 72:13, 89:17, 153:23, 200:20, 200:25, 208:15, 208:18, 216:17, 216:20, 220:1	Recovered - 72:13 Recovery - 54:17 Recruitment - 205: 20 Recusant - 131:15 Redistribution - 18	175:4, 175:17, 176:11, 176:23, 179:19, 180:16, 181:20, 182:2, 195:23, 216:7, 222:5, 223:11,

223:14	Requested - 37:25,	Responsibility - 90	11:2, 11:7, 17:1,	125:15, 161:7,
Relation - 116:11,	38:3, 38:9, 46:16,	:17, 148:14	17:6, 17:14, 17:16,	172:25
144:11, 222:20	47:14, 61:21, 66:2,	Responsible - 11:1	30:20, 34:8, 37:21,	Save - 13:10
Relations - 182:10	81:19	8, 76:7, 76:11,	89:25, 90:1,	Saved - 10:2
Relationship - 83:7	Requests - 60:25,	76:12, 148:4	107:17, 126:11,	Saving - 49:14
, 191:14, 192:4,	61:4, 61:19, 61:25,	Result - 6:14, 6:21,	127:2, 127:7,	Savings - 10:11,
192:14, 193:18,	62:3, 62:23, 63:1,	15:15, 34:6, 58:20,	127:14, 128:3,	17:21, 55:14,
194:22	63:22, 63:24,	83:20, 97:19, 98:6,	128:13, 128:15,	55:18, 57:10,
Relationships - 19	66:24, 83:3	105:12, 127:8,	129:12, 129:13,	69:18, 104:4,
4:3, 195:6, 195:15	Require - 10:21,	128:20, 131:1,	129:14, 129:15,	105:13, 105:15,
Relatively - 63:19,	11:4, 14:7, 29:22,	139:14, 139:23,	129:16, 129:18,	105:18, 107:18,
172:14	63:16, 63:25,	139:25, 158:13,	129:20, 129:25,	110:10, 110:22,
Reliability - 13:22,	145:17, 159:16,	166:12, 174:14,	130:9, 130:11,	148:21, 149:23,
-				
14:14, 14:18,	162:8, 195:7	178:19, 183:4,	130:12, 130:14,	151:11, 152:9,
24:10, 81:23, 97:2,	Required - 36:12,	184:10, 184:15,	145:25, 146:25,	152:20, 153:5,
146:6, 149:25,	37:25, 38:21, 52:1,	185:6, 207:23	147:11, 147:18,	154:1, 157:8,
184:13, 184:16	79:2, 79:20, 81:22,	Resulted - 34:15,	148:10, 149:9,	163:7, 163:25,
Reliable - 172:8,	137:25, 138:4,	187:7, 204:9	152:3, 192:9,	164:2
207:13	138:9, 142:8,	Results - 85:23,	192:11, 193:6,	Saw - 35:16, 97:8,
Relies - 31:7	146:5, 147:10,	86:13, 88:10,	222:12, 222:19,	99:18, 115:19,
Remarks - 117:11	153:10, 161:14,	101:7, 154:10	223:2	117:6, 146:23,
Remedy - 204:1	165:19, 195:11	RESUME - 118:22,	Roles - 9:11, 9:12,	166:3, 167:10
Remove - 78:6	Requirements - 28	198:14	17:4, 81:22, 124:8,	Scenario - 54:6,
Removed - 147:25,	:12, 59:24, 153:11	Retail - 199:17	128:6, 128:9,	54:12, 54:16,
148:1	Requires - 27:18,	Retention - 205:20	128:20, 129:20,	62:21, 65:17, 69:7,
Removing - 110:14	62:18	Retired - 17:2	129:22, 130:20,	71:19
Renegotiating - 10	Requiring - 22:20	Retirements - 16:2	130:24, 131:20,	Scenarios - 47:22,
5:4	Requisite - 28:4,	1, 22:2, 81:11	132:19, 146:5,	59:16
Renewable - 190:3	77:21, 82:22	Retrospect - 96:24	146:7, 146:14,	Schedule - 27:19,
Renewal - 2:22,	Requisitions - 82:1	Returned - 49:16	147:4, 207:20,	182:6
3:25	9	Revert - 196:9	222:14	Scheme - 56:23
	-			
Renewed - 3:13,	Reservoirs - 3:9	Reviewed - 54:22	Room - 43:24,	School - 223:14
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210:	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9	Room - 43:24, 43:25	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21,	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3,	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19,	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11,	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11,	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20,	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1,	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2,	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22,	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16,	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8,	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23,	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1,	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8,	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8,	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20,	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17,	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23,	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25, 29:10, 103:19	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20,	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20,	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 S	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25, 29:10, 103:19 Reports - 9:17,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20, 90:1, 137:25,	Reviewed - 54:22 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21 Rigor - 153:1,	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3,	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25, 29:10, 103:19	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20,	Reviewed - 54:22 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3, 207:4, 207:5, 207:7	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24, 162:16, 163:6,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25, 29:10, 103:19 Reports - 9:17,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20, 90:1, 137:25,	Reviewed - 54:22 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21 Rigor - 153:1,	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3, 207:4, 207:5, 207:7 Safety - 8:3, 8:17,	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24, 162:16, 163:6, 186:7
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25, 29:10, 103:19 Reports - 9:17, 9:19, 91:19, 92:11,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20, 90:1, 137:25, 138:9, 138:18,	Reviewed - 54:22 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21 Rigor - 153:1, 153:8, 206:4	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3, 207:4, 207:5, 207:7 Safety - 8:3, 8:17, 9:10, 9:13, 9:16,	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24, 162:16, 163:6,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25, 29:10, 103:19 Reports - 9:17, 9:19, 91:19, 92:11, 92:12, 126:17,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20, 90:1, 137:25, 138:9, 138:18, 138:22, 140:3,	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21 Rigor - 153:1, 153:8, 206:4 Rigour - 157:7,	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3, 207:4, 207:5, 207:7 Safety - 8:3, 8:17, 9:10, 9:13, 9:16, 9:20, 9:23, 11:3,	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24, 162:16, 163:6, 186:7
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25, 29:10, 103:19 Reports - 9:17, 9:19, 91:19, 92:11, 92:12, 126:17, 126:19, 126:24,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20, 90:1, 137:25, 138:9, 138:18, 138:22, 140:3, 141:21, 161:17,	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21 Rigor - 153:1, 153:8, 206:4 Rigour - 157:7, 173:22	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3, 207:4, 207:5, 207:7 Safety - 8:3, 8:17, 9:10, 9:13, 9:16, 9:20, 9:23, 11:3, 20:13, 23:23, 24:9	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24, 162:16, 163:6, 186:7 Scrutiny - 29:6,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25, 29:10, 103:19 Reports - 9:17, 9:19, 91:19, 92:11, 92:12, 126:17, 126:19, 126:24, 127:12, 127:15,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20, 90:1, 137:25, 138:9, 138:18, 138:22, 140:3, 141:21, 161:17, 162:7, 182:9	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21 Rigor - 153:1, 153:8, 206:4 Rigour - 157:7, 173:22 Rigours - 82:9	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3, 207:4, 207:5, 207:7 Safety - 8:3, 8:17, 9:10, 9:13, 9:16, 9:20, 9:23, 11:3, 20:13, 23:23, 24:9 Salaries - 77:1,	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24, 162:16, 163:6, 186:7 Scrutiny - 29:6, 29:9, 81:20, 83:11
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25, 29:10, 103:19 Reports - 9:17, 9:19, 91:19, 92:11, 92:12, 126:17, 126:19, 126:24, 127:12, 127:15, 186:21 Representation - 1	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20, 90:1, 137:25, 138:9, 138:18, 138:22, 140:3, 141:21, 161:17, 162:7, 182:9 Respect - 9:22, 45:15, 47:23, 54:1,	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21 Rigor - 153:1, 153:8, 206:4 Rigour - 157:7, 173:22 Rigours - 82:9 Risk - 89:11, 206:13	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3, 207:4, 207:5, 207:7 Safety - 8:3, 8:17, 9:10, 9:13, 9:16, 9:20, 9:23, 11:3, 20:13, 23:23, 24:9 Salaries - 77:1, 98:21, 99:11, 99:20,	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24, 162:16, 163:6, 186:7 Scrutiny - 29:6, 29:9, 81:20, 83:11 Season - 192:19 Second - 37:1,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25, 29:10, 103:19 Reports - 9:17, 9:19, 91:19, 92:11, 92:12, 126:17, 126:19, 126:24, 127:12, 127:15, 186:21 Representation - 1 07:8, 189:23	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20, 90:1, 137:25, 138:9, 138:18, 138:22, 140:3, 141:21, 161:17, 162:7, 182:9 Respect - 9:22, 45:15, 47:23, 54:1, 110:20, 130:5,	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21 Rigor - 153:1, 153:8, 206:4 Rigours - 82:9 Risk - 89:11, 206:13 River - 2:19, 3:10,	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3, 207:4, 207:5, 207:7 Safety - 8:3, 8:17, 9:10, 9:13, 9:16, 9:20, 9:23, 11:3, 20:13, 23:23, 24:9 Salaries - 77:1, 98:21, 99:11, 99:20, 99:22, 100:1,	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24, 162:16, 163:6, 186:7 Scrutiny - 29:6, 29:9, 81:20, 83:11 Season - 192:19 Second - 37:1, 122:1, 167:25,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25, 29:10, 103:19 Reports - 9:17, 9:19, 91:19, 92:11, 92:12, 126:17, 126:19, 126:24, 127:12, 127:15, 186:21 Representation - 1 07:8, 189:23 Representatives -	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20, 90:1, 137:25, 138:9, 138:18, 138:22, 140:3, 141:21, 161:17, 162:7, 182:9 Respect - 9:22, 45:15, 47:23, 54:1, 110:20, 130:5, 144:9, 154:12,	Reviewed - 54:22 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21 Rigor - 153:1, 153:8, 206:4 Rigour - 157:7, 173:22 Rigours - 82:9 Risk - 89:11, 206:13 River - 2:19, 3:10, 4:9	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3, 207:4, 207:5, 207:7 Safety - 8:3, 8:17, 9:10, 9:13, 9:16, 9:20, 9:23, 11:3, 20:13, 23:23, 24:9 Salaries - 77:1, 98:21, 99:11, 99:20, 99:22, 100:1, 101:14, 207:1	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24, 162:16, 163:6, 186:7 Scrutiny - 29:6, 29:9, 81:20, 83:11 Season - 192:19 Second - 37:1, 122:1, 167:25, 186:6
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25, 29:10, 103:19 Reports - 9:17, 9:19, 91:19, 92:11, 92:12, 126:17, 126:19, 126:24, 127:12, 127:15, 186:21 Representation - 1 07:8, 189:23 Representatives - 191:12, 192:2,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20, 90:1, 137:25, 138:9, 138:18, 138:22, 140:3, 141:21, 161:17, 162:7, 182:9 Respect - 9:22, 45:15, 47:23, 54:1, 110:20, 130:5, 144:9, 154:12, 173:7, 195:22,	Reviewed - 54:22 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21 Rigor - 153:1, 153:8, 206:4 Rigour - 157:7, 173:22 Rigours - 82:9 Risk - 89:11, 206:13 River - 2:19, 3:10, 4:9 Road - 46:7, 47:1,	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3, 207:4, 207:5, 207:7 Safety - 8:3, 8:17, 9:10, 9:13, 9:16, 9:20, 9:23, 11:3, 20:13, 23:23, 24:9 Salaries - 77:1, 98:21, 99:11, 99:20, 99:22, 100:1, 101:14, 207:1 Salary - 18:7, 99:4,	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24, 162:16, 163:6, 186:7 Scrutiny - 29:6, 29:9, 81:20, 83:11 Season - 192:19 Second - 37:1, 122:1, 167:25, 186:6 Secretary - 7:6
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25, 29:10, 103:19 Reports - 9:17, 9:19, 91:19, 92:11, 92:12, 126:17, 126:19, 126:24, 127:12, 127:15, 186:21 Representation - 1 07:8, 189:23 Representatives - 191:12, 192:2, 193:2	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20, 90:1, 137:25, 138:9, 138:18, 138:22, 140:3, 141:21, 161:17, 162:7, 182:9 Respect - 9:22, 45:15, 47:23, 54:1, 110:20, 130:5, 144:9, 154:12, 173:7, 195:22, 205:15, 213:6	Reviewed - 54:22 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21 Rigor - 153:1, 153:8, 206:4 Rigour - 157:7, 173:22 Rigours - 82:9 Risk - 89:11, 206:13 River - 2:19, 3:10, 4:9 Road - 46:7, 47:1, 152:6, 184:16	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3, 207:4, 207:5, 207:7 Safety - 8:3, 8:17, 9:10, 9:13, 9:16, 9:20, 9:23, 11:3, 20:13, 23:23, 24:9 Salaries - 77:1, 98:21, 99:11, 99:20, 99:22, 100:1, 101:14, 207:1 Salary - 18:7, 99:4, 110:14, 160:11,	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24, 162:16, 163:6, 186:7 Scrutiny - 29:6, 29:9, 81:20, 83:11 Season - 192:19 Second - 37:1, 122:1, 167:25, 186:6 Secretary - 7:6 Seeing - 83:17,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reports - 91:7, 9:10, 103:19 Reports - 9:17, 9:19, 91:19, 92:11, 92:12, 126:17, 126:19, 126:24, 127:12, 127:15, 186:21 Representation - 1 07:8, 189:23 Representatives - 191:12, 192:2, 193:2 Request - 2:14,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20, 90:1, 137:25, 138:9, 138:18, 138:22, 140:3, 141:21, 161:17, 162:7, 182:9 Respect - 9:22, 45:15, 47:23, 54:1, 110:20, 130:5, 144:9, 154:12, 173:7, 195:22, 205:15, 213:6 Responded - 1:12	Reviewed - 54:22 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21 Rigor - 153:1, 153:8, 206:4 Rigour - 157:7, 173:22 Rigours - 82:9 Risk - 89:11, 206:13 River - 2:19, 3:10, 4:9 Road - 46:7, 47:1,	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3, 207:4, 207:5, 207:7 Safety - 8:3, 8:17, 9:10, 9:13, 9:16, 9:20, 9:23, 11:3, 20:13, 23:23, 24:9 Salaries - 77:1, 98:21, 99:11, 99:20, 99:22, 100:1, 101:14, 207:1 Salary - 18:7, 99:4, 110:14, 160:11, 160:19, 170:21	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24, 162:16, 163:6, 186:7 Scrutiny - 29:6, 29:9, 81:20, 83:11 Season - 192:19 Second - 37:1, 122:1, 167:25, 186:6 Secretary - 7:6 Seeing - 83:17, 86:1, 154:9, 166:9,
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reports - 9:17, 9:10, 103:19 Reports - 9:17, 9:19, 91:19, 92:11, 92:12, 126:17, 126:19, 126:24, 127:12, 127:15, 186:21 Representation - 1 07:8, 189:23 Representatives - 191:12, 192:2, 193:2 Request - 2:14, 38:11, 46:13, 61:9,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20, 90:1, 137:25, 138:9, 138:18, 138:22, 140:3, 141:21, 161:17, 162:7, 182:9 Respect - 9:22, 45:15, 47:23, 54:1, 110:20, 130:5, 144:9, 154:12, 173:7, 195:22, 205:15, 213:6 Responded - 1:12 Respondent - 4:14	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21 Rigor - 153:1, 153:8, 206:4 Rigour - 157:7, 173:22 Rigours - 82:9 Risk - 89:11, 206:13 River - 2:19, 3:10, 4:9 Road - 46:7, 47:1, 152:6, 184:16 Roadblocks - 104: 1	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3, 207:4, 207:5, 207:7 Safety - 8:3, 8:17, 9:10, 9:13, 9:16, 9:20, 9:23, 11:3, 20:13, 23:23, 24:9 Salaries - 77:1, 98:21, 99:11, 99:20, 99:22, 100:1, 101:14, 207:1 Salary - 18:7, 99:4, 110:14, 160:11, 160:19, 170:21 Sale - 72:16	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24, 162:16, 163:6, 186:7 Scrutiny - 29:6, 29:9, 81:20, 83:11 Season - 192:19 Second - 37:1, 122:1, 167:25, 186:6 Secretary - 7:6 Seeing - 83:17, 86:1, 154:9, 166:9, 166:11
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25, 29:10, 103:19 Reports - 9:17, 9:19, 91:19, 92:11, 92:12, 126:17, 126:19, 126:24, 127:12, 127:15, 186:21 Representation - 1 07:8, 189:23 Representatives - 191:12, 192:2, 193:2 Request - 2:14, 38:11, 46:13, 61:9, 62:7, 62:14, 90:19,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20, 90:1, 137:25, 138:9, 138:18, 138:22, 140:3, 141:21, 161:17, 162:7, 182:9 Respect - 9:22, 45:15, 47:23, 54:1, 110:20, 130:5, 144:9, 154:12, 173:7, 195:22, 205:15, 213:6 Responded - 1:12 Respondent - 4:14 Response - 5:9,	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21 Rigor - 153:1, 153:8, 206:4 Rigour - 157:7, 173:22 Rigours - 82:9 Risk - 89:11, 206:13 River - 2:19, 3:10, 4:9 Road - 46:7, 47:1, 152:6, 184:16 Roadblocks - 104: 1 Robert - 66:13	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3, 207:4, 207:5, 207:7 Safety - 8:3, 8:17, 9:10, 9:13, 9:16, 9:20, 9:23, 11:3, 20:13, 23:23, 24:9 Salaries - 77:1, 98:21, 99:11, 99:20, 99:22, 100:1, 101:14, 207:1 Salary - 18:7, 99:4, 110:14, 160:11, 160:19, 170:21 Sale - 72:16 Sales - 72:25	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24, 162:16, 163:6, 186:7 Scrutiny - 29:6, 29:9, 81:20, 83:11 Season - 192:19 Second - 37:1, 122:1, 167:25, 186:6 Secretary - 7:6 Seeing - 83:17, 86:1, 154:9, 166:9, 166:11 Seek - 87:10
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25, 29:10, 103:19 Reports - 9:17, 9:19, 91:19, 92:11, 92:12, 126:17, 126:19, 126:24, 127:12, 127:15, 186:21 Representation - 1 07:8, 189:23 Representatives - 191:12, 192:2, 193:2 Request - 2:14, 38:11, 46:13, 61:9, 62:7, 62:14, 90:19, 137:17, 144:15,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20, 90:1, 137:25, 138:9, 138:18, 138:22, 140:3, 141:21, 161:17, 162:7, 182:9 Respect - 9:22, 45:15, 47:23, 54:1, 110:20, 130:5, 144:9, 154:12, 173:7, 195:22, 205:15, 213:6 Responded - 1:12 Respondent - 4:14 Response - 5:9, 20:10, 112:11,	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21 Rigor - 153:1, 153:8, 206:4 Rigour - 157:7, 173:22 Rigours - 82:9 Risk - 89:11, 206:13 River - 2:19, 3:10, 4:9 Road - 46:7, 47:1, 152:6, 184:16 Roadblocks - 104: 1 Robert - 66:13 Role - 9:4, 9:6,	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3, 207:4, 207:5, 207:7 Safety - 8:3, 8:17, 9:10, 9:13, 9:16, 9:20, 9:23, 11:3, 20:13, 23:23, 24:9 Salaries - 77:1, 98:21, 99:11, 99:20, 99:22, 100:1, 101:14, 207:1 Salary - 18:7, 99:4, 110:14, 160:11, 160:19, 170:21 Sale - 72:16 Sales - 72:25 Sat - 33:12	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24, 162:16, 163:6, 186:7 Scrutiny - 29:6, 29:9, 81:20, 83:11 Season - 192:19 Second - 37:1, 122:1, 167:25, 186:6 Secretary - 7:6 Seeing - 83:17, 86:1, 154:9, 166:9, 166:11 Seek - 87:10 Seeking - 2:6, 6:14
Renewed - 3:13, 4:3 Reorg - 79:9 Reorganization - 1 6:2, 21:3, 26:3, 116:19, 131:23, 139:23, 165:18, 166:12, 170:5, 171:25, 172:5 Report - 91:8, 126:10, 130:11, 186:5, 189:22 Reporting - 16:25, 29:10, 103:19 Reports - 9:17, 9:19, 91:19, 92:11, 92:12, 126:17, 126:19, 126:24, 127:12, 127:15, 186:21 Representation - 1 07:8, 189:23 Representatives - 191:12, 192:2, 193:2 Request - 2:14, 38:11, 46:13, 61:9, 62:7, 62:14, 90:19,	Reservoirs - 3:9 Residences - 210: 7 Residential - 199:2 4, 201:2 Resolution - 93:22 Resolve - 195:19 Resource - 76:20, 83:15, 83:22, 137:23, 162:3 Resources - 8:1, 9:23, 11:11, 15:8, 16:16, 16:17, 20:13, 76:11, 85:20, 90:1, 137:25, 138:9, 138:18, 138:22, 140:3, 141:21, 161:17, 162:7, 182:9 Respect - 9:22, 45:15, 47:23, 54:1, 110:20, 130:5, 144:9, 154:12, 173:7, 195:22, 205:15, 213:6 Responded - 1:12 Respondent - 4:14 Response - 5:9,	Reviewed - 54:22 Reviews - 17:9 Revision - 7:21, 115:17, 134:3, 142:13, 186:6 Rewriting - 105:9 RFI - 20:5, 23:11, 88:10, 121:1, 124:19, 162:16, 220:15 Rfis - 119:2 Rider - 50:5, 50:20, 51:11 Rights - 2:21 Rigor - 153:1, 153:8, 206:4 Rigour - 157:7, 173:22 Rigours - 82:9 Risk - 89:11, 206:13 River - 2:19, 3:10, 4:9 Road - 46:7, 47:1, 152:6, 184:16 Roadblocks - 104: 1 Robert - 66:13	Room - 43:24, 43:25 Row - 47:25 Run - 9:17, 9:19, 55:21 Running - 95:11, 158:2 Rural - 162:2, 186:4, 186:8, 186:18, 187:23, 189:12 Sacrifice - 207:3, 207:4, 207:5, 207:7 Safety - 8:3, 8:17, 9:10, 9:13, 9:16, 9:20, 9:23, 11:3, 20:13, 23:23, 24:9 Salaries - 77:1, 98:21, 99:11, 99:20, 99:22, 100:1, 101:14, 207:1 Salary - 18:7, 99:4, 110:14, 160:11, 160:19, 170:21 Sale - 72:16 Sales - 72:25	School - 223:14 Scoping - 21:17 Scotia - 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 211:25, 216:21, 221:12 Screen - 53:7, 119:2, 133:3 Scroll - 23:19, 41:23, 112:11, 121:5, 121:7, 121:14, 121:19, 121:22, 125:7, 125:11, 125:25, 135:1, 154:24, 162:16, 163:6, 186:7 Scrutiny - 29:6, 29:9, 81:20, 83:11 Season - 192:19 Second - 37:1, 122:1, 167:25, 186:6 Secretary - 7:6 Seeing - 83:17, 86:1, 154:9, 166:9, 166:11 Seek - 87:10

NL Hydro 2017 GRA

42:21, 98:4,	Shaped - 147:10	Slam - 151:3	2	21:8, 22:6, 23:10,
100:12, 127:3,	Share - 9:3, 11:6,	Slice - 35:18	Stand - 16:9,	23:17, 23:22, 24:2,
133:18, 140:11,	27:4, 90:17	Slide - 117:7,	95:14, 110:18	24:5, 24:13, 24:22,
140:15, 140:17,	Shared - 27:1,	117:23, 118:13,	Standing - 63:24	25:5, 25:17, 26:8,
152:6, 170:18,	29:21	178:22	Standpoint - 62:25	27:13, 66:15,
170:20, 195:12	Shareholder - 29:5	Slightly - 77:15,	, 183:9, 183:20	72:19, 87:23,
Selected - 106:25	Sharing - 15:8	200:1	Start - 120:9,	89:10, 126:23,
Selectively - 214:2	Shift - 16:17,	Slow - 183:3	151:10, 181:23,	157:21, 168:12
5 C ompatible 5:00	22:19, 22:20,	Small - 52:3,	198:23, 199:2	Structured - 93:5
Semantic - 5:20	27:21, 30:18,	109:19, 109:20,	Started - 16:1,	Structures - 100:1
Semantics - 6:21	161:16	177:7	34:7, 34:8, 34:25,	0, 154:7, 154:9,
Senior - 92:17,	Shifted - 26:9	Smaller - 12:16,	36:1, 39:10, 40:20,	173:25, 190:8,
149:3, 195:15,	Ship - 93:1, 100:9	139:16	40:25, 42:5, 122:8,	190:18
205:21	Shock - 44:25,	SMITH - 213:23	128:11, 152:1,	Submitted - 153:24
Separate - 20:7,	153:15 Shan 16:24	Smoothing - 35:19	152:4, 152:7,	Subsequent - 120:
20:9, 20:11, 144:10, 144:13	Shop - 16:24, 215:18	, 35:23, 36:1 Soldiers - 140:3	157:6, 157:9, 157:11, 157:15,	13, 170:22, 171:25 Subsequently - 86:
		Solution - 14:6		
Separately - 120:2	Shorter - 49:11 Shouldn't - 110:17	Solutions - 63:13	158:1, 223:3 Starting - 80:8,	20, 129:19, 132:23, 147:12, 151:9
September - 170:1	Show - 96:1,	Somewhat - 87:21,	121:20	Subsidies - 190:13
8	133:21, 135:6,	219:13	Starts - 54:6,	Subsidization - 21
Series - 193:1,	142:16, 143:25,	Sound - 52:9,	77:11, 151:15	8:19, 221:19
199:2	210:5	122:13	State - 4:19, 45:11,	Subsidized - 220:1
Serve - 63:4, 63:5,	Showed - 134:23	Sounded - 225:7	98:11, 185:12,	Substantive - 149:
65:2, 65:9, 68:22,	Shown - 111:12,	Sources - 218:16	185:14	23
191:14, 192:4	142:14	Space - 209:8,	Statement - 94:17,	Success - 158:5,
Served - 199:11	Shows - 142:12,	209:16, 209:17,	110:1	158:7
Service - 12:5,	143:1, 155:24	209:21, 212:7	Statements - 2:20	Successful - 162:2
15:20, 17:1, 17:8,	Side - 29:14, 42:12,	Spans - 22:7	Status - 92:11,	2, 204:4
24:10, 33:5, 33:7,	98:21, 98:24,	Speaks - 51:3	182:19	Succession - 183:
61:24, 62:7, 71:11,	106:3, 165:14,	Specialist - 126:10	Stay - 145:24,	6, 183:9, 183:20
73:14, 97:17,	172:1	, 130:11	170:11	Suffice - 162:5
148:15, 150:3,	Sigma - 109:1	Specialist/	Stayed - 17:12	Sufficient - 44:10,
150:4, 151:6,	Significance - 59:2	Analyst - 9:10	Steady - 50:11,	45:1
172:9, 178:16,	Significant - 51:21,	Specialized - 10:18	98:11	Suggestions - 108:
207:14, 222:20,	52:2, 53:8, 62:1,	Specific - 8:22,	Step - 78:14,	9, 108:12, 108:15
222:23, 225:15	63:16, 139:25,	26:2, 27:20, 28:11,	89:12, 91:20, 92:4,	Suggests - 171:22
Services - 8:10,	158:7, 176:14,	30:6, 47:15, 62:17,	198:7	Suited - 36:8
11:10, 12:3, 17:3,	181:14, 181:24,	128:12, 128:24,	Stepping - 93:13	Summary - 66:1
20:14, 76:9,	224:13	167:8, 184:20,	Steps - 44:8,	Summer - 192:20,
121:21, 125:18,	Significantly - 140:	206:9, 221:12	91:21, 94:10	203:3
126:1, 131:10,	20	Specifics - 47:21	Steward - 192:12	Superior - 2:3,
132:14, 136:11,	Similar - 42:21,	Spend - 205:11	Stop - 71:20,	2:23, 2:25, 3:18,
174:25, 175:17,	108:19, 108:22,	Spent - 13:18	225:20	6:11
178:18, 180:15,	218:23	Sphere - 206:22	Straight - 1:5,	Supervisor - 16:24
181:19, 181:21,	Simple - 105:3	Split - 119:2	111:8	Supervisors - 16:2
182:7, 185:3	Sits - 9:4	Spoken - 108:18,	Strange - 65:7	5 Supplement 59:1
Serving - 65:5	Sitting - 9:11,	192:10	Strategic - 31:13	Supplement - 58:1
Session - 78:12	136:9, 138:18,	Sponsoring - 30:2	Strategy - 31:9,	Supplies 100:2
Sessions - 100:14,	181:20 Situation - 83:16	2 Spot - 28:10 68:5	48:23, 196:18 Stroots - 183:13	Supplies - 190:2
128:8, 150:11 Set - 4:14, 55:13,	Situation - 83:16 Situations - 75:9	Spot - 28:19, 68:5 Spreadsheet - 83:1	Streets - 183:13 Stretch - 194:10,	Supply - 54:5, 54:12, 54:16,
109:18, 149:22,	Six - 64:9, 64:13,	Square - 88:20,	206:3	54:23, 57:17, 63:7,
161:6, 174:3,	109:1, 124:7,	160:23, 170:1	Strictly - 33:6	63:9, 185:2, 189:15
213:7, 213:9	124:8, 128:14,	Stab - 217:3	Strike - 5:18	Support - 19:5,
Setting - 219:3	146:7, 167:11,	Stability - 3:15	Stronger - 191:14,	20:9, 20:11, 24:6,
Settle - 88:17	168:3, 168:4	Staff - 86:11, 159:9	192:4	28:2, 37:21, 45:19
Settlement - 18:7,	Size - 68:3	Staffing - 84:14,	Structural - 75:8,	Supported - 153:1
122:19, 140:13,	Skills - 126:22,	89:25, 90:4, 183:17	150:8, 168:14	3
173:7	127:23	Stage - 64:22	Structure - 12:1,	Supporting - 24:13
Shape - 147:8	Skillset - 107:1	Stakeholder - 197:	14:12, 14:13, 21:3,	Supportive - 103:1

L

7 Supports - 19:23	155:23, 156:1, 173:18, 174:2,	219:4 Territory - 225:15	Thin - 47:13 Thoughtful - 22:10	144:20 Town - 225:1
Supposed - 214:19	213:6	Terse - 83:6	, 81:8, 107:11,	Tracked - 187:19
Survey - 85:24, 88:8, 193:1	Targeted - 151:15 Targets - 36:2,	Test - 17:21, 65:22, 66:3, 67:4, 99:24,	110:8, 152:9 Three - 9:12,	Tracking - 144:20, 188:17
Sustainability - 16	160:12, 174:7	100:2, 101:18,	16:25, 64:9,	Trade - 145:24
5:13, 165:23, 166:7	Tasked - 104:21	102:11, 111:11,	136:24, 180:21	Traded - 135:3
Sustainable - 151:	Tax - 147:1,	111:12, 112:6,	Threshold - 70:22	Trades - 83:24,
10, 151:21, 152:21,	206:24, 217:13	112:12, 112:24,	Throw - 188:7	89:17, 89:19
157:2, 157:8,	Taxpayers - 57:22	113:7, 121:5,	Thrown - 214:21	Tragedy - 204:11
162:24, 163:5, 164:5, 165:5	Tea - 34:2 Team - 12:16, 14:1,	122:12, 122:15, 134:24, 135:4,	Thus - 4:13 Tie - 24:1	Train - 183:11 Trained - 109:2,
Sustaining - 164:9	15:4, 16:18, 20:8,	144:19, 153:22,	Tier - 218:8	109:4
Swings - 98:9	47:18, 47:19, 75:3,	169:20, 171:20,	Tight - 18:9, 18:13,	Training - 150:2,
Switch - 191:9	76:3, 77:19, 82:12,	172:15, 172:25,	77:24	152:22, 152:23,
Swung - 96:21,	83:8, 86:9, 89:7,	180:10, 180:25,	Tightening - 208:1	153:2, 153:3,
97:8	92:6, 100:6,	191:4 Tested - 51:7	Timeframe - 104:1 7, 135:6	153:6, 153:8,
System - 9:2, 9:3, 9:14, 10:20, 10:25,	102:14, 102:15, 102:20, 102:24,	Testimony - 94:25,	Timeline - 39:13	153:9, 163:1, 163:24, 164:4,
17:11, 32:25, 59:1,	104:7, 104:21,	197:8	Timelines - 67:12	164:10, 164:22,
59:20, 64:24,	105:14, 106:6,	Testing - 193:25	Times - 127:13,	165:10, 166:6,
65:12, 72:15, 84:2,	106:9, 106:24,	Tests - 99:22	142:14	182:17, 223:11,
123:24, 162:12,	107:16, 107:21,	Thanks - 134:12	Timing - 42:13,	223:12
183:11, 200:7,	108:12, 109:11, 109:14, 110:9,	Theory - 2:10, 4:3, 4:4	44:10, 53:3, 58:24, 62:4, 141:20,	Trajectory - 94:8 Transactional - 14:
214:9, 217:8, 218:8, 218:20,	125:17, 138:19,	There'd - 10:10	142:2, 155:7,	4
218:25, 219:5,	147:8, 147:9,	Therefore - 170:21	178:11, 193:3	Transcript - 1:17
221:17	173:23, 207:18,	Thermal - 211:21,	TL267 - 181:23	Transfer - 8:16,
Systematic - 22:10	216:7, 216:11	212:1	Today - 46:24,	10:1, 10:3, 11:14,
, 106:15	Teams - 108:2,	These - 6:9, 22:9,	57:4, 61:24, 65:5,	116:11, 137:19
Systems - 9:5, 17:14, 159:24,	127:4 Team's - 85:23	24:19, 25:12, 46:6, 66:11, 107:21,	66:6, 93:3, 105:11, 133:8, 159:3,	Transferred - 7:24, 8:20, 13:16, 119:17,
159:25, 160:15,	Technical - 17:3,	112:13, 120:24,	194:4, 210:4,	136:4, 136:8
163:10, 190:15,	126:10, 126:16,	124:7, 124:8,	210:20, 210:21	Transferring - 10:1
209:22, 213:1,	127:24, 130:11	124:23, 130:16,	Today's - 53:9	1, 137:12
213:5, 214:8	Technology - 11:2	130:24, 131:12,	Tomorrow - 225:25	Transfers - 8:1,
	3, 20:15	131:20, 132:19,	, 226:3	11:12, 120:25,
	TEMPLETON - 144 :6	157:2, 162:23, 174:3, 174:4,	Took - 114:24 Tool - 82:25	139:21 Transition - 14:22,
Table - 41:25, 42:4,	Temporaries - 83:2	174:7, 181:25,	Tools - 19:10,	17:13, 96:11, 96:16,
111:10, 111:12,	1	205:12, 212:5,	161:20	98:1, 136:10,
112:10, 112:11, 113:1, 113:11,	Temporary - 130:9,	221:13	Top - 26:6, 58:16,	152:5, 157:10
114:3, 114:6, 116:2,	130:24	They'd - 185:24	113:16, 118:9,	Translated - 2:16
121:6, 134:5,	Ten - 64:11, 64:12, 79:14, 81:1, 97:10	They'll - 64:4, 64:7, 65:18, 68:7, 68:9,	119:6, 121:2, 140:6, 169:8, 169:18,	Transmission - 63:
134:7, 134:25,	Tendency - 192:22,	68:12	192:1, 209:12	8, 64:25, 140:5, 162:1
135:1, 135:20,	222:17	They're - 19:3,	Topics - 192:24	Transpires - 57:7
136:24, 139:12, 143:15, 143:24,	Term - 14:10, 17:5,	20:18, 64:14, 78:6,	Total - 56:4, 56:6,	Travel - 150:1,
144:11, 144:12,	88:13, 127:1,	82:19, 82:21,	115:21, 121:8,	163:3, 163:24,
154:25, 186:7,	130:10, 148:21,	82:23, 102:2,	121:14, 121:22,	164:1, 164:9,
186:11, 221:1,	150:20, 150:21, 151:19, 152:9,	102:10, 103:20, 103:22, 103:23,	154:25, 166:23, 171:15, 171:16,	165:1, 166:6 Travelled - 49:10
221:6	152:15, 152:18,	107:23, 108:7,	174:24, 176:2	Treasury - 147:1
Tables - 42:9, 142:11, 155:16	152:19, 153:18,	108:13, 111:23,	Touch - 89:4,	Treat - 144:12,
Taking - 2:11,	153:25, 157:7,	121:11, 189:24,	225:17	193:18
28:14, 81:8, 83:17,	157:8, 168:18,	190:18, 192:18,	Touched - 85:17,	Treatment - 225:3
160:3, 161:22,	172:6, 201:15, 205:15, 205:22,	204:3, 212:1, 212:2, 217:13	89:23, 126:24, 197:7	Tremendous - 98:5 Trend - 173:19
207:1	206:11, 221:22	They've - 28:10,	Touted - 12:12	Trial - 4:2
Target - 36:14, 155:12, 155:14,	Terminals - 83:17	63:11, 104:4, 108:2,	Towards - 36:3,	Turn - 55:20,
155:12, 155:14, 155:19,	Terribly - 196:24,	108:12, 125:9	53:14, 127:23,	66:22, 134:16,

Т

L

148:5, 174:23,	189:6, 204:20,	V	5:18, 6:15, 6:18,	210:11, 225:2
176:9	204:23, 211:6,	Vacancies - 18:5,	210:25, 225:3	Winter - 192:23
Turnover - 16:21,	211:8, 219:19,	18:19, 19:7, 106:3,	Ways - 109:5,	Wish - 22:12
81:12, 183:15	220:9, 222:1,	112:10, 112:18,	109:6, 153:4	Witness - 16:9
Tweak - 22:19	222:2, 224:9	113:3, 120:15,	Websites - 215:9	Won't - 169:11,
Tweeze - 24:23	Undertakings - 13	150:12, 181:3	Website's - 218:15	179:25, 221:5
Tweezing - 11:19	6:20, 144:10,	Vacancy - 18:8,	We'd - 64:5,	Wood - 209:20
Twenty - 101:6	144:13	18:16, 112:15,	158:20, 211:19,	Word - 11:17,
Two - 11:16, 17:4,	Underway - 101:8,	112:25, 114:4,	211:22, 219:23	22:19, 24:25
17:25, 27:20, 28:7,	102:2, 105:11,	114:24, 122:23,	Weight - 162:6	Wording - 213:20
30:6, 62:6, 64:9,	110:19, 156:21	147:18, 154:14,	We'll - 7:10, 22:8,	Words - 86:24
64:13, 67:4,	Unfold - 21:15	160:6	60:14, 64:5, 64:8,	Work - 8:22, 8:24,
120:24, 126:2,	Unfortunately - 34:	Vacant - 129:13,	80:16, 129:3,	18:12, 19:2, 27:13,
129:19, 130:16,	21, 36:7, 42:13	130:1, 133:8	133:14, 143:25,	53:14, 77:13, 78:1,
137:18, 144:10,	Unheard - 108:24	Validity - 1:22,	188:22, 189:5,	79:19, 79:20,
144:12, 155:15,	Unintended - 97:1	4:21, 5:11	204:6, 207:24,	83:17, 83:25, 97:5,
163:25, 191:15, 192:5, 205:18,	8, 98:16, 157:4 Union - 101:2,	Valley - 68:5	220:9, 220:22, 221:3	98:3, 98:6, 105:12, 107:9, 138:8,
207:24, 218:8	101:10	Variability - 75:23	Weren't - 98:10,	138:10, 140:1,
Twofold - 90:6	Unique - 32:10	Variable - 206:13	137:3, 137:4, 156:9	140:3, 140:9,
Typically - 137:23,	Unit - 72:20, 77:21,	Vegetation - 163:1,	West - 62:15,	152:4, 156:21,
144:25	82:15, 160:12,	163:8, 163:12,	62:20, 64:22,	195:19, 222:6
144.20	216:19, 216:22,	163:21, 166:5	195:18	Worked - 47:22,
U	219:23, 221:14	Vehicles - 105:6	Whack - 93:11	86:20, 86:23,
	Units - 216:23	Vein - 193:19	What's - 44:14,	107:2, 107:3
Unbudgeted - 80:3	Unless - 38:2	Verbal - 74:20,	58:20, 66:1, 66:2,	Workers - 89:19
Uncertainty - 45:7,	Unlikely - 58:2,	74:23	87:22, 92:24, 96:7,	Working - 83:7,
45:9, 46:22, 50:6,	58:4	Versus - 22:11,	111:4, 155:7, 171:2,	85:1, 89:6, 140:8,
149:14, 149:15	Unscrambling - 22	55:13, 62:16,	188:16, 221:20	193:24, 195:16,
Unclear - 143:20	0:21	69:17, 87:7, 117:6,	Whatsoever - 75:1	224:21
Underlie - 152:9 Underneath - 152:	Unsustainable - 16	119:5, 138:5,	6	Workload - 129:18
	6:4	147:19, 150:21,	Whereby - 69:7	Workloads - 22:20
3, 158:21	Unusual - 2:11	153:7, 171:2	Where's - 156:5	Workloads - 22:20 Workplans - 154:2
3, 158:21 Understands - 10:	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12,	Workplans - 154:2 0
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21,	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18,	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19,	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18,	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9,	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7 Undertaking - 1:12	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8, 217:10	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3 Volunteer - 206:25 Vps - 131:13	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1, 61:23, 63:10, 64:6,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14 Wrapped - 32:13
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7 Undertaking - 1:12 , 1:13, 2:1, 7:10,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8, 217:10 Used - 42:9, 74:13,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3 Volunteer - 206:25	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1, 61:23, 63:10, 64:6, 64:10, 65:22, 68:1,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14 Wrapped - 32:13 Writing - 126:18,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7 Undertaking - 1:12 , 1:13, 2:1, 7:10, 7:12, 55:3, 55:8,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8, 217:10 Used - 42:9, 74:13, 111:24, 161:21,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3 Volunteer - 206:25 Vps - 131:13	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1, 61:23, 63:10, 64:6, 64:10, 65:22, 68:1, 81:23, 82:18,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14 Wrapped - 32:13 Writing - 126:18, 127:24
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7 Undertaking - 1:12 , 1:13, 2:1, 7:10, 7:12, 55:3, 55:8, 60:10, 60:15,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8, 217:10 Used - 42:9, 74:13,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3 Volunteer - 206:25 Vps - 131:13 W Wabush - 59:24	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1, 61:23, 63:10, 64:6, 64:10, 65:22, 68:1,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14 Wrapped - 32:13 Writing - 126:18, 127:24 Written - 7:2,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7 Undertaking - 1:12, , 1:13, 2:1, 7:10, 7:12, 55:3, 55:8, 60:10, 60:15, 66:17, 66:20,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8, 217:10 Used - 42:9, 74:13, 111:24, 161:21, 220:24	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3 Volunteer - 206:25 Vps - 131:13 W Wabush - 59:24 Wage - 207:22	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1, 61:23, 63:10, 64:6, 64:10, 65:22, 68:1, 81:23, 82:18, 88:16, 92:24,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14 Wrapped - 32:13 Writing - 126:18, 127:24
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7 Undertaking - 1:12 , 1:13, 2:1, 7:10, 7:12, 55:3, 55:8, 60:10, 60:15, 66:17, 66:20, 67:18, 113:21,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8, 217:10 Used - 42:9, 74:13, 111:24, 161:21, 220:24 User - 192:6	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3 Volunteer - 206:25 Vps - 131:13 W Wabush - 59:24 Wage - 207:22 Walk - 82:6, 112:20	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1, 61:23, 63:10, 64:6, 64:10, 65:22, 68:1, 81:23, 82:18, 88:16, 92:24, 93:25, 97:25,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14 Wrapped - 32:13 Writing - 126:18, 127:24 Written - 7:2, 74:12, 86:3, 93:16,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7 Undertaking - 1:12 , 1:13, 2:1, 7:10, 7:12, 55:3, 55:8, 60:10, 60:15, 66:17, 66:20, 67:18, 113:21, 128:16, 129:3,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8, 217:10 Used - 42:9, 74:13, 111:24, 161:21, 220:24 User - 192:6 Using - 19:11,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3 Volunteer - 206:25 Vps - 131:13 W Wabush - 59:24 Wage - 207:22	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1, 61:23, 63:10, 64:6, 64:10, 65:22, 68:1, 81:23, 82:18, 88:16, 92:24, 93:25, 97:25, 124:14, 133:13,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14 Wrapped - 32:13 Writing - 126:18, 127:24 Written - 7:2, 74:12, 86:3, 93:16,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7 Undertaking - 1:12, 1:13, 2:1, 7:10, 7:12, 55:3, 55:8, 60:10, 60:15, 66:17, 66:20, 67:18, 113:21, 128:16, 129:3, 133:5, 133:25,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8, 217:10 Used - 42:9, 74:13, 111:24, 161:21, 220:24 User - 192:6 Using - 19:11, 210:6, 210:8,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3 Volunteer - 206:25 Vps - 131:13 W Wabush - 59:24 Wage - 207:22 Walk - 82:6, 112:20 Walking - 43:24	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1, 61:23, 63:10, 64:6, 64:10, 65:22, 68:1, 81:23, 82:18, 88:16, 92:24, 93:25, 97:25, 124:14, 133:13, 133:20, 136:20,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14 Wrapped - 32:13 Writing - 126:18, 127:24 Written - 7:2, 74:12, 86:3, 93:16, 155:19, 156:3 Y
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7 Undertaking - 1:12, , 1:13, 2:1, 7:10, 7:12, 55:3, 55:8, 60:10, 60:15, 66:17, 66:20, 67:18, 113:21, 128:16, 129:3, 133:5, 133:25, 134:7, 135:13,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8, 217:10 Used - 42:9, 74:13, 111:24, 161:21, 220:24 User - 192:6 Using - 19:11, 210:6, 210:8, 212:15, 214:9, 214:10, 221:11 Utilities - 2:13, 4:7,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3 Volunteer - 206:25 Vps - 131:13 Wabush - 59:24 Wage - 207:22 Walk - 82:6, 112:20 Walking - 43:24 Wasn't - 93:6,	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1, 61:23, 63:10, 64:6, 64:10, 65:22, 68:1, 81:23, 82:18, 88:16, 92:24, 93:25, 97:25, 124:14, 133:13, 133:20, 136:20, 144:23, 145:3, 154:8, 154:9, 154:21, 160:16,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14 Wrapped - 32:13 Writing - 126:18, 127:24 Written - 7:2, 74:12, 86:3, 93:16, 155:19, 156:3 Y Years - 3:11, 14:23,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7 Undertaking - 1:12, 1:13, 2:1, 7:10, 7:12, 55:3, 55:8, 60:10, 60:15, 66:17, 66:20, 67:18, 113:21, 128:16, 129:3, 133:5, 133:25, 134:7, 135:13, 136:12, 143:20,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8, 217:10 Used - 42:9, 74:13, 111:24, 161:21, 220:24 User - 192:6 Using - 19:11, 210:6, 210:8, 212:15, 214:9, 214:10, 221:11 Utilities - 2:13, 4:7, 89:21, 100:19,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3 Volunteer - 206:25 Vps - 131:13 W Wabush - 59:24 Wage - 207:22 Walk - 82:6, 112:20 Walking - 43:24 Wasn't - 93:6, 96:22, 127:2,	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1, 61:23, 63:10, 64:6, 64:10, 65:22, 68:1, 81:23, 82:18, 88:16, 92:24, 93:25, 97:25, 124:14, 133:13, 133:20, 136:20, 144:23, 145:3, 154:8, 154:9, 154:21, 160:16, 161:1, 183:15,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14 Wrapped - 32:13 Writing - 126:18, 127:24 Written - 7:2, 74:12, 86:3, 93:16, 155:19, 156:3 <u>Y</u> Years - 3:11, 14:23, 17:7, 48:7, 66:3,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7 Undertaking - 1:12, 1:13, 2:1, 7:10, 7:12, 55:3, 55:8, 60:10, 60:15, 66:17, 66:20, 67:18, 113:21, 128:16, 129:3, 133:5, 133:25, 134:7, 135:13, 136:12, 143:20, 143:21, 143:24,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8, 217:10 Used - 42:9, 74:13, 111:24, 161:21, 220:24 User - 192:6 Using - 19:11, 210:6, 210:8, 212:15, 214:9, 214:10, 221:11 Utilities - 2:13, 4:7, 89:21, 100:19, 215:9	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3 Volunteer - 206:25 Vps - 131:13 W Wabush - 59:24 Wage - 207:22 Walk - 82:6, 112:20 Walking - 43:24 Wasn't - 93:6, 96:22, 127:2, 140:23, 147:11, 147:14, 166:6, 184:23	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1, 61:23, 63:10, 64:6, 64:10, 65:22, 68:1, 81:23, 82:18, 88:16, 92:24, 93:25, 97:25, 124:14, 133:13, 133:20, 136:20, 144:23, 145:3, 154:8, 154:9, 154:21, 160:16, 161:1, 183:15, 198:19, 210:4,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14 Wrapped - 32:13 Writing - 126:18, 127:24 Written - 7:2, 74:12, 86:3, 93:16, 155:19, 156:3 <u>Y</u> Years - 3:11, 14:23, 17:7, 48:7, 66:3, 67:5, 75:24, 85:25,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7 Undertaking - 1:12, 1:13, 2:1, 7:10, 7:12, 55:3, 55:8, 60:10, 60:15, 66:17, 66:20, 67:18, 113:21, 128:16, 129:3, 133:5, 133:25, 134:7, 135:13, 136:12, 143:24, 144:8, 144:17,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8, 217:10 Used - 42:9, 74:13, 111:24, 161:21, 220:24 User - 192:6 Using - 19:11, 210:6, 210:8, 212:15, 214:9, 214:10, 221:11 Utilities - 2:13, 4:7, 89:21, 100:19, 215:9 Utility - 96:3,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3 Volunteer - 206:25 Vps - 131:13 W Wabush - 59:24 Wage - 207:22 Walk - 82:6, 112:20 Walking - 43:24 Wasn't - 93:6, 96:22, 127:2, 140:23, 147:11, 147:14, 166:6, 184:23 Waste - 109:5	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1, 61:23, 63:10, 64:6, 64:10, 65:22, 68:1, 81:23, 82:18, 88:16, 92:24, 93:25, 97:25, 124:14, 133:13, 133:20, 136:20, 144:23, 145:3, 154:8, 154:9, 154:21, 160:16, 161:1, 183:15, 198:19, 210:4, 221:5	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14 Wrapped - 32:13 Writing - 126:18, 127:24 Written - 7:2, 74:12, 86:3, 93:16, 155:19, 156:3 <u>Y</u> Years - 3:11, 14:23, 17:7, 48:7, 66:3, 67:5, 75:24, 85:25, 93:7, 100:2, 101:11,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7 Undertaking - 1:12, , 1:13, 2:1, 7:10, 7:12, 55:3, 55:8, 60:10, 60:15, 66:17, 66:20, 67:18, 113:21, 128:16, 129:3, 133:5, 133:25, 134:7, 135:13, 136:12, 143:20, 143:21, 143:24, 144:8, 144:17, 168:22, 169:1,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8, 217:10 Used - 42:9, 74:13, 111:24, 161:21, 220:24 User - 192:6 Using - 19:11, 210:6, 210:8, 212:15, 214:9, 214:10, 221:11 Utilities - 2:13, 4:7, 89:21, 100:19, 215:9 Utility - 96:3, 110:24, 159:8,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3 Volunteer - 206:25 Vps - 131:13 Wabush - 59:24 Wage - 207:22 Walk - 82:6, 112:20 Walking - 43:24 Wasn't - 93:6, 96:22, 127:2, 140:23, 147:11, 147:14, 166:6, 184:23 Waste - 109:5 Water - 1:13, 1:16,	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1, 61:23, 63:10, 64:6, 64:10, 65:22, 68:1, 81:23, 82:18, 88:16, 92:24, 93:25, 97:25, 124:14, 133:13, 133:20, 136:20, 144:23, 145:3, 154:8, 154:9, 154:21, 160:16, 161:1, 183:15, 198:19, 210:4, 221:5 Williams - 57:16,	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14 Wrapped - 32:13 Writing - 126:18, 127:24 Written - 7:2, 74:12, 86:3, 93:16, 155:19, 156:3 <u>Y</u> Years - 3:11, 14:23, 17:7, 48:7, 66:3, 67:5, 75:24, 85:25, 93:7, 100:2, 101:11, 101:18, 105:8,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7 Undertaking - 1:12, 1:13, 2:1, 7:10, 7:12, 55:3, 55:8, 60:10, 60:15, 66:17, 66:20, 67:18, 113:21, 128:16, 129:3, 133:5, 133:25, 134:7, 135:13, 136:12, 143:24, 144:8, 144:17,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8, 217:10 Used - 42:9, 74:13, 111:24, 161:21, 220:24 User - 192:6 Using - 19:11, 210:6, 210:8, 212:15, 214:9, 214:10, 221:11 Utilities - 2:13, 4:7, 89:21, 100:19, 215:9 Utility - 96:3, 110:24, 159:8, 193:9	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3 Volunteer - 206:25 Vps - 131:13 W Wabush - 59:24 Wage - 207:22 Walk - 82:6, 112:20 Walking - 43:24 Wasn't - 93:6, 96:22, 127:2, 140:23, 147:11, 147:14, 166:6, 184:23 Waste - 109:5 Water - 1:13, 1:16, 1:22, 1:23, 2:18,	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1, 61:23, 63:10, 64:6, 64:10, 65:22, 68:1, 81:23, 82:18, 88:16, 92:24, 93:25, 97:25, 124:14, 133:13, 133:20, 136:20, 144:23, 145:3, 154:8, 154:9, 154:21, 160:16, 161:1, 183:15, 198:19, 210:4, 221:5 Williams - 57:16, 70:18, 132:10	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14 Wrapped - 32:13 Writing - 126:18, 127:24 Written - 7:2, 74:12, 86:3, 93:16, 155:19, 156:3 <u>Y</u> Years - 3:11, 14:23, 17:7, 48:7, 66:3, 67:5, 75:24, 85:25, 93:7, 100:2, 101:11, 101:18, 105:8, 106:10, 108:23,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7 Undertaking - 1:12, , 1:13, 2:1, 7:10, 7:12, 55:3, 55:8, 60:10, 60:15, 66:17, 66:20, 67:18, 113:21, 128:16, 129:3, 133:5, 133:25, 134:7, 135:13, 136:12, 143:24, 144:8, 144:17, 168:22, 169:1, 169:16, 171:4,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8, 217:10 Used - 42:9, 74:13, 111:24, 161:21, 220:24 User - 192:6 Using - 19:11, 210:6, 210:8, 212:15, 214:9, 214:10, 221:11 Utilities - 2:13, 4:7, 89:21, 100:19, 215:9 Utility - 96:3, 110:24, 159:8,	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3 Volunteer - 206:25 Vps - 131:13 W Wabush - 59:24 Wage - 207:22 Walk - 82:6, 112:20 Walking - 43:24 Wasn't - 93:6, 96:22, 127:2, 140:23, 147:11, 147:14, 166:6, 184:23 Waste - 109:5 Water - 1:13, 1:16, 1:22, 1:23, 2:18, 3:2, 3:15, 4:8, 4:20,	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1, 61:23, 63:10, 64:6, 64:10, 65:22, 68:1, 81:23, 82:18, 88:16, 92:24, 93:25, 97:25, 124:14, 133:13, 133:20, 136:20, 144:23, 145:3, 154:8, 154:9, 154:21, 160:16, 161:1, 183:15, 198:19, 210:4, 221:5 Williams - 57:16, 70:18, 132:10 Willing - 64:18	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14 Wrapped - 32:13 Writing - 126:18, 127:24 Written - 7:2, 74:12, 86:3, 93:16, 155:19, 156:3 <u>Y</u> Years - 3:11, 14:23, 17:7, 48:7, 66:3, 67:5, 75:24, 85:25, 93:7, 100:2, 101:11, 101:18, 105:8,
3, 158:21 Understands - 10: 19, 107:9, 199:16 Understood - 30:1 4, 50:12, 53:5, 59:16, 80:7, 86:1, 101:23, 146:8, 149:13, 216:1, 221:24 Undertake - 6:9, 113:19, 187:5, 210:4, 210:11, 224:7 Undertaking - 1:12, , 1:13, 2:1, 7:10, 7:12, 55:3, 55:8, 60:10, 60:15, 66:17, 66:20, 67:18, 113:21, 128:16, 129:3, 133:5, 133:25, 134:7, 135:13, 136:12, 143:20, 143:21, 143:24, 144:8, 144:17, 168:22, 169:1, 169:16, 171:4, 171:11, 171:13,	Unusual - 2:11 Update - 39:7, 42:19, 134:7, 142:15, 179:1, 179:15 Updated - 143:14, 143:15, 143:17, 143:25, 210:3 Upshot - 3:7, 3:18 Uptake - 224:12, 224:16 Usage - 217:8, 217:10 Used - 42:9, 74:13, 111:24, 161:21, 220:24 User - 192:6 Using - 19:11, 210:6, 210:8, 212:15, 214:9, 214:10, 221:11 Utilities - 2:13, 4:7, 89:21, 100:19, 215:9 Utility - 96:3, 110:24, 159:8, 193:9	153:7, 171:2 Via - 29:7, 202:13 Vice - 121:21, 147:6, 171:18, 222:19 View - 3:12, 95:19, 125:21 Vigorous - 162:4 Visibility - 39:18, 43:5, 150:9, 150:14, 191:3 Volunteer - 206:25 Vps - 131:13 W Wabush - 59:24 Wage - 207:22 Walk - 82:6, 112:20 Walking - 43:24 Wasn't - 93:6, 96:22, 127:2, 140:23, 147:11, 147:14, 166:6, 184:23 Waste - 109:5 Water - 1:13, 1:16, 1:22, 1:23, 2:18,	Where's - 156:5 Whole - 58:12, 71:19, 123:22 Wholesale - 22:16, 73:9, 199:20 Who've - 107:3 Will - 6:8, 7:8, 16:8, 16:9, 17:16, 18:12, 21:8, 21:20, 22:3, 25:16, 27:15, 38:21, 45:10, 54:24, 55:3, 59:1, 61:23, 63:10, 64:6, 64:10, 65:22, 68:1, 81:23, 82:18, 88:16, 92:24, 93:25, 97:25, 124:14, 133:13, 133:20, 136:20, 144:23, 145:3, 154:8, 154:9, 154:21, 160:16, 161:1, 183:15, 198:19, 210:4, 221:5 Williams - 57:16, 70:18, 132:10	Workplans - 154:2 0 Works - 9:15, 10:20, 19:25, 28:19, 80:17, 82:8 Wouldn't - 11:4, 11:24, 31:17, 42:4, 57:10, 70:17, 71:3, 71:14, 123:22, 153:19, 154:1, 184:9, 209:11, 214:3, 225:14 Wrapped - 32:13 Writing - 126:18, 127:24 Written - 7:2, 74:12, 86:3, 93:16, 155:19, 156:3 <u>Y</u> Years - 3:11, 14:23, 17:7, 48:7, 66:3, 67:5, 75:24, 85:25, 93:7, 100:2, 101:11, 101:18, 105:8, 106:10, 108:23, 120:14, 121:4,

Year's - 220:19 Yesterday - 1:12, 1:18, 1:20, 5:9, 15:17, 19:21, 58:24, 76:8, 76:23, 85:18, 91:6, 105:2, 149:9, 168:16, 186:5, 186:9 You'd - 28:23, 29:1, 70:23, 145:13, 153:20, 170:1 You'll - 7:5, 17:24, 21:22, 25:12, 80:16, 173:5, 174:12, 219:18 YOUNG - 5:2, 67:19, 136:22, 137:7, 210:15, 210:23, 220:11, 221:23 You're - 15:8, 18:15, 23:25, 29:19, 47:9, 52:14, 76:7, 81:6, 93:16, 96:1, 100:23, 143:5, 143:11, 151:20, 161:6, 162:1, 170:9, 172:25, 183:24,	166:14, 177:13, 177:15, 177:23, 178:2 '19 - 112:6 \$ \$70-80,000 - 170:1 7 026 - 19:20, 23:8 1.1 - 105:25 1.6 - 101:13 1.8 - 101:13 1.9 - 164:1 1:01 - 198:14 1:07 - 204:23 1:12 - 211:8 1:15 - 206:19 1:22 - 222:2 1:26 - 224:9 1:27 - 226:4 1:30 - 225:20 10 - 2:15, 115:17, 139:4, 142:13, 155:24 _ 182:6	124 - 162:23 13 - 61:24, 112:8, 114:3, 117:3, 119:3, 119:9, 120:1, 142:23, 146:12, 209:25, 218:7 130 - 171:19 14 - 146:12 142 - 171:19 15 - 112:16, 140:15, 140:17 15.8 - 216:21 16.2 - 216:21 16.2 - 216:22 17 - 50:7, 176:4, 177:1, 212:19 17.2 - 216:22 17/18 - 52:12, 53:14, 213:7 18 - 52:8, 62:6, 63:11, 212:19 19 - 41:22, 41:23, 162:20, 165:2 198 - 182:11 2 2.1 - 20:16 20 - 97:11, 115:20	18:24, 59:25, 74:11, 100:2, 111:11, 121:5, 134:24, 135:4, 139:6, 165:4, 182:13, 191:4 2021 - 42:3 21 - 43:11 21.37 - 42:18 210 - 191:21 21 - 191:21 22 - 40:1, 43:11, 214:18 22.89 - 42:2 23 - 40:24 24 - 63:11, 176:3 25 - 105:8, 163:11, 176:6 26 - 214:18 27 - 140:7 272 - 61:25, 66:23 275 - 61:25, 66:23 275 - 61:25, 66:23 29 - 163:11 3.1 - 111:10 3.4 - 111:9 3.5 - 164:1 30 - 7:20 - 209:15	117:25, 118:5, 119:7, 119:16, 120:16, 174:23, 177:4, 180:7 45 - 141:11 46 - 114:5, 114:15, 114:24 5 50 - 110:15 51 - 74:8 54 - 150:17 55 - 3:24, 9:8, 112:18, 113:4, 186:6 58 - 7:23 59 - 134:16, 144:9 6 60 - 9:8, 99:5 60.4 - 186:12 64 - 165:15, 167:2 65 - 99:5 68 - 165:15, 167:2 7 7.75 - 65:2 721 - 114:8
76:7, 81:6, 93:16, 96:1, 100:23, 143:5, 143:11, 151:20, 161:6, 162:1, 170:9, 172:25, 183:24, 188:7, 200:12, 200:14, 200:19, 201:13, 201:15, 202:23, 203:6, 203:25, 204:1, 205:7, 212:12, 212:16, 214:9, 217:19, 221:11, 221:14, 222:5 Yourselves - 204:1 3, 204:20, 205:8 You've - 16:1, 19:15, 21:6, 23:16,	1:26 - 224:9 1:27 - 226:4 1:30 - 225:20 10 - 2:15, 115:17,	162:20, 165:2 198 - 182:11 2	3 3.1 - 111:10 3.4 - 111:9	65 - 99:5 68 - 165:15, 167:2 7 7.75 - 65:2 721 - 114:8 76 - 175:23, 176:20, 179:10, 179:15 77 - 176:9, 178:23, 179:2, 179:10 8 809 - 115:6, 115:19, 116:3, 167:12, 167:19 815 - 139:13, 141:5, 167:12,
53:6, 61:18, 65:17, 125:15, 161:6, 162:17, 163:2, 196:12, 205:1 Zero - 101:9, 101:20 '13 - 96:18, 120:18 '14 - 96:18, 193:22 '15 - 96:18, 176:8, 193:23 '16 - 120:20, 176:8, 176:15, 177:11 '17 - 98:5, 120:6, 120:20, 141:15,	11:32 - 110.22 11:42 - 128:16 11:48 - 133:25 11:49 - 135:13 11:50 - 136:12 11:57 - 143:21 110 - 56:12 115 - 56:12 115 - 56:12 118 - 139:11 12.2 - 218:6 12.5 - 218:6 12:45 - 159:18 12:25 - 169:1 12:26 - 171:4 12:30 - 174:21 12:35 - 179:4 12:45 - 187:11 122 - 41:22, 214:17	149:10, 149:22, 153:24, 155:3, 155:4, 165:1, 174:13, 176:3, 187:10, 193:4 2018 - 18:22, 19:14, 21:8, 25:12, 33:6, 59:25, 100:2, 101:7, 112:5, 122:13, 135:8, 139:6, 140:11, 144:19, 145:11, 146:11, 165:4, 169:19, 170:7, 171:3, 173:18, 180:10, 180:25, 207:25 2018-2019 - 65:21 2019 - 4:16, 18:22,	110:3, 119:0, 119:18 35 - 121:14, 121:24, 122:11, 123:2, 123:15, 134:21, 139:15, 145:8, 146:18 36 - 121:17, 121:19 38,000 - 199:16, 199:24, 200:3, 201:2 39 - 164:16 40 - 3:11, 110:15, 112:14, 112:17, 112:25, 113:3, 116:25, 117:1, 117:6, 117:8,	167:20 826 - 114:17, 114:23, 115:1, 116:3, 116:23, 117:24, 118:1, 119:14, 122:9, 123:2, 123:14 829 - 115:21 846 - 116:24, 122:15, 122:17 85 - 209:24 850 - 139:6 852 - 139:6, 140:17, 144:20 860 - 117:25, 139:8, 139:13, 140:22 861 - 122:11, 123:8, 123:14, 123:16

866 - 123:11, 123:14 872 - 114:4, 114:5, 114:9, 114:22, 114:24, 117:4, 117:14, 117:25, 119:12 888 - 112:7, 112:15, 113:2, 113:5, 116:6		
9 9:02 - 1:1 9:10 - 7:12 9:15 - 14:8 9:30 - 26:24 9:45 - 43:1 9:57 - 55:8 906 - 117:5, 117:19 943 - 112:12, 112:23, 113:5,		
114:8		